
AGENDA for the Joint Meeting of the 

Sierra County Board of Education 

and the 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board 

December 17, 2024 

5:00pm CLOSED Session 

6:00pm Regular Session 

Meeting Location: 

Downieville: Downieville School, 130 School St, Downieville CA 95936 

Zoom for the public: 

Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8786 l 737673 

Phone dial-in: 669-900-9128 (Press *6 to unmute) 

Webinar JD: 878 6173 7673 

Board Members: 

Area I: Patty Hall (Clerk) - phall@spjusd.org 

Area 2: Rhynie Hollitz - rhollitz@spjusd.org 

Area 3: John Martinetti - (email not yet available) 

Area 4: Kelly Champion (President) - kchampion@spjusd.org 

Area 5: Richard Jaquez - rjaquez@spjusd.org 

Any individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications including auxiliary aids and services in order 

to participate in the Board meeting should contact the Superintendent(s) or designee in writing. 

Any student or parent/guardian who wishes to have directory information or personal information, as defined in Education 

Code 49061 and/or 49073.2, be excluded from the minutes should contact the Superintendent(s) or designee in writing. 

Public inspection of agenda documents that are distributed to the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting, will be made 

available at Sierra County Office of Education, Room 3, I 09 Beckwith Road, Loyalton, CA, 96118, and posted with the online 

agenda at http://www.sierracountyschools.org (Government Code 54957.5). 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Please be advised that this meeting will be recorded.

B. OATH OF OFFICE

1. Patty Hall, Trustee Area #1 (Pike, Alleghany, Forest City, Goodyears Bar, Downieville),

Appointment in Lieu of Election, 4-year term

2. Rhynie Hollitz, Trustee Area #2 (Sierraville, Sierra City, Sattley), Appointment in Lieu

of Election, 2-year term

3. John Martinetti, Trustee Area #3 (Calpine, Vinton, Chilcoot), Appointment in Lieu of

Election, 4-year term

4. Richard Jaquez, Trustee Area #5 (City of Loyalton), Appointment in Lieu of Election,

2-year term

C. ROLL CALL

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

E. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION

At this time, the meeting opens for any public comments regarding the Closed Session item(s).

Page 1 of5 
SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Agenda - December 17, 2024 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87861737673


F. CLOSED SESSION

The Board will move into Closed Session to discuss the following item(s):

1. Government Code 54956.9

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(d)(2) or (3)

Number of potential cases: two (2)

2. Government Code 54956.8

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS

Property: 105 Beckwith St, Loyalton CA 96118

Sierra COE Negotiator: James Berardi, Superintendent

Party with whom Sierra COE is Negotiating: City of Loyalton

Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment

3. Government Code 54957

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Title: District Superintendent

G. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION and ADJOURN FOR BREAK

H. 6:00PM - RECONVENE

I. FLAG SALUTE

J. REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION

K. ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING-BOARD ORGANIZATION

1. Election of Officers for 2025

a. President
b. Vice President
c. Clerk

2. Appointment of the County Superintendent as the Board Secretary for SCOE

3. Appointment of the District Superintendent as the Board Secretary for SPJUSD

4. Discussion of Committees

5. Approval of the Board Meeting Calendars for 2025
a. Joint Meeting Schedule**
b. Schedule of Annual Governance Matters**

6. Board Goals and Planning

L. INFORMATION ITEMS

1. Superintendent Reports

COUNTY-SCOE 

a. Possible new District Office construction

b. SELPA reconfiguration

c. Recognition of Adrienne Garza for 20 years of service as of November 2024

d. SCOE Personnel Items:

1. Resignation for Cheyenne Wilkinson, Instruc.tional Aide, T .oyalton

________________ ____.i:.;(li;.ruentacy _.,..,,,"""..,,.'-'-'--"13 • E 2 hours/d• y effective December 13 2024 

DISTRICT-SPJUSD 

e. Ethnic Studies Community Meetings

f. California School Dashboard Release**

Page 2 of 5 
SCOE & SP JUSD Joint Meeting Agenda - December 17, 2024 



g. Facilities update

h. Transportation update

i. Chronic Absenteeism Rates/ Attendance Tracking*

2. Business Report

a. Third Month SPJUSD Enrollments for the 2024-2025 School Year**

b. Most recent Inter-District Attendance Agreements approved**

c. The SCOE/SPJUSD Office will be closed to the public for Winter Break:

December 23, 2024, through January 03, 2025

3. SPT A Report

4. Committee/Board Member Reports

5. Public Comment -This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing

board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing board. Three (3)

minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.

M. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Joint Meeting held November 12, 2024**

2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 11/01/2024 through 11/30/2024

a. SCOE**

b. SPJUSD**

3. Approval of the following SPJUSD personnel items:

a. Resignation for Sarai White, Bilingual Parent Liaison/ELPAC Coordinator,

Districtwide, 1.0 FTE, effective December 11, 2024

b. Authorization to fill Bilingual Parent Liaison/ELPAC Coordinator,

Districtwide, 1.0 FTE

c. Employment of Sarai White on a Provisional Intern Permit (PIP) for the

assignment of TK Teacher at Loyalton Elementary School, 1.0 FTE, effective

December 12, 2025

d. Resignation for Cheyenne Wilkinson, Instructional Aide, Loyalton Elementary

School, .63 FTE (3.75 hours/day), effective December 13, 2024

e. Authorization to fill Instructional Aide, Loyalton Elementary School, .63 FTE

(3.75 hours/day)

f. Assignment oflsabel McMillan, Expanded Leaming Opportunity Program

(ELO-P) Instructor, Downieville, .88 FTE (5.25 hours/day), effective

December 10, 2024

N. ACTION ITEMS

1. Old Business

a. Award of contract to the lowest responsive responsible bidder for the

Downieville School Roof Project, Contract No. 2025-014D

2. New Business

COUNTY & DISTRICT-SCOE & SPJUSD 

a. Adoption of the 2024-2025 First Interim Actuals and Criteria and Standards

Reports as of October 31, 2024

1. SCOE**

2. SPJUSD**

Page 3 of5 
SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Agenda - December 17, 2024 



b. Approval of the Tentative Agreement for Classified Employees, 2024-25

Negotiations**

DISTRICT-SPJUSD 

c. Approval to apply for re-opening County-District-School (CDS) code for

Loyalton Middle School

d. Approval of new Job Description and Salary Schedule for School Community

Outreach Worker**

e. Authorization to fill School Community Outreach Worker, Districtwide, .5 FTE

f. Approval of updated Classified Salary Schedule due to California Minimum

Wage increase to $16.50 effective January 1, 2025 (see Salary Schedule from

item f.)

g. Approval of REVISED Assignments to Teach Core Subjects out of Credential

Authorization for the 2024-2025 school year**

BOARD POLICIES AND BYLAWS 

Board Bylaw 9310: "The Superintendent or designee shall develop and present a first 
reading at a public Board meeting and action may be taken on the proposed policy. 
'l'he Board may require additional readings if necessary." 

Batch from October 811
' - Second Reading

h. 9010-Public StatementsN\ 

1. 9012-Board Member Electronic CommunicationsN\ 

J. 9220---Goveming Board Elections

1. BylawN\ 

2. Exhibit - NEWN\ 

k. 9223-Filling VacanciesN\ 

1. 9320-Meetings and NoticesN\ 

m. 9323.2-Actions by the Board

1. BylawN\ 

2. Exhibit (1), revisionsN\ 

3. Exhibit (2), DELETE

New for December 17 1h 
- First Reading

n. 0510-School Accountability Report Card**

o. 1114-District-Sponsored Social Media**

p. 4040-Employee Use of Technology**

q. 5144.1-Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process**

r. 5147-Dropout Prevention**

s. 6112-School Day**

t. 6142.92-Mathematics Instruction**

u. 6152.1-Placement in Mathematics Courses**

v. 6163.4-Student Use of Technology**

0. ADVANCED PLANNING

1. The next Regular Joint Board Meeting will be held on January 14, 2025, at Sierra County

Office of Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118 at 6:00pm. If

needed, Closed Session may be held before the Regular session beginning at 5:00pm.

Zoom videoconferencing will be available for the public.

Page 4 of5 

SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Agenda - December 17, 2024 



2. Suggested Agenda Items

P. ADJOURN

James Berardi, 

County Superintendent 

** enclosed 

* handout

AA prior meeting handout 

Sean Snider, 

District Superintendent 

James Berardi, County Superintendent - jberardi@spjusd.org 

Sean Snider, District Superintendent- ssnider@spjusd.org 

Kristie Jacobsen, Executive Assistant to the Superintendents - kjacobsen@spjusd.org 

Randy Jones, Director of Business Services/CBO - rjones@spjusd.org 

Office: 530-993-1660 x0 

Email schoolinfo@spjusd.org to be added to the agenda email list. 

Page 5 of5 
SCOE & SP JUSD Joint Meeting Agenda - December 17, 2024 



 

Pending approval:  December 17, 2024 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

and 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD 
 

2025 Joint Meeting Schedule 
 

All regular meetings are held on the second Tuesday of the month 

unless otherwise indicated below. 

JANUARY 14, 2025 ........................................... Loyalton 

FEBRUARY 11, 2025 ........................................ Downieville 

MARCH 18, 2025 (third Tuesday) .................... Loyalton 

APRIL 08, 2025 ................................................. Downieville 

MAY 13, 2025 ..................................................... Loyalton 

JUNE 10, 2025 ................................................... Downieville 

JUNE 24, 2025 (second June meeting) .............. Loyalton (@5pm) 

JULY 29, 2025 (last Tuesday) ............................ Loyalton 

AUGUST 12, 2025 ............................................ Downieville 

SEPTEMBER 09, 2025 ...................................... Loyalton 

OCTOBER 14, 2025 ......................................... Downieville 

NOVEMBER 12, 2025 (Wednesday) ............... Loyalton 

DECEMBER 09, 2025....................................... Downieville 

 
The Sierra County Board of Education and the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Governing Board joint regular meetings will begin at 6:00 pm unless otherwise indicated above 

or changed and approved by the Board for special circumstances. 

 

Closed Session may be held before or after the regular meeting. 

 

Special Meetings and Emergency Meetings will be held in Loyalton unless otherwise noted on 

the agenda. 

 

Email schoolinfo@spjusd.org to be added to the agenda email list. 

mailto:schoolinfo@spjusd.org


Page 1 of 2 
Pending approval: December 17, 2024 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

and 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD  
 

2025 Schedule of Annual Governance Matters 
 

**Timelines are subject to change based on the availability of information for each corresponding 

item at the time of the agenda postings** 

 

JANUARY 14, 2025 ........................................... Loyalton 

• Update on District Superintendent’s goals for 2024-2025 

• Acceptance of the 2023-2024 Audit Reports 

• Approval of the Quarter 2 report on Williams Uniform Complaints 

• Approval of the SARC reports 

• Approval of the Pesticide Use Reporting for 2024 

• Approval of the Integrated Pest Management Plan for 2025 

 

FEBRUARY 11, 2025 ........................................ Downieville 

• Approval of the 2025-2026 Interlocal Contract with Washoe County School District 

• Annual update on the 2024-2025 LCAP 

 

MARCH 18, 2025 .............................................. Loyalton 

• Update on District Superintendent’s goals for 2024-2025 

• Begin 2024-2025 District Superintendent Evaluation process 

• Approval of the 2024-2025 Second Interim reports (thru January 31
st

) 

• Approval of the 2025-2026 School Calendars 

• Approval of the 2024-2025 Transportation Plans 

 

APRIL 08, 2025 .................................................. Downieville 

• Approval of the Quarter 3 report on Williams Uniform Complaints 

• 2025-2026 Extra Duty Assignments and Stipends to be filled 

 

MAY 13, 2025 .................................................... Loyalton 

• District Superintendent’s 2024-2025 Evaluation (Closed Session) – complete by June 30, 2025 

• District Superintendent’s final report on 2024-2025 goals 

 

JUNE 10, 2025 ................................................... Downieville 

• District Superintendent’s 2024-2025 Evaluation (Closed Session) – complete by June 30, 2025 

• Annual Services Agreements for 2025-2026 between SCOE and SPJUSD 

• Public Hearing and Presentation of the 2025-2026 LCAP 

• Public Hearing and Presentation of the 2025-2026 Budgets 

• Public Hearing for the 2025-2026 Proposition 30 (EPA) Funding 

• Public Hearing and Adoption of the 2025-2026 SELPA Annual Service and Budget Plan 

• Annual review of policies: 

o 5116.1—Intradistrict Open Enrollment 

o 6145—Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities 



Page 2 of 2 
Pending approval: December 17, 2024 

 

JUNE 24, 2025 (second June meeting).............. Loyalton (@5pm) 

• Adoption of the 2025-2026 LCAP 

• Adoption of the 2025-2026 Budgets 

• Adoption of Dashboard Local Indicators 

 

JULY 29, 2025 (last Tuesday) ............................ Loyalton 

• District Superintendent’s draft presentation of 2025-2026 goals (Closed Session) 

• Approval of the Quarter 4 report on Williams Uniform Complaints 

• Authorization to submit the 2025-2026 Consolidated Applications 

• Resolutions authorizing 2025-2026 Fund Transfers between SPJUSD and SCOE 

 

AUGUST 12, 2025 ............................................ Downieville 

• District Superintendent’s presentation of 2025-2026 goals 

• Public Hearings for the Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators 

• Approval of the Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators for the 2025-2026 

School Year 

• Approval of the CBEST Waiver for Substitute Teachers 

• Approval of the Certificated Substitute Lists 

• Approval of Assignments to Teach Core Subjects out of Credential Authorization for the 

2025-2026 School Year 

• Annual updates to IIPP 

 

SEPTEMBER 09, 2025 ..................................... Loyalton 

• Resolutions for Adopting the Gann Limits 

• Annual review of the Safe Schools Plan 

• Presentation of School Facilities Priorities for each school for 2024-2025 

 

OCTOBER 14, 2025 ......................................... Downieville 

• Approval of the Quarter 1 report on Williams Uniform Complaints 

• Adoption of Unaudited Actuals for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2025 

• Public Hearings regarding the Sufficiency of Textbooks and Instructional Materials 

• Resolutions declaring Sufficiency of Textbooks or Instructional Materials for the 2025-

2026 School Year 

 

NOVEMBER 12, 2025 (Wednesday) ............... Loyalton 

• Career Technical Education (CTE) 2024-2025 annual report 

• California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) 2024-2025 annual 

report 

 

DECEMBER 09, 2025 ....................................... Downieville 

• Annual Organizational Meeting 

• County Office of Education/District Office closed to the public for Winter Break: TBD 

• Approval of the 2025-2026 First Interim Reports (thru October 31
st

) 

• First reading of SARC reports 

• Begin review of budget for potential layoffs ~ notices must be delivered by March 15th 



12/17/2024

1

1

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
2023-2024

California School Dashboard Data

2

What is the California School 
Dashboard?

1) Part of the State Accountability System
2) Intended to inform the public
3) Tracks school and district performance in academics, graduation 

rates, chronic absenteeism, climate, and more.
4) Identifies gaps in performance across student groups 

(socioeconomically disadvantaged, homeless, etc)
5) Color-coded indicators guide districts and schools in focusing on 

areas needing growth.



12/17/2024

2

3

Dashboard “Baseball Cards”

4



12/17/2024

3

5

District Student Population

6

State Student Population



12/17/2024

4

7

District Performance

8

State Performance



12/17/2024

5

9

95% Participation Rate Penalty

10

ELA Participation Rate 2023



12/17/2024

6

11

Math Participation Rate 2023

12

District Performance



12/17/2024

7

13

State Performance

14

Chronic Absenteeism

District Level Loyalton High



12/17/2024

8

15

Chronic Absenteeism

Downieville ElementaryLoyalton Elementary

16

Chronic Absenteeism



12/17/2024

9

17

How many students do we need to 
decrease chronic absenteeism with in order 
to get a rating of Orange, Yellow, or Green?

● Orange - 2 Students
● Yellow - 9 Students
● Green - 28 Students

We Can do this!

18

Differentiated Assistance
Differentiated Assistance is:

● Targeted technical assistance under California’s public school 
accountability system.

● Designed to assist Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) to address 
underlying causes that led to low student outcomes while 
strengthening the LEA’s overall ability to evaluate the effectiveness of 
strategies and programs, adjusting as appropriate.

● Provided to school districts, County Offices of Education (COEs), and 
charter schools.  Most districts receive it from their COE.

Since we are a single-district county, we receive differentiated assistance from 
Placer COE.



12/17/2024

10

19

Differentiated Assistance

Eligibility:

● LEAs with at least one student group scoring at the lowest level (red) in at 
least two state priority areas are eligible for differentiated assistance.

● For example, if a district’s Socioeconomically Disadvantaged student 
group is Red for Chronic Absenteeism and Suspension—priority areas 5 
and 6), they are eligible for differentiated assistance. 

20

Student Group Report 2024



12/17/2024

11

21

Differentiated Assistance Status for SPJUSD for 2024
Eligible for Differentiated Assistance in 2024 Dashboard because:

○ Homeless 
■ Chronic Absenteeism, Suspension Rate

○ Socioeconomically disadvantaged
■ Chronic Absenteeism, Suspension Rate, English-Language Arts

○ Students with Disabilities
■ Chronic Absenteeism, English-Language Arts

○ Hispanic
■ Chronic Absenteeism, English-Language Arts

22

Where do we go from Here?
1) Continue Work with Placer COE
2) School Community Outreach Worker position to support 

efforts with chronic absenteeism
3) Using Attendance Works Data Resources and Tiered 

System to track and implement interventions
4) Literacy Work with TNTP
5) Science of Reading 
6) Screening for Reading Difficulties
7) Math Pilot and Adoption next year



12/17/2024

12

23

Questions?



ENROLLMENT BY SCHOOL MONTH - 2024-2025

**As of 12/06/2024 Downieville Loyalton Downieville Loyalton Downieville Loyalton Sierra Pass Long-Term
Elementary Elementary Jr High Jr High Sr High Sr High Continuation ISP/SDC TOTAL

Ending 2023-2024 27 193 10 41 12 114 6 included in site # 403
1st Day 2024-2025 27 200 10 47 9 121 3 included in site # 417

Month
September 1 26 203 10 47 9 122 3 included in site # 420
08/21/24-09/13/24
October 2 26 203 10 47 9 118 5 included in site # 418
09/16/24-10/11/24
November 3 26 200 10 47 9 117 6 included in site # 415
10/14/24-11/08/24
December 4 included in site # 0
11/12/24-12/06/24
January 5 included in site # 0
12/09/24-01/17/25
February 6 included in site # 0
01/21/25-02/14/25
March 7 included in site # 0
02/18/25-03/14/25
April 8 included in site # 0
03/18/25-04/11/25
May 9 included in site # 0
04/14/25-05/09/25
June 10 included in site # 0
05/13/25-06/06/25

2023-2024 SPJUSD SCOE Washoe Long-Term ISP
P1 ADA 358.58 0.74 13.34 DES 0
P2 ADA 357.90 0.74 13.37 LES 4

Annual 358.02 0.74 13.33 DHS 0
LHS 5

2022-2023 SPJUSD SCOE Washoe
P1 ADA 354.53 0.70 13.50
P2 ADA 351.20 0.70 12.97

Annual 352.11 0.70 13.46



Inter-District Attendance Agreements  2024-2025

New/Renewal School Year Grade 
Entering

District of 
Residence

Receiving 
District

Reason Given by Requestor Backup 
Documentation 
Received?

In/Out?

New 2024-25 10 Fort Sage USD SPJUSD Better academic and extracurricular opportunities n/a In
New 2024-25 TK Plumas SPJUSD Sibling attends LES n/a In
Renewal 2024-25 5 Plumas SPJUSD Continue education in Loyalton n/a In

Report Date:
12/17/2024



Page 1 of 5 

SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Minutes – November 12, 2024 

MINUTES for the Joint Meeting of the 

Sierra County Board of Education 

and the 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board 

November 12, 2024 

5:00pm CLOSED Session 

6:00pm Regular Session 

Loyalton: Sierra County Office of Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118 

Zoom videoconferencing was also available for the public. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

President KELLY CHAMPION called the meeting to order at 5:01pm. 

B. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Area 1: Patty Hall (Clerk) 

Area 2: Rhynie Hollitz 

Area 3: Christina Potter (Vice President) 

Area 4: Kelly Champion (President) 

Area 5: Richard Jaquez 

ABSENT: None 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

HALL/POTTER 

5/0 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION 

None 

E. CLOSED SESSION 

The Board moved into Closed Session at 5:02pm to discuss the following item(s): 

1. Government Code 54956.9 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(d)(2) or (3) 

Number of potential cases: two (2) 

2. Government Code 54957.6 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Agency Negotiator(s) for the Board:  James Berardi, County Superintendent 

     Sean Snider, District Superintendent 

Employee Organizations: 

Unrepresented Employees:  District Superintendent 

Sierra-Plumas Teachers’ Association 

Classified Employees 

Confidential Employees 

Administrative Employees 

 



Page 2 of 5 

SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Minutes – November 12, 2024 

3. Government Code 54956.8 

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 

Property: 105 Beckwith St, Loyalton CA 96118 

Sierra COE Negotiator: James Berardi, Superintendent 

Party with whom Sierra COE is Negotiating: City of Loyalton 

Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment 

F. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION at 5:50pm and ADJOURN FOR BREAK 

G. 6:01PM – RECONVENE 

H. FLAG SALUTE 

I. REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

CHAMPION: Each item was for discussion only. No action was taken. 

J. BOARD ORGANIZATION 

1. Proposal to move the meeting in December from Friday, December 13th, to Tuesday, 

December 17th 

HOLLITZ/JAQUEZ 

5/0 

2. Board Goals and Planning 

CHAMPION: Looking for feedback on getting together as a board to set short-term and 

long-term goals.  

HOLLITZ: Discuss in December when the new board member is present. 

K. INFORMATION ITEMS 

1. Superintendent Reports 

COUNTY—SCOE 

None 

DISTRICT—SPJUSD 

a. California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) report 

for 2023-2024 

Presented by MESCHERY. 

b. Career Technical Education (CTE) report for 2023-2024 

Presented by MESCHERY. 

c. Facilities update 

SNIDER: Fiber optic project complete as of this afternoon. Meeting with Little 

League tomorrow night to continue discussions about the girls’ softball field. 

d. Ethnic Studies Course coming in 2025-26 School Year 

SNIDER: Community meetings will be held in Loyalton on November 18th and 

in Downieville November 19th. 

2. Business Report 

a. Second Month SPJUSD Enrollments for the 2024-2025 School Year 

3. Staff Reports 

a. SCOE 

None 



Page 3 of 5 

SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Minutes – November 12, 2024 

b. SPJUSD 

LES—ARMSTRONG: 1st Trimester ending this Fiday. Wednesday, Thursday 

and Friday are minimum days with Parent-Teacher Conferences happening. 

Thank you to GCPC for organizing the fall Book Fair that will also be running 

Wednesday, Thursday and Friday. 

LHS—GRIFFIN: CTE report given by MESCHERY. All LHS information in 

All-Calls and on the events calendar on our website. 

DES & DHS—BERARDI: Fish and Wildlife presentations. Grant received for 

building a cube with balloon that will be shot up into space and used to collect 

data. School rally coming up along with field trips including college tours. 

3.4. SPTA Report 

None 

4.5. Committee/Board Member Reports 

Budget Committee: 

HOLLITZ—Budget Committee meetings are being held monthly. Some of the 

goals we’re discussing include creating a Middle School (potentially next 

school year) and looking into funding opportunities for maintenance projects. 

CHAMPION—Also looking at improvements to transportation (buses). 

SNIDER—Working to get a Facility Needs Assessment done for the district. 

5.6. Public Comment 

None 

L. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Joint Meeting held October 08, 2024 

2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 10/01/2024 through 10/31/2024 

a. SCOE 

b. SPJUSD 

3. Approval to surplus E-Waste 

a. SCOE 

b. SPJUSD 

4. Approval of the following SPJUSD personnel items: 

a. Assignment of Cara Bowling, 2024-2025 8th Grade Boys Basketball, Loyalton 

High School 

b. Assignment of Alyson Ceresola, 2024-2025 7th Grade Girls Basketball, 

Loyalton High School 

c. Assignment of Allison Rogge, 2024-2025 8th Grade Girls Basketball, Loyalton 

High School 

HALL/POTTER 

5/0 

M. ACTION ITEMS 

1. New Business 

COUNTY—SCOE 

None 



Page 4 of 5 

SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Minutes – November 12, 2024 

DISTRICT—SPJUSD 

a. Award of contract to the lowest responsive responsible bidder for the 

Downieville School Roof Project, Contract No. 2025-014D 

SNIDER: We received three bids, but there were some discrepancies. They 

were not bidding on the same thing which could expose the district to 

litigation. Recommend pulling this item, reposting and hopefully bringing back 

in December. 

CHAMPION motioned to table until December. Second by POTTER. 

5/0 

b. Approval of MOU with Toddler Towers Inc. for the Expanded Learning 

Opportunity Program (ELO-P), Contract No. 2025-015D 

Presentation by Lindsay McIntosh and Alicia Barney. 

HOLLITZ/HALL 

5/0 

c. Approval of contract with J. Soon Consulting for a Cafeteria Program Review, 

Contract No. 2025-016D**  

HOLLITZ/HALL 

5/0 

BOARD POLICIES AND BYLAWS 

Board Bylaw 9310: “The Superintendent or designee shall develop and present a first 

reading at a public Board meeting and action may be taken on the proposed policy. 

The Board may require additional readings if necessary.” 

Batch from September 10th – Second Reading 

  HOLLITZ motioned to adopt d-k as presented. Second by HALL. 

5/0 

d. 0410—Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities 

e. 1312.3—Uniform Complaint Procedures 

f. 4030—Nondiscrimination in Employment 

g. 4033—Lactation Accommodation 

h. 4119.11~4219.11~4319.11—Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment 

i. 5145.3—Nondiscrimination/Harassment 

j. 5145.7—Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment 

k. 5146—Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students 

Batch from October 8th – First Reading 

  Postponed to December for Second Reading. 

l. 9010—Public Statements 

m. 9012—Board Member Electronic Communications 

n. 9220—Governing Board Elections 

1. Bylaw 

2. Exhibit – NEW 

o. 9223—Filling Vacancies 

p. 9320—Meetings and Notices 

 



Page 5 of 5 

SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Minutes – November 12, 2024 

q. 9323.2—Actions by the Board 

1. Bylaw 

2. Exhibit (1), revisions 

3. Exhibit (2), DELETE 

N. ADVANCED PLANNING 

1. The next Regular Joint Board Meeting will be held on December 17, 2024, at 

Downieville School, 130 School St, Downieville CA 95936 at 6:00pm. If needed, Closed 

Session may be held before the Regular Session beginning at 5:00pm. Zoom 

videoconferencing will be available for the public. 

2. Suggested Agenda Items 

-Board Goals and Planning 

-Downieville School Roof Project 

O. ADJOURN 

CHAMPION adjourned the meeting at 7:34pm. 

 

 

 

______________________________  _______________________________ 

James Berardi,     Sean Snider, 

County Superintendent    District Superintendent 

 

 

_______________________________ 

_________________________,  

Clerk 









Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 11/01/2024 through 11/30/2024

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00017231 11/12/2024 ALHAMBRA 11-4330 WATER SERVICE 33.46 

00017232 11/12/2024 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-4300 CONFERENCE ROOM SETUP 438.24 

COUNSELING SUPPLIES 84.57 

NURSE SUPPLIES 141.90 

STUDENT SUPPLIES 821.48 

11-4300 OFFICE SUPPLIES 51.55 

11-4330 OFFICE SUPPLIES 51.55 1,589.29 

00017233 11/12/2024 AT&T 11-5900 PHONE 169.52 

00017234 11/12/2024 DONALD BERGSTROM 01-5810 SPED/DO CLEANING 1,408.75 

01-5899 SPED/DO CLEANING 603.75 2,012.50 

00017235 11/12/2024 KELLY CHAMPION 01-5200 PER DIEM 32.77 

01-5899 PER DIEM 32.76 65.53 

00017236 11/12/2024 MICAH COHEN, MOT, OTR/L 01-5810 OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY SERVICES 2,589.23 

00017237 11/12/2024 K12 MANAGEMENT DBA FUELED 11-5810 LEARNING HUB 1,588.75 

00017238 11/12/2024 KELLI GROCK 01-5100 COUNSELING SERVICES 3,554.44 

01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 2,430.56 5,985.00 

00017239 11/12/2024 HARBOR FREIGHT COMMERCIAL ACCOUNT 01-4300 SHOP CLASS SUPPLIES 268.44 

00017240 11/12/2024 JAQUEZ CUSTOM CRAFT, INC 11-5810 BUILDING WORK 3,187.00 

00017241 11/12/2024 JOEL TILLMAN 11-5810 TECH SUPPORT 1,375.00 

00017242 11/12/2024 LAUREN JONES BEHAVIORAL CONSULTANT 01-5100 BEHAVIORAL CONSULTANT 9,482.14 

01-5810 BEHAVIORAL CONSULTANT 5,981.36 15,463.50 

00017243 11/12/2024 LES SCHAWB 01-4350 SUV SNOW TIRES 1,119.42 

VEHICLE SERVICE 112.75 

01-5600 VEHICLE SERVICE 4.38 

01-5899 VEHICLE SERVICE 4.38 1,240.93 

00017244 11/12/2024 LIBERTY UTILITY CA 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 321.53 

11-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 105.04 426.57 

00017245 11/12/2024 NOVAH ELECTRIC 11-6200 CLASSROOM ELECTRIC 1,929.04 

11-9500 CLASSROOM ELECTRIC 1,070.96 3,000.00 

00017246 11/12/2024 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC 11-4300 COPY PAPER 174.09 

00017247 11/12/2024 NCS PEARSON, INC. 01-4300 TESTING SUPPLIES 138.16 

00017248 11/12/2024 PLUMAS-SIERRA TELECOMMUNICATIONS 11-5900 BROADBAND SERVICE 109.00 

00017249 11/12/2024 UBEO WEST LLC 11-5600 COPIER/MAINTENANCE 63.79 

00017250 11/12/2024 RENO PRINT STORE 01-4300 RED RIBBON WEEK SUPPLIES 12,483.00 

00017251 11/12/2024 SELPA ADMINISTRATORS OF CA 01-5300 SELPA DUES 1,660.00 

00017252 11/12/2024 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 247.55 

00017253 11/12/2024 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 SHOP CLASS SUPPLIES 1,569.98 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  3 2024  7:01AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 11/01/2024 through 11/30/2024

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00017253 11/12/2024 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 11-4300 BROOM 16.08 1,586.06 

00017254 11/12/2024 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,794.00 

76-9576 HEALTH INSURANCE 30,156.40 31,950.40 

00017255 11/12/2024 U.S. BANK VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 24.44 

01-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 228.73 

01-5899 FUEL EXPENSE 363.23 616.40 

00017256 11/20/2024 DYLAN ABBOTT 01-5200 MILEAGE 129.98 

00017257 11/20/2024 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-4300 STUDENT SUPPLIES 154.00 

00017258 11/20/2024 HEIDI BETHKE 01-5200 WORKABILITY TRAVEL EXP 603.89 

00017259 11/20/2024 CASAS 11-5810 SITE LICENSE FEE 1,200.00 

00017260 11/20/2024 EDWARDS, STEVENS AND TUCKER, LLP 01-5801 LEGAL FEES 780.00 

00017261 11/20/2024 INTERMOUNTAIN DISPOSAL, INC. 11-5500 GARBAGE SERVICE 188.13 

00017262 11/20/2024 MEGAN MESCHERY 01-5200 MATH FRAMEWORK WORKSHOP 659.88 

00017263 11/20/2024 PRESENCELEARNING, INC. 01-5810 PRESENCE LEARNING 11,790.93 

00017264 11/20/2024 RESOLVE TECHNOLOGY GROUP, INC. 01-5810 TECHNOLOGY ASSISTANCE 750.00 

00017265 11/20/2024 RHYNIE HOLLITZ 01-5200 PER DIEM 17.42 

01-5899 PER DIEM 17.42 34.84 

00017266 11/20/2024 RIVERSIDE INSIGHTS 01-4300 TESTING SUPPLIES 244.10 

00017267 11/20/2024 RYLAND SCHOOL BUSINESS CONSULTING 01-5810 SCHOOL BUSINESS CONSULTING 3,681.50 

01-5899 SCHOOL BUSINESS CONSULTING 5,522.25 9,203.75 

00017268 11/20/2024 U.S. BANK 01-4300 WELLNESS CENTER SUPPLIES 96.95 

01-5200 CCS TRAVEL 2,596.74 

CISC CONFERENCE 562.66 

LEGAL UPDATES WEBINAR 140.00 

01-5899 CONFERENCE 40.04 

HOTEL ACCOMODATIONS 151.77 

SMARTBOARD MOUNT 32.47 

11-5900 BROADBAND SERVICE 114.00 

11-6200 BUILDING FINISHING SUPPLIES 3.58 3,738.21 

Total Number of Checks 38 117,500.88 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 27 75,913.94 01

ADULT EDUCATION 15 11,430.54 11

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  3 2024  7:01AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 11/01/2024 through 11/30/2024

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

Payroll Clearing 1 30,156.40 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 38 117,500.88 

.00 

117,500.88 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 3 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  3 2024  7:01AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 11/01/2024 through 11/30/2024

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00087176 11/12/2024 ACADEMIC INNOVATIONS 01-4300 INSTRUCTOR'S GUIDE 53.04 

00087177 11/12/2024 ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS 01-5600 FAN AND ELECTRICAL INSTALL 9,989.00 

00087178 11/12/2024 ACE HARDWARE PLUMAS 01-5890 KEYS 28.76 

00087179 11/12/2024 AIRGAS, USA, LLC 01-5600 TANK RENTAL LHS/DVL 355.48 

00087180 11/12/2024 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-4100 TEXTBOOKS 141.57 

01-4300 classroom supplies 250.88 

ELA Books 434.70 

ELL INSTRUCTION 252.37 

ESL SUPPLIES 99.07 

instructional supplies 50.40 

laminating film 126.01 

Library Supplies 159.48 

music supplies 625.65 

PARTITION 1,447.27 

playground equip 235.24 

Student instruction 907.31 

TECHNOLOGY SUPPLIES 308.64 

WELLNESS CENTER 209.05 

01-4302 office supplies 1,118.72 

01-4320 CA FLAG 19.94 

LOCKDOWN DOOR STRIPS 10.71 

01-4330 Health Record Folders 54.89 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 495.81 

01-4400 MUSIC PROGRAM 153.82 7,101.53 

00087181 11/12/2024 AMERIGAS 01-5540 PROPANE 6,259.17 

01-5899 PROPANE 461.74 6,720.91 

00087182 11/12/2024 AT&T 01-5890 PHONE SERVICES 57.73 

01-5899 PHONE SERVICES 26.66 

01-5910 PHONE SERVICES 612.47 696.86 

00087183 11/12/2024 BLUE NOTE B'S HORN SHOP 01-4400 MUSICAL INSTRUMENTS 5,240.03 

00087184 11/12/2024 BRADY INDUSTRIES 01-4320 FLOOR MAT 1,225.43 

13-4340 DETERGENT 66.79 1,292.22 

00087185 11/12/2024 PAMELA BRANDON 01-5600 TECH COTTAGE RENTAL 100.00 

00087186 11/12/2024 BUREAU OF EDUCATION & RESEARCH ATTN: 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

01-5200 REGISTRATION 295.00 

00087187 11/12/2024 CA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENTS 01-5200 REGISTRATION 150.00 

00087188 11/12/2024 CHILLERGY 13-5600 FRIDGE/FREEZER REPAIR 719.25 

00087189 11/12/2024 CITY OF LOYALTON 01-5530 WATER AND SEWER - LOYALTON SITES 4,287.04 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 5

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  3 2024  7:02AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 11/01/2024 through 11/30/2024

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00087189 11/12/2024 CITY OF LOYALTON 01-5899 WATER AND SEWER - LOYALTON SITES 258.11 4,545.15 

00087190 11/12/2024 DEMCO, INC. 01-4300 Library Supplies 379.06 

00087191 11/12/2024 PAUL DOUVILLE 01-4300 PLYWOOD 49.46 

00087192 11/12/2024 DOWNIEVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY DIS 01-5530 Water 116.49 

00087193 11/12/2024 EDWARDS, STEVENS AND TUCKER, LLP 01-5810 LEGAL FEES 1,397.50 

00087194 11/12/2024 EXPLORELEARNING 01-4300 REFLEX MATH 350.00 

00087195 11/12/2024 FORTUNA UNION HIGH SD ATTN: SANDY DALE 01-5200 Professional Conference 295.00 

00087196 11/12/2024 GAGER DISTRIBUTING, INC. 13-4340 CLEANING SUPPLIES 905.51 

00087197 11/12/2024 CAROLINE GRIFFIN 01-5200 NATIONAL FFA CONVENTION 327.78 

00087198 11/12/2024 JANET HAMILTON 01-5600 TECH COTTAGE RENTAL 100.00 

00087199 11/12/2024 HUNT & SONS, INC. 01-5590 HEATING OIL 282.27 

00087200 11/12/2024 JEFFERSON SUPPLY COMPANY 01-4320 MAINT. SUPPLIES 18.22 

00087201 11/12/2024 JOSHUA WILKINSON 01-5200 MILEAGE 239.86 

00087202 11/12/2024 K 12 MANAGEMENT DBA FUELED 01-5890 STUDENT LICENSE BLOCK/ISP 

COURSES

3,275.00 

00087203 11/12/2024 LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 01-4350 Vehicle maintenance 149.94 

00087204 11/12/2024 LIBERTY UTILITY CA 01-5510 ELECTRIC - LOYALTON SITES 11,582.17 

01-5899 ELECTRIC - LOYALTON SITES 136.93 11,719.10 

00087205 11/12/2024 MARTIN EARTHWORKS 01-5890 BIG PROJECT 20,000.00 

00087206 11/12/2024 MARYSVILLE JOINT USD 01-5600 BUS MAINTENANCE 352.87 

00087207 11/12/2024 MCGRAW-HILL SCHOOL EDUCATION HOLDINGS, LLC 01-4100 WONDERS RENEWAL 6,127.74 

00087208 11/12/2024 MODEL DAIRY, LLC 13-4700 DAIRY PRODUCTS 1,485.80 

00087209 11/12/2024 MOUNTAIN MESSENGER 01-5890 ADVERTISEMENTS AND PUBLIC 

HEARINGS

225.76 

00087210 11/12/2024 NORTHAM DISTRIBUTING, INC. 13-4340 CAFE FOOD/SUPPLIES 26.23 

13-4700 CAFE FOOD/SUPPLIES 4,723.03 4,749.26 

00087211 11/12/2024 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC 01-4300 classroom supplies 174.52 

Graphing Notebook Paper 30.23 

01-4302 COPY PAPER 174.09 

office supplies 940.61 

01-4330 OFFICE SUPPLIES 407.22 

01-5899 OFFICE SUPPLIES 135.74 1,862.41 

00087212 11/12/2024 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 01-5510 Electricity 3,645.60 

00087213 11/12/2024 PIONEER ATHLETICS 01-4305 Field Paint 730.42 

00087214 11/12/2024 PLUMAS COUNTY GLASS 01-4320 Window Glass 943.26 

00087215 11/12/2024 UBEO WEST LLC 01-5600 COPIER MAINT. 507.96 

01-5899 COPIER MAINT. 138.22 646.18 

00087216 11/12/2024 REEDS LOCKS, INC 01-5890 REKEY 1,527.22 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 5

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  3 2024  7:02AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 11/01/2024 through 11/30/2024

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00087216 11/12/2024 REEDS LOCKS, INC 01-5899 REKEY 1,018.14 2,545.36 

00087217 11/12/2024 RENAISSANCE LEARNING, INC. 01-5890 AR/STAR PROGRAMS 8,832.81 

00087218 11/12/2024 RIDDEL ALL AMERICAN SPORTS CORP 01-4305 Football Helmets 2,308.00 

00087219 11/12/2024 SIERRA BOOSTER 01-5300 ADVERTISEMENTS/LEGAL/PUBLIC 

NOTICES

42.12 

01-5890 ADVERTISEMENTS/LEGAL/PUBLIC 

NOTICES

160.07 

01-5899 ADVERTISEMENTS/LEGAL/PUBLIC 

NOTICES

210.61 412.80 

00087220 11/12/2024 SIERRA COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 01-5510 ELECTRICAL SERVICES FOR TECH 

COTTAGE

289.50 

00087221 11/12/2024 SIERRA COUNTY TREASURER 01-5860 SOLID WASTE FEE - ALL SITES 7,179.38 

00087222 11/12/2024 INTERMOUNTAIN DISPOSAL, INC. 01-5520 GARBAGE SERVICE 749.65 

01-5899 GARBAGE SERVICE 15.60 765.25 

00087223 11/12/2024 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 MISC. AG SUPPLIES 31.83 

01-4320 MAINT. SUPPLIES 89.38 

MAINT/CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 295.68 

40-4320 DEFERRED MAINT PROJECTS 286.88 703.77 

00087224 11/12/2024 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED 01-5890 BANK SERVICE FEES 343.47 

13-4340 BANK SERVICE FEES 6.25 349.72 

00087225 11/12/2024 SILVER STATE INTL 01-5600 BUS 29 REPAIR 41,929.64 

00087226 11/12/2024 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ACCOUNTING OFFICE 01-5890 EMPLOYMENT FINGERPRINTING 47.00 

00087227 11/12/2024 TEAM ONE NETWORKING 01-5899 PHONE SERVICES 14.00 

01-5910 PHONE SERVICES 126.00 140.00 

00087228 11/12/2024 TERMINIX PROCESSING CENTER 01-5890 PEST CONTROL -LES/LHS 189.00 

00087229 11/12/2024 TINYEYE TECHNOLOGIES CORP c/o V68000U 01-5890 THERAPY SERVICES 11,738.93 

00087230 11/12/2024 TIP INC.,PRINTING & GRAPHIX 01-4330 ENVELOPES 101.79 

01-5899 ENVELOPES 33.93 135.72 

00087231 11/12/2024 TODDLER TOWERS, INC. SIERRA KIDS 01-5100 ELOP PROGRAM 2,119.77-

01-5890 ELOP PROGRAM 10,562.36 8,442.59 

00087232 11/12/2024 TOUSHULONG VANG 01-4300 PB&J lab 25.07 

00087233 11/12/2024 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INS. GR. 01-9535 HEALTH INSURANCE 8,543.15 

76-9576 HEALTH INSURANCE 84,794.39 93,337.54 

00087234 11/12/2024 VERIZON WIRELESS 01-5899 CELL PHONE SERVICE 465.36 

01-5910 CELL PHONE SERVICE 544.21 1,009.57 

00087235 11/12/2024 U.S. BANK VOYAGER 01-4305 FUEL FOR ATHLETIC TRIPS 1,256.02 

01-4351 BUS FUEL 3,467.73 

Fuel for Maintenance 145.80 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 3 of 5

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  3 2024  7:02AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 11/01/2024 through 11/30/2024

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00087235 11/12/2024 U.S. BANK VOYAGER 01-5200 FIELD TRIP FUEL 118.85 

FUEL FOR FFA 1,003.73 5,992.13 

00087236 11/12/2024 AMANDA WATTENBURG 01-5200 MILEAGE 65.66 

00087237 11/12/2024 SARAI WHITE 01-5200 MILEAGE 65.66 

00087238 11/20/2024 ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS 01-5600 BOILER DIAGNOSE/REPAIR 2,177.50 

00087239 11/20/2024 AIRGAS, USA, LLC 01-5600 TANK RENTAL LHS/DVL 366.86 

00087240 11/20/2024 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-4340 HAND MIXER 26.80 

00087241 11/20/2024 AT&T 01-5910 PHONE SERVICES 136.98 

00087242 11/20/2024 DMD ELECTRIC INC. 01-6500 BIG PROJECT 4,600.00 

00087243 11/20/2024 DREW UNIVERSITY - APSI 01-5200 REGISTRATION 775.00 

00087244 11/20/2024 EDWARDS, STEVENS AND TUCKER, LLP 01-5810 LEGAL FEES 747.50 

00087245 11/20/2024 HAYLEY EVANS 01-5200 MILEAGE 302.44 

MILEAGE/PER DIEM/HOTEL 823.18 1,125.62 

00087246 11/20/2024 HUNT & SONS, INC. 01-5590 HEATING OIL 663.35 

00087247 11/20/2024 K 12 MANAGEMENT DBA FUELED 01-5890 STUDENT LICENSE BLOCK/ISP 

COURSES

2,187.81 

00087248 11/20/2024 LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 01-4350 Vehicle Maintenance 867.87 

00087249 11/20/2024 LOVOITEC, INC 01-6500 BIG PROJECT 5,696.60 

00087250 11/20/2024 MODEL DAIRY, LLC 13-4700 DAIRY PRODUCTS 886.49 

00087251 11/20/2024 NORTHAM DISTRIBUTING, INC. 13-4340 CAFE FOOD/SUPPLIES 34.43 

13-4700 CAFE FOOD/SUPPLIES 420.57 455.00 

00087252 11/20/2024 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 01-5510 Electricity 3,975.02 

00087253 11/20/2024 INTERMOUNTAIN DISPOSAL, INC. 01-5520 GARBAGE SERVICE 664.93 

01-5899 GARBAGE SERVICE 13.33 678.26 

00087254 11/20/2024 SIERRA GARAGE, INC. 01-4350 Yukon Tune up 602.30 

00087255 11/20/2024 SIERRA HARDWARE 01-4320 Misc Maintenance supplies 304.23 

00087256 11/20/2024 MARNIE SMITH 01-5890 ELD PD 2,400.00 

00087257 11/20/2024 SUPERIOR REGION CATA 01-5200 CATA CONFERENCE 250.00 

00087258 11/20/2024 SVGMD 01-5890 Well Management Fee 100.00 

00087259 11/20/2024 SYSCO FOOD SVCS OF SACRAMENTO 01-4300 EMERGENCY SUPPLIES 400.43 

13-4340 CAFETERIA - FOOD AND SUPPLIES 548.55 

13-4700 CAFETERIA - FOOD AND SUPPLIES 5,392.37 6,341.35 

00087260 11/20/2024 TERMINIX PROCESSING CENTER 01-5890 PEST CONTROL -LES/LHS 181.00 

00087261 11/20/2024 TINYEYE TECHNOLOGIES CORP c/o V68000U 01-5890 THERAPY SERVICES 8,674.31 

00087262 11/20/2024 U.S. BANK 01-4300 Art class supplies 423.82 

IPAD SOFTWARE 8.25 

LIBRARY BOOKS 2,686.05 

MOUNTING BRACKETS 421.81 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 4 of 5

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  3 2024  7:02AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 11/01/2024 through 11/30/2024

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00087262 11/20/2024 U.S. BANK 01-4320 Chair parts 354.93 

Chairs 1,793.76 

COAT RACK 53.61 

PLUMBING PARTS 206.17 

WATER LINE REPAIR 637.17 

01-4330 ADOBE PRO 239.88 

ADOBE PRO SUBSCRIPTION 14.99 

GRADING SOFTWARE 90.00 

01-4350 FUEL FOR MAINT. 371.14 

01-4351 BUS FUEL 371.53 

FUEL FOR MAINT. 56.93 

01-4400 CONFERENCE SUPPLIES 1,002.98 

OUTDOOR SHEDS 1,072.48 

SMART BOARD 1,402.16 

01-5200 CHARTER BUS 536.95 

01-5300 STARFALL MEMBERSHIP 355.00 

01-5890 Grad Chairs 165.00 

ZOOM SUBSCRIPTION 226.12 

01-5899 ADOBE PRO SUBSCRIPTION 5.00 

HEADLIGHT 31.09 

01-5900 POSTAGE STAMPS 298.55 12,825.37 

00087263 11/20/2024 VERIZON WIRELESS 01-5899 CELL PHONE SERVICE 467.09 

01-5910 CELL PHONE SERVICE 468.18 935.27 

Total Number of Checks 88 342,147.31 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

General Fund 82 241,850.77 01

Cafeteria Fund 9 15,215.27 13

Special Reserve for Capital Ou 1 286.88 40

Warrant/Pass Though (payroll) 1 84,794.39 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 88 342,147.31 

.00 

342,147.31 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 5 of 5

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  3 2024  7:02AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District



First Interim 

COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM 
REPORT 

46 10462 0000000 

Form Cl Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County For the Fiscal Year 2024-25 F81JDWA 17T(2024-25) 

NOTICE OF CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW. This interim report was based upon and reviewed using the state-adopted Criteria and Standards pursuant to Education Code 

sections 33129 and 42130. 

Signed: Date: 

County Superintendent or Designee 

NOTICE OF INTERIM REVIEW. All action shall be taken on this report during a regular or authorized special meeting of the County Board of Education. 

To the State Superintendent of Public Instruction: 

This interim report and certification of financial condition are hereby filed by the County Board of Education pursuant to Education Code sections 1240 and 33127. 

Meeting Date: December 17, 2024 Signed: 

County Superintendent of Schools 

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 

X POSITIVE CERTIFICATION 
---

As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office will meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year and 

---

---

subsequent two fiscal years. 

QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION 

As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office may not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year or 

two subsequent fiscal years. 

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION 

As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office will not meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the 

current fiscal year or for the subsequent fiscal year. 

Contact person for additional information on the interim report: 

Name: Randy Jones Telephone: 530-993-1660 x120 

Title: Director of Business Serv ices/CBO E-mail: rjones@spjusd.org 

Criteria and Standards Review Summary 

The following summary is automatically completed based on data provided in the Criteria and Standards Review fomn (Fomn 01CSI). Criteria and standards that are "Not Met," 

and supplemental information and additional fiscal indicators that are "Yes," may indicate areas of potential concern, which could affect the interim report certification, and 

should be carefully reviewed. 

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS Met 

1 Average Daily Attendance Projected Funded ADA for County Operations Grant or county operated programs has not changed 

for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years by more than two percent since budget 

adoption. 

2 Local Control Funding Fomnula (LCFF) Projected LCFF revenue for any of the current or tYJO subsequent fiscal years has not changed by 
X 

Revenue more than t"wo percent since budget adoption. 

3 Salaries and Benefits Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the current or tv.o subsequent fiscal years has not 

changed by more than five percent since budget adoption. 

4a Other Revenues Projected operating revenues (federal, other state, other local) for the current and two subsequent 

fiscal years have not changed by more than five percent since budget adoption. 

4b Other Expenditures Projected operating expenditures (books and supplies, services and other expenditures) for the current 

and two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more than five percent since budget adoption. 

5 Ongoing and Major Maintenance If applicable, changes occurring since budget adoption meet the required contribution to the ongoing 
n/a 

Account and major maintenance account (i.e., restricted maintenance account). 

6 Deficit Spending Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard in any of the current or tll\'O 
X 

subsequent fiscal years. 

7a Fund Balance Projected county school service fund balance will be positive at the end of the current and two 
X 

subsequent fiscal years. 

7b Cash Balance Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal 
X 

year. 

8 Reserves Available reserves (e.g., reserve for economic uncertainties, unassigned/unappropriated amounts) 
X 

meet minimum requirements for the current and tv.o subsequent fiscal years. 

California Dept of Education 

Not Met 

X 

X 

X 

X 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CI_County, Version 3 Page 1 Printed: 12/13/2024 9:35 A 
                                            1 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

S1 Contingent Liabilities 

S2 Using One-time Revenues to Fund 

Ongoing Expenditures 

S3 Temporary lnterfund Borrowings 

S4 Contingent Revenues 

S5 Contributions 

S6 Long-term Commitments 

S7a Postemployment Benefits Other than 

Pensions 

S7b Other Self-insurance Benet its 

SB Status of Labor Agreements 

S9 Status of Other Funds 

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS 

A1 Negative Cash Flow 

A2 Independent Position Control 

A3 County Operations Grant ADA 

A4 New Charter Schools Impacting 

County Office ADA 

A5 Salary Increases Exceed COLA 

A6 Uncapped Health Benefits 

A7 Fiscal Distress Reports 

AB Change of CBO or Superintendent 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V11 

File: CI_County, Version 3 

First Interim 

COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM 
REPORT 

For the Fiscal Year 2024-25 

Have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program audits, litigation, state compliance 

revie'WS) occurred since budget adoption that may impact the budget? 

Are there ongoing county school service fund expenditures funded VJith one-time revenues that have 

changed since budget adoption by more than five percent? 

Are there projected temporary borrowings between funds? 

Are any projected revenues for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years contingent on 

reauthorization by the local government, special legislation, or other definitive act (e.g., parcel taxes, 

forest reserves)? 

Have contributions from unrestricted to restricted resources, or transfers to or from the county 

school service fund to cover operating deficits, changed since budget adoption by more than $20,000 

and more than 5% for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years? 

Does the county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments or debt agreements? 

If yes, have annual payments for the current or two subsequent fiscal years increased over 

prior yea(s (2023-24) annual payment? 

If yes, will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to 

the end of the commitment period, or are they one-time sources? 

Does the county office provide postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB)? 

If yes, have there been changes since budget adoption in OPEB liabilities? 

Does the county office operate any self-insurance programs (e.g., workers' compensation)? 

If yes, have there been changes since budget adoption in self-insurance liabilities? 

As of first interim projections, are salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled for: 

Certificated? (Section SBA, Line 1 b) 

Classified? (Section SBB, Line 1b) 

fv1anagement/supervisor/confidential? (Section sac, Line 1b) 

Are any funds other than the county school service fund projected to have a negative fund balance 

at the end of the current fiscal year? 

Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the current fiscal year \\1th a negative 

cash balance in the county school service fund? 

Is personnel position control independent from the payroll system? 

Is County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior and current fiscal year? 

Are any new charter schools operating in county office boundaries that are impacting the county 

office's ADA, either in the prior or current fiscal years? 

Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the current or subsequent 

fiscal years of the agreement would result in salary increases that are expected to exceed the 

projected state funded cost-of-living adjustment? 

Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid) health benefits for current or retired 

employees? 

Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? If yes, provide copies to the 

CDE. 

Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief business official (CBO) positions 

within the last 12 months? 

Page 2 

46 10462 0000000 

Form Cl 

F81JDWA 17T(2024-25) 

No Yes 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

nla 

X 

X 

nla 

X 

No Yes 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:35 A 
                                            2 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

G = General Ledger Data; S = Supplemental Data 

Form Description 

011 General Fund/County School Service Fund 

081 Student Activity Special Revenue Fund 

091 Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 

10I Special Education Pass-Through Fund 

111 Adult Education Fund 

121 Child Development Fund 

131 Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund 

141 Def erred Maintenance Fund 

151 Pupil Transportation Equipment Fund 

161 Forest Reserve Fund 

171 Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 

181 School Bus Emissions Reduction Fund 

191 Foundation Special Revenue Fund 

20I Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits 

211 Building Fund 

251 Capital Facilities Fund 

301 State School Building Lease-Purchase Fund 

351 County School Facilities Fund 

401 Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects 

531 Tax Override Fund 

561 Debt Service Fund 

571 Foundation Permanent Fund 

611 Cafeteria Enterprise Fund 

621 Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 

631 Other Enterprise Fund 

661 Warehouse Revolving Fund 

671 Self-Insurance Fund 

711 Retiree Benefit Fund 

731 Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 

761 Warrant/Pass-Through Fund 

951 Student Body Fund 

Al Average Daily Attendance 

CASH Cashflow Worksheet 

Cl Interim Certification 

ESMOE Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort 

ICR Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet 

MYPI Multiy ear Projections - General Fund 

SIAI Summary of lnterfund Activities - Projected Year Totals 

01CSI Criteria and Standards Review 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: TCI, Version 2 

2024-25 First Interim 

Table of Contents 

Data Supplied 

For: 

2024-25 Original 

Budget 

GS 

G 

G 

s 

Page 1 

2024-25 Board 
Approved 

Operating 

Budget 

GS 

G 

G 

s 

46104620000000 
Form TCI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

2024-25 Actuals 2024-25 

to Date Projected Totals 

GS GS 

G G 

G 

s 

s 

s 

GS 

GS 

G 

s 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:34 A 
                                            3 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

ACTIJALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF (Enter Month Name): 

A. BEGINNING CASH 

B. RECEIPTS 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 

Principal Apportionment 

Property Taxes 

Miscellaneous Funds 

Federal Revenue 

Other State Revenue 

Other Local Revenue 

lnterfund Transfers In 

All Other Financing Sources 

TOTAL RECEIPTS 

C. DISBURSEMENTS 

Certificated Salaries 

Classified Salaries 

Employee Benefits 

Books and Supplies 

Services 

Capital Outlay 

Other Outgo 

lnterfund Transfers Out 

California Dept of E ducation 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V11 

File: CASH, Version 7 

Object 

JUNE 

8010-

8019 

8020-

8079 

8080-

8099 

8100-

8299 

8300-

8599 

8600-

8799 

8900-

8929 

8930-

8979 

1000-

1999 

2000-

2999 

3000-

3999 

4000-

4999 

5000-

5999 

6000-

6999 

7000-

7499 

7600-

7629 

First Interim 

2024-25 Budget 

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) 

Beginning 
Balances July August September 

(Ref. Only) 

5,862,011.89 5,790,434.56 5,788,603.85 

67,809.50 67,809.50 122,057.10 

0.00 13,467.20 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

5,277.80 0.00 0.00 

55,170.45 37,896.85 64,759.33 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

128,257.75 119,173.55 186,816.43 

29,411.31 24,747.52 51,026.19 

31,821.66 41,256.73 58,466.53 

29,403.29 31,495.56 69,728.36 

0.00 3,425.41 11,777.73 

109,198.81 14,009.56 39,389.40 

0.00 6,069.49 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 1 

October November December 

5,745,032.07 5,902,056.14 5,808,097.41 

181,319.85 122,057.10 122,057.10 

841.70 0.00 21,884.20 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

5,277.80 0.00 0.00 

82,259.43 58,089.33 59,360.83 

136,250.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

405,948.78 180,146.43 203,302.13 

49,268.85 49,611.47 56,737.63 

58,801.67 58,738.13 60,130.49 

54,308.45 55,608.54 54,105.25 

6,589.49 18,204.70 17,489.08 

79,956.25 91,942.33 77,888.46 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form CASH 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

January February 

5,745,048.63 5,823,193.45 

181,319.85 122,057.10 

1,683.40 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

5,277.80 0.00 

77,612.93 60,639.33 

11,250.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

277,143.98 182,696.43 

51,128.00 100,171.37 

44,050.00 98,111.01 

48,795.92 65,914.60 

5,943.54 20,475.00 

49,081.71 19,602.45 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:37 A 
                                            4 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

All Other Financing Uses 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

Assets and Deferred Outflows 

Cash Not In Treasury 

Accounts Receivable 

Due From Other Funds 

Stores 

Prepaid Expenditures 

Other Current Assets 

Lease Receivable 

Def erred Outflows of Resources 

SUBTOTAL 

Liabilities and Def erred Inflows 

Accounts Pay able 

Due To Other Funds 

Current Loans 

Unearned Revenues 

Def erred Inf lows of Resources 

SUBTOTAL 

Nonoi;ierating 

Suspense Clearing 

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 

F. ENDING CASH (A+ E) 

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ACCRUALS AND 

ADJUSTMENTS 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V11 

File: CASH, Version 7 

Object 

7630-

7699 

9111-

9199 

9200-

9299 

9310 

9320 

9330 

9340 

9380 

9490 

9500-

9599 

9610 

9640 

9650 

9690 

9910 

First Interim 

2024-25 Budget 

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) 

Beginning 
Balances July August September 

(Ref. Only) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

199,835.08 121,004.26 230,388.21 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(71,577.33) (1,830.71) (43,571.78) 

5,790,434.56 5,788,603.85 5,745,032.07 

Page 2 

October November December 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

248,924.71 274,105.16 266,350.91 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

157,024.07 (93,958.73) (63,048. 78) 

5,902,056.14 5,808,097.41 5,745,048.63 

46 10462 0000000 

Form CASH 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

January February 

0.00 0.00 

198,999.17 304,274.43 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

78,144.81 (121,578.00) 

5,823,193.45 5,701,615.44 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:37 A 
                                            5 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF (Enter Month Name): 

A. BEGINNING CASH 

B. RECEIPTS 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 

Principal Apportionment 

Property Taxes 

Miscellaneous Funds 

Federal Revenue 

Other State Revenue 

Other Local Revenue 

lnterfund Transfers In 

All Other Financing Sources 

TOTAL RECEIPTS 

C. DISBURSEMENTS 

Certificated Salaries 

Classified Salaries 

Employee Benefits 

Books and Supplies 

Services 

Capital Outlay 

Other Outgo 

I nterf und Transl ers Out 

All Other Financing Uses 

California Dept of E ducation 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V11 

File: CASH, Version 7 

Object 

JUNE 

8010-

8019 

8020-

8079 

8080-

8099 

8100-

8299 

8300-

8599 

8600-

8799 

8900-

8929 

8930-

8979 

1000-

1999 

2000-

2999 

3000-

3999 

4000-

4999 

5000-

5999 

6000-

6999 

7000-

7499 

7600-

7629 

7630-

7699 

First Interim 

2024-25 Budget 

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) 

March April May 

5,701,615.44 5,603,553.17 5,670,616.73 

122,057.10 181,319.85 122,057.10 

15,992.30 1,515.06 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 5,277.80 0.00 

61,910.83 77,912.93 60,639.33 

0.00 11,250.00 100,000.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

199,960.23 277,275.64 282,696.43 

57,441.93 64,755.77 70,911.40 

51,400.51 47,002.60 58,787.68 

47,449.36 52,852.07 55,277.85 

6,967.50 1,316.42 4,175.63 

134,763.20 44,285.23 75,735.50 

0.00 0.00 24,903.66 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 3 

June Accruals Adjustments 

5,663,521.43 

122,057.10 55,449.75 0.00 

35,274.14 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

146,619.80 0.00 0.00 

60,939.33 196,673.10 0.00 

0.00 711,167.00 0.00 

46,000.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

410,890.37 963,289.85 0.00 

68,616.58 0.00 0.00 

127,287.99 0.00 0.00 

148,660.74 0.00 0.00 

92,825.49 0.00 0.00 

506,852.11 0.00 0.00 

29,026.85 0.00 0.00 

0.00 (17,409.00) 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form CASH 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

TOTAL BUDGET 

1,589,428.00 1,589,428.00 

90,658.00 90,658.00 

0.00 0.00 

167,731.00 167,731.00 

953,864.00 953,864.00 

969,917.00 969,917.00 

46,000.00 46,000.00 

0.00 0.00 

3,817,598.00 3,817,598.00 

673,828.00 673,828.00 

735,855.00 735,855.00 

713,600.00 713,600.00 

189,190.00 189,190.00 

1,242,705.00 1,242,705.00 

60,000.00 60,000.00 

(17,409.00) (17,409.00) 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:37 A 
                                            6 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

Assets and Def erred Outflows 

Cash Not In Treasury 

Accounts Receivable 

Due From Other Funds 

Stores 

Prepaid Expenditures 

Other Current Assets 

Lease Receivable 

Def erred Outflows of Resources 

SUBTOTAL 

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 

Accounts Pay able 

Due To Other Funds 

Current Loans 

Unearned Revenues 

Def erred Inf lows of Resources 

SUBTOTAL 

NonoP-erating 

Suspense C learing 

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 

F. ENDING CASH (A+ E) 

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CASH, Version 7 

Object 

9111-

9199 

9200-

9299 

9310 

9320 

9330 

9340 

9380 

9490 

9500-

9599 

9610 

9640 

9650 

9690 

9910 

First Interim 

2024-25 Budget 

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) 

March April May 

298,022.50 210,212.08 289,791.72 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

(98,062.27) 67,063.56 (7,095.29) 

5,603,553.17 5,670,616.73 5,663,521.43 

Page 4 

June Accruals Adjustments 

973,269.76 (17,409.00) 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

(562,379.39) 980,698.85 0.00 

5,101,142.04 

46 10462 0000000 

Form CASH 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

TOTAL BUDGET 

3,597,769.00 3,597,769.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

219,829.00 219,829.00 

6,081,840.89 

Plinted: 12/13/2024 9:37 A 
                                            7 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 
and 2 in Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from 
Form Al, Line 85) 

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E; 

current year - Column A - is extracted) 

A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

1. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 

2. Federal Revenues 

3. Other State Revenues 

4. Other Local Revenues 

5. Other Financing Sources 

a. Transfers In 

b. Other Sources 

c. Contributions 

6. Total (Sum lines A 1 thru A5c) 

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

1. Certificated Salaries 

a. Base Salaries 

b. Step & Column Adjustment 

c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 

e. Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines 81a thru 81d) 

2. Classified Salaries 

a. Base Salaries 

b. Step & Column Adjustment 

c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 

e. Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 

3. Em ploy ee Benefits 

4. Books and Supplies 

5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6. Capital Outlay 

7. Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

8. Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 

9. Other Financing Uses 

a. Transfers Out 

b. Other Uses 

10. Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below) 

11. Total (Sum lines 81 thru 810) 

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE 

(Line A6 minus line 811) 

D. FUND BALANCE 

1.Net Beginning Fund Balance(Form 011, line F1e) 

2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 

3. Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 011) 

a. Nonspendable 

b. Restricted 

c. Committed 

1. Stabilization Arrangements 

2. Other Commitments 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: MYPI, Version 7 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Multiyear Projections 

Unrestricted 

Projected Year 
Object Totals 
Codes (Form 011) 

(A) 

383.56 

8010-8099 1,680,086.00 

8100-8299 0.00 

8300-8599 4,961.00 

8600-8799 420,000.00 

8900-8929 46,000.00 

8930-8979 0.00 

8980-8999 0.00 

2,151,047.00 

1000-1999 331,154.00 

2000-2999 498,612.00 

3000-3999 435,454.00 

4000-4999 24,616.00 

5000-5999 463,324.00 

6000-6999 35,000.00 

7100-7299, 7400-
7499 0.00 

7300-7399 (154,531.00) 

7600-7629 0.00 

7630-7699 0.00 

1,633,629.00 

517,418.00 

5,000,457.00 

5,517,875.00 

9710-9719 600.00 

9740 

9750 0.00 

9760 0.00 

Page 1 

% 
2025-26 

Change 
Projection 

(Cols. C-A/A) 
(C) 

(B) 

0.00% 383.56 

2.41% 1,720,521.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 4,961.00 

0.00% 420,000.00 

0.00% 46,000.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 

1.88% 2,191,482.00 

331,154.00 

5,629.00 

1.70% 336,783.00 

498,612.00 

13,961.00 

2.80% 512,573.00 

2.75% 447,429.00 

0.00% 24,616.00 

0.00% 463,324.00 

0.00% 35,000.00 

0.00% 

0.00% (154,531.00) 

0.00% 

0.00% 

1.93% 1,665,194.00 

526,288.00 

5,517,875.00 

6,044,163.00 

600.00 

% 

46 10462 0000000 

Form MYPI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

2026-27 
Change 

Projection 
(Cols. E-C/C) 

(E) 
(D) 

0.00% 383.56 

2.54% 1,764,273.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 4,961.00 

0.00% 420,000.00 

0.00% 46,000.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 

2.00% 2,235,234.00 

336,783.00 

5,725.00 

1.70% 342,508.00 

512,573.00 

14,352.00 

2.80% 526,925.00 

2.75% 459,733.00 

0.00% 24,616.00 

0.00% 463,324.00 

0.00% 35,000.00 

0.00% 

0.00% (154,531.00) 

0.00% 

0.00% 

1.94% 1,697,575.00 

537,659.00 

6,044,163.00 

6,581,822.00 

600.00 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:39 A 
                                            8 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

d. Assigned 

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance 

(Line D3f must agree with line D2) 

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES 

1. County School Service Fund 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

(Enter other reserve projections in Columns C and E for subsequent 

years 1 and 2; current year• Column A• is extracted) 

2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17) 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines E1a thru E2c) 

F. ASSUMPTIONS 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Multlyear Projections 

Unrestricted 

Projected Year 
Object Totals 
Codes (Form 011) 

(A) 

9780 0.00 

9789 485,699.00 

9790 5,031,576.00 

5,517,875.00 

9750 0.00 

9789 485,699.00 

9790 5,031,576.00 

9750 0.00 

9789 0.00 

9790 0.00 

5,517,275.00 

Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and 

second subsequent fiscal years. Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments 

% 
Change 

(Cols. C-A/A) 
(B) 

projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10. For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 

SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide. 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V11 

File: MYPI, Version 7 Page 2 

2025-26 
Projection 

(C) 

442,206.00 

5,601,357.00 

6,044,163.00 

0.00 

442,206.00 

5,601,357.00 

6,043,563.00 

% 
Change 

46 10462 0000000 

Form MYPI 
F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

2026-27 
Projection 

(Cols. E-C/C) (E) 
(D) 

433,403.00 

6,147,819.00 

6,581,822.00 

0.00 

433,403.00 

6,147,819.00 

6,581,222.00 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:39 A 
                                            9 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

2024-25 First Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Multlyear Projections 
Restricted 

Projected Year 
Object Totals 
Codes (Form 011) 

(A) 

County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in 

Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form Al. Line B5) 

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E; 

current year• Column A• is extracted) 

A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

1. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 

2. Federal Revenues 

3. Other State Revenues 

4. Other Local Revenues 

5. Other Financing Sources 

a. Transfers In 

b. Other Sources 

c. Contributions 

6. Total (Sum lines A 1 thru A5c) 

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

1. Certificated Salaries 

a. Base Salaries 

b. Step & Column Adjustment 

c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 

e. Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 

2. Classified Salaries 

a. Base Salaries 

b. Step & Column Adjustment 

c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 

e. Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 

3. Em ploy ee Benet its 

4. Books and Supplies 

5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6. Capital Outlay 

7. Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

8. Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 

9. Other Financing Uses 

a. Transfers Out 

b. Other Uses 

10. Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below) 

11. Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE 

(Line A6 minus line B11) 

D. FUND BALANCE 

1. Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 011, line F1e) 

2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 

3. Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 011) 

a. Nonspendable 

b. Restricted 

c. Committed 

1. Stabilization Arrangements 

2. Other Commitments 

d. Assigned 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V11 

File: MYPI, Version 7 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

8900-8929 

8930-8979 

8980-8999 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7100-7299, 7400-
7499 

7300-7399 

7600-7629 

7630-7699 

9710-9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

Page 3 

0.00 

167,731.00 

948,903.00 

549,917.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,666,551.00 

342,674.00 

237,243.00 

278,146.00 

164,574.00 

779,381.00 

25,000.00 

0.00 

137,122.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,964,140.00 

(297,589.00) 

990,885.00 

693,296.00 

0.00 

693,296.00 

% 2025-26 
Change 

Projection 
(Cols. C-A/A) 

(C) 
(B) 

0.00% 0.00 

0.00% 167,731.00 

0.00% 948,903.00 

(40.92%) 324,917.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

(13.50%) 1,441,551.00 

342,674.00 

5,825.00 

1.70% 348,499.00 

237,243.00 

6,643.00 

2.80% 243,886.00 

3.36% 287,492.00 

(24.31%) 124,574.00 

(43.05%) 443,830.00 

0.00% 25,000.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 137,122.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 

(18.01%) 1,610,403.00 

(168,852.00) 

693,296.00 

524,444.00 

524,444.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form MYPI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% 2026-27 
Change 

Projection 
(Cols. E-C/C) 

(E) 
(D) 

0.00% 0.00 

0.00% 167,731.00 

0.00% 948,903.00 

0.00% 324,917.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 1,441,551.00 

348,499.00 

5,924.00 

1.70% 354,423.00 

243,886.00 

6,829.00 

2.80% 250,715.00 

3.36% 297,152.00 

(16.05%) 104,574.00 

(22.53%) 343,830.00 

0.00% 25,000.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 137,122.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 

(6.06%) 1,512,816.00 

(71,265.00) 

524,444.00 

453,179.00 

453,179.00 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:39 A 
                                            10 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance 

(Line D3f must agree with line D2) 

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES 

1.County School Service Fund 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

(Enter current year reserve projections in Column A, and other reserve 

projections in Columns C and E for subsequent years 1 and 2) 

2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17) 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines E1a thru E2c) 

F. ASSUMPTIONS 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Multlyear Projections 

Restricted 

Projected Year 
Object Totals 
Codes (Form 011) 

(A) 

9789 

9790 0.00 

693,296.00 

9750 

9789 

9790 

9750 

9789 

9790 

Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and 

second subsequent fiscal years. Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments 

% 
Change 

(Cols. C-A/A) 
(B) 

projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10. For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 

SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide. 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V11 

File: MYPI, Version 7 Page 4 

2025-26 
Projection 

(C) 

0.00 

524,444.00 

% 
Change 

46 10462 0000000 

Form MYPI 
F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

2026-27 
Projection 

(Cols. E-C/C) (E) 
(D) 

0.00 

453,179.00 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:39 A 
                                            11 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

2024-25 First Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Multlyear Projections 
Unrestricted/Restricted 

Projected Year 
Object Totals 
Codes (Form 011) 

(A) 

County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in 

Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form Al. Line B5) 

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E; 

current year• Column A• is extracted) 

A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

1. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 

2. Federal Revenues 

3. Other State Revenues 

4. Other Local Revenues 

5. Other Financing Sources 

a. Transfers In 

b. Other Sources 

c. Contributions 

6. Total (Sum lines A 1 thru A5c) 

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

1. Certificated Salaries 

a. Base Salaries 

b. Step & Column Adjustment 

c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 

e. Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 

2. Classified Salaries 

a. Base Salaries 

b. Step & Column Adjustment 

c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 

e. Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 

3. Em ploy ee Benet its 

4. Books and Supplies 

5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6. Capital Outlay 

7. Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

8. Other Outgo. Transfers of Indirect Costs 

9. Other Financing Uses 

a. Transfers Out 

b. Other Uses 

10. Other Adjustments 

11. Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE 

(Line A6 minus line B11) 

D. FUND BALANCE 

1. Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 011, line F1e) 

2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 

3. Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 011) 

a. Nonspendable 

b. Restricted 

c. Committed 

1. Stabilization Arrangements 

2. Other Commitments 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V11 

File: MYPI, Version 7 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

8900-8929 

8930-8979 

8980-8999 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7100-7299, 7400-
7499 

7300-7399 

7600-7629 

7630-7699 

9710-9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

Page 5 

383.56 

1,680,086.00 

167,731.00 

953,864.00 

969,917.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

3,817,598.00 

673,828.00 

735,855.00 

713,600.00 

189,190.00 

1,242,705.00 

60,000.00 

0.00 

(17,409.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

3,597,769.00 

219,829.00 

5,991,342.00 

6,211,171.00 

600.00 

693,296.00 

0.00 

0.00 

% 2025-26 
Change 

Projection 
(Cols. C-A/A) 

(C) 
(B) 

0.00% 383.56 

2.41% 1,720,521.00 

0.00% 167,731.00 

0.00% 953,864.00 

(23.20%) 744,917.00 

0.00% 46,000.00 

0.00% 0.00 

0.00% 0.00 

(4.83%) 3,633,033.00 

673,828.00 

11,454.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1.70% 685,282.00 

735,855.00 

20,604.00 

0.00 

0.00 

2.80% 756,459.00 

2.99% 734,921.00 

(21.14%) 149,190.00 

(27.00%) 907,154.00 

0.00% 60,000.00 

0.00% 
0.00 

0.00% (17,409.00) 

0.00% 0.00 

0.00% 0.00 

0.00 

(8.95%) 3,275,597.00 

357,436.00 

6,211,171.00 

6,568,607.00 

600.00 

524,444.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form MYPI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% 2026-27 
Change 

Projection 
(Cols. E-C/C) 

(E) 
(D) 

0.00% 383.56 

2.54% 1,764,273.00 

0.00% 167,731.00 

0.00% 953,864.00 

0.00% 744,917.00 

0.00% 46,000.00 

0.00% 0.00 

0.00% 0.00 

1.20% 3,676,785.00 

685,282.00 

11,649.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1.70% 696,931.00 

756,459.00 

21,181.00 

0.00 

0.00 

2.80% 777,640.00 

2.99% 756,885.00 

(13.41%) 129,190.00 

(11.02%) 807,154.00 

0.00% 60,000.00 

0.00% 
0.00 

0.00% (17,409.00) 

0.00% 0.00 

0.00% 0.00 

0.00 

(1.99%) 3,210,391.00 

466,394.00 

6,568,607.00 

7,035,001.00 

600.00 

453,179.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:39 A 
                                            12 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

d. Assigned 

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance 

(Line D3f must agree with line D2) 

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES (Unrestricted except as noted) 

1. County School Service Fund 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

d. Negative Restricted Ending Balances 

(Negative resources 2000-9999) 

2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17) 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

3. Total Available Reserves - by Amount (Sum lines E1 thru E2c) 

4. Total Available Reserves - by Percent (Line E3 divided by Line F3c) 

F. RECOMMENDED RESERVES 

1. Special Education Pass-through Exclusions 

For counties that serve as the administrative unit (AU) of a 

special education local plan area (SELPA): 

a. Do you choose to exclude from the reserve calculation 

the pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members? 

b. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special 

education pass-through funds: 

1. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s): 

2. Special education pass-through funds 

(Column A: Fund 10, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546 

objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223; enter projections for 

subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E) 

2. County Office's Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

Used to determine the reserve standard percentage level on line F3d 

(Line B11, plus line F1b2 if line F1a is No) 

3. Calculating the Reserves 

a. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line B11) 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Multlyear Projections 

Unrestricted/Restricted 

Projected Year 
Object Totals 
Codes (Form 011) 

(A) 

9780 0.00 

9789 485,699.00 

9790 5,031,576.00 

6,211,171.00 

9750 0.00 

9789 485,699.00 

9790 5,031,576.00 

979Z 

9750 0.00 

9789 0.00 

9790 0.00 

5,517,275.00 

153.35% 

Yes 

0.00 

3,597,769.00 

3,597,769.00 

b. Plus: Special Education Pass-through Funds (Line F1b2, if Line F1a is No) 0.00 

c. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line F3a plus line F3b) 

d. Reserve Standard Percentage Lev el 

(Refer to Form 01CSI, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 

e. Reserve Standard - By Percent (Line F3c times F3d) 

f. Reserve Standard - By Amount 

(Refer to Form 01CSI, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 

g. Reserve Standard (Greater of Line F3e or F3f) 

h. Available Reserves (Line E3) Meet Reserve Standard (Line F3g) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V11 

File: MYPI, Version 7 

3,597,769.00 

5% 

179,888.45 

87,000.00 

179,888.45 

YES 

Page 6 

% 2025-26 
Change 

Projection 
(Cols. C-A/A) (C) 

(B) 

0.00 

442,206.00 

5,601,357.00 

6,568,607.00 

0.00 

442,206.00 

5,601,357.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

6,043,563.00 

184.50% 

3,275,597.00 

3,275,597.00 

0.00 

3,275,597.00 

5% 

163,779.85 

87,000.00 

163,779.85 

YES 

% 
Change 

46 10462 0000000 

Form MYPI 
F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

2026-27 
Projection 

(Cols. E-C/C) (E) 
(D) 

0.00 

433,403.00 

6,147,819.00 

7,035,001.00 

0.00 

433,403.00 

6,147,819.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

6,581,222.00 

205.00% 

3,210,391.00 

3,210,391.00 

0.00 

3,210,391.00 

5% 

160,519.55 

87,000.00 

160,519.55 

YES 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:39 A 
                                            13 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefits 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating 

Expenditures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of 

Indirect Costs) 

8) Other Outgo• Transfers of Indirect 

Costs 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 

OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS· 
B9) 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES/USES 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

BALANCE (C + D4) 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 • Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 • Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + 

F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

California Dept of Education 

Resource 
Codes 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 

(B) 

8010-8099 1,677,411.00 1,677,411.00 440,784.00 

8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8300-8599 4,961.00 4,961.00 985.46 

8600-8799 420,000.00 420,000.00 65,607.11 

2,102,372.00 2,102,372.00 507,376.57 

1000-1999 437,138.00 437,138.00 84,610.46 

2000-2999 570,291.00 570,291.00 154,937.50 

3000-3999 561,723.00 561,723.00 123,777.30 

4000-4999 24,616.00 24,616.00 4,473.98 

5000-5999 
463,338.00 463,338.00 103,992.38 

6000-6999 35,000.00 35,000.00 0.00 

7100-7299 

7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7300-7399 
(137,902.00) (137,902.00) 0.00 

1,954,204.00 1,954,204.00 471,791.62 

148,168.00 148,168.00 35,584.95 

8900-8929 46,000.00 46,000.00 0.00 

7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8980-8999 (4,536.00) (4,536.00) 0.00 

41,464.00 41,464.00 0.00 

189,632.00 189,632.00 35,584.95 

9791 5,092,607.20 5,092,607.20 

9793 0.00 0.00 

5,092,607.20 5,092,607.20 

9795 0.00 0.00 

5,092,607.20 5,092,607.20 

5,282,239.20 5,282,239.20 

9711 600.00 600.00 

9712 0.00 0.00 

Page 1 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

1,680,086.00 

0.00 

4,961.00 

420,000.00 

2,105,047.00 

331,154.00 

498,612.00 

435,454.00 

24,616.00 

463,324.00 

35,000.00 

0.00 

(154,531.00) 

1,633,629.00 

471,418.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

517,418.00 

5,000,457.00 

0.00 

5,000,457.00 

0.00 

5,000,457.00 

5,517,875.00 

600.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) 

D 
(E) 

(F) 

2,675.00 0.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

105,984.00 24.2% 

71,679.00 12.6% 

126,269.00 22.5% 

0.00 0.0% 

14.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

16,629.00 -12.1% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

4,536.00 -100.0% 

(92,150.20) -1.8% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            14 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

LCFF SOURCES 

Principal Apportionment 

State Aid - Current Year 

Education Protection Account State Aid -

Current Year 

State Aid - Prior Years 

Tax Relief Subventions 

Homeowners' Exemptions 

Timber Yield Tax 

Other Subv entions/I n-Lieu Taxes 

County & District Taxes 

Secured Roll Taxes 

Unsecured Roll Taxes 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Education Revenue Augmentation Fund 

(ERAF) 

Community Redevelopment Funds (SB 

617/699/1992) 

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent 

Taxes 

Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604) 

Roy allies and Bonuses 

Other In-Lieu Taxes 

Less: Non-LCFF 

(50%) Adjustment 

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 

LCFF Transfers 

Unrestricted LCFF 

Transfers - Current Year 

Resource 
Codes 

0000 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

9713 0.00 0.00 

9719 0.00 0.00 

9740 0.00 0.00 

9750 0.00 0.00 

9760 0.00 0.00 

9780 0.00 0.00 

9789 486,000.00 486,000.00 

9790 4,795,639.20 4,795,639.20 

8011 1,356,190.00 1,356,190.00 408,332.00 

8012 
237,051.00 237,051.00 32,452.00 

8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8021 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8041 80,111.00 80,111.00 0.00 

8042 2,350.00 2,350.00 0.00 

8043 107.00 107.00 0.00 

8044 1,602.00 1,602.00 0.00 

8045 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8047 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8048 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1,677,411.00 1,677,411.00 440,784.00 

8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 

All Other LCFF Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of 

Property Taxes 

Property Taxes Transfers 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior 

Years 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

8096 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8099 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 2 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

485,699.00 

5,031,576.00 

1,459,620.00 

129,808.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,075.00 

0.00 

86,022.00 

2,139.00 

75.00 

1,347.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,680,086.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) 

D 
(E) 

(F) 

103,430.00 7.6% 

(107,243.00) -45.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

1,075.00 New 

0.00 0.0% 

5,911.00 7.4% 

(211.00) -9.0% 

(32.00) -29.9% 

(255.00) -15.9% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

2,675.00 0.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            15 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Resource 
Description 

Codes 

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Maintenance and Operations 

Special Education Entitlement 

Special Education Discretionary Grants 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Donated Food Commodities 

Flood Control Funds 

Wildlife Reserve Funds 

FEMA 

lnteragency Contracts Between LEAs 

Pass-Through Revenues from Federal 

Sources 

"Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 

"Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 

"Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective 
4035 

Instruction 

"Title Ill, Immigrant Student Program 4201 

"Title Ill, English Learner Program 4203 

Public Charter Schools Grant Program 
4610 

(PCSGP) 

3040, 3060, 

3061, 3110, 

3150, 3155, 

3182, 3183, 

Every Student Succeeds Act 4037, 4038, 

4123, 4124, 

4126, 4127, 

4128, 4204, 

5630 

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 

All Other Federal Revenue All Other 

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other State Apportionments 

ROC/P Entitlement 

Prior Years 6360 

Special Education Master Plan 

Current Year 6500 

Prior Years 6500 

All Other State Apportionments - Current 
All Other 

Year 

All Other State Apportionments - Prior 
All Other 

Years 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 

Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional 

Materials 

Tax Relief Subventions 

Restricted Levies - Other 

Homeowners' Exemptions 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 

(B) 

1,677,411.00 1,677,411.00 440,784.00 

8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8181 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8287 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 

8290 

8290 

8290 

8290 

8290 

8290 

8290 

8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

8319 

8311 

8319 

8311 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8319 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8550 1,045.00 1,045.00 0.00 

8560 
3,616.00 3,616.00 459.46 

8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 3 

Projected 

Year Totals 

(D) 

1,680,086.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,045.00 

3,616.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) 

D 
(E) 

(F) 

2,675.00 0.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            16 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Resource 
Description 

Codes 

Other Subv entions/I n-Lieu Taxes 

Pass-Through Revenues from State 

Sources 

After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 

Charter School Facility Grant 6030 

Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 
6387 

Program 

6650, 6680, 

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6685, 6690, 

6695 

California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 

Specialized Secondary 7370 

American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 

All Other State Revenue All Other 

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 

County and District Taxes 

Other Restricted Levies 

Secured Roll 

Unsecured Roll 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes 

Parcel Taxes 

Other 

Community Redevelopment Funds Not 

Subject to LCFF Deduction 

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent 

Non-LCFF Taxes 

Sales 

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 

Sale of Publications 

Food Service Sales 

All Other Sales 

Leases and Rentals 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value 

of Investments 

Fees and Contracts 

Adult Education Fees 

Non-Resident Students 

Transportation Fees From Individuals 

lnteragency Services 

Mitigation/Developer Fees 

All Other Fees and Contracts 

Other Local Revenue 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8587 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 

8590 

8590 

8590 

8590 

8590 

8590 

8590 300.00 300.00 526.00 

4,961.00 4,961.00 985.46 

8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8625 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8629 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8660 45,000.00 45,000.00 60,713.68 

8662 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8677 368,000.00 368,000.00 0.00 

8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 4 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

300.00 

4,961.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

45,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

368,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E) 
(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            17 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Resource 
Description 

Codes 

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) 

Adjustment 

Pass-Through Revenues From Local 

Sources 

All Other Local Revenue 

Tuition 

All Other Transfers In 

Transfers Of Apportionments 

Special Education SELPA Transfers 

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 

From County Offices 6500 

From JPAs 6500 

ROC/P Transfers 

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 

From County Offices 6360 

From JPAs 6360 

Other Transfers of Apportionments 

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 

From County Offices All Other 

From JPAs All Other 

All Other Transfers In from All Others 

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

TOTAL, REVENUES 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' 

Salaries 

Other Certificated Salaries 

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 

Classified Support Salaries 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' 

Salaries 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 

Other Classified Salaries 

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 

PERS 

OASDI/Medicare/ Alternative 

Health and Welfare Benefits 

Unemployment Insurance 

Workers' Compensation 

OPEB, Allocated 

OPEB, Active Employees 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

8691 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8697 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8699 7,000.00 7,000.00 4,893.43 

8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 

420,000.00 420,000.00 65,607.11 

2,102,372.00 2,102,372.00 507,376.57 

1100 288,838.00 288,838.00 33,039.14 

1200 0.00 0.00 995.64 

1300 
148,300.00 148,300.00 50,575.68 

1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 

437,138.00 437,138.00 84,610.46 

2100 94,181.00 94,181.00 4,354.02 

2200 79,292.00 79,292.00 24,006.05 

2300 
148,879.00 148,879.00 43,489.88 

2400 247,939.00 247,939.00 83,087.55 

2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 

570,291.00 570,291.00 154,937.50 

3101-3102 83,108.00 83,108.00 14,614.11 

3201-3202 153,688.00 153,688.00 41,283.55 

3301-3302 48,585.00 48,585.00 12,574.49 

3401-3402 237,207.00 237,207.00 46,696.17 

3501-3502 504.00 504.00 120.08 

3601-3602 38,631.00 38,631.00 8,488.90 

3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 

3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 5 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

7,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

420,000.00 

2,105,047.00 

188,552.00 

0.00 

142,602.00 

0.00 

331,154.00 

14,953.00 

83,759.00 

147,305.00 

252,595.00 

0.00 

498,612.00 

63,851.00 

130,922.00 

41,234.00 

169,690.00 

416.00 

29,341.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) 

D 
(E) 

(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

2,675.00 0.1% 

100,286.00 34.7% 

0.00 0.0% 

5,698.00 3.8% 

0.00 0.0% 

105,984.00 24.2% 

79,228.00 84.1% 

(4,467.00) -5.6% 

1,574.00 1.1% 

(4,656.00) -1.9% 

0.00 0.0% 

71,679.00 12.6% 

19,257.00 23.2% 

22,766.00 14.8% 

7,351.00 15.1% 

67,517.00 28.5% 

88.00 17.5% 

9,290.00 24.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            18 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Other Employee Benefits 

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula 

Materials 

Books and Other Reference Materials 

Materials and Supplies 

Noncapitalized Equipment 

Food 

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING 
EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Services 

Travel and Conferences 

Dues and Memberships 

Insurance 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized 

Improvements 

Transfers of Direct Costs 

Transfers of Direct Costs - lnterfund 

Professional/Consulting Services and 

Operating Expenditures 

Communications 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER 

OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 

Books and Media for New School Libraries or 

Major Expansion of School Libraries 

Equipment 

Equipment Replacement 

Lease Assets 

Subscription Assets 

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of 
Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 

Tuition for Instruction Under lnterdistrict 

Attendance Agreements 

State Special Schools 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit 

Payments 

Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 

Payments to County Offices 

Payments to JPAs 

California Dept of Education 

Resource 
Codes 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 

561,723.00 561,723.00 123,777.30 

4100 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4300 17,808.00 17,808.00 2,181.66 

4400 6,808.00 6,808.00 2,292.32 

4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 

24,616.00 24,616.00 4,473.98 

5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 

5200 18,858.00 18,858.00 6,766.53 

5300 33,663.00 33,663.00 22,338.04 

5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 

5500 1,400.00 1,400.00 0.00 

5600 
1,500.00 1,500.00 71.76 

5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 

5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 

5800 
393,317.00 393,317.00 74,816.05 

5900 14,600.00 14,600.00 0.00 

463,338.00 463,338.00 103,992.38 

6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 

6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 

6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 

6300 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

6400 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 

6500 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 

6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 

6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 

35,000.00 35,000.00 0.00 

7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 6 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

435,454.00 

0.00 

0.00 

17,300.00 

7,316.00 

0.00 

24,616.00 

0.00 

18,858.00 

33,649.00 

0.00 

1,400.00 

1,500.00 

0.00 

0.00 

393,317.00 

14,600.00 

463,324.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

20,000.00 

15,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

35,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E) 
(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

126,269.00 22.5% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

508.00 2.9% 

(508.00) -7.5% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

14.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

14.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            19 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Off ices 

To JPAs 

Special Education SELPA Transfers of 

Apportionments 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Off ices 

To JPAs 

ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Off ices 

To JPAs 

Resource 
Codes 

6500 

6500 

6500 

6360 

6360 

6360 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7221 

7222 

7223 

7221 

7222 

7223 

Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 

All Other Transfers 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 

Debt Service 

Debt Service - Interest 

Other Debt Service - Principal 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers 

of Indirect Costs) 

OTHER OUTGO· TRANSFERS OF 

INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs 

Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO· TRANSFERS OF 

INDIRECT COSTS 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

From: Special Reserve Fund 

Other Authorized I nterf und Transl ers In 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To: Child Development Fund 

To: Special Reserve Fund 

To: State School Building Fund/ County 

School Facilities Fund 

To: Cafeteria Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers Out 

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

State Apportionments 

Emergency Apportionments 

Proceeds 

Proceeds from Disposal of Capital 

Assets 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

7310 (114,249.00) (114,249.00) 0.00 

7350 (23,653.00) (23,653.00) 0.00 

(137,902.00) (137,902.00) 0.00 

1,954,204.00 1,954,204.00 471,791.62 

8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8919 46,000.00 46,000.00 0.00 

46,000.00 46,000.00 0.00 

7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7613 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8953 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 7 

Projected 

Year Totals 
(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(137,122.00) 

(17,409.00) 

(154,531.00) 

1,633,629.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) 

D 
(E) 

(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

22,873.00 -20.0% 

(6,244.00) 26.4% 

16,629.00 -12.1% 

320,575.00 16.4% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            20 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Other Sources 

County School Bldg Aid 

Transfers from Funds of 

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 

Long-Term Debt Proceeds 

Proceeds from Certificates of 

Participation 

Proceeds from Leases 

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 

Proceeds from SBITAs 

All Other Financing Sources 

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 

USES 

Transfers of Funds from 

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 

All Other Financing Uses 

(d) TOTAL, USES 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) 

California Dept of Education 

Resource 
Codes 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8965 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8971 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

7651 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

8980 (4,536.00) (4,536.00) 0.00 

8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(4,536.00) (4,536.00) 0.00 

41,464.00 41,464.00 0.00 

Page 8 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E) 
(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

4,536.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

4,536.00 -100.0% 

4,536.00 10.9% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            21 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefits 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating 

Expenditures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of 

Indirect Costs) 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect 

Costs 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS· 
B9) 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES/USES 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + D4) 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b} 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + 

F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

California Dept of Education 

Resource 
Codes 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8100-8299 171,487.00 171,487.00 14,346.56 

8300-8599 924,563.00 924,563.00 195,098.95 

8600-8799 175,839.00 175,839.00 230,849.00 

1,271,889.00 1,271,889.00 440,294.51 

1000-1999 270,751.00 270,751.00 98,818.07 

2000-2999 158,264.00 158,264.00 47,958.84 

3000-3999 220,509.00 220,509.00 64,898.28 

4000-4999 146,453.00 146,453.00 12,910.26 

5000-5999 
707,534.00 707,534.00 98,702.00 

6000-6999 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 

7100-7299 

7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7300-7399 
114,249.00 114,249.00 0.00 

1,642,760.00 1,642,760.00 323,287.45 

(370,871.00) (370,871.00) 117,007.06 

8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8980-8999 4,536.00 4,536.00 0.00 

4,536.00 4,536.00 0.00 

(366,335.00) (366,335.00) 117,007.06 

9791 1,027,291.29 864,332.00 

9793 0.00 0.00 

1,027,291.29 864,332.00 

9795 0.00 0.00 

1,027,291.29 864,332.00 

660,956.29 497,997.00 

9711 0.00 0.00 

9712 0.00 0.00 

Page 9 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

167,731.00 

948,903.00 

549,917.00 

1,666,551.00 

342,674.00 

237,243.00 

278,146.00 

164,574.00 

779,381.00 

25,000.00 

0.00 

137,122.00 

1,964,140.00 

(297,589.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(297,589.00) 

990,885.00 

0.00 

990,885.00 

0.00 

990,885.00 

693,296.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) 

D 
(E) 

(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

(3,756.00) -2.2% 

24,340.00 2.6% 

374,078.00 212.7% 

(71,923.00) -26.6% 

(78,979.00) -49.9% 

(57,637.00) -26.1% 

(18,121.00) -12.4% 

(71,847.00) -10.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(22,873.00) -20.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(4,536.00) -100.0% 

126,553.00 14.6% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            22 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

LCFF SOURCES 

Principal Apportionment 

State Aid - Current Year 

Education Protection Account State Aid -

Current Year 

State Aid - Prior Years 

Tax Relief Subventions 

Homeowners' Exemptions 

nm ber Yield Tax 

Other Subv entions/I n-Lieu Taxes 

County & District Taxes 

Secured Roll Taxes 

Unsecured Roll Taxes 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Education Revenue Augmentation Fund 

(ERAF) 

Community Redevelopment Funds (SB 

617/699/1992) 

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent 

Taxes 

Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604) 

Roy allies and Bonuses 

Other In-Lieu Taxes 

Less: Non-LCFF 

(50%) Adjustment 

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 

LCFF Transfers 

Unrestricted LCFF 

Transfers - Current Year 

Resource 
Codes 

0000 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

9713 0.00 0.00 

9719 0.00 0.00 

9740 665,208.57 497,997.00 

9750 0.00 0.00 

9760 0.00 0.00 

9780 0.00 0.00 

9789 0.00 0.00 

9790 (4,252.28) 0.00 

8011 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8012 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8021 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8041 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8042 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8044 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8045 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8047 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8048 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

8091 

All Other LCFF Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of 

Property Taxes 

Property Taxes Transfers 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior 

Years 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

8096 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8099 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 10 

Projected 

Year Totals 
(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

693,296.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) 

D 
(E) 

(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            23 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Resource 
Description 

Codes 

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Maintenance and Operations 

Special Education Entitlement 

Special Education Discretionary Grants 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Donated Food Commodities 

Flood Control Funds 

Wildlife Reserve Funds 

FEMA 

lnteragency Contracts Between LEAs 

Pass-Through Revenues from Federal 

Sources 

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 

Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective 
4035 

Instruction 

Title Ill, Immigrant Student Program 4201 

Title Ill, English Learner Program 4203 

Public Charter Schools Grant Program 
4610 

(PCSGP) 

3040, 3060, 

3061, 3110, 

3150, 3155, 

3182, 3183, 

Every Student Succeeds Act 4037, 4038, 

4123, 4124, 

4126, 4127, 

4128, 4204, 

5630 

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 

All Other Federal Revenue All Other 

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other State Apportionments 

ROC/P Entitlement 

Prior Years 6360 

Special Education Master Plan 

Current Year 6500 

Prior Years 6500 

All Other State Apportionments - Current 
All Other 

Year 

All Other State Apportionments - Prior 
All Other 

Years 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 

Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional 

Materials 

Tax Relief Subventions 

Restricted Levies - Other 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8181 120,251.00 120,251.00 0.00 

8182 24,847.00 24,847.00 0.00 

8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8287 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 26,389.00 26,389.00 14,346.56 

171,487.00 171,487.00 14,346.56 

8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8311 645,437.00 645,437.00 194,174.00 

8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8311 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8319 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8560 
1,470.00 1,470.00 596.95 

Page 11 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

120,251.00 

20,187.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

27,293.00 

167,731.00 

0.00 

693,474.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,872.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) 

D 
(E) 

(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(4,660.00) -18.8% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

904.00 3.4% 

(3,756.00) -2.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

48,037.00 7.4% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

402.00 27.3% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            24 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2024-25 First Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Resource 
Description 

Codes 

Homeowners' Exemptions 

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 

Pass-Through Revenues from State 
Sources 

After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 

Charter School Facility Grant 6030 

Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 
6387 

Program 

6650, 6680, 
Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6685, 6690, 

6695 

California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 

Specialized Secondary 7370 

American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 

All Other State Revenue All Other 

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 

County and District Taxes 

Other Restricted Levies 

Secured Roll 

Unsecured Roll 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes 

Parcel Taxes 

Other 

Community Redevelopment Funds Not 
Subject to LCFF Deduction 

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent 
Non-LCFF Taxes 

Sales 

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 

Sale of Publications 

Food Service Sales 

All Other Sales 

Leases and Rentals 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value 
of Investments 

Fees and Contracts 

Adult Education Fees 

Non-Resident Students 

Transportation Fees From Individuals 

lnteragency Services 

Mitigation/Developer Fees 

All Other Fees and Contracts 

Other Local Revenue 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8587 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 
75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00 

8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 202,656.00 202,656.00 328.00 

924,563.00 924,563.00 195,098.95 

8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8625 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8629 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8662 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8677 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 12 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

75,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

178,557.00 

948,903.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E)
(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(24,099.00) -11.9% 

24,340.00 2.6% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            25 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Resource 
Description 

Codes 

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) 

Adjustment 

Pass-Through Revenues From Local 

Sources 

All Other Local Revenue 

Tuition 

All Other Transfers In 

Transfers Of Apportionments 

Special Education SELPA Transfers 

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 

From County Offices 6500 

From JPAs 6500 

ROC/P Transfers 

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 

From County Offices 6360 

From JPAs 6360 

Other Transfers of Apportionments 

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 

From County Offices All Other 

From JPAs All Other 

All Other Transfers In from All Others 

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

TOTAL, REVENUES 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' 

Salaries 

Other Certificated Salaries 

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 

Classified Support Salaries 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' 

Salaries 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 

Other Classified Salaries 

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 

PERS 

OASDI/Medicare/ Alternative 

Health and Welfare Benefits 

Unemployment Insurance 

Workers' Compensation 

OPEB, Allocated 

OPEB, Active Employees 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

8691 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8697 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8699 12,001.00 12,001.00 184,375.00 

8710 163,838.00 163,838.00 46,474.00 

8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 

175,839.00 175,839.00 230,849.00 

1,271,889.00 1,271,889.00 440,294.51 

1100 165,632.00 165,632.00 63,778.35 

1200 26,175.00 26,175.00 8,725.08 

1300 
78,944.00 78,944.00 26,314.64 

1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 

270,751.00 270,751.00 98,818.07 

2100 94,727.00 94,727.00 35,257.27 

2200 48,604.00 48,604.00 12,653.57 

2300 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 

2900 14,933.00 14,933.00 48.00 

158,264.00 158,264.00 47,958.84 

3101-3102 112,656.00 112,656.00 15,851.20 

3201-3202 31,054.00 31,054.00 10,935.30 

3301-3302 17,575.00 17,575.00 4,886.32 

3401-3402 41,015.00 41,015.00 27,852.82 

3501-3502 227.00 227.00 73.38 

3601-3602 17,982.00 17,982.00 5,299.26 

3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 

3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 13 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

383,944.00 

165,973.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

549,917.00 

1,666,551.00 

237,555.00 

26,175.00 

78,944.00 

0.00 

342,674.00 

169,423.00 

46,604.00 

0.00 

0.00 

21,216.00 

237,243.00 

62,453.00 

49,828.00 

21,924.00 

122,876.00 

290.00 

20,775.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) 

D 
(E) 

(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

371,943.00 3,099.3% 

2,135.00 1.3% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

374,078.00 212.7% 

394,662.00 31.0% 

(71,923.00) -43.4% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(71,923.00) -26.6% 

(74,696.00) -78.9% 

2,000.00 4.1% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(6,283.00) -42.1% 

(78,979.00) -49.9% 

50,203.00 44.6% 

(18,774.00) -60.5% 

(4,349.00) -24.7% 

(81,861.00) -199.6% 

(63.00) -27.8% 

(2,793.00) -15.5% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            26 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Other Employee Benefits 

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula 

Materials 

Books and Other Reference Materials 

Materials and Supplies 

Noncapitalized Equipment 

Food 

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING 
EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Services 

Travel and Cont erences 

Dues and Memberships 

Insurance 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized 

Improvements 

Transfers of Direct Costs 

Transfers of Direct Costs - lnterfund 

Professional/Consulting Services and 

Operating Expenditures 

Communications 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER 

OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 

Books and Media for New School Libraries or 

Major Expansion of School Libraries 

Equipment 

Equipment Replacement 

Lease Assets 

Subscription Assets 

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of 
Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 

Tuition for Instruction Under lnterdistrict 

Attendance Agreements 

State Special Schools 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit 

Payments 

Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 

Payments to County Offices 

Payments to JPAs 

California Dept of Education 

Resource 
Codes 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 

220,509.00 220,509.00 64,898.28 

4100 
9,021.00 9,021.00 0.00 

4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4300 113,506.00 113,506.00 12,910.26 

4400 23,926.00 23,926.00 0.00 

4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 

146,453.00 146,453.00 12,910.26 

5100 40,000.00 40,000.00 4,231.48 

5200 4,259.00 4,259.00 782.96 

5300 2,405.00 2,405.00 332.52 

5400-5450 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,148.02 

5500 15,000.00 15,000.00 588.29 

5600 
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 

5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 

5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 

5800 
618,870.00 618,870.00 67,618.73 

5900 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 

707,534.00 707,534.00 98,702.00 

6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 

6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 

6200 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 

6300 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 

6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 

6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 

6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 

25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 

7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 14 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

278,146.00 

9,825.00 

0.00 

122,276.00 

32,473.00 

0.00 

164,574.00 

85,000.00 

37,849.00 

2,497.00 

25,000.00 

15,000.00 

1,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

612,035.00 

1,000.00 

779,381.00 

0.00 

0.00 

25,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

25,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E) 
(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

(57,637.00) -26.1% 

(804.00) -8.9% 

0.00 0.0% 

(8,770.00) -7.7% 

(8,547.00) -35.7% 

0.00 0.0% 

(18,121.00) -12.4% 

(45,000.00) -112.5% 

(33,590.00) -788.7% 

(92.00) -3.8% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

6,835.00 1.1% 

0.00 0.0% 

(71,847.00) -10.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            27 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Off ices 

To JPAs 

Special Education SELPA Transfers of 

Apportionments 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Off ices 

To JPAs 

ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Off ices 

To JPAs 

Resource 
Codes 

6500 

6500 

6500 

6360 

6360 

6360 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 

All Other Transfers 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 

Debt Service 

Debt Service - Interest 

Other Debt Service - Principal 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers 

of Indirect Costs) 

OTHER OUTGO· TRANSFERS OF 
INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs 

Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO· TRANSFERS OF 

INDIRECT COSTS 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

From: Special Reserve Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers In 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To: Child Development Fund 

To: Special Reserve Fund 

To: State School Building Fund/ County 

School Facilities Fund 

To: Cafeteria Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers Out 

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

State Apportionments 

Emergency Apportionments 

Proceeds 

Proceeds from Disposal of Capital 

Assets 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

7310 114,249.00 114,249.00 0.00 

7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 

114,249.00 114,249.00 0.00 

1,642,760.00 1,642,760.00 323,287.45 

8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7613 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8953 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 15 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

137,122.00 

0.00 

137,122.00 

1,964,140.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E)
(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(22,873.00) -20.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(22,873.00) -20.0% 

(321,380.00) -19.6% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            28 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Other Sources 

County School Bldg Aid 

Transfers from Funds of 

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 

Long-Term Debt Proceeds 

Proceeds from Certificates of 

Participation 

Proceeds from Leases 

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 

Proceeds from SBITAs 

All Other Financing Sources 

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 

USES 

Transfers of Funds from 

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 

All Other Financing Uses 

(d) TOTAL, USES 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) 

California Dept of Education 

Resource 
Codes 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(B) 

8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8965 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8971 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

7651 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

8980 4,536.00 4,536.00 0.00 

8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4,536.00 4,536.00 0.00 

4,536.00 4,536.00 0.00 

Page 16 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E) 
(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(4,536.00) -100.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(4,536.00) -100.0% 

4,536.00 100.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            29 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefits 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating 

Expenditures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of 

Indirect Costs) 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect 

Costs 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS· 
B9) 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES/USES 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + D4) 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + 

F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

California Dept of Education 

Resource 
Codes 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 
Summary• Unrestricted/Restricted 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(BJ 

8010-8099 1,677,411.00 1,677,411.00 440,784.00 

8100-8299 171,487.00 171,487.00 14,346.56 

8300-8599 929,524.00 929,524.00 196,084.41 

8600-8799 595,839.00 595,839.00 296,456.11 

3,374,261.00 3,374,261.00 947,671.08 

1000-1999 707,889.00 707,889.00 183,428.53 

2000-2999 728,555.00 728,555.00 202,896.34 

3000-3999 782,232.00 782,232.00 188,675.58 

4000-4999 171,069.00 171,069.00 17,384.24 

5000-5999 
1,170,872.00 1,170,872.00 202,694.38 

6000-6999 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00 

7100-7299 

7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7300-7399 
(23,653.00) (23,653.00) 0.00 

3,596,964.00 3,596,964.00 795,079.07 

(222,703.00) (222,703.00) 152,592.01 

8900-8929 46,000.00 46,000.00 0.00 

7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 

46,000.00 46,000.00 0.00 

(176,703.00) (176,703.00) 152,592.01 

9791 6,119,898.49 5,956,939.20 

9793 0.00 0.00 

6,119,898.49 5,956,939.20 

9795 0.00 0.00 

6,119,898.49 5,956,939.20 

5,943,195.49 5,780,236.20 

9711 600.00 600.00 

9712 0.00 0.00 

Page 17 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

1,680,086.00 

167,731.00 

953,864.00 

969,917.00 

3,771,598.00 

673,828.00 

735,855.00 

713,600.00 

189,190.00 

1,242,705.00 

60,000.00 

0.00 

(17,409.00) 

3,597,769.00 

173,829.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

219,829.00 

5,991,342.00 

0.00 

5,991,342.00 

0.00 

5,991,342.00 

6,211,171.00 

600.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 
F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) 

D 
(E) 

(F) 

2,675.00 0.2% 

(3,756.00) -2.2% 

24,340.00 2.6% 

374,078.00 62.8% 

34,061.00 4.8% 

(7,300.00) -1.0% 

68,632.00 8.8% 

(18,121.00) -10.6% 

(71,833.00) -6.1% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(6,244.00) 26.4% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

34,402.80 0.6% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            30 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

LCFF SOURCES 

Principal Apportionment 

State Aid - Current Year 

Education Protection Account State Aid -

Current Year 

State Aid - Prior Years 

Tax Relief Subventions 

Homeowners' Exemptions 

nm ber Yield Tax 

Other Subv entions/I n-Lieu Taxes 

County & District Taxes 

Secured Roll Taxes 

Unsecured Roll Taxes 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Education Revenue Augmentation Fund 

(ERAF) 

Community Redevelopment Funds (SB 

617/699/1992) 

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent 

Taxes 

Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604) 

Roy allies and Bonuses 

Other In-Lieu Taxes 

Less: Non-LCFF 

(50%) Adjustment 

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 

LCFF Transfers 

Unrestricted LCFF 

Transfers - Current Year 

Resource 
Codes 

0000 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Summary• Unrestricted/Restricted 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(BJ 

9713 0.00 0.00 

9719 0.00 0.00 

9740 665,208.57 497,997.00 

9750 0.00 0.00 

9760 0.00 0.00 

9780 0.00 0.00 

9789 486,000.00 486,000.00 

9790 4,791,386.92 4,795,639.20 

8011 1,356,190.00 1,356,190.00 408,332.00 

8012 
237,051.00 237,051.00 32,452.00 

8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8021 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8041 80,111.00 80,111.00 0.00 

8042 2,350.00 2,350.00 0.00 

8043 107.00 107.00 0.00 

8044 1,602.00 1,602.00 0.00 

8045 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8047 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8048 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1,677,411.00 1,677,411.00 440,784.00 

8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 

All Other LCFF Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of 

Property Taxes 

Property Taxes Transfers 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior 

Years 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

8096 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8099 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 18 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

693,296.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

485,699.00 

5,031,576.00 

1,459,620.00 

129,808.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,075.00 

0.00 

86,022.00 

2,139.00 

75.00 

1,347.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,680,086.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E)
(F) 

103,430.00 7.6% 

(107,243.00) -45.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

1,075.00 New 

0.00 0.0% 

5,911.00 7.4% 

(211.00) -9.0% 

(32.00) -29.9% 

(255.00) -15.9% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

2,675.00 0.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            31 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Summary• Unrestricted/Restricted 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Resource 
Description 

Codes 

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Maintenance and Operations 

Special Education Entitlement 

Special Education Discretionary Grants 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Donated Food Commodities 

Flood Control Funds 

Wildlife Reserve Funds 

FEMA 

lnteragency Contracts Between LEAs 

Pass-Through Revenues from Federal 

Sources 

"Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 

"Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 

"Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective 
4035 

Instruction 

"Title Ill, Immigrant Student Program 4201 

"Title Ill, English Learner Program 4203 

Public Charter Schools Grant Program 
4610 

(PCSGP) 

3040, 3060, 

3061, 3110, 

3150, 3155, 

3182, 3183, 

Every Student Succeeds Act 4037, 4038, 

4123, 4124, 

4126, 4127, 

4128, 4204, 

5630 

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 

All Other Federal Revenue All Other 

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other State Apportionments 

ROC/P Entitlement 

Prior Years 6360 

Special Education Master Plan 

Current Year 6500 

Prior Years 6500 

All Other State Apportionments - Current 
All Other 

Year 

All Other State Apportionments - Prior 
All Other 

Years 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 

Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional 

Materials 

Tax Relief Subventions 

Restricted Levies - Other 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(BJ 

1,677,411.00 1,677,411.00 440,784.00 

8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8181 120,251.00 120,251.00 0.00 

8182 24,847.00 24,847.00 0.00 

8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8287 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8290 26,389.00 26,389.00 14,346.56 

171,487.00 171,487.00 14,346.56 

8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8311 645,437.00 645,437.00 194,174.00 

8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8311 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8319 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8550 1,045.00 1,045.00 0.00 

8560 
5,086.00 5,086.00 1,056.41 

Page 19 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

1,680,086.00 

0.00 

120,251.00 

20,187.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

27,293.00 

167,731.00 

0.00 

693,474.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,045.00 

5,488.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E)
(F) 

2,675.00 0.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(4,660.00) -18.8% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

904.00 3.4% 

(3,756.00) -2.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

48,037.00 7.4% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

402.00 7.9% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            32 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2024-25 First Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Summary• Unrestricted/Restricted 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Resource 
Description 

Codes 

Homeowners' Exemptions 

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 

Pass-Through Revenues from State 
Sources 

After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 

Charter School Facility Grant 6030 

Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 
6387 

Program 

6650, 6680, 
Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6685, 6690, 

6695 

California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 

Specialized Secondary 7370 

American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 

All Other State Revenue All Other 

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 

County and District Taxes 

Other Restricted Levies 

Secured Roll 

Unsecured Roll 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes 

Parcel Taxes 

Other 

Community Redevelopment Funds Not 
Subject to LCFF Deduction 

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent 
Non-LCFF Taxes 

Sales 

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 

Sale of Publications 

Food Service Sales 

All Other Sales 

Leases and Rentals 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value 
of Investments 

Fees and Contracts 

Adult Education Fees 

Non-Resident Students 

Transportation Fees From Individuals 

lnteragency Services 

Mitigation/Developer Fees 

All Other Fees and Contracts 

Other Local Revenue 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(BJ 

8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8587 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 
75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00 

8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 202,956.00 202,956.00 854.00 

929,524.00 929,524.00 196,084.41 

8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8625 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8629 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8660 45,000.00 45,000.00 60,713.68 

8662 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8677 368,000.00 368,000.00 0.00 

8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 20 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

75,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

178,857.00 

953,864.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

45,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

368,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E)
(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(24,099.00) -11.9% 

24,340.00 2.6% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            33 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Summary• Unrestricted/Restricted 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Resource 
Description 

Codes 

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) 

Adjustment 

Pass-Through Revenues From Local 

Sources 

All Other Local Revenue 

Tuition 

All Other Transfers In 

Transfers Of Apportionments 

Special Education SELPA Transfers 

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 

From County Offices 6500 

From JPAs 6500 

ROC/P Transfers 

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 

From County Offices 6360 

From JPAs 6360 

Other Transfers of Apportionments 

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 

From County Offices All Other 

From JPAs All Other 

All Other Transfers In from All Others 

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

TOTAL, REVENUES 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' 

Salaries 

Other Certificated Salaries 

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 

Classified Support Salaries 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' 

Salaries 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 

Other Classified Salaries 

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 

PERS 

OASDI/Medicare/ Alternative 

Health and Welfare Benefits 

Unemployment Insurance 

Workers' Compensation 

OPEB, Allocated 

OPEB, Active Employees 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(BJ 

8691 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8697 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8699 19,001.00 19,001.00 189,268.43 

8710 163,838.00 163,838.00 46,474.00 

8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 

595,839.00 595,839.00 296,456.11 

3,374,261.00 3,374,261.00 947,671.08 

1100 454,470.00 454,470.00 96,817.49 

1200 26,175.00 26,175.00 9,720.72 

1300 
227,244.00 227,244.00 76,890.32 

1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 

707,889.00 707,889.00 183,428.53 

2100 188,908.00 188,908.00 39,611.29 

2200 127,896.00 127,896.00 36,659.62 

2300 
148,879.00 148,879.00 43,489.88 

2400 247,939.00 247,939.00 83,087.55 

2900 14,933.00 14,933.00 48.00 

728,555.00 728,555.00 202,896.34 

3101-3102 195,764.00 195,764.00 30,465.31 

3201-3202 184,742.00 184,742.00 52,218.85 

3301-3302 66,160.00 66,160.00 17,460.81 

3401-3402 278,222.00 278,222.00 74,548.99 

3501-3502 731.00 731.00 193.46 

3601-3602 56,613.00 56,613.00 13,788.16 

3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 

3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 21 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

390,944.00 

165,973.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

969,917.00 

3,771,598.00 

426,107.00 

26,175.00 

221,546.00 

0.00 

673,828.00 

184,376.00 

130,363.00 

147,305.00 

252,595.00 

21,216.00 

735,855.00 

126,304.00 

180,750.00 

63,158.00 

292,566.00 

706.00 

50,116.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E) 
(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

371,943.00 1,957.5% 

2,135.00 1.3% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

374,078.00 62.8% 

397,337.00 11.8% 

28,363.00 6.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

5,698.00 2.5% 

0.00 0.0% 

34,061.00 4.8% 

4,532.00 2.4% 

(2,467.00) -1.9% 

1,574.00 1.1% 

(4,656.00) -1.9% 

(6,283.00) -42.1% 

(7,300.00) -1.0% 

69,460.00 35.5% 

3,992.00 2.2% 

3,002.00 4.5% 

(14,344.00) -5.2% 

25.00 3.4% 

6,497.00 11.5% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            34 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Other Employee Benefits 

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula 

Materials 

Books and Other Reference Materials 

Materials and Supplies 

Noncapitalized Equipment 

Food 

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING 
EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Services 

Travel and Cont erences 

Dues and Memberships 

Insurance 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized 

Improvements 

Transfers of Direct Costs 

Transfers of Direct Costs - lnterfund 

Professional/Consulting Services and 

Operating Expenditures 

Communications 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER 

OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 

Books and Media for New School Libraries or 

Major Expansion of School Libraries 

Equipment 

Equipment Replacement 

Lease Assets 

Subscription Assets 

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of 
Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 

Tuition for Instruction Under lnterdistrict 

Attendance Agreements 

State Special Schools 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit 

Payments 

Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 

Payments to County Offices 

Payments to JPAs 

California Dept of Education 

Resource 
Codes 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Summary• Unrestricted/Restricted 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(BJ 

3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 

782,232.00 782,232.00 188,675.58 

4100 
9,021.00 9,021.00 0.00 

4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4300 131,314.00 131,314.00 15,091.92 

4400 30,734.00 30,734.00 2,292.32 

4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 

171,069.00 171,069.00 17,384.24 

5100 40,000.00 40,000.00 4,231.48 

5200 23,117.00 23,117.00 7,549.49 

5300 36,068.00 36,068.00 22,670.56 

5400-5450 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,148.02 

5500 16,400.00 16,400.00 588.29 

5600 
2,500.00 2,500.00 71.76 

5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 

5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 

5800 
1,012,187.00 1,012,187.00 142,434.78 

5900 15,600.00 15,600.00 0.00 

1,170,872.00 1,170,872.00 202,694.38 

6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 

6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 

6200 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 

6300 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

6400 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 

6500 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 

6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 

6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 

60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00 

7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 22 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

713,600.00 

9,825.00 

0.00 

139,576.00 

39,789.00 

0.00 

189,190.00 

85,000.00 

56,707.00 

36,146.00 

25,000.00 

16,400.00 

2,500.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,005,352.00 

15,600.00 

1,242,705.00 

0.00 

0.00 

25,000.00 

0.00 

20,000.00 

15,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

60,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E) 
(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

68,632.00 8.8% 

(804.00) -8.9% 

0.00 0.0% 

(8,262.00) -6.3% 

(9,055.00) -29.5% 

0.00 0.0% 

(18,121.00) -10.6% 

(45,000.00) -112.5% 

(33,590.00) -145.3% 

(78.00) -0.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

6,835.00 0.7% 

0.00 0.0% 

(71,833.00) -6.1% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            35 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Off ices 

To JPAs 

Special Education SELPA Transfers of 

Apportionments 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Off ices 

To JPAs 

ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Off ices 

To JPAs 

Resource 
Codes 

6500 

6500 

6500 

6360 

6360 

6360 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Summary• Unrestricted/Restricted 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(BJ 

7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 

All Other Transfers 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 

Debt Service 

Debt Service - Interest 

Other Debt Service - Principal 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers 

of Indirect Costs) 

OTHER OUTGO· TRANSFERS OF 
INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs 

Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO· TRANSFERS OF 

INDIRECT COSTS 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

From: Special Reserve Fund 

Other Authorized I nterf und Transl ers In 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To: Child Development Fund 

To: Special Reserve Fund 

To: State School Building Fund/ County 

School Facilities Fund 

To: Cafeteria Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers Out 

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

State Apportionments 

Emergency Apportionments 

Proceeds 

Proceeds from Disposal of Capital 

Assets 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

7310 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7350 (23,653.00) (23,653.00) 0.00 

(23,653.00) (23,653.00) 0.00 

3,596,964.00 3,596,964.00 795,079.07 

8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8919 46,000.00 46,000.00 0.00 

46,000.00 46,000.00 0.00 

7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7613 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8953 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 23 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(17,409.00) 

(17,409.00) 

3,597,769.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E)
(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(6,244.00) 26.4% 

(6,244.00) 26.4% 

(805.00) 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            36 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Other Sources 

County School Bldg Aid 

Transfers from Funds of 

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 

Long-Term Debt Proceeds 

Proceeds from Certificates of 

Participation 

Proceeds from Leases 

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 

Proceeds from SBITAs 

All Other Financing Sources 

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 

USES 

Transfers of Funds from 

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 

All Other Financing Uses 

(d) TOTAL, USES 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) 

California Dept of Education 

Resource 
Codes 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Summary• Unrestricted/Restricted 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board 

Object 
Original Approved Actuals To 

Codes 
Budget Operating Date 

(A) Budget (C) 
(BJ 

8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8965 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8971 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

7651 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

46,000.00 46,000.00 0.00 

Page 24 

Projected 
Year Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

% Diff 
Difference 

Column B & 
(Col B & D) D 

(E) 
(F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            37 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Resource Description 

6500 Special Education 

6620 Reversing Opioid Overdoses 

7690 On-Behalf Pension Contributions 

9010 Other Restricted Local 

Total, Restricted Balance 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 

First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail 

Page 25 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

2024-25 

Projected Totals 

247,806.00 

2,905.00 

65,000.00 

377,585.00 

693,296.00 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:40 A 
                                            38 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefits 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 
BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS· B9) 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 • Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) N ans pendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Bi, Version 5 

2024-25 First Interim 
Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

Resource Object 
Original 
Budget 

Codes Codes 
(A) 

8010-8099 0.00 

8100-8299 0.00 

8300-8599 456,104.00 

8600-8799 2,616.00 

458,720.00 

1000-1999 173,334.00 

2000-2999 54,730.00 

3000-3999 101,241.00 

4000-4999 49,489.00 

5000-5999 31,062.00 

6000-6999 64,106.00 

7100-
7299,7400-

7499 0.00 

7300-7399 23,653.00 

497,615.00 

(38,8g5.00) 

8900-8929 0.00 

7600-7629 0.00 

8930-8979 0.00 

7630-7699 0.00 

8980-8999 0.00 

0.00 

(38,895.00) 

9791 53,335.50 

9793 0.00 

53,335.50 

9795 0.00 

53,335.50 

14,440.50 

9711 0.00 

9712 0.00 

9713 0.00 

9719 0.00 

9740 39,699.30 

9750 0.00 

9760 0.00 

9780 0.00 

Page 1 

Board 
Approved Ac1uals 
Operating To Date 
Budget (C) 
(B) 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

456,104.00 100,444.00 

2,616.00 0.00 

458,720.00 100,444.00 

173,334.00 45,231.29 

54,730.00 7,879.01 

101,241.00 23,316.49 

49,489.00 2,012.56 

31,062.00 19,408.11 

64,106.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

23,653.00 0.00 

497,615.00 97,847.46 

(38,8g5.00) 2,596.54 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

(38,895.00) 2,596.54 

38,895.00 

0.00 

38,895.00 

0.00 

38,895.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
---

Projected 
Year 
Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

460,903.00 

300.00 

461,203.00 

114,534.00 

54,757.00 

87,081.00 

20,993.00 

45,214.00 

64,106.00 

0.00 

17,409.00 

404,094.00 

57,109.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

57,109.00 

53,334.00 

0.00 

53,334.00 

0.00 

53,334.00 

110,443.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
,_ 

0.00 

110,443.00 

0.00 
,_ 

0.00 

0.00 

46104620000000 
Form 111 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

Difference % Diff 
(Col B & Column 
D) B&D 
(E) (F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

4,799.00 1.1% 

(2,316.00) -88.5% 

58,800.00 33.9% 

(27.00) 0.0% 

14,160.00 14.0% 

28,496.00 57.6% 

(14,152.00) -45.6% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 
0.0% 

6,244.00 26.4% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

14,439.00 37.1% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

---

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:42 A 
                                            39 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

LCFF SOURCES 

LCFF Transfers 

LCFF Transfers - Current Year 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

I nteragency Contracts Between LEAs 

Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 

Career and Technical Education 

All Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other State Apportionments 

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 

Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 

Adult Education Program 

All Other State Revenue 

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Sales 

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 

Leases and Rentals 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 

Fees and Contracts 

Adult Education Fees 

I nteragency Services 

Other Local Revenue 

All Other Local Revenue 

Tuition 

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

TOTAL, REVENUES 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Other Certificated Salaries 

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 

Classified Support Salaries 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 

Other Classified Salaries 

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Bi, Version 5 

2024-25 First Interim 
Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

Resource Object 
Original 

Codes Codes 
Budget 
(A) 

9789 0.00 

9790 (25,258.80) 

8091 0.00 

8099 0.00 

0.00 

8285 0.00 

8287 0.00 

3500-3599 8290 0.00 

All Other 8290 0.00 

0.00 

8311 0.00 

8319 0.00 

8587 0.00 

6391 8590 298,173.00 

All Other 8590 157,931.00 

456,104.00 

8631 0.00 

8650 0.00 

8660 0.00 

8662 0.00 

8671 0.00 

8677 0.00 

8699 2,616.00 

8710 0.00 

2,616.00 

458,720.00 

1100 58,800.00 

1200 0.00 

1300 114,534.00 

1900 0.00 

173,334.00 

2100 1,000.00 

2200 3,572.00 

2300 0.00 

2400 50,158.00 

2900 0.00 

54,730.00 

Page 2 

Board 
Approved Actuals 
Operating To Date 
Budget (C) 
(B) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

298,173.00 100,444.00 

157,931.00 0.00 

456,104.00 100,444.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

2,616.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

2,616.00 0.00 

458,720.00 100,444.00 

58,800.00 7,053.29 

0.00 0.00 

114,534.00 38,178.00 

0.00 0.00 

173,334.00 45,231.29 

1,000.00 0.00 

3,572.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

50,158.00 7,879.01 

0.00 0.00 

54,730.00 7,879.01 

Projected 
Year 
Totals 
(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

301,332.00 

159,571.00 

460,903.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

300.00 

0.00 

300.00 

461,203.00 

0.00 

0.00 

114,534.00 

0.00 

114,534.00 

0.00 

12,246.00 

0.00 

42,511.00 

0.00 

54,757.00 

46104620000000 
Form 111 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

Difference % Diff 
(Col B & Column 
D) B&D 
(E) (F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

3,159.00 1.1% 

1,640.00 1.0% 

4,799.00 1.1% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(2,316.00) -88.5% 

0.00 0.0% 

(2,316.00) -88.5% 

58,800.00 100.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

58,800.00 33.9% 

1,000.00 100.0% 

(8,674.00) -242.8% 

0.00 0.0% 

7,647.00 15.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

(27.00) 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:42 A 
                                            40 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 

PERS 

OASD I/Medicare/Alternative 

Health and Welfare Benefits 

Unemployment Insurance 

Workers' Compensation 

OPEB, Allocated 

OPEB, Active Employees 

Other Employee Benefits 

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 

Books and Other Reference Materials 

Materials and Supplies 

Noncapitalized Equipment 

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Services 

Travel and Conferences 

Dues and Memberships 

Insurance 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 

Transfers of Direct Costs 

Transfers of Direct Costs - I nterf und 

Professional/Consulting Services and 

Operating Expenditures 

Communications 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 

Equipment 

Equipment Replacement 

Lease Assets 

Subscription Assets 

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments 

Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 

Payments to County Offices 

Payments to JPAs 

Other Transfers Out 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Bi, Version 5 

2024-25 First Interim 
Adult Education Fund 
Expenditures by Object 

Resource Object 
Original 
Budget 

Codes Codes 
(A) 

3101-3102 38,307.00 

3201-3202 14,892.00 

3301-3302 6,166.00 

3401-3402 32,980.00 

3501-3502 115.00 

3601-3602 8,781.00 

3701-3702 0.00 

3751-3752 0.00 

3901-3902 0.00 

101,241.00 

4100 0.00 

4200 0.00 

4300 42,135.00 

4400 7,354.00 

49,489.00 

5100 0.00 

5200 1,648.00 

5300 708.00 

5400-5450 0.00 

5500 6,707.00 

5600 1,178.00 

5710 0.00 

5750 0.00 

5800 19,173.00 

5900 1,648.00 

31,062.00 

6100 0.00 

6170 0.00 

6200 64,106.00 

6400 0.00 

6500 0.00 

6600 0.00 

6700 0.00 

64,106.00 

7141 0.00 

7142 0.00 

7143 0.00 

7211 0.00 

7212 0.00 

Page 3 

Board 
Approved Actuals 
Operating To Date 
Budget (C) 
(B) 

38,307.00 8,205.19 

14,892.00 2,131.28 

6,166.00 1,115.76 

32,980.00 9,930.29 

115.00 26.56 

8,781.00 1,907.41 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

101,241.00 23,316.49 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

42,135.00 2,012.56 

7,354.00 0.00 

49,489.00 2,012.56 

0.00 0.00 

1,648.00 850.43 

708.00 109.00 

0.00 0.00 

6,707.00 974.27 

1,178.00 679.92 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

19,173.00 16,067.33 

1,648.00 727.16 

31,062.00 19,408.11 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

64,106.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

64,106.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Projected 
Year 
Totals 

(D) 

21,876.00 

14,811.00 

5,709.00 

38,368.00 

85.00 

6,232.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

87,081.00 

0.00 

0.00 

14,173.00 

6,820.00 

20,993.00 

0.00 

2,000.00 

1,600.00 

0.00 

9,000.00 

1,178.00 

0.00 

0.00 

28,288.00 

3,148.00 

45,214.00 

0.00 

0.00 

64,106.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

64,106.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46104620000000 
Form 111 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

Difference % Diff 
(Col B & Column 
D) B&D 
(E) (F) 

16,431.00 42.9% 

81.00 0.5% 

457.00 7.4% 

(5,388.00) -16.3% 

30.00 26.1% 

2,549.00 29.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

14,160.00 14.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

27,962.00 66.4% 

534.00 7.3% 

28,496.00 57.6% 

0.00 0.0% 

(352.00) -21.4% 

(892.00) -126.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(2,293.00) -34.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(9,115.00) -47.5% 

(1,500.00) -91.0% 

(14,152.00) -45.6% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:42 A 
                                            41 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

To JPAs 

Debt Service 

Debt Service - Interest 

Other Debt Service - Principal 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

OTHER OUTGO· TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

Other Authorized I nterf und Transfers In 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To: State School Building Fund/County School Facilities Fund 

Other Authorized I nterf und Transfers Out 

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

Long-Term Debt Proceeds 

Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 

Proceeds from Leases 

Proceeds from SBITAs 

All Other Financing Sources 

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 

USES 

All Other Financing Uses 

(d) TOTAL, USES 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

(a - b + C - d + e) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Bi, Version 5 

2024-25 First Interim 
Adult Education Fund 
Expenditures by Object 

Resource Object 
Original 
Budget 

Codes Codes 
(A) 

7213 0.00 

7438 0.00 

7439 0.00 

0.00 

7350 23,653.00 

23,653.00 

497,615.00 

8919 0.00 

0.00 

7613 0.00 

7619 0.00 

0.00 

8971 0.00 

8972 0.00 

8974 0.00 

8979 0.00 

0.00 

7699 0.00 

0.00 

8980 0.00 

8990 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Page 4 

Board 
Approved 
Operating 
Budget 

(B) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

23,653.00 

23,653.00 

497,615.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Actuals 
To Date 
(C) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

97,847.46 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Projected 
Year 
Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

17,409.00 

17,409.00 

404,094.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46104620000000 
Form 111 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

Difference % Diff 
(Col B & Column 
D) B&D 

(E) (F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

6,244.00 26.4% 

6,244.00 26.4% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:42 A 
                                            42 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Resource Description 

6391 Adult Education Program 

7690 On-Behalf Pension Contributions 

9010 Other Restricted Local 

Total, Restricted Balance 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Bi, Version 5 

2024-25 First Interim 

Adult Education Fund 

Restricted Detail 

Page5 

46104620000000 

Form 111 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

2024-25 

Projected Totals 

97,173.00 

5,200.00 

8,070.00 

110,443.00 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:42 A 
                                            43 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefits 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 
BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS· B9) 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 • Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) N ans pendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Bi, Version 5 

2024-25 First Interim 

Forest Reserve Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

Resource Object 
Original 

Codes Codes 
Budget 
(A) 

8010-8099 0.00 

8100-8299 146,000.00 

8300-8599 0.00 

8600-8799 0.00 

146,000.00 

1000-1999 0.00 

2000-2999 0.00 

3000-3999 0.00 

4000-4999 0.00 

5000-5999 0.00 

6000-6999 0.00 

7100-

7299,7400-
7499 100,000.00 

7300-7399 0.00 

100,000.00 

46,000.00 

8900-8929 0.00 

7600-7629 46,000.00 

8930-8979 0.00 

7630-7699 0.00 

8980-8999 0.00 

(46,000.00) 

0.00 

9791 0.00 

9793 0.00 

0.00 

9795 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
,_ 

9711 0.00 

9712 0.00 

9713 0.00 

9719 0.00 
,-

9740 0.00 
,_ 

9750 0.00 
,-

9760 0.00 

9780 0.00 

Page 1 

Board 
Approved 
Operating 
Budget 
(B) 

0.00 

146,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

146,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

100,000.00 

0.00 

100,000.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(46,000.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Actuals 
To 
Date 
(C) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

---

Projected 
Year 
Totals 
(D) 

0.00 

146,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

146,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

100,000.00 

0.00 

100,000.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(46,000.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
,_ 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
,-

0.00 
,_ 

0.00 
,-

0.00 

0.00 

46104620000000 
Form 161 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

Difference % Diff 

(Col B & Column 
D) B&D 

(E) (F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 

0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

----

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:42 A 
                                            44 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Forest Reserve Funds 

Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

TOTAL, REVENUES 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Other Transfers Out 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

All Other Transfers 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

Other Authorized I nterf und Transl ers In 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

Other Authorized I nterf und Transl ers Out 

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Bi, Version 5 

2024-25 First Interim 
Forest Reserve Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

Resource Object 
Original 

Codes Codes 
Budget 
(A) 

9789 0.00 

9790 0.00 

8260 46,000.00 

8287 100,000.00 

146,000.00 

8660 0.00 

8662 0.00 

0.00 

146,000.00 

7211 100,000.00 

7212 0.00 

7213 0.00 

7281-7283 0.00 

7299 0.00 

100,000.00 

100,000.00 

8919 0.00 

0.00 

7619 46,000.00 

46,000.00 

Page 2 

Board 
Actuals 

Approved 
To 

Operating 
Date 

Budget 
(C) 

(B) 

0.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 0.00 

100,000.00 0.00 

146,000.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

146,000.00 0.00 

100,000.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

100,000.00 0.00 

100,000.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

46,000.00 0.00 

46,000.00 0.00 

Projected 
Year 
Totals 

(D) 

0.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

100,000.00 

146,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

146,000.00 

100,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

100,000.00 

100,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

46,000.00 

46104620000000 
Form 161 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

Difference % Diff 
(Col B & Column 
D) B&D 
(E) (F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:42 A 
                                            45 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Resource Description 

Total, Restricted Balance 

Cal ifornia Dept of Educat ion 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Fund-Bi, Version 5 

2024-25 First Interim 

Forest Reserve Fund 

Restricted Detail 

Page3 

46104620000000 

Form 161 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

2024-25 

Projected Totals 

0.00 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:42 A 
                                            46 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

1. County Program Alternative Education Grant ADA 

a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 

b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 

c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole, Expelled per EC 

48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 

d. Total, County Program Alternative Education 

ADA (Sum of Lines B1a through B1c) 

2. District Funded County Program ADA 

a. County Community Schools 

b. Special Education-Special Day Class 

c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 

d. Special Education Extended Year 

e. Other County Operated Programs: Opportunity Schools and 
Full Day Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary Schools 

f. County School Tuition Fund 

(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380] 

g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA 

(Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 

3. TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA 

(Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 

4. Adults in Correctional Facilities 

5. County Operations Grant ADA 

6. Charter School ADA 

(Enter Charter School ADA using 

Tab C. Charter School ADA) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: Al, Version 3 

2024-25 First Interim 

AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

ESTIMATED 

ESTIMATED FUNDED 
FUNDED ADA 

ADA Board 
Original Approved 

Budget Operating 

(A) Budget 

(B) 

0.00 0.00 

.74 .74 

13.34 13.34 

14.08 14.08 

14.08 14.08 

372.66 372.66 

Page 1 

ESTIMATED 

P-2 
ESTIMATED 

REPORT 
FUNDED 

ADA 
ADA 

Projected 
Projected 

Year Totals 
Year Totals 

(C) 
(D) 

0.00 0.00 

.74 .74 

13.34 13.34 

14.08 14.08 

14.08 14.08 

383.56 383.56 

46 10462 0000000 

Form Al 

F81JDWA17T{2024-25) 

DIFFERENCE 
PERCENTAGE 

DIFFERENCE 
(Col. D - B) 

(E) 
(Col. E/ B) 

(F) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 

10.90 3.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:47 A 
                                            47 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

First Interim 

2024-25 Projected Year Totals 

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort 
Expenditures 

Funds 01, 09, and 62 

Section I - Expenditures Goals Functions 

A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) All All 

B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE (Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All All 

C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE: (All resources, except federal 

as identified in Line B)

1. Community Services All 5000-5999 

All except 7100- All except 5000-
2. Capital Outlay 

7199 5999 

3. Debt Service All 9100 

4. Other Transfers Out All 9200 

5. I nterf und Transl ers Out All 9300 

9100 

6. All Other Financing Uses All 9200 

7. Nonagency 7100-7199 
All except 5000-

5999, 9000-9999 

8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate costs of services for which 
All All 

tuition is received) 

Objects 

1000-7999 

1000-7999 

1000-7999 

6000-6999 

46 10462 0000000 

Form ESMOE 

F81JDWA17T{2024-25) 

2024-25 
Expenditures 

3,597,769.00 

384,005.00 

0.00 

except 6600, 

6910 60,000.00 

5400-5450, 

5800, 7430-

7439 0.00 

7200-7299 0.00 

7600-7629 0.00 

7699 

7651 0.00 

1000-7999 
319,751.00 

8710 
165,973.00 

9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a Presidentially declared disaster 
Manually entered. Must not include expenditures in lines 

10. Total state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE calculation (Sum lines C1 

through C9) 

D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 

1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services (Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then 

zero) 

2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities 

E. Total expenditures subject to MOE (Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and 

D2) 

Section II - Expenditures Per ADA 

A. Average Daily Attendance (Form Al, Column D, sum of lines B1d and C9)* 

B. Expenditures per ADA (Line I.E divided by Line II.A) 

Section Ill • MOE Calculation (For data collection only. Final determination will be 
done by CDE) 

A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures extracted from prior year Unaudited 

Actuals MOE calculation). (Note: If the prior year MOE was not met, in its final 

determination, CDE will adjust the prior year base to 90 percent of the preceding prior 

year amount rather than the actual prior year expenditure amount.) 

1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for LEAs failing 

prior year MOE calculation (From Section IV) 

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1) 

B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 

C. Current year expenditures (Line I.E and Line I1.B) 

D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C) (If negative, then zero) 

E. MOE determination (If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE 

requirement is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If 

either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is incomplete.) 

F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero (Line D divided by Line B) 

(Funding under ESSA covered programs in FY 2026-27 may be reduced by the lower of 

the two percentages) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: ESMOE, Version 11 Page 1 

B, C1-C8, D1, or D2. 

545,724.00 

1000-7143, 

7300-7439 

All All 
minus 8000-

8699 0.00 

Manually entered. Must not include expenditures in lines 

A or D1. 

2,668,040.00 

2024-25 Annual 
ADA/Exps. Per 

ADA 

0.00 

0.00 

Total Per ADA 

2,135,096. 72 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

2,135,096. 72 0.00 

1,921,587.05 0.00 

2,668,040.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

MOE Met 

0.00% 0.00% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:43 A 
                                            48 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

First Interim 

2024-25 Projected Year Totals 

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort 

Expenditures 

46 10462 0000000 

Form ESMOE 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

*Interim Periods - Annual ADA not available from Form Al. For your convenience, Projected Year Totals Estimated Funded ADA has been preloaded. Manual adjustment 

may be required to reflect estimated Annual ADA. 

SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures (used in Section Ill, Line 
A.1) 

Description of Adjustments 

Total adjustments to base expenditures 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: ESMOE, Version 11 Page 2 

Total Expenditures 
Expenditures 

Per ADA 

0.00 0.00 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:43 A 
                                            49 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

011 COUNlY SCHOOL SERVICE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

081 STUDENT ACTIVllY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

091 CHARTIER SCHOOLS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

1DI SPECIAL EDUCATION PASS-THROUGH FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

111 ADULT EDUCATION FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

121 CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

131 CAFETIERIA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

141 DEFERRED MAINTIENANCE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

151 PUPIL TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

161 FOREST RESERVE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

171 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR OTHER THAN CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

181 SCHOOL BUS EMISSIONS REDUCTION FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

191 FOUNDATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

2DI SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR POSTIEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

211 BUILDING FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: SIAI, Version 1 

First Interim 

2024-25 Projected Year Totals 

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 

FOR ALL FUNDS 

Direct Costs• lnterfund Indirect Costs• lnterfund 

Transfers In Transfers Out Transfers In Transfers Out 

5750 5750 7350 7350 

0.00 0.00 0.00 (17,409.00) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 17,409.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

- --- - ---

Page 1 

lnterfund lnterfund 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

8900-8929 7600-7629 

46,000.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 46,000.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form SIAI 

F81JDWA 17T(2024-25) 

Due From Due To 
Other Funds Other Funds 

9310 9610 

- ---

, _ _ _ _

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            50 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

251 CAPITAL FACILITIES FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

301 STATE SCHOOL BUILDING LEASE/PURCHASE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

351 COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

40I SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR CAPITAL OUll.AY PROJECTS 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

531 TAX OVERRIDE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

561 DEBT SERVICE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

571 FOUNDATION PERMANENT FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

611 CAFETERIA ENTERPRISE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

621 CHARTER SCHOOLS ENTERPRISE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

631 OTHER ENTERPRISE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

661 WAREHOUSE REVOLVING FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

671 SELF-INSURANCE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

711 RETIREE BENEFIT FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

731 FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

761 WARRANT/PASS-THROUGH FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

951 STUDENT BODY FUND 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V11 

File: SIAI, Version 1 

First Interim 

2024•25 Projected Year Totals 

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 

FOR ALL FUNDS 

Direct Costs• lnterfund Indirect Costs• lnterfund 

Transfers In Transfers Out Transfers In Transfers Out 

5750 5750 7350 7350 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

- - - -

·� 
- --- - ---

Page 2 

lnterfund lnterfund 
Transfers In Transfers Out 

8900-8929 7600-7629 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

- - - -

46 10462 0000000 

Form SIAI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

Due From Due To 
Other Funds Other Funds 

9310 9610 

- --- - - - -

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            51 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

TOTALS 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V11 

File: SIAI, Version 1 

First Interim 

2024•25 Projected Year Totals 

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 

FOR ALL FUNDS 

Direct Costs• lnterfund Indirect Costs• lnterfund 

Transfers In Transfers Out Transfers In Transfers Out 

5750 5750 7350 7350 

0.00 0.00 17.409.00 (17,409.00) 

Page 3 

lnterfund lnterfund 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

8900-8929 7600-7629 

46,000.00 46,000.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form SIAI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

Due From Due To 

Other Funds Other Funds 

9310 9610 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            52 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Educ:ation Criteria and Standards Review 

Provide methodology and assumptions used to estimate ADA, enrollment, revenues, expenditures, reserves and fund balance, and multiyear commitments (including cost-of-living adjustments). 

Deviations from the standards must be explained and may affect the interim certification. 

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS 

1. CRITERION: Average Dally Attendance 

46 10462 0000000 

Form01CSI 

F81JDWA1TT(2024-25) 

STANDARD: Projected County Operations Grant average daily attendance (ADA) has not changed for any of the current fiscal year or t'Ml subsequent fiscal years by more than two percent since budget adoption. 

Projected funded ADA for county operated programs has not changed for any of the current fiscal year or too subsequent fiscal years by more than t'Ml percent since budget adoption. 

County Office ADA Standard Percentage Range: I
�--------� 

-2.0% to +2.0% 

1A. Calculating the County Office's ADA Variances 

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise enter data into the first column for all fiscal years. If Form MYPI exists, County Operations Grant ADA will be extracted for the h't.O subsequent years; otherwise 

enter this data. First Interim Projected Year Totals data for Current Year are extracted; enter data for the remaining two subsequent years into the second column. 

Estimated Funded ADA 

Budget Adoption 

Budget 

Program/ Fiscal Year (Fonn 01CS, Item 18-2) 

First Interim 

Projected Year Totals 

(Fom, Al) (Fom, MYPI) 

County and Charter School Alternative Education Grant ADA (Form A/Al, Lines B1d and C2d) 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

District Funded County Program ADA (Form A/Al, Line 82g) 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

County Operations Grant ADA (Form A/Al, Line 85} 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

14.08 

14.08 

14.08 

372.66 

372.66 

372.66 

Charter School ADA and Charter School Funded County Program ADA (Form AJAI, Lines C1 and C3f) 

Current Year {2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

18. Comparison of County Office ADA to the Standard 

DA TA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

14.08 

14.08 

14.08 

383.56 

383,56 

383.56 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Percent Change Status 

0.0% Met 

0.0% Met 

0.0% Met 

0.0% Met 

0.0% Met 

0.0% Met 

2.9% Not Met 

2.9% Not Met 

2.9% Not Met 

0.0% Met 

0.0% Met 

0.0% Met 

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected ADA for County Operations Grant or county operated programs has changed since budget adoption by more than tv.o percent in any of the current year or tv.o subsequent fiscal 

years. Provide reasons 'Nhy the change(s) exceed the standard, a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting ADA, and 'Nhat changes will be made to improve the accuracy of projections in this 

area. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

The district has had an increase in enrollment at Loyalton High School. 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 1 Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            53 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

2. CRITERION: LCFF Revenue 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

STANDARD: Projected LCFF revenue, for any of the current fiscal year or hw subsequent fiscal years, has not changed by more than t'Ml percent since budget adoption. 

County Office LCFF Revenue Standard Percentage Range: I
�--------� 

-2.0% to +2.0% 

2A. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change in LCFF Revenue 

46 10462 0000000 

Form01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the First Interim column, Current Year data are extracted; enter data for the two subsequent years. 

Fiscal Year 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

28. Comparison of County Office LCFF Revenue to the Standard 

DA TA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

LCFF Revenue 

(Fund 01, Objects 8011, 8012, 8020-8089) 

Budget Adoption 

(Fonn 01CS, Item 2C) 

1,677,411.00 

1,717,768.00 

1,761,435.00 

First Interim 

Projected Year Totals 

1,680,086.00 

1,720,521.00 

1,764,273.00 

Percent Change 

,2% 

.2% 

.2% 

1a. STANDARD MET - LCFF revenue has not changed since budget adoption by more than two percent for the current year and tVv'O subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 2 

Status 

Met 

Met 

Met 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            54 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

3. CRITERION: Salaries and Benefits 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 

Form01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

STANDARD: Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the current fiscal year or tlMl subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than five percent since budget adoption. 

County Office Salaries and Benefits Standard Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0% 
�--------� 

3A. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change in Salaries and Benefits 

DAV\ ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the First Interim column, Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, Projected Year Totals data for the two 

subsequent years will be extracted; otherwise, enter this data. 

Fiscal Year 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

3B. Comparison of County Office Salaries and Benefits to the Standard 

DAV\ ENTRY: Enter an explanation If the standard Is not met. 

Salaries and Benefits 

First Interim 

Budget Adoption Projected Year Totals 

(Fonn 01, Objects 1000-3999) (Fonn 011, Objects 1000-3999) 

(Fonn 01CS, Item 38) (Fonn MYPI, Lines 81-83) 

2,218,676.00 2,123,283.00 

2,549,348.00 2,176,662.00 

2,612,593.00 2,231,456.00 

Percent Change Status 

-4.3% Met 

-14,6% Not Met 

-14.6% Not Met 

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected salary and benefit costs have changed since budget adoption by more than the standard in any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years. Provide reasons why the 

change(s) exceed the standard and a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting salaries and benefits. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

The reduction is due to the removal of the methodology that used to distribute these costs across various resources, which resulted in a double counting of the costs. 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 3 Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            55 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

4. CRITERION: Other Revenues and Expenditures 

202.J.25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024•25) 

STANDARD: Projected operating revenues (including federal, other state, and other local) or expenditures (including books and supplies, and services and other operating) for any of the current fiscal year or tY-0 subsequent fiscal 

years have not changed by more than five percent since budget adoption. 

Changes that exceed five percent in any major object category must be explained. 

County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Range: 

I 
.S.0% to +5.0% 

County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures Explanation Percentage Range: ============•=5-=0%==•o==•5=.0%============= 

4A. Calculating the County Office's Change by Major Object Category and Comparison to the Explanation Percentage Range 

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist 'MIi be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. First Interim data for Current Year are extracted. If First Interim Form MYPI exists, data for the t'Ml subsequent years \\111 be 

extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the second column. 

Explanations must be entered for each category if the percent change for any year exceeds the county office's explanation percentage range. 

Object Range / Fiscal Year 

Budget Adoption 

Budget 

(Fomi 01cs. Item 4B) 

Federal Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8100-3299) (MYPI, Line A2) 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

Explanation: 

(required if Yes) 

Other State Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8300-8599) (Form MYPI, Line A3) 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

Explanation: 

(required if Yes) 

Other Local Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8600-8799) {Form MYPI, Line A4) 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

Explanation: 

(required if Yes) 

Increase due to new grants. 

Books and Supplies (Fund 01, Objects 4000-4999) (Form MYPI, Line B4) 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

Explanation: 

(required W Yes) I
Due to changes in grant revenues. 

171.487.00 

171,487.00 

171,487.00 

929,524.00 

929,524.00 

929,524.00 

595,839.00 

595,839.00 

595,839.00 

171,069.00 

117,971.00 

117,971.00 

Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Fund 01, Objects 5000-5999) (Form MYPI, Line B5) 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

Explanation: 

(required if Yes) I
Due to changes in grant revenues. 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 

1,170,872.00 

731,162.00 

731,162.00 

First interim 

Projected Year Totals 

(Fund 01/Fom, MYPI) 

Page 4 

167.731.00 

167,731.00 

167,731.00 

953,864.00 

953,864.00 

953,864.00 

969,917.00 

744,917.00 

744,917.00 

189,190.00 

149,190.00 

129,190.00 

1,242,705.00 

907,154.00 

807,154.00 

Percent Change 

·2.2% 

·2.2% 

-2.2% 

2.6% 

2.6% 

2.6% 

62.8% 

25.0% 

25.0% 

10.6% 

26.5% 

9.5% 

6.1% 

24.1% 

10.4% 

Change Is Outside 

Explanation Range 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            56 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

48. Calculating the County Office's Change in Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated. 

Object Range/ Fiscal Year 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

Total Federal, Other State, and Other Local Revenues (Section 4A) 

Budget Adoption 

Budget 

1,696,850.00 

1,696,850.00 

1,696,850.00 

Total Books and Supplies, and Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Section 4A) 

1,341,941.00 

849,133.00 

849,133.00 

First Interim 

Projected Year Totals 

2,091,512.00 

1,866,512.00 

1,866,512.00 

1,431,895.00 

1,056,344.00 

936,344.00 

Percent Change Status 

23.3% Not Met 

10.0% Not Met 

10.0% Not Met 

6.7% Not Met 

24.4% Not Met 

10.3% Not Met 

4C. Comparison of County Office Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures to the Standard Percentage Range 

DATA ENTRY: Explanations are linked from Section 4A if the status in Section 4B is not met; no entry is allowed below. 

1a. 

1b. 

California Dept of Education 

STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating revenues have changed since budget adoption by more than the standard in one or more of the current or two subsequent fiscal years. 

Reasons for the projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if any, will be made to bring the projected operating revenues 

within the standard must be entered in Section 4A above and wiH also display in the explanation box below. 

Explanatlon: 

Federal Revenue 

(linked from 4A 

if NOT met) 

Explanation: 

Other State Revenue 

(linked from 4A 

if NOT met) 

Explanation: 

Other Local Revenue 

(linked from 4A 

if NOT met) 

STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating expenditures have changed since budget adoption by more than the standard in one or more of the current or two subsequent fiscal 

years. Reasons for the projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if any, 'MIi be made to bring the projected operating 

expenditures within the standard must be entered in Section 4A above and will also display in the explanation box below. 

Explanation: 

Books and Supplies 

(linked from 4A 

if NOT met) 

Explanation: 

Ser.i ices and Other Exps 

(linked from 4A 

if NOT met) 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 5 Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            57 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

5. CRITERION: Facllltles Maintenance 

2024-25 First Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 
Form0 1 CSI 

F81JDWA17 T(2024-25) 

STANDARD: Identify changes that have occurred since budget adoption in the projected contributions for facilities maintenance funding as required pursuant to Education Code Section 17070.75, or in how the county office 
is providing adequately to preserve the functionality of its facilities for their normal life in accordance with Education Code sections 52066(d)(1) and 17002(d)(1 ). 

Determining the County Office's Compllance with the Contribution Requirement for EC Section 17070 .75. Ongoing and Major Maintenance/Restricted Maintenance Account ( OMMA/RMA) 

NOTE: EC Section 17070.75 requires the county office to deposit into the account a minimum amount equal to or greater than three percent of the total unrestricted general fund expenditures and other financing uses for that fiscal 
year. 

DATA ENTRY: Enter the Required Minimum Contribution if Budget data does not exist. Budget data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter budget data into lines 1, if applicable, and 2. AH other data are extracted. 

1, 

2. 

OWMA/RMA Contribution 

Budget Adoption Contribution (Information only) 

(Form 01CS, Criterion 5) 

Required Mnimum 

Contribution 

0.001 

First Interim Contribution 

Projected Year Totals 

(Fund 01, Resource 8150, 

Objects 8900-8999) 

0.001 

o.oo 1 

If status is not met, enter an X in the box that best describes why the minimum required contribution "Was not made: 

� Not applicable (county office does not participate in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998) 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met 

and Other is marked) 

California Dept of Education 

� Other (explanation must be provided) 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 6 

Status 

Met 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            58 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

6. CRITERION: Deficit Spending 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 

Form01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

STANDARD: Unrestricted deficit spending (total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses is greater than total unrestricted revenues and other financing sources) as a percentage of total unrestricted expenditures 

and other financing uses, has not exceeded one-third of the county office's available reserves1 as a percentage of total expenditures and other financing uses2 in any of the current fiscal year or t'NO subsequent fiscal 

years. 

'Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County School Service Fund and the Special 

Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves 'MIi be reduced by any negative ending balances in restricted resources in the County School Service Fund. 

2 A county office of education that Is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) may exclude from Its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members. 

6A. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels 

DA 11\ ENTRY: AH data are extracted or calculated. 

County Off ice's Av ail able Reserves Percentage 

(Criterion 8B, Line 9) 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

153.4% 

51.1% 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

184.5% 

61.5% 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

205.0% 

68.3% 
County Office's Deficit Standard Percentage Levels 

I(one-third of available reserves percentage): 
�---------�---------------�--------� 

68. Calculating the County Office's Special Educadon Pass-through Exclusions (only for county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA) 

DAV\ ENTRY: For SELPA AUs, if Form MYPI exists, all data will be extracted including the Yes/No button selection. If not, click the appropriate Yes or No button for item 1 and, if Yes, enter data for item 2a and for the tVvt> subsequent 

years in item 2b; Current Year data are extracted. 

For county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA (Form MYPI, Lines F1a, F1b1, and F1b2): 

1. Do you choose to exclude pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members from the calculations for deficit spending and reserves? 

2. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special education pass-through funds: 

a. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s): 

b. Special Education Pass-through Funds (Fund 10, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546, 

objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223) 

6C. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Percentages 

Current Year 

Projected Year Totals 

(2024-25) 

0.00 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

Yes 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

DAV\ ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, data for the t'NO subsequent years 'MIi be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the first and second columns. 

Fiscal Year 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

60. Comparison of County Office Deficit Spending to the Standard 

DA 11\ ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

Projected Year Totals 

Net Change In 

Unrestricted Fund Balance 

(Form 011, Section E) 

(Form MYPI. Line C) 

517,418.00 

526.288.00 

537.659.00 

Total Unrestricted Expenditures 

and Other Financing Uses 

(Form 011. Objects 1000-7999) 

(Form MYPI, Line B11) 

1,633,629.00 

1,665,194.00 

1.697.575.00 

Deficit Spending Level 

(If Net Change in Unrestricted Fund 

Balance Is negative, else NIA) 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

1a. STANDARD MET - Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard percentage level in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

{required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 7 

Status 

Met 

Met 

Met 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            59 of 75



2024-25 First Interim 
County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

7. CRITERION: Fund and Cash Balances 

A. FUND BALANCE STANDARD: Projected county school service fund balances ViAII be positive at the end of the current fiscal year and t\\O subsequent fiscal years. 

7A-1. Determining if the County Office's County School Service Fund Ending Balance is Positive 

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, data for the t\\O subsequent years \\-111 be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years. 

Fiscal Year 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

7A-2. Comparison of the County Office's Ending Fund Balance to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

Ending Fund Balance 

County School Service Fund 

Projected Year Totals 

(Form 011, Line F2 )/(Form 
MYPI, Line D2) 

6.211.171.00 

6,568,607.00 

7,035,001.00 

Status 

Met 

Met 

Met 

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected county school service fund ending balance is positive for the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

B. CASH BALANCE STANDARD: Projected county school service fund cash balance ViAII be positive at the end of the current fiscal year. 

7B-1. Determining if the County Office's Ending Cash Balance is Positive 

DATA ENTRY: If Form CASH exists, data will be extracted; if not, data must be entered below. 

Fiscal Year 

Current Year (2024-25) 

7B-2. Comparison of the County Office's Ending Cash Balance to the Standard 

DA TA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

Ending Cash Balance 

County School Service Fund 

(Form CASH, Line F, June 
Column) 

5,101,142.041 

Status 

Met 

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected county school service fund cash balance \\111 be positive at the end of the current fiscal year. 

California Dept of Education 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 8 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            60 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

8. 

California Dept of Education 

CRITERION: Reserves 

2024-25 First Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

STANDARD: Available reseives' for any of the current fiscal year or tm subsequent fiscal years are not less than the follo'Mng percentages or amounts as applied to total expenditures and 
other financing uses2: 

Percentage LeveP 

5% or $87,000 (greater of) 

4% or $383,000 (greater of) 

3% or $766,000 (greater of) 

2% or $2,584,000 (greater of) 

County Office Total Expenditures and Other 
Financing Uses3 

o to $7,653,999 

$7,654,000 to $19,138,999 

$19,139,000 to $86,123,000 

$86,123,001 and over 

'Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, 
Reseive for Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the 
County School Seivice Fund and the Special Reseive Fund for Other Than Capital 
Outlay Projects. Available reseives 'MIi be reduced by any negative ending balances in 
restricted resources in the County School Seivice Fund. 

2 A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special 
Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution 
of funds to its participating members. 

3 Dollar amounts to be adjusted annually by the prior year statutory cost.of.living 
adjustment (EC Section 2574), rounded to the nearest thousand. 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

3,597,769.00 

1st Subsequent 
Year 

(2025-26) 

3,275,597.00 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2025-27) 

3,210,391.00 
County Office's Expenditures and Other Financing Uses(Criterion 8A1), plus SELPA Pass.through 

I(Criterion 6B2b) if Criterion 6B, Line 1 is No: 
�---------�-----�---------� 

County Office's Reserve Standard Percentage Level: 1� ____ 5
_
% 
____ � ___ 

5
_
% 
__ � _____ 

5
_

% 
____ � 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 9 Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            61 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

8A. Calculating the County Office's Reserve Standard 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYPI exists, all data are extracted or calculated. If not, enter data for line 1 for the two subsequent years; Current Year data are extracted. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Form 011, objects 1000-7999) (Form MYPI, Line B11) 

Plus: Special Education Pass-through (Criterion 6B, Line 2b if Criterion 6B, Line 1 is No) 

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line A1 plus Line A2) 

Reserve Standard Percentage Lev el 

Reserve Standard - by Percent (Line A3 times Line A4) 

Reserve Standard - by Amount (From percentage level chart above) 

County Office's Reserve Standard (Greater of Line AS or Line A6) 

88. Calculating the County Office's Available Reserve Amount 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted from fund data and Form MYPI. If Form MYPI does not exist, enter data for the two subsequent years. 

Reserve Amounts 

(Unrestricted resources 0000-1999 except line 4) 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4, 

5, 

6. 

7, 

8. 

9, 

County School Service Fund - Stabilization Arrangements (Fund 01, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E1a) 

County School Service Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties (Fund 01, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E1b) 

County School Service Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount (Fund 01, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E1c) 

County School Service Fund - Negative Ending Balances in Restricted Resources (Fund 01, Object 9792, if 

negative, for each of resources 2000-9999) (Form MYPI, Line E1d) 

Special Reserve Fund - Stabilization Arrangements (Fund 17, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E2a) 

Special Reserve Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties (Fund 17, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E2b) 

Special Reserve Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount (Fund 17, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E2c) 

County Office's Available Reserve Amount (Lines B1 thru 87) 

County Office's Available Reserve Percentage (Information only) (Line 8 divided by Section SA, Line 3) 

County Office's Reserve Standard 

(Section 8A, Line 7): 

Status: 

8C. Comparison of County Office Reserve Amount to the Standard 

DA TA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

1a. STANDARD MET - Available reserves have met the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years. 

California Dept of Education 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 10 

Current Year 

Projected Year Totals 

(2024-25) 

3,597,769.00 

3,597,769.00 

5% 

179,888.45 

87,000.00 

179,888.45 

Current Year 

Projected Year Totals 

(2024-25) 

0.00 

485,699.00 

5,031,576.00 

0,00 

0,00 

0.00 

5,517,275.00 

153.35% 

179,888.45 

Met 

1st Subsequent 

Year 

(2025-26) 

3,275,597.00 

3,275,597.00 

5% 

163,779.85 

87,000.00 

163,779.85 

1st Subsequent 

Year 

(2025-26) 

442,206.00 

5,601,357.00 

0.00 

6,043,563.00 

184.50% 

163,779.85 

Met 

46 10462 0000000 

Form0 1 CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

3,210,391.00 

3,210,391.00 

5% 

160,519.55 

87,000.00 

160,519.55 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

433,403.00 

6,147,819.00 

0.00 

6,581,222.00 

205.00% 

160,519.55 

Met 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            62 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items S1 through S4. Enter an explanation for each Yes ans..wr. 

S1. Contingent Llabllltles 

1a. Does your county office have any knov.n or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program audits, lltigatlon, state compliance 

revie'WS) that have occurred since budget adoption that may impact the budget? 

1b. If Yes, identify the liabilities and how they may impact the budget: 

S2. Use of One.time Revenues for Ongoing Expenditures 

1a. Does your county office have ongoing county school service fund expenditures funded with one-time revenues that have 

changed since budget adoption by more than five percent? 

1b. If Yes, identify the expenditures and explain how the one-time resources will be replaced to continue funding the ongoing expenditures in the following fiscal years: 

S3. Temporary lnterfund Borrowings 

1a. 
Does your county office have projected temporary borrowings betMen funds? (Refer to Education Code Section 42603) 

1b. If Yes, identify the interfund borrowings: 

S4. Contingent Revenues 

1a. Does your county office have projected revenues for the current fiscal year or either of the tVvO subsequent flscal years 

contingent on reauthorization by the local government, special legislation, or other definitive act (e.g., parcel taxes, forest 

reserves)? 

1b. If Yes, identify any of these revenues that are dedicated for ongoing expenses and explain how the revenues will be replaced or expenditures reduced: 

No 

No 

No 

Yes 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

Forest Reserve funds are subject to reauthorization at the Federal level each year. 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 11 Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            63 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

S5. Contributions 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(20 24-25) 

Identify projected contributions from unrestricted resources in the county school service fund to restricted resources in the county school service fund for the current fiscal year and t'M> subsequent fiscal 

years. Provide an explanatlon If contributions have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since budget adoption. 

Identify projected transfers to or from the county school service fund to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund for the current fiscal year and two subsequent 

fiscal years. Provide an explanation if transfers have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since budget adoption. 

Identify capital project cost overruns that have occurred since budget adoption that may impact the county school service fund budget. 

County Office's Contributions and Transfers Standard: l�-s_.O_%_t_o _s_.O_%_ o_r_-s_ 2 _0 _,oo_ o_t_o_+_ s _20_,o_ oo ______________ � 

SSA. Identification of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects that may Impact the County School Service Fund 

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. For Contributions, the First lnterim's Current Year data 'MIi be extracted. Enter First Interim Contributions for the 1st and 2nd 

Subsequent Years. For Transfers In and Transfers Out, the First lnterim's Current Year data 'MIi be extracted. If Form MYPI exists, the data 'MIi be extracted into the First Interim column for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If Form 

MYPI does not exist, enter data for 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. Click on the appropriate button for Item 1d; all other data will be calculated. 

Description/ Fiscal Year 

Budget Adoption 

(Form 01CS, Item SSA) 

First Interim 

Projected Year Totals 

Percent 

Change Amount of Change Status 

1a. 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

1b. 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

1c. 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

1d. 

Contributions, Unrestricted County School Service Fund 

(Fund 01, Resources 0000-1999, Object 8 980) 

Transfers In, County School Service Fund* 

Transfers Out, County School Service Fund * 

Capital Project Cost Overruns 

(4,536.00) 0.00 

(4,536.00) 0.00 

(4,536.00) 0.00 

46.000.00 46.000.00 

46,000.00 46,000.00 

46,000.00 46.000.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Have capital project cost overruns occurred since budget adoption that may impact the county school service fund 

operational budget? 

• Include transfers used to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund. 

SSB. Status of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation If Not Met for Items 1a-1c or If Yes for Item 1d. 

-100.0% 

-100.0% 

-100.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

1a. MET- Projected contributions have not changed since budget adoption by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

1b. MET- Projected transfers in have not changed since budget adoption by more than the standard for the current year and t'M'.:l subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

1c. MET - Projected transfers out have not changed since budget adoption by more than the standard for the current year and tv.o subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

1d. NO - There have been no capital project cost overruns occurring since budget adoption that may impact the county school service fund operational budget. 

California Dept of Education 

Project Information: 

(required ff YES) 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 12 

(4,536.00) Met 

(4,536.00) Met 

(4,536.00) Met 

0.00 Met 

0.00 Met 

0.00 Met 

0.00 Met 

0.00 Met 

0.00 Met 

No 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            64 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

S6. Long-term Commitments 

202,4.25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 
County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Identify all existing and new multiyear commitments' and their annual required payment for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years. 

Explain how any increase in annual payments v.,;11 be funded. Also, explain how any decrease to funding sources used to pay long-term commitments WII be replaced. 

'Include multiyear commitments, multiyear debt agreements, and new programs or contracts that result in long-term obligations. 

S6A. Identification of the County Office's Long-term Commitments 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 
F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

DATA ENTRY: If Budget Adoption (Form 01CS, Item S6A) data exist, long-term commitment data v.,;11 be extracted and it will only be necessary to click the appropriate button for Item 1b. Extracted data may be overwritten to update long

term commitment data in item 2, as applicable. If no Budget Adoption data exist, click the appropriate buttons for items 1a and 1b, and enter all other data, as applicable. 

1. a. Does your county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments? (If No, skip items 1b 

and 2 and sections S6B and S6C) 

b. If Yes to Item 1a, have new long-term (multiyear) commitments been incurred since 
budget adoption? 

Yes 

No 

2. If Yes to Item 1a, list (or update) all new and existing multiyear commitments and required annual debt service amounts. Do not include long-term commitments for postemptoyment benefits other than pensions (OPEB); OPES is 
disclosed in Item S7 A. 

Type of Commitment 

Leases 

Certificates of Participation 

General Obligation Bonds 

Supp Early Retirement Program 

State School Building Loans 

# of Years 

Remaining Funding Sources (Revenues) 

Compensated Absences 1 General Fund - Unrestricted 

Other Long-term Commitments {do not include OPES): 

TOTAL: 

Type of Commitment (continued): 

Leases 

Certificates of Participation 

General Obligation Bonds 

Supp Early Retirement Program 

State School Building Loans 

Compensated Absences 

Other Long-term Commitments (continued): 

Total Annual 

Payments: 

Prior Year 

(2023-24) 

Annual Payment 

(P&I) 

24,870 

24,870 

Has total annual payment increased over prior year (2023-24) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 

SACS Fund and Object Codes Used For: 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

Annual Payment 

(P&I) 

No 

Page 13 

24,870 

24,870 

Debt Serv Ice (Expenditures) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

Annual Payment 

(P&I) 

No 

0 

Principal Balance 

as of July 1, 2024 

24,870 

24,870 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

Annual Payment 

(P&I) 

No 

0 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            65 of 75



202�25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

S6B. Comparison of the County Office's Annual Payments to Prior Year Annual Payment 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Yes. 

1a. No - Annual payments for long-term commitments have not increased in one or more of the current and t'Ml subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if Yes to 

increase in total 

annual payments) 

S6C. Identification of Decreases to Funding Sources Used to Pay Long-term Commitments 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in Item 1; if Yes, an explanation is required in Item 2. 

1. Will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or are they one-time sources? 

No 

2. No - Funding sources will not decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, and one-time funds are not being used for long-term commitment annual payments. 

Explanation: 

(Required If Yes) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 14 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            66 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

S7. Unfunded Llabllltles 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Identify any changes in estimates for unfunded liabilities since budget adoption, and indicate v..hether the changes are the result of a new actuarial valuation. 

S7A. Identification of the County Office's Estimated Unfunded Liability for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 

46 10462 0000000 

Form01CSI 

F81JDWA1 7T(2024•25) 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. Budget Adoption data that exist (Fonn 01CS, Item S7A) will be extracted; otherwise, enter Budget Adoption and First Interim data in items 2-4. 

a. Does your county off ice provide post employment benefits other than 

pensions (OPEB)? (If No, skip items 1b-4) 

b. If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since budget adoption in 

OPEB liabilities? 

c. If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since budget adoption in 

OPEB contributions? 

OPEB Liabilities 

a. Total OPEB liability 

b. OPEB plan(s) fiduciary net position (if applicable) 

c. TotaVNet OPEB liability (Line 2a minus Line 2b) 

d. Is total OPEB liability based on the county office's estimate or an actuarial valuation? 

e. If based on an actuarial valuation, indicate the measurement date of the OPEB valuation 

3 OPEB Contributions 

Yes 

Yes 

No 

a. OPEB actuarially determined contribution (ADC) if available, per actuarial valuation or Alternative Measurement Method 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (202!>26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026--27) 

b. OPEB amount contributed (for this purpose, include premiums paid to a self-insurance fund) (Funds 01-70, objects 3701-

3752) 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (202!>26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

c. Cost of OPEB benefits (equivalent of "pay-as-you-go• amount) 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (202!>26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026--27) 

d. Number of retirees receiving OPEB benefits 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (202!>26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026--27) 

4. Comments: 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 15 

Budget Adoption 

(Fonn 01CS, Item S7A) 

70,547.00 

0.00 

70,547.00 

Actuarial 

Jun 30, 2022 

Budget Adoption 

(Fonn 01CS, Item S7A) 

7,411.00 

7,411.00 

7,411.00 

21,115.00 

21,115.00 

21,115.00 

First Interim 

57,101.00 

0.00 

57,101.00 

Actuarial 

Jun 30, 2023 

First Interim 

6,118.00 

6,118.00 

6,118.00 

15,689.00 

15,689.00 

15,689.00 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            67 of 75



202,4.25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

S7B. Identification of the County Office's Unfunded Liability for Self--insurance Programs 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. Budget Adoption data that exist (Form 01CS, Item S7B) will be extracted; otherwise, enter Budget Adoption and First Interim data in items 2-4. 

a. Does your county office operate any self-insurance programs 

such as 'Mlrkers' compensation, employee health and \Yelfare, or property 

and liability? (Do not include OPEB, which is covered in Section S7 A) (If No, 

skip items 1b-4) 

b. If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since budget adoption in self

insurance liabilities? 

c. If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since budget adoption in self

insurance contributions? 

Self-Insurance Liabilities 

a. Accrued liability for self-insurance programs 

b. Unfunded liability for self-insurance programs 

3 Self-Insurance Contributions 

a. Required contribution (funding) for self-insurance programs 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (202�26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

b. Amount contributed (funded) for self-insurance programs 

Current Year (2024-25) 

1st Subsequent Year (202�26) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

4 Comments: 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 

No 

n/a 

n/a 

Page 16 

Budget Adoption 

(Fonn 01CS, Item S78) 

Budget Adoption 

(Fonn 01CS, Item S78) 

First Interim 

First Interim 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            68 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

S8. Status of Labor Agreements 

2024-25 First Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 
Form0 1CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024•25) 

Analyze the status of all employee labor agreements. Identify new labor agreements that have been ratified since budget adoption, as well as new commitments provided as part of previously ratified multiyear agreements; and 
include all contracts, including all administrator contracts (and including all compensation). For new agreements, indicate the date of the required board meeting. Compare the increase in new commitments to the projected increase in 
ongoing revenues, and explain how these commitments vvill be funded in future fiscal years. 

If salary and benefit negotiations are not finalized, upon settlement with certificated or classified staff: 

The county office of education must determine the cost of the settlement, including salaries, benefits, and any other agreements that change costs, and provide the California Department of Education (COE) vvith an analysis of the 
cost of the settlement and its impact on the operating budget. 

The COE shall review the analysis relative to the criteria and standards, and may provide written comments to the president of the governing board and the county superintendent of schools. 

SBA. Cost Analysls of County Office's Labor Agreements • Certificated (Non-management) Employees 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section. 

Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period 

Were all certificated labor negotiations settled as of budget adoption? 

If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section SBB. 

If No, continue vvith section SBA. 

Certificated (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations 

Prior Year (2nd Interim) 

(2023-24) 

Number of certificated {non-management) full• 
time-equivalent (FTE) positions 

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since budget adoption? 

1 0.51 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents have not been filed vvith the COE, 
complete questions 2-4. 

If No, complete questions 5 and 6. 

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled? 

If Yes, complete questions 5 and 6. 

�otiations Settled Since Budg�P.tion 

2. Per Government Code Section 3547.S(a), date of public disclosure board meeting: 

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date: 
'---------------' 

4. Salary settlement: 

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear projections (MYPs)? 

One Year Agreement 

Total cost of salary settlement 

% change in salary schedule from prior year 

or 

Multlyear Agreement 

Total cost of salary settlement 

% change in salary schedule from prior year (may enter text, 
such as "Reopener") 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

No 

Identify the source of funding that 'MIi be used to support multiyear salary commitments: 

Negotiations Not Settled 

5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 

Certificated (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits 

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes Included In the Interim and MYPs? 

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer 

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

Yes 

0.0% 

Page 17 

No 

1 0.51 

No 

Yes 

6,1 31 1 

0 

88,285 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

End Date: 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

Yes 

0.0% 

1 0.51 

0 

88.285 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

Yes 

1 0.51 

88,285 

0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            69 of 75



202"625 First Interim 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Certificated (Non.management) Prior Year Settlements NegoUated Since Budget Adoption 

Are any new costs negotiated since budget adoption for prior year settlements included in the 

Interim? 

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MYPs 

If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs: 

Certificated (Non.management) Step and Column Adjustments 

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs? 

2. Cost of step & column adjustments 

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 

Certificated (Non.management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) 

1. Are savings from attrition Included In the Interim and MYPs? 

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired employees included 

in the interim and MYPs? 

Certificated (Non..nanagement) • Other 

No 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

Yes 

1.7% 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

No 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

Yes 

1.7% 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

No 

No 

List other significant contract changes that have occurred since budget adoption and the cost impact of each change (i.e., class size, hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.): 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 
File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 18 

.. � I 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

Yes 

.... j 1.7% 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

No 

No 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            70 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2024-25 First Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

SBB. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements • Classified (Non.management) Employees 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period.· There are no extractions in this section. 

Status of Classlfled Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period 

Were all classified labor negotiations settled as of budget adoption? 

If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section SBC. 

If No, continue with section SSB. 

Classified (Non-management} Salary and Benefit Negotiations 

Prior Year (2nd Interim) 

(2023-24) 

Number of classified (non-management) FTE 
positions 

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since budget adoption? 

15.01 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents have not been filed with the COE, 
complete questions 2-4. 

If No, complete questions 5 and 6. 

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled? 

If Yes, complete questions 5 and 6. 

Negotiations Settled Since Budgfil.MQP.tion 

2. Per Government Code Section 3547.S(a), date of public disclosure board meeting: 

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date: 
'---------------' 

4. Salary settlement: 

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear projections (MYPs)? 

One Year Agreement 

Total cost of salary settlement 

% change in salary schedule from prior year 

or 

Multiyear Agreement 

Total cost of salary settlement 

% change in salary schedule from prior year (may enter text, 
such as "Reopener") 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments: 

Negotiations Not Settled 

5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 

Classified (Non-management} Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits 

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs? 

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer 

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 

Classified (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated Since Budget Adoption 

Are any new costs negotiated since budget adoption for prior year settlements included in the 
interim? 

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MYPs 

If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs: 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

Yes 

0.0% 

No 

Page 19 

No 

15.01 

No 

Yes 

6,187 1 

0 

93,602 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

End Date: 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

Yes 

0.0% 

15.01 

0 

93,602 

46 10462 0000000 
Form0 1CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024•25) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

Yes 

15.01 

93,602 

0.0% 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            71 of 75



202�25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Classified (Non.management) Step and Column Adjustments 

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs? 

2. Cost of step & column adjustments 

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 

Classified (Non.management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) 

1. Are savings from attrition included in the interim and MYPs? 

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired employees Included In the Interim 

and MYPs? 

Classified (Non.management). Other 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

Yes 

2.8% 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

No 

No 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

Yes 

2.8% 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

No 

No 

List other significant contract changes that have occurred since budget adoption and the cost impact of each (i.e., hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.): 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 20 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

Yes 

2.8% 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

No 

No 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            72 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

2024-25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

SSC. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements • Management/Supervisor/Confidential Employees 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of ManagemenUSupervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period.• There are no extractions in this section. 

Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period 

Were all managerial/confidential labor negotiations settled as of budget adoption? 

If Yes or n/a, complete number of FTEs, then skip to S9. 

If No, continue 'Mth section SBC. 

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Salary and Benefit Negotiations 

Prior Year (2nd Interim) 

(2023-24) 

Number of management, supervisor, and 

confidential FTE positions 

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since budget adoption? 

7.3 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents have not been filed \\1th the COE, 

complete question 2. 

If No, complete questions 3 and 4. 

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled? 

If Yes, complete questions 3 and 4. 

Negotiations Settled Since Budg�P.tion 

2. Salary settlement: 

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear projections (MYPs)? 

Negotiations Not Settled 

Total cost of salary settlement 

Change in salary schedule from prior year (may enter text, 

such as "Reopene..-) 

3. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 

4. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 

Management/Supervisor/Confidential 

Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits 

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes Included In the Interim and MYPs? 

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer 

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 

Management/Supervisor/Confidential 

Step and Column Adjustments 

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interm and MYPs? 

2. Cost of step & column adjustments 

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 

Management/Supervisor/Confidential 

Other Benefits ( mileage, bonuses, etc.) 

1. Are costs of other benefits included in the interim and MYPs? 

2. Total cost of other benefits 

3. Percent change in cost of other benefits over prior year 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

No 

Budget Year 

(2024-25) 

Current Year 

(2024-25) 

Page 21 

nla 

7.3 

nla 

n/a 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2025-26) 

7.3 

46 10462 0000000 

Form0 1 CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024•25) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

7.3 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            73 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

S9. Status of Other Funds 

2024-25 First Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

Analyze the status of other funds that may have negative fund balances at the end of the current fiscal y ear. If any other fund has a projected negative fund balance, 
prepare an interim report and multiy ear projection for that fund. Explain plans for how and 'Mien the negative fund balance will be addressed. 

S9A. Identification of Other Funds with Negative Ending Fund Balances 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in Item 1. If Yes, enter data in Item 2 and provide the reports referenced in Item 1. 

1. 

2. 

California Dept of Education 

!��d
c

;:j�ct:�
h

�: h::: :
e 

negatlv e fund balance at 
the end of the current 
fiscal y ear? 

No 

Are any funds other than 

I 

�---------------------� 

If Yes, prepare and submit to the reviewing agency a report of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (e.g., an interim fund report) and a multiyear projection 
report for each fund. 

If Yes, identify each fund, by name and number, that is projected to have a negative ending fund balance for the current fiscal y ear. Provide reasons for the negative 

balance(s) and explain the plan for how and when the problem(s) will be corrected. 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 22 Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            74 of 75



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS 

202�25 First Interim 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

F81JDWA17T(2024-25) 

The following fiscal indicators are designed to provide additional data for reviewing agencies. A ''Yes• ansi.wr to any single indicator does not necessarily suggest a cause for concern, but may alert the reviewing agency to the need for 

additional review. 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items A2. through AS; Item A1 is automatically completed based on data from Criterion 7. 

A1. Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the current fiscal year with a negative cash balance in the county school service 

fund? (Data from Criterion 78-1, Cash Balance, are used to determine Yes or No) 

A2. Is the system of personnel position control independent from the payroll system? 

A3. Is the County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior and current fiscal years? 

A4. Are new charter schools operating in county office boundaries that impact the county office's ADA, either in the prior or current fiscal year? 

AS. Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement 'Mlere any of the current or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement 'M:>Uld result 

in salary increases that are expected to exceed the projected state funded cost-of-living adjustment? 

A&. Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid) health benefits for current or retired employees? 

A7. Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? (If Yes, provide copies to the COE.) 

AS. Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief business official positions within the last 12 months? 

When providing comments for additional fiscal indicators, please include the item number applicable to each comment. 

Comments: 

(optional) 

End of County Office First Interim Criteria and Standards Review 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11 

File: CSI_County, Version 7 Page 23 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Yes 

Printed: 12/13/2024 9:44 A 
                                            75 of 75



                                            1 of 90



                                            2 of 90



                                            3 of 90



                                            4 of 90



                                            5 of 90



                                            6 of 90



                                            7 of 90



                                            8 of 90



                                            9 of 90



                                            10 of 90



                                            11 of 90



                                            12 of 90



                                            13 of 90



                                            14 of 90



                                            15 of 90



                                            16 of 90



                                            17 of 90



                                            18 of 90



                                            19 of 90



                                            20 of 90



                                            21 of 90



                                            22 of 90



                                            23 of 90



                                            24 of 90



                                            25 of 90



                                            26 of 90



                                            27 of 90



                                            28 of 90



                                            29 of 90



                                            30 of 90



                                            31 of 90



                                            32 of 90



                                            33 of 90



                                            34 of 90



                                            35 of 90



                                            36 of 90



                                            37 of 90



                                            38 of 90



                                            39 of 90



                                            40 of 90



                                            41 of 90



                                            42 of 90



                                            43 of 90



                                            44 of 90



                                            45 of 90



                                            46 of 90



                                            47 of 90



                                            48 of 90



                                            49 of 90



                                            50 of 90



                                            51 of 90



                                            52 of 90



                                            53 of 90



                                            54 of 90



                                            55 of 90



                                            56 of 90



                                            57 of 90



                                            58 of 90



                                            59 of 90



                                            60 of 90



                                            61 of 90



                                            62 of 90



                                            63 of 90



                                            64 of 90



                                            65 of 90



                                            66 of 90



                                            67 of 90



                                            68 of 90



                                            69 of 90



                                            70 of 90



                                            71 of 90



                                            72 of 90



                                            73 of 90



                                            74 of 90



                                            75 of 90



                                            76 of 90



                                            77 of 90



                                            78 of 90



                                            79 of 90



                                            80 of 90



                                            81 of 90



                                            82 of 90



                                            83 of 90



                                            84 of 90



                                            85 of 90



                                            86 of 90



                                            87 of 90



                                            88 of 90



                                            89 of 90



                                            90 of 90





 

 

 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE  

 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
(SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS) 

 

AND THE 

 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 and SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES 

 

 

 

EFFECTIVE DATES:  July 1, 2024-June 30, 2027 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE TITLE PAGE NO.

1    INTRODUCTION     4 

2    RECOGNITION      5 

3    TERM OF AGREEMENT     6 

4    SAVINGS PROVISION     7 

5    DEFINITIONS      8 

6    WAIVER CLAUSE     9 

7    ASSOCIATION RIGHTS     10 

8    NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE    11 

9    GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE    12-13 

10    EVALUATION PROCEDURE    14 

11    TRANSFER AND LAYOFF/ 
        REEMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE   15 

12    BENEFITS      16-17 

13    LEAVES OF ABSENCE     18-22 

14    WORKWEEK      23 

15    OVERTIME      24 

16    HOLIDAYS      25 

17    VACATION      26-27 

18    RETIREMENT/GOLDEN HANDSHAKE   28 

19    WAGES      29 

20    DISCIPLINARY ACTION     30 

21    LAYOFF PROCEDURES    31 

22    PERSONNEL FOLDER     32 

23    SAFETY      33 

24    EMPLOYERS’ RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES  34 

25    PEACEFUL PERFORMANCE       35 

26    MOBILE/CELLULAR TELEPHONE REIMBURSEMENT 36 

27    CATASTOPHIC LEAVE     37 

    SIGNATURE PAGE     38 

APPENDIX A   GRIEVANCE FORM     39 

APPENDIX B   H & W BENEFIT PAYMENT AGREEMENT PARTTIME 40 

APPENDIX C   H & W BENEFIT PAYMENT AGREEMENT RETIREE 41 

APPENDIX D   SALARY DEDUCTION AGREEMENT (OTHER)  42 

APPENDIX E   CELL/MOBILE DEVICE REIMBURSEMENT  43 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027 Page 3

APPENDIX F   SALARY REDUCTION AGREEMENT IRS 403(b)  44-45 

APPENDIX G   EMPLOYEE RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES FMLA 46 

APPENDIX H   EVALUATION FORM     47-48 

    S-PJUSD/SCOE SALARY SCHEDULES   49-50 

     

  



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 4 

ARTICLE 1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Chapter 10.7, Sections 3540-3549 of the Government Code (“Act”), of 
the State of California. 

 
1.2 Parties to the Agreement 

The Articles and provisions contained herein constitute a bilateral and binding agreement (“Agreement”) by and 
between the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District (“District”), the Sierra County Office of Education 
(“County”), and the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District and Sierra County Office of Education Classified 
Employees. 

 
The term “Employer” shall refer to the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District or Sierra County Office of 
Education, whichever is applicable. 

 
1.3 It is understood and agreed by the Employer and the Classified Employees that the articles contained within this 

Agreement shall not be deemed to supersede other provisions of the Education Code, Board Policies, or other 
rules and regulations as long as the above do not conflict with the negotiated Agreement. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027 Page 5 

ARTICLE 2 RECOGNITION

2.1 The Superintendent of the Sierra County Office of Education and the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Governing Board confirm its recognition of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified and Sierra County Office of Education 
Classified Employees as the exclusive bargaining agent for the purpose of meeting and negotiating proposals 
which are authorized under provisions of the law.

2.2 The District/County recognizes the CSEA as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the classified employees 
occupying classes listed below:

A. Food Services

B. Clerical, secretarial, and business services

C. Operations and maintenance including custodial/maintenance/grounds

D. Paraeducators

E. Noon duty supervisors who also hold, or are in layoff status from, other classified positions

F. Transportation

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Excluding noon duty supervisors not otherwise employed in another classified position, and those position
lawfully declared as management, and confidential. 

The following positions are specifically excluded from the bargaining agreement:

Temporary or Short-term Employees
Substitute Employees
Student Employees

The Classified Employees, in turn, recognizes the Employer as the duly elected representative of the people and 
agrees to negotiate exclusively with the Employer through the provisions of The Rodda Act.

The Classified Employees agree that it, its members, and agents shall not attempt to negotiate privately or
individually with any Board member, Administrator or supervisor.  In turn, the Employer and its individual
representatives shall not attempt to negotiate privately or individually with any Classified Employees member or
any individual in the unit.

New Classifications created or additional positions created within an existing class of positions shall be subject to 
negotiations between the Employer and the Classified Employees to determine if they are to be included in the 
bargaining unit.

Confidential positions will be reevaluated when they become vacant to determine if they meet the criteria 
established by law to be classified as confidential.

nd confidential. nd confidential. 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027 Page 6 

ARTICLE 3 TERM OF AGREEMENT

3.1 Provisions for this Agreement shall be effective July 1, 2024, except where otherwise noted, and shall remain in 
effect until June 30, 2027, with the following exceptions: 

The Classified Employees shall present its written proposals for negotiations no later than the March meeting of 
the District Board and County Superintendent.  The Board/County Superintendent will respond with an initial 
proposal response by the following regularly scheduled monthly Board meeting. 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 7 

ARTICLE 4 SAVINGS PROVISION 

4.1 If any provisions or applications of this Agreement are held to be contrary to law by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such provisions or applications will not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted 
by law; but, all other provisions will continue in full force and effect. 

 
4.2  In the event of suspension or invalidation of any article or section of this Agreement, the parties agree to meet and 

negotiate within thirty (30) days after such determination for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory 
replacement for such article or section.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 8 

ARTICLE 5 DEFINITIONS 

5.1  “Anniversary Date” refers to the date upon which an employee is hired and earned a salary.  This is the first day of 
the pay period next following completion of the required period of service. 

5.2  “Days” shall mean days on which the main administrative office of the District /County Office are open for 
business unless otherwise specified within this Agreement. 

5.3  “Length of Service” for the purpose of this Agreement, length of service is to mean the hours of service for the 
current continuous employment period. 

 
5.4  “Short term employee” is a person hired for a specific temporary project of limited duration which, when 

completed, shall no longer be required. 
 
5.5  “Probationary employee” is a regular employee who will become permanent upon completion of a six (6) month 

period.

5.6  “Regular or permanent employee” is an employee who successfully completes an initial probationary period, 
which shall not exceed six (6) months of service beyond the initial date of employment by the Employer and who 
is not classified as a restricted, substitute, short term or student employee.  

5.7 “Class” is any group of positions sufficiently similar in duties, responsibilities, and authority that the same job title, 
minimum qualifications, and salary range are appropriate for all positions in the class.  

5.8 “Classification” is a position in a class; a particular employment position. Each position in a classified service shall 
have a designated title, a regular number of assigned hours per day, days per week, and months per year, and a 
regular hourly or monthly salary range.  

 
5.9  “Seniority” for the purpose of this agreement seniority is determined by the length of service beginning with the 

current continuous employment period.  
 
5.10  “Classified Employees” All persons in Classified positions identified in Article 2.2 as being included in the unit are 

Classified Employees. 
 
5.11  “District/County” Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District and Sierra County Office of Education. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 9 

ARTICLE 6 WAIVER CLAUSE 

6.1  This Agreement sets forth, in writing, the full and entire understanding of the parties regarding the matters set forth 
herein. 

 
6.2  It is agreed and understood that the parties hereto waive their rights to negotiate any matter covered herein during 

the term of this contract. 
 
6.3  Nothing in this paragraph shall preclude the parties from mutually agreeing, in writing, to negotiate on any issue(s) 

contained herein during the term of this Agreement. 
 
6.4  No agreement alteration, understanding, variation, waiver or modification of any of the terms or provisions 

contained herein shall, in any manner, be binding upon the parties hereto unless made and executed in writing by 
all parties hereto, and if required, approved and implemented by the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Governing Board and the Sierra County Superintendent of Schools and Sierra County Board of Education and 
the District/County Classified Employees.  

 
6.5  The waiver, by mutual agreement and in writing, of any terms or conditions of this contract shall not constitute a 

precedent in the future enforcement of all its terms and provisions. 
 
  



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 10

ARTICLE 7 ASSOCIATION RIGHTS 

7.1  The Classified Employees can use the Employer’s buildings and facilities upon notification of the Superintendent 
to conduct Classified Employees’ business provided it does not interfere with the operations of the Sierra-Plumas 
Joint Unified School District or Sierra County Office of Education.  

7.2  Members of the Classified Employees shall be permitted to transact Classified Employees business on office 
property before the beginning of the established workday, during any duty-free lunch periods, and any time 
immediately following the established work day.  In any event, no Classified Employees, except the Classified 
Employees representative, shall be permitted to use assigned work time to conduct Classified Employees 
business on or off the premises. 

 
7.3  The Classified Employees shall have the right to post notice of activities and matters of the Classified Employees 

concern on the existing bulletin boards in the District/County office and site facilities. Such posting may be 
accomplished during generally recognized paid break periods. The Classified Employees may use the 
District/County office inter-office mail delivery service and employee mailboxes for communication to employees 
not to exceed twice per week and shall be during non-work time of the employee. It shall be the responsibility of 
the Classified Employees to remove outdated information. 

 
7.4  The Employer will provide the Classified Employees representative one (1) copy and the negotiations chairperson 

with one (1) copy of the public materials in the Board packet prior to any regular and/or special meeting held by 
said Board which directly affects Classified employees.  

 
7.5  The Classified Employees, upon request, may have access to the records pertaining to the employee seniority 

roster indicating the employees’ employment date, classification and job site. 
 
7.6  Each Classified Employees shall have available a copy of the Agreement. This copy shall be available via the 

Internet at www.sierracountyschools.org.  A printed copy of the Agreement shall be available for review in the 
District/County administration office.  

7.7  The Employer agrees to provide paid release time for up to two (2) hours per month for the Classified Employees 
representative or documented designee to conduct Classified Employees business. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 11

ARTICLE 8 NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE 

8.1  For the first session of each bargaining period, the Employer and the Classified Employees shall appoint not more 
than two (2) persons to act as their respective negotiating teams. 

 
8.2  Negotiations will be conducted at times and places mutually agreeable to the respective negotiating teams.   
 
8.3  It is understood and agreed that all tentative agreements negotiated by the negotiating teams are subject to formal 

ratification by the Classified Employees membership prior to presentation to the Employer, and that subsequent 
formal adoption by the Employer shall constitute the conclusion of negotiations activities for the year. 

 
8.4  The parties shall endeavor to reach an agreement on the ground rules prior to each set of negotiations which are 

to be conducted. The parties agree to abide by whatever rules apply for that set of negotiations.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 12

ARTICLE 9 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES 

9.1 Definitions
9.1.1 A “grievance” is an alleged violation, misapplication or misinterpretation of any specific provisions of this 

Agreement which adversely affects the grievant. 
9.1.2 The “grievant” is an employee in the unit who has properly submitted an alleged grievance. 
9.1.3 “Days” as used in this procedure shall mean any day in which the District/County Office is regularly open 

for business. 
9.1.4 “Immediate Supervisor” refers to that person as defined in Article 5.8, who, has immediate responsibility 

for directing the work force within his/her geographic area of influence. 
 

9.2  Purpose 
9.2.1 The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible administrative level, equitable solutions 

to the problems of employees which may from time to time arise affecting the welfare or working 
conditions as defined under the terms and provisions of this Agreement. Both parties agree that these 
proceedings will be kept informal and confidential as may be appropriate at any level of the procedure. 

 
9.2.2 Since it is important that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible, every effort should be made to 

expedite these procedures. The time limits, however, may be extended or decreased by mutual 
agreement of both parties. 

 
9.3 Procedure 

 If, in the judgment of the Classified Employees and the Employer, a grievance affects a group of 
Classified Employees, the Classified Employees may submit such grievance in writing to the 
Superintendent or designee directly and the processing of such grievance shall be commenced at Level 
II of the formal grievance procedure. 

 
9.3.1  Informal Level: 

9.3.1.1  Before filing a formal written grievance, the grievant shall attempt to resolve it by an informal 
conference with his/her immediate supervisor. 

 
9.3.1.2 In cases in which the proposed remedy would entail a financial outlay by the District/County 

Office, the grievant shall notify his/her immediate supervisor within ten (10) days after the 
grievant knew or should have known of the act of omission giving rise to the problem. 

 
9.3.1.3 A second informal discussion may be held between the grievant and a representative of his/her 

choice and the grievant’s immediate supervisor. Whether or not to have this meeting shall be at 
the discretion of the grievant. 

 
9.3.2 Formal Levels:  

9.3.2.1 Level I: 
9.3.2.1.1 Within thirty (30) calendar days after the occurrence of the act or omission giving 

rise to the grievance, the grievant must present the grievance on the Classified 
Employees’ grievance form to his/her immediate supervisor. 

 
9.3.2.1.2 This statement shall be a clear concise statement of the circumstances giving rise 

to the grievance, citation of the specific article, section and paragraph of this 
Agreement that is alleged to have been violated, the decision rendered at the 
informal conference, and the specific remedy sought. 

 
 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 13

9.3.2.1.3 Within ten (10) days after receipt of the written grievance by the appropriate 
administrator/supervisor, he/she shall meet with the aggrieved party and if desired, 
a representative from the Classified Employees, in an effort to resolve the 
grievance. The appropriate administrator/supervisor or designee shall communicate 
the decision to the grievant in writing within ten (10) days after receiving the 
grievance. 

9.3.2.2 Level II: 
9.3.2.2.1 In the event the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level I, he/she may 

appeal the decision on the Classified Employees’ Grievance Form to the District 
Superintendent or County Superintendent of Schools or designee with ten (10) 
days. 

9.3.2.2.2 This statement should include a copy of the original grievance, the decision 
rendered, and a clear, concise statement of the reason for the appeal.  

 
9.3.2.2.3 The District Superintendent or County Superintendent of Schools or designee shall 

conduct an investigation into the allegations and shall communicate the decision 
within ten (10) days after receiving the appeal. 

 
9.3.2.2.4 The County Superintendent of Schools shall make the final decision for County 

Classified Employees at Level II. 
 

9.3.2.3 Level III: 
9.3.2.3.1 If a District Classified Employee (grievant) is not satisfied with the decision at Level 

II, he/she, within ten (10) days after receiving the decision from the District 
Superintendent may appeal the decision on the grievance form to the District 
Governing Board.  

 
9.3.2.3.2 This statement shall include a copy of the original grievance and appeal, the 

decision rendered and a clear concise statement of the reasons for the second 
appeal.   

 
9.3.2.3.3 The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board shall 

communicate its decision to the grievant within five (5) days after a regular or 
special Board meeting. The decision of the Board shall be final and no further 
procedure is available to the grievant within the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
9.4 Miscellaneous

9.4.1 Neither the Employer or Classified Employees, nor any member of the administration or 
bargaining unit shall take reprisals affecting the employment status or working conditions of any 
employee, member of management, Classified Employees representative, or any other 
participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation. 

 
9.4.2. The actual grievances and all documents relating thereto shall be filed separately from the 

Classified Employee’s personnel file. 
 

9.4.3 At any level of this procedure, Classified Employees may consult with a representative of his/her 
choice in order to gain assistance in preparation, investigation, or resolution of the grievance.  
Such assistance may extend to help in the presentation of the grievance at any formal level of 
this procedure or at the second informal level provided above.  

 
 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 14

ARTICLE 10 EVALUATION PROCEDURE 

10.1.  Any Classified Employee may be evaluated by the immediate supervisor at any time when deemed to be the in 
the best interest of the program.  Each immediate supervisor under whom the Classified Employees has served 
for sixty (60) working days or more during any rating period shall provide a performance evaluation even though 
the Classified Employee may have left his/her control.  
 
A regular personnel evaluation program will be affected according to the following schedule: 

 
Probationary status Employees:  Year one (1) at the end of the 2nd (second) and 5th (fifth) month of service; 
 
Permanent status Employees:   
 
A. Once each year usually between February and May;  
 

10.2  A Classified Employee shall be evaluated by an immediate supervisor prior to any position transfer.   
10.2.1 Employee shall be evaluated at the end of the 2nd (second) and 5th (fifth) month of service in any new 

position whether by a voluntary or involuntary transfer.
 

10.3.  Procedure 

10.3.1 Performance evaluation reports shall be made on the Performance Evaluation for Classified Employees 
form and shall be prepared by the Classified Employee’s immediate supervisor. The form may be 
reviewed by the next higher supervisor. 

 
10.3.2 The immediate supervisor shall present the performance evaluation form to the Classified Employee and 

shall discuss it with him/her. The evaluation form shall be signed by the employee to indicate receipt, and 
he/she shall be given a signed copy.  The Employee may attach comments to the evaluation form if 
he/she does so within ten (10) business days following the evaluation interview. 

 
10.3.3. Performance evaluation reports shall be filed in the Classified Employee’s personnel records. All 

performance evaluations shall be confidential. 
 

10.4 Special Evaluations: At any time a supervisor may issue to a Classified Employee a Notice of Commendation or 
Notice of Unsatisfactory Service. Such notices shall be made on prescribed forms and shall set forth specific 
reasons for recognition of outstanding or unsatisfactory service by the Classified Employee. It shall be delivered to 
the Classified Employee personally by his/her immediate supervisor whenever practical. A copy of such notice 
shall be placed in the Classified Employee’s personnel record and shall be available to review in connection with 
promotional examinations.  

 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 15

ARTICLE 11 TRANSFER AND LAYOFF/REEMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE 

11.1  Length of service = hours in paid status.  Seniority is determined by length of service beginning with the current 
continuous employment period.  

 
11.2  Transfers, whether voluntary (Classified Employee initiated) or involuntary (Employer initiated), are the change in 

a Classified Employee’s work assignment with the same classification. 
 
11.3  Transfers shall not change the Classified Employee’s service time, anniversary date, accumulated illness leave, 

or accumulated vacation credit, or in any other manner reflect adversely upon his/her rights as provided in this 
Agreement. 

 
11.4  Reasons for any transfer which is not voluntary shall be discussed with the Classified Employee by his/her 

immediate supervisor at least fifteen (15) work days before the first work day.  
 
11.5  Classified Employees who wish to be considered for a particular position shall submit a written request to the 

personnel department.  
 
11.6 All open positions and employment opportunities will be posted on the District/County website. 
 
11.7  Order of layoff and reemployment:  Within each class, the order of layoff shall be determined by length of service. 

(Board Policy AR 4217.3, Education Code 45114, 45308)  

 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 16

ARTICLE 12 BENEFITS 

12.1 The Employer shall provide all eligible Classified Employees as specified in this article and their eligible 
dependents with medical coverage, family dental, family vision and life insurance coverage.  

 
12.2  Beginning with the 2017-2018** fiscal year, the Employer contribution for family medical, dental, vision coverage 

and life insurance, shall be capped at $17,536.50** annually per eligible Employee toward the premiums and 
Health Savings Account contributions for employer-sponsored health insurance plans. Health Savings 
contributions are subject to limitations as prescribed by Internal Revenue Code(s). ** Approved May 9, 2017

12.2.1 Classified Employees assigned to paid status greater than (twenty-seven and one-half) 27.5 hours per 
week shall be entitled to Employer paid contributions capped as stated in Article 12.2 above. 

 
12.2.2 Classified Employees regularly assigned to paid status part-time at least (twenty) 20 hours per week or 

greater, may participate in the Employer-sponsored group benefit programs, as allowed by the vendor 
contracts for family medical, dental, vision, and life insurance benefits by paying the full (100%) premium 
cost. 

 
12.2.3 Section 125, also referred to “Cafeteria Plan”, of the Internal Revenue Code provides participants an 

opportunity to receive certain benefits on a pretax basis. The cafeteria plans are made pursuant to salary 
reduction agreements between the Employer and the Employee.  Classified Employees are eligible to 
participate in Section 125 cafeteria plans. 

 
12.2.4 Classified Employees are eligible to participate in the annual open enrollment as authorized by current 

benefit vendor(s).  The annual open enrollment is to allow employees who are enrolled in a medical 
benefits plan the opportunity to enroll in any plan offered by the Employer. 

 
12.2.5 The Employer health insurance dollar contribution shall be prorated on an annual basis. An Employee 

who is employed less than a full fiscal year shall be entitled only to the proportionate annual Employer 
dollar contributions toward health and welfare benefits.  

 
12.3   Per 12.2.2, part-time Classified Employees may participate in the Employer-sponsored group benefit programs,  

 
12.3.1 Upon becoming eligible for coverage, an employee has thirty-one (31) days to file an enrollment 

application for coverage with the District or County office. Benefits begin the following month. 
 

12.3.2 All premiums are payable to the District or County office and due in full no later than the (fifth) 5th day of 
the month and will be considered delinquent after the (fifth) 5th day.  Should the health insurance premium 
payments become delinquent for two (2) consecutive months, benefits will be cancelled and 
reinstatement will not be allowed.  

 
 12.3.2.1   Payroll deduction Option: Up to (seventy-five) 75% of the Classified Employee’s estimated 

regular ten (10) month net pay may be deducted for the group-sponsored health insurance premium. For 
example, if the (ten) 10 month (September through June) regular net pay is $940, the District/County 
would deduct $705 for the health insurance premium.  However, months July and August, the full health 
premium would be due and payable to the District/County office no later than the 5th of the month.  

 
12.3.3  In the event that the Employee’s hours and assignment are reduced to less than twenty (20) hours per 

week, the Employee is no longer eligible to participate in the Employer-sponsored group benefit plan. 
Benefits will be terminated the last day of the month that the Employee is no longer entitled under the 
requirements of eligibility. 

 

 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027 Page 17

12.4  Economic Fringe Benefits While On Paid Leave: 
Classified Employees on paid leave are considered to be in continuous employment and no interruption to the 
fringe benefit program shall be imposed upon Classified Employees on paid leave. 
 

12.5  Economic Fringe Benefits While on Unpaid Leave: 
Classified Employees granted an unpaid leave of absence shall have their Employer-paid fringe benefit programs 
discontinued at the end of the month in which the leave begins. 
 
12.5.1 Classified Employees may continue fringe benefit coverage while on an unpaid leave by paying the full 

premium in advance each month including the Employer’s contribution for the duration of the leave. 
 

12.6  Economic Fringe Benefits – Termination 
Classified Employees who terminate shall have their fringe benefit programs discontinued at the end of the month 
in which their termination occurs except as may be required by applicable State or Federal law. 
 

12.7   Retirees 
Retirees from the Employer, and their qualified dependents, may continue to participate in any of the Employer 
health benefits plans at his/her own expense providing such participation is acceptable to the health insurance 
provider.  Retirees shall pay all the premiums, dues, and other charges, including any increase in premiums. 
 
12.7.1 The retiree shall be eligible to participate in the Employer’s group health plan beyond age 65 in 

accordance with the authorization and guidelines of the health insurance provider. 
 
12.7.1.2  The retiree must be enrolled in Medicare Part A and Medicare Part B programs to be eligible 

for the “retiree” rate premium schedule. Without the Medicare Part A and Part B participation, 
the retiree may participate at the applicable rate schedule. 

 
 
  



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 18

ARTICLE 13 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

All reference to (working) day(s) as used in this Article shall be considered a standard either (8) hour day or 
portion thereof.  Classified Employees employed less than forty hours per week, or less than twelve months a 
year, shall be granted a proportionate amount of the full-time employee. 

13.1   Status While on Leave of Absence 
13.1.1 Paid Leave: Classified Employees granted a paid leave of absence shall be considered to be in 

continuous employment and shall be entitled to all earned sick leave, vacation, service time, transfer and 
promotion considerations, and other benefits as provided in Article 12, Benefits. The Classified 
Employees shall also be entitled to all base salary adjustments. However, Classified Employees will be 
entitled to a step increase provided that the Classified Employees has worked at least 75% of all 
scheduled workdays.  

 
13.1.2 Unpaid Leave:  Classified Employees granted an unpaid leave of absence shall be considered to be in 

continuous employment, however, shall not be entitled to earn additional sick leave or vacation time while 
on such leave.  They will be entitled to their step increase provided that they have worked at least 75% of 
all scheduled workdays. 

 
13.2   Sick Leave 

13.2.1 Every regular Classified Employee shall be entitled to one (1) day of paid sick leave for illness or injury for 
each full month of employment. This one (1) day shall be prorated accordingly for regular Classified 
Employees working partial months. (Education Code 45191 Classified Employee) 

 
13.2.1.1  On July 1 of each year, every Classified Employee shall receive in advance their entitlement of 

sick leave. 
 
13.2.1.2  New Employees assigned to a position after July 1 shall receive sick leave for the remainder of 

the fiscal year ending June 30 depending on the total calendar months or portion thereof 
remaining.  

 
13.2.1.3  Effective July 1, 2013, a new Employee of the District/County shall not be eligible to take more 

than six (6) days, or the proportionate amount to which he may be entitled, until the first day of 
the calendar month after completion of six months of active service with the District/County. 
(Education Code 45191 Classified Employee) 

 
13.2.2 Unused sick leave shall be accumulative from year to year. 
 
13.2.3 The Employer may require a physician’s or practitioner’s verification of illness if a Classified Employee 

has been on sick leave for three (3) or more consecutive days or a total of fifteen days in any school year. 
The physician/practitioner’s statement shall include: 

 The reason for absence 

 Dates of treatment 

 Type of treatment 
 Whether or not the Employee can perform all assigned duties 

 
13.2.4 A Classified Employee who is absent through illness or injury must notify his/her immediate supervisor as 

early as possible. Upon return, the Classified Employee must complete the appropriate Leave of 
Absence form indicating the date(s) of the sick leave taken.  

 
13.2.5 Sick leave shall not be misused by an Employee or used to enable him/her to earn wages from another 

employer. Misuse of sick leave shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal. 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027 Page 19

13.2.6 Earned unused sick leave may be counted, in a proportionate amount, to service credit for computing 
retirement in accordance to current laws. 

 
13.2.7 Differential Sick Leave 

When sick leave and all other paid leaves have been exhausted and a Classified Employee is absent 
because of illness or accident, the Classified Employee shall be paid the difference between his/her 
salary and the salary of the substitute for the period not to exceed five (5) months. 
 
The five (5) month period shall commence on the first day of the absence and run concurrently with all 
other leaves.  If a Classified Employee is unable to return to work following the allowable five (5) months, 
the Classified Employees may request an unpaid leave of absence not to exceed six (6) months.  If an 
unpaid leave of absence is not available, or if at the end of the unpaid leave the Classified Employee 
remains unable to assume the duties of his/her position, the Classified Employee will be placed on a 39 
month reemployment list. (Education Code 45195 Classified Employee) 
 

13.2.8 Transfer of Sick Leave from Another District 
A Classified employee of any school district who has been an employee of that district for a period of one 
(1) calendar year and who subsequently accepts employment with the District/County within one (1) year 
of his /her former employment, shall be credited with all of the earned but unused sick leave which was 
credited to him/her in his/her former school district. (Education Code 45202 Classified Employee) 
 
If termination was for cause, the transfer may be made if agreed to by the District/County Superintendent 
or designee. 
 

13.3  Personal Necessity Leave:  
13.3.1  Classified Employees may elect to use up to seven (7) days of accumulated sick leave for personal 

necessity during any school year. 
 
13.3.2 Personal Necessity Leave includes:  

 Death of a member of his/her immediate family when additional leave is required beyond that 
provided for bereavement leave provisions; 

 An accident involving his/her person or property, or the person or property of a member of 
his/her immediate family;  

 Appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a litigant, party or witness under 
subpoena or other order; 

 Other reasons that the Governing Board may prescribe (refer to Board Policy AR4261.2) 
 

13.3.3 Request for Personal Necessity Leave shall be made at least three (3) days in advance to the 
Employee’s immediate supervisor.  Advance permission shall not be required of any Classified Employee 
in cases involving the death of a member of the Employee’s immediate family or an accident involving the 
Employee’s person or property or the person or property of a member of his/her immediate family. 

 
13.3.4 The request for such leave shall be submitted on a leave of absence form to the Employee’s immediate 

supervisor. 
 

13.3.5 In no case shall Personal Necessity Leave be used for an extension of a school holiday or personal 
vacation when not provided under the terms of the employment, or leave that would cause disruption of 
the normal operating functions of the school.  

 
 
 
 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 20

13.4 Bereavement Leave: 
13.4.1 Employees are entitled to a leave of up to five (5) days, upon the death of any member of the employee's 

immediate family. No deduction shall be made from the employee's salary, nor shall such leave be 
deducted from any other leave to which the employee is entitled. 

13.4.2 Immediate family includes:  (as defined according to subdivision (d) of Labor Code Section 2066): 
spouse, domestic partner, cohabitant, child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, mother-in-
law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent, great grandparent, brother, sister, half-
brother, half-sister, stepsibling, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, or first 
cousin (that is, a child of an aunt or uncle), or any relative living in the immediate household of the
Employee. 

 
13.4.3 Any additional days beyond those provided in sections 13.4.1 and 13.4.2 must be handled under the 

provisions of Personal Necessity Leave. 
 

13.5  Leave to Perform Legal Duties: 
13.5.1 Classified Employees who are involuntarily summoned for civic duty, subpoenaed to be present in court 

as juror or as a witness, shall be granted civic duty leave, with pay, for such time as is required by the 
summons or subpoena. 

 
13.5.2 Classified Employees are expected to return to work during any day or portion thereof in which legal duty 

services are not required. 
 
13.5.3 Legal duty leave will not be granted to Classified Employees required to appear in court as defendants for 

personal traffic or other violations of the law or as a defendant in connection with other employment. 
 
13.5.4 Payment received for approved legal duty leave, with the exception of any transportation reimbursement, 

shall be turned over the District/County business office. 
 
13.5.5 Classified Employees will be granted a leave of absence if called for grand jury service.  Leave of 

absence for grand jury service shall be with pay up to the amount of the difference between the 
Employee’s regular earnings and any amount he/she receives as juror fees. 

 
13.6  Military Leave: 

13.6.1 Classified Employees shall be granted any military leave to which they are entitled, under law as 
Classified school employees.  Classified Employees shall be required to request military leave in writing 
and, upon request, to supply the District/County business Office with “orders” and status reports.  

 
13.7  Industrial Accident and Illness Leave: 

13.7.1 Classified Employees who sustain an injury or illness arising directly out of and in the course and scope 
of their employment shall be eligible for not less than sixty (60) working days paid leave in any one (1) 
fiscal year.  The fiscal year is defined as July 1 through June 30 of each year.  

 

 Allowable leave shall not accumulate from year-to-year; 
 Industrial Accident or Illness Leave will commence on the first day of absence; 

 Payment for wages lost on any day shall not, when added to an award granted the employee 
under the workers’ compensation laws in this State, exceed the normal wage for the day; 

 Industrial Accident leave will be reduced by one (1) day for each day of authorized absence 
regardless of the compensation award made  under workers’ compensation; 

 When an industrial accident or illness occurs at a time when the full sixty (60) days will overlap 
into the next fiscal year, the Employee shall be entitled to only that amount remaining at the end 
of the fiscal year in which the injury or illness occurred for the same illness or injury.  



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027 Page 21

 
13.7.2 Industrial Accident or Illness Leave is to be used in lieu of normal sick leave benefits. When entitlement to 

Industrial Accident or Illness leave under this section has been exhausted, entitlement to other sick leave, 
including the differential sick leave allowance, vacation and other paid leave shall be used. 

 
13.7.3 During any paid leave of absence, the Classified Employee shall endorse to the Employer the temporary 

disability indemnity checks received on account of such industrial accident or illness. The Employer, in 
turn, shall issue the Classified Employees appropriate salary warrants for payment of the Classified 
Employees’ normal wage. 

 
13.7.4 When all available leaves of absence (paid or unpaid) have been exhausted, and if the Classified 

Employee is not medically able to resume his/her duties, the Employee shall, if not placed in another 
position, be placed on a reemployment list for a period of 39 months.  If the Employee is able to resume 
his/her duties during the 39 month period, the Employee shall be employed in a vacant position in the 
class of his/her previous assignment. The employment shall be over all other candidates except for a 
reemployment list established because of lack of work or lack of funds. 

 
13.8  Emergency Conditions 

13.8.1 Emergency conditions are those conditions totally outside of a Classified Employees’ control such as 
extreme snowfall, flood or other weather-related phenomena, workplace power outage, fire or other 
natural catastrophe or circumstances that require urgent attention of the Employee and which prevent an 
employee from reporting to or remaining at his/her assigned workplace. 

 
13.8.2 Should a Classified Employee show up for and be ready for work at his/her regular assignment but is 

then sent home by a supervisor, he/she shall be credited for a minimum of two (2) hours pay or the time 
actually worked, whichever is greater. 

 
13.8.3 Any Classified Employee who is not able to attend or remain at work for reasons of emergency as 

defined above, shall use vacation, personal necessity, District/County leave or leave without pay. 
 
13.8.4 If the Classified Employee must take a leave without pay because no paid leaves are available, he/she 

may request his/her supervisor to consider a means of allowing them to make up the time and the lost 
wage. 

 
13.9  Family Care and Medical Leave 

  13.9.1 Entitlement to Leave: 
Classified Employees may be eligible for unpaid leave under the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) 
and/or the California Family Rights Act (CFRA), subject to certain qualifying circumstances under the law. 
Refer to Administrative Regulation AR4261.8 and Appendix F of this Agreement. It is intended that 
current leave entitlements shall run concurrent with FMLA and CFRA leave. This item is enforceable as 
set out in law. 

 
13.9.2 Since the Federal and State laws have different regulations, definitions and benefits which may change in 

the future, the Classified employee should contact the personnel department for further information. 
 

13.9.3 Advance Notice of Leave: 
If the Classified Employee’s need for a leave pursuant to this Article is foreseeable, the Classified 
Employee shall provide the Superintendent with thirty (30) days advance notice of the need for the leave. 
 

13.9.4 Healthcare Provider/Certification of Leave: 
 Verification by a physician shall be required by the District/County to validate a serious health condition. 
 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 22

Child, Spouse or Parent Care: If the employee is requesting leave to care for an eligible family member 
with a serious health condition, both of the following: 

a. Statement that the serious health condition warrants the participation of the employee to provide 

care, such as by providing psychological comfort, arranging for third party care, or directly 

providing or participating in the medical care of the eligible family member during a period of the 

treatment or supervision 

b. Estimated amount of time the health care provider believes the employee needs to care for the 

eligible family member 

Employee Illness:  If the employee is requesting leave because of the employee's own serious health 
condition, a statement that due to the serious health condition, the employee is unable to work at all or is 
unable to perform one or more essential job functions of the position 

13.9.5 Amendment of Statutory Law: 
This Article shall be deemed to be automatically modified to conform to any amendment or modification 
of Government Code §12945.2, the FMLA, or any other applicable law. If any such amendment gives the 
Superintendent discretion to require any act by the Employee, the act shall be deemed to be required.  
 
 

13.10 Religious Leave: (Board policy AR4261.2) 
 

The Superintendent or designee may grant an employee up to three (3) days of leave per year for religious purposes, 
provided that the leave is requested in advance and that it does not cause additional district expenditures, the neglect 
of assigned duties, or any other unreasonable hardship on the district. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall deduct the cost of hiring a substitute, when required, from the wages of the 
employee who takes religious leave. 

 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 23

ARTICLE 14  WORKWEEK 

14.1 The normal workweek for full-time Classified Employees shall be (8) hours per day, Monday through Friday. 
 
14.2  Classified Employees whose work schedules are dependent upon student contact may have their work days or 

work year altered to accommodate the various student attendance schedules of District/County schools. 
 

14.3  The Employer shall provide for those Classified Employees who work a six (6) hour or longer work day, a duty-
free, non-paid status, meal period of not less than thirty (30) consecutive minutes.  The meal period may be 
assigned by the Classified Employees’ supervisor.  

 
14.4  Classified Employees working seven (7) or more hours per day are allowed a morning and afternoon rest break, 

not to exceed fifteen (15) minutes for each break. Classified Employees working four (4) or more hours per day 
but fewer than seven (7) hours are provided one (1) fifteen (15) minute break. Supervisors may schedule the 
appropriate time for breaks normally midpoint in the morning or afternoon.  Breaks may not be used to come to 
work late, leave early, or extend lunch breaks. 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 24

ARTICLE 15 OVERTIME 

15.1 The Employer agrees to compensate Classified Employees at the rate of one and one-half (1-l/2) times the 
Classified Employee’s regular rate of pay for each hour of work in excess of the eight (8) hour day and forty (40) 
hour workweek.  A supervisor may grant compensatory time off to a Classified Employee at the same ratio and in 
lieu of overtime cash payment. The supervisor shall, upon request, inform a Classified Employee of the intended 
method of payment (cash or compensatory time off) at the time of directing the overtime work. Classified 
Employees classified as “Exempt” management are not subject or eligible for overtime compensation. 

 
15.2  Definitions: 

15.2.1 “Hours Worked” include all time during which the Classified Employee is permitted to work for the 
Employer whether or not authorized or ordered by the immediate supervisor. Except for emergencies, 
Classified Employees who work unauthorized overtime may be subject to disciplinary action. 

 
15.2.2 The term “compensatory time” and “compensatory time off” means hours during which a Classified 

Employee is not working, which are not counted as hours worked during the applicable workweek or 
other work period for purposes of overtime compensation, and for which the Classified Employee is 
compensated at the Classified Employee’s regular rate. 

 
15.3 Classified Employees may not accrue more than twenty (20) hours of compensatory time off per week. Overtime 

worked after the maximum accrual is reached shall be compensated by cash payment. 

15.4 Compensatory time off may be earned in lieu of cash compensation for authorized overtime. This compensating 
time off shall be granted within twelve (12) calendar months following the month in which the overtime was 
worked. (Education Code 45129 Classified Service) 

15.5 Except in an emergency which prevents preapproval, all overtime must be authorized in advance by the 
Classified Employee’s supervisor.  Emergency situations must be brought to the attention of the supervisor as 
soon as practical. 

15.6 The Employer will settle the overtime account, if compensated by cash, with Classified Employees at the end of 
the pay period in which it is earned. Classified Employees who have terminated employment shall be paid for the 
unused compensatory time at the final regular rate of pay. 

15.7 A Classified Employee that is assigned to supervise students on overnight trips or field trips shall not be paid  for 
more than eight (8) hours in any twenty-four (24) hour period at his/her regular rate of pay. 

15.8 Staff development days shall be as a paid work- day only when the Employee is required to attend by the 
superintendent and/or the Employee’s supervisor. 

15.9 Those employees required to work on a holiday will be paid their normal pay plus time and a half. 

 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 25

ARTICLE 16 HOLIDAYS 

16.1  The Employer agrees to provide all eligible Classified Employees with the following paid holidays and leave 
days: 

       # OF DAYS 
  HOLIDAY    ALLOWED 
  Independence Day           1 
  Labor Day            1 
  Veteran’s Day            1 
  Thanksgiving            2 
  Christmas Eve            1 
  Christmas Day            1 
  New Year’s Eve           1 
  New Year’s Day           1 
  Martin Luther King Jr. Day          1 
  Lincoln’s Birthday           1 
  President’s Day            1 
  Memorial Day            1 

Juneteenth Day            1 
District/county Leave Day 2  

 
 
16.2 The Governing Board shall set the date of each holiday annually and the District/County office shall make 

available a calendar on which the dates shall be listed. 
 
16.3 All eligible Classified Employees will be entitled to payment for authorized holidays, provided that they were 

employed on the holiday and in paid status their last working day immediately preceding and succeeding the 
holiday. 

 
16.4 If the Employer requires a Classified Employee to work on these holidays, the Classified Employee may take 

another day off within thirty (30) working days in lieu of that holiday provided that such holiday will provide for at 
least a three (3) day weekend if the employee so desires. 

 
16.5 District/County Leave Day(s) are non-accruable days, not subject to deduction from sick, personal leave, or 

vacation days and must be taken prior to June 30th of the current school year or forfeit the right to use it. 
District/County Leave Days shall be prorated proportionately for days of service the employee is employed, i.e.  
Employees hired as “late start” after beginning of the fiscal year and/or scheduled work days according to the 
position. 

 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 26

ARTICLE 17 VACATION 

17.1 Eligibility – Classified Employees eligible for this vacation section are those listed in the recognition section (Article 
2) as classifications represented. Amounts referred to below are relative to full-time employment. Annual vacation 
leave for Employees shall be granted on a monthly accrual method. Pro-rated amounts shall be utilized for 
persons working less than full-time. 

 
 17.1.1 Effective July 1, 2013, all new Employees’ earned vacation shall not become a vested right until 

completion of the initial six months of employment. (Education Code 45197)  
 
17.2  Vacation Accumulation Schedules – The following vacation accumulation schedules shall apply as indicated: 
 

17.2.1 For persons employed on or before June 30, 2012, the following schedule of accumulation shall apply. 
The hourly accumulation is for regular hours paid (not including overtime). 

 
CLASSIFIED 
EMPLOYEE YEAR  ANNUAL VACATION 

MONTHLY 
ACCRUAL 

OF SERVICE 
ACCRUAL ENTITLEMENT

   
One 

 
Ten working days (80 hours) 6.667 

Three
 

Fifteen working days (120 hours) 10 hours

Five  Twenty working days (160 hours)  13.334 hours

   
 
17.2.2 For persons with a date-of-hire after June 30, 2012, the following schedule of accumulation shall apply. 

The hourly accumulation is for regular hours paid (not including overtime). 
 

CLASSIFIED 
EMPLOYEE YEAR ANNUAL VACATION   

MONTHLY 
ACCRUAL

OF SERVICE ACCRUAL ENTITLEMENT   
   
One to Five Ten working days (80 hours)

 
6.667 

Six to Ten Fifteen working days (120 hours)
 

10 hours

Eleven + Twenty working days (160 hours) 13.334 hours

17.3  Eligible twelve (12) month Classified Employees shall schedule a vacation each year.  If vacation cannot be 
approved within the fiscal year, an amount equal to one year’s accumulation may be carried forward to the 
following fiscal year. The Classified Employee shall utilize this carryover by the end of the following year.   

 
  Eligible twelve (12) month Classified Employees shall schedule with his/her supervisor to take sufficient vacation 

to bring his/her accrued vacation to the hours below or hours allowed for carry over by June 30. The Employee 
shall limit a “carry-over” of no more than 160 hours into the next fiscal year. 

 
17.4  The Superintendent or designee, may authorize an additional number of hours of annual vacation carryover when 

it is: (a) necessary to deny a vacation leave request to meet the needs of the District/County and the Employee is 
thereby placed in jeopardy of losing vacation leave, or (b) the Superintendent or designee shall consider an 
Employee’s special circumstances on a case-by-case basis and both the Employer and Employee mutually agree 
prior to the Employee utilizing the excess carryover hours. Excess carry over consideration is limited to (40) forty 
hours. 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027 Page 27

17.4.1 Classified Employees assigned to positions that work less than a 12 month calendar, vacation accrual 
shall be paid to them in June at the end of the school year. 

17.5 Each eligible Classified Employee shall earn vacation for each regularly paid hour and years of service. 

17.6 When a holiday, as defined in this Agreement, occurs during the scheduled vacation of a Classified Employee, 
the Classified Employee will receive pay at the regular rate of pay for the holiday and shall not be charged a 
vacation day for absence on the holiday. 

17.7 Vacation shall, with the approval of the Employee’s immediate supervisor, be taken at any time during the year 
and preferably be scheduled a minimum of five (5) working days prior to the dates requested whenever possible.  
Every effort shall be made to enable vacation to be taken at times convenient to the Classified Employee, 
consistent with the needs of the service and the workload of the department.  Vacation may be taken in units of 
not less than one quarter (1/4) hour. 

17.8 Classified Employees may be granted vacation during the year even though not earned at the time the vacation is 
taken.  If an Employee is terminated and had been granted vacation which was not yet earned at the time of 
termination, the Employer shall deduct from the Employee’s final pay-check the full amount which was paid for 
unearned vacation taken. (Education Code 45197 Classified Employee) 

17.9 Vacation shall be paid at the rate of pay earned at the time the vacation is commenced. 

17.10 Upon separation from service, the Employee shall be entitled to lump sum compensation for all earned and 
unused vacation except that Employees who have not completed six months of employment in regular status 
shall not be entitled to such compensation. 

17.11 The Employer may allow, upon request by the Classified Employee, to interrupt or terminate vacation leave in 
order to be on another type of paid leave without a return to active service, provided the Classified Employee 
supplies adequate notice and relevant supporting information regarding the basis for such interruption or 
termination. 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027 Page 28

ARTICLE 18 RETIREMENT/GOLDEN HANDSHAKE 

18.1 Classified Employees with a minimum of 25 years of experience five (5) years with the District/County, who have 
reached the age of 55, may elect in writing to take advantage of their choice of one (1) of the following offers: 

A. One (1) year of retiree health and welfare benefits (at the tiered rate as required by health care provider) for
medical, dental and vision plans for the retiree, spouse and family, capped at the employer’s current dollar
contribution in the year of the unit member’s final year of service, or

B. A lump sum dollar amount (taxable) for the term of one (1) year set at the dollar contribution made by the
employer in the year of the unit member’s final year of service.

This Golden Handshake is contingent upon formal written notification of retirement /resignation being submitted 
on or before March 31st of the last year of service.  This offer must be formalized to show a savings to the 
employer on a case-by-case basis. 

Sunset Early Retirement/Golden Handshake from the collective bargaining agreement, effective July 1, 2012: 
1.0 FTE Employees in current active status as of July 1, 2012, shall be grandfathered into the early retirement/golden handshake 
option offered through July 1, 2012, and remain eligible until CalPERS retirement and separation from District/County employment. 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027 Page 29

ARTICLE 19 WAGES 

19.1 Classifications shall have any range adjustments made effective with the first full payroll period after ratification of 
this Agreement or a payroll period as mutually agreed upon by both parties. 

19.1.1 Classified Employees shall be paid in accordance with the current Salary Schedule(s) 

19.1.2 All Classified Employees are paid monthly on the last working day of the month. 

19.2 Classified Employees may agree to contribute a portion of his/her salary on a pretax basis for the qualified IRS-
sanctioned voluntary elective deferrals, to include but not limited to, Section 125 Plans (Health Savings Accounts, 
Flexible Spending Accounts, Accident Insurance, Dependent Care Assistance, etc), 403(b) program (Tax 
Sheltered Annuity) etc. 

19.2.1 The Classified Employee is responsible for setting up and signing the legal documents to establish the 
payroll deductions. Classified Employee shall complete a 403(b) Salary Reduction Agreement through 
the District/County business office. 

19.3 Classified Employees may agree to contribute a portion of his/her salary for purposes other than described in 
19.2.  A Salary Deduction Agreement shall be completed by the Classified Employee. 

19.4 Health and Welfare benefit insurance premium deductions shall be deducted from monthly payroll according to 
the premium cost of the selected benefit plan.  

19.5 Initial placement on the salary schedule 

The Governing Board or the County Superintendent of Schools retains the authority to specify the salary of new 
positions and to determine the credit to be awarded for placement on an existing salary schedule.  

A. Year for year credit for recent related experience. Applicable to new employees hired on or after July 1, 2025.

B. The date for determining a Classified Employee’s eligibility for a “step” increase shall be July 1st.

C. A year of service is defined as the number of hours an Employee would normally work in the position between
July 1st and the following June 30th. 

19.6 For eligible Classified Employee, the Employer shall remit a monthly contribution to the CalPERS or CalSTRS 
system. 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027 Page 30

ARTICLE 20 DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

20.1 Persons employed in Classified service shall be subject to Classified service disciplinary actions and appeals per 
Education Code(s). 

20.2 Causes for Disciplinary Action (Ed. Code §44010, 45123, 45124 and 45303) 

Persons employed in the Classified service may be suspended, demoted, or dismissed for any of the following 
causes. Specific instances must be set forth as to any of the causes enumerated: 

A. Incompetency – A pattern of below standard work performance
B. Inefficiency – The continued inability to perform  the assigned duties of the position
C. Insubordination – Knowingly refusing to perform lawful and reasonable assigned duties
D. Inattention to or Dereliction of Duty –A pattern of continued neglect or dereliction (disregard) in the

performance of assigned duties
E. Willful and persistent violation of the Education Code, of rules and regulations, and/or procedures adopted

by Sierra-Plumas Board of Education and Sierra County Superintendent of Schools when such procedures
are made known to the Employee in writing

F. Knowingly falsifying or withholding any material information supplied on application forms and employment
records

G. Possession of open alcoholic beverages on District/County property, or being intoxicated while on duty
H. The use or possession while on duty of illegal drugs
I. Arrested, being formally charged, and convicted on a sex offense as defined the Education Code §44010

or determination of as a sexual psychopath pursuant to the Education Code 45124
J. Arrested, being formally charged, and convicted of a narcotics offense as defined in Education Code

§44010
K. Engaging in political activities during assigned hours of duty
L. Conviction of a crime involving moral turpitude (behavior that is dishonest or immoral)
M. Carrying out an unprovoked physical attack on a pupil, a member of the public, another District/County

Employee during assigned hours of duty
N. Repeated unexcused absence or tardiness, abuse of leave privileges, or absence without notification
O. Abandonment of position – Failure to report to duty for three (3) consecutive working days without

notification or permission (except in the case of a dire emergency)
P. Violation of local, state or federal law which results in the cancellation or suspension of a license required

for the performance of the assigned duties
Q. Dishonesty, theft, willful misuse for personal gain, and/or willful destruction of District/County property.



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027 Page 31

ARTICLE 21 LAYOFF PROCEDURES 

21.1

21.2 

Persons employed in the Classified service are subject to Classified service layoff procedures as outlined in 
Education Code(s).  

Procedure Regarding Layoff (  Regulation 4217.3) 

A. When Classified Employees are laid off for lack of work or lack of funds, layoff, within each class, shall be
determined by length of service. “Length of service” means all hours in paid status, whether during the school
year, a holiday, recess, or during any period that school is in session or closed. However, length of service
shall not include hours compensated solely on an overtime basis, as provided in Education Code 45128, and
shall not include hours for any service performed prior to entering into probationary or permanent status
except for service in a restricted position pursuant to Education Code 45105. (Education Code 45308)

B. Classified employees laid off because of lack of work or lack of funds shall be eligible for reemployment for a
period of 39 months and shall be reemployed in preference to new applicants.  Reemployment shall be in
order of seniority. Persons so laid off also have the right to apply and establish their qualification for vacant
promotional positions within the district during the 39-month period. (Education Code 45114, 45298, 45308)

C. Whenever a permanent classified employee is to be laid off for lack of work or lack of funds, the
Superintendent or designee shall, no later than March 15 and before the employee is given formal notice by
the Governing Board, give to the employee written notice of the recommendation, the reasons that the
employee's services will not be required for the ensuing year, any displacement rights, reemployment rights,
and the employee's right to a hearing. The district shall adhere to the notice, hearing, and layoff procedures in
Education Code 45117, Government Code 11503 and 11505, and other applicable provisions of
law.  (Education Code 45117)

21.3 Rights of Employees Laid Off for Lack of Work or Funds 

Permanent Employees in the Classified service have the following rights: 

A. Bumping – A permanent Employee in the Classified service who is laid off from a class and who has previous
service in an equal or lower class shall have the right to bump an Employee with less seniority in that class.
Seniority shall include the total of the previous service in the equal or lower class plus service in the class
from which layoff occurs and in higher classes.

B. Reemployment – An Employee shall be eligible to be reemployed for a period of 39 months and shall be
reemployed in preference to new applicants and shall have the right to participate in promotional
examinations within such period. Upon rejecting two offers of reemployment, the employee's name shall be 
removed from the reemployment list and the employee will forfeit all reemployment rights to which the 
employee would otherwise be entitled. 

C. Voluntary Demotion or Voluntary Reduction – An Employee who takes voluntary demotions or voluntary
reductions in assigned time in lieu of layoff or to remain in their present positions rather than be reclassified or
reassigned, shall be granted the same rights as persons laid off and shall retain eligibility to be considered for
reemployment for an additional period of up to 24 months provided that the same tests of fitness under which
they qualified for appointment to the class still apply.



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 32

ARTICLE 22 PERSONNEL FOLDER 

22.1 The Personnel Technician or business office of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District and Sierra County 
Office of Education shall maintain all permanent records for all Classified Employees in the personnel file. 

22.2 Materials in personnel files of Classified Employees which may serve as a basis for affecting the status of their 
employment are to be made available for the person involved. 

22.3 Such material is not to include ratings, reports or records which (1) were obtained prior to the employment of the 
person involved, (2) were prepared by identifiable examination committee members, or (3) were obtained in 
connection with a promotional examination.  

22.4 Every Classified Employee shall have the right to inspect such materials upon request, provided that the request 
is made for a time such person is not actually required to render services to the Employer. 

22.5 Information of a derogatory nature shall not be entered or filed unless and until the Classified Employee is given 
notice and an opportunity to review and comment thereon. 

22.6 The Classified Employee shall be notified of the data when any derogatory material will be placed in the personnel 
file.  The Classified Employee shall have the right to enter, and have attached to any such derogatory statement, 
his/her own comments thereon within five (5) days of being given a copy of the derogatory material.  The 
Classified Employee shall be given an opportunity during the work day when the Classified Employee is not 
responsible to be at his/her work station, to review and prepare his/her response, without loss of compensation.  

 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 33

ARTICLE 23 SAFETY  

23.1  The Employer shall provide safe, healthy and sanitary working conditions for all Employees of the District/County 
and will provide a continuous administrative monitoring of working conditions and will make corrections of any 
unsafe or hazardous conditions. 

 
23.2  Both the Employer and Classified Employees agree that the responsibility for safe working conditions is that of the 

Employer, and the responsibility for maintenance of safe procedures and practices is that of the Employee. 
 
23.3  Classified Employees shall not be required to work under unsafe or unhealthy conditions or perform tasks which 

may endanger their health or safety. 
 
23.4  Any Classified Employee who observes a working condition which is believed to be unsafe or unhealthy shall 

report such condition to the appropriate administrator or supervisor. The administrator will respond as soon as 
possible.  

 
23.5  Classified Employees are encouraged to participate in the Workplace Violence Prevention and Safey Committee.  

A Classified Employee who is a member of the Committee shall be allowed release time to carry out their 
obligations under this Article. 

 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 34

ARTICLE 24 EMPLOYER’S RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

24.1  The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board and the Sierra County Superintendent of 
Schools and Sierra County Board of Education, retain, solely and exclusively, all the rights, powers and authority 
exercised or held prior to the execution of this Agreement. Except as limited by the terms of this Agreement or as 
otherwise required by state law, the rights, powers and authority retained solely and exclusively by the Sierra-
Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board and the Sierra County Superintendent of Schools and 
Sierra County Board of Education, and not abridged herein, included, but are not limited to the following:  
To manage and direct its business and personnel except as limited by the terms of this Agreement; to determine 
the mission of its departments, building facilities and operations except as limited by the terms of this Agreement; 
to create, change or combine positions, departments and facilities in who or part except as limited by the terms of 
this Agreement; to subcontract accordingly to law, abolish jobs, or discontinue work for lack of funds or lack of 
work except as limited by the terms of this Agreement; to determine the number of Employees by the terms of this 
Agreement; to determine the number of Employees needed, to hire, transfer, promote, and maintain work 
standards, schedules of operation and reasonable work load except as limited by the terms of this Agreement; to 
specify or assign work requirements and require overtime except as limited by the terms of this Agreement; to 
schedule working hours and shifts except as limited by the terms of this Agreement; to adopt rules of conduct and 
penalties for violation thereof except as limited by the terms of this Agreement; to determine the methods, 
processes, means and place of providing services and to take whatever action necessary to prepare for and 
operate in an emergency which is defined as a situation in which the lives and /or safety of students or Employees 
are endangered; a financial crises in which the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board and 
the Sierra County Superintendent of Schools and Sierra County Board of Education is unable to fund mandated 
expenses; a situation in which it would be impossible to conduct the normal business of the Sierra-Plumas Joint 
Unified School District Governing Board and the Sierra County Superintendent of Schools and Sierra County 
Board of Education provided the exercise of the forgoing does not conflict or violate the lawful rights of Classified 
Employees. Nothing in this Article shall be construed to limit, amend, decrease, revoke or otherwise modify the 
rights vested in the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board and the Sierra County 
Superintendent of Schools and Sierra County Board of Education by any law regulating, authorizing or 
empowering the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board and the Sierra County 
Superintendent of Schools and Sierra County Board of Education to act or refrain from acting except as limited by 
the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 35

ARTICLE 25 PEACEFUL PERFORMANCE 

25.1  During the life of this Agreement, Classified Employees agree that the Classified Employees will not strike, 
slowdown or participate in a work-stoppage or sick-out. Likewise, the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Governing Board and the Sierra County Superintendent of Schools and Sierra County Board of Education agrees 
not to lock out the Classified Employees. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 36

ARTICLE 26 MOBILE/CELLULAR TELEPHONE REIMBURSEMENT 

26.1 The District/County will reimburse eligible Employees a telephone allowance of $25.00 per month for personal 
cellular telephone expense when it is necessary for the Employee to consistently use the communication device 
to perform the duties and assignments of his/her position. The Superintendent will determine which positions are 
eligible for cell phone reimbursement. The telephone allowance is considered taxable income for the Employee.  

The law prohibits individuals from driving a motor vehicle while using a wireless telephone unless that telephone is 
specifically designed and configured to allow hands-free listening and talking, and is used in that manner while 
driving. However, District/County employees are strongly discouraged from using hands free devices to conduct 
company business while driving. 

 

 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 37

ARTICLE 27 CATASTROPHIC LEAVE 

27.1  This program is voluntary and participating employees are permitted to donate 
eligible leave credits to assist eligible employees. The bank will be administered by a committee comprised of two 
members appointed by the Classified Employees’ Association and two members appointed by the Superintendent or 
designee. 

Donations to Catastrophic Leave Program: 

An employee who chooses to donate accrued vacation and/or sick leave credits to the district's catastrophic leave 
program shall provide written notice to the Superintendent or designee of the amount and type of leave he/she 
wishes to donate. The Superintendent or designee shall review the donor's available leave and transfer the leave 
credits to a district pool of leave credits designated for this purpose.
 
Donations shall be at a minimum of eight hours, and in hour increments thereafter. (Education Code 44043.5) 
 
All transfers of eligible leave credit shall be irrevocable. (Education Code 44043.5) 
 
Employees should be cautious in making large donations of leave that they may need for their own use in the 
future. 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all donations are confidential.
 
Requests for Catastrophic Leave: 
 
A full-time or part-time employee may apply to the Superintendent or designee to use paid leave from the 
catastrophic leave program if he/she earns paid time off but has exhausted all his/her accrued paid leave and 
needs to take time off from work for an extended period of time due to his/her or a family member's catastrophic 
illness or injury. If the employee is incapacitated, a family member or caretaker may apply on his/her behalf. 
 
The employee shall provide verification of the illness or injury. (Education Code 44043.5) 
 
Verification shall be made by means of a letter, dated and signed by the individual's health care provider, 
indicating the incapacitating nature and probable duration of the illness or injury. 
 
An employee may apply to receive up to 20 days of paid leave from the catastrophic leave program per school 
year. At the end of the 20-day period, he/she may apply for up to 20 days of additional leave credits. 
 
Employees receiving compensation under worker's compensation provisions are not eligible to receive leave from 
the catastrophic leave program until exhausting such benefit. 
 
An employee who is the recipient of donated leave credits shall use those credits within 12 consecutive months. 
(Education Code 44043.5) 

If donated leave credits are not used by the employee within 12 consecutive months, the credits shall be returned 
to the pool of catastrophic leave for use by other eligible employees. 
 
An employee who receives catastrophic leave shall use any leave credits that he/she continues to accrue on a 
monthly basis before receiving paid leave pursuant to this program. (Education Code 44043.5) 

 





SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 39

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT/ SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE GRIEVANCE FORM 
       

GRIEVANCE REPORT (Form)        Date Filed: ___________________________ 

   Employee         Association     Appropriate Administrator           Employer 

____________________________________
Name of Aggrieved Person (print)                  School    Supervisor 

Level One: Submit to Immediate Supervisor 

A. Date grievance occurred (or was discovered):         

B. Section(s) of contract, regulations, etc., involved in this grievance (Be specific.): 

C. Statement of grievance*           

D. Action Requested*           

 E. Supervisor responded on (date):          

____________________________________                         
Signature of Employee     Date                         

Level Two: Submit to District or County Superintendent (Employer) 

A. ______________________________________          
 Signature of Employee                                 Date  Date Employer Rec’d Grievance Form 

B.   Written response by Employer*  
             

______________________________________                   
             Signature of Employer          Date                        

Level Three: Submit to District Governing Board  

A. __________________________________
  Signature of Employee      Date 

 B. __________________________________ 
  Date Board Received Grievance Form 

C. Written response and/or award to Classified Employee 

             

             

                            
Signature of Governing Board President         Date  

*If additional space is needed, attach additional sheets 

 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 40

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Health and Welfare Premium Payment Agreement/PART-TIME 

EMPLOYEE NAME:   

POSITION: ___________________ HIRE DATE: 

ASSIGNED WORK HOURS:   daily ______  weekly_______

A. A Classified Employee regularly assigned to paid status part-time 20 hours per week or greater, may participate in 
the Employer-sponsored group benefit programs as allowed by the vendor for family medical, dental, vision and 
life insurance benefits on the “composite rate” structure, by paying the full (100%) premium cost.  
 

B. All premiums are payable to the District or County office and due in full no later than the (fifth) 5th day of the month 
and will be considered delinquent after the (fifth) 5th day.  Should the health insurance premium payments become 
delinquent for two (2) consecutive months, benefits will be cancelled and reinstatement will not be allowed.  

 
C.  Upon becoming eligible for coverage, an employee has 31 days to file an enrollment application for coverage with 

the District or County office. Enrollment begins the following month. 
 
D. In the event that the Employee’s hours and assignment are reduced to less than 20 hours per week, the Employee 

is no longer eligible to participate in the Employer-sponsored group benefit plan. Benefits will be terminated the last 
day of the month that the Employee is no longer entitled under the requirements of eligibility. 

 
I have read and understand the provision of this Agreement and agree to sign this authorization. 
 
 
 
 
 
Employee Signature:          Date:    

 

 

 

 

 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 41

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Health and Welfare Premium Payment Agreement/RETIREE 

 

RETIREE NAME:       DATE OF RETIREMENT:    

A. Retired Employees who are covered by the District/County health plan at the time of their retirement may 
continue the health, vision and dental benefit program at his/her own expense on a tiered rate structure. 
Retirees shall pay all the premiums, dues, and other charges, including any increase in premiums for the 
duration of his/her enrollment. Eligible retirees and/or covered dependents must secure Medicare Part A and 
Part B.  Retirees who discontinue coverage cannot re-enroll under the District/County health plans.  

 
B. Employees who are granted the Retirement/Golden Handshake by the Employer for one (1) year of retiree 

health and welfare benefits (at the tiered rate as required by health care provider) for medical, dental and vision 
plans shall be responsible for all premiums in excess of the Employer contributions, dues and other charges, 
including any increase in premiums for the duration of his/her enrollment.  

 
C. All premiums are payable to the District or County and due in full no later than the (fifth) 5th day of the month 

and will be considered delinquent after the (fifth) 5th day.  Should the health insurance premium payments 
become delinquent for two (2) consecutive months, benefits will be cancelled and reinstatement will not be 
allowed.  
 
 

I have read and understand the provision of this Agreement and agree to sign this authorization. 
 
 
 
 
 
Retiree Signature:           Date:     

 

 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 42

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

Salary Deduction Agreement (other than 403b) 

Employee Information: 

Name:           SSN:      

Address:           City & Zip:    

Date of Birth: Daytime Phone: Mobile Phone: 

EFFECTIVE DATE:     This is an initial agreement              This agreement supersedes a previous 
agreement 

        Initiate New Salary Reduction 

Deduct the total amount of $ ___________________per pay period

 Service Provider (Name of Company to whom Salary Reduction is remitted):   

Name:       Address:

Telephone Number:       

Change Salary Reduction  

This is notification to change the amount of my Salary Reduction from $_______________ to   $__________________ per month 

Service Provider: (Name of Company to whom Salary Reduction is remitted):  

Name:       Address:

Telephone Number:       

Terminate Salary Reduction(s) 

Discontinue my Salary Reduction with the following Service Provider(s): 1)        

2) 

Terminate ALL Salary Reductions

Please check the appropriate number of deductions to be taken per calendar year: 

10 Deductions         11 Deductions              12 Deductions 

Agreement:  The above named Employee agrees to modify his/her salary schedule as indicated above.  District/County agrees to 
contribute this amount on the Employee’s behalf.  It is intended that the requirements of all applicable State or Federal tax rules and 
regulations will be met. The Employee understand and agrees to the following:  1) this Salary Reduction Agreement is legally binding 
and irrevocable with respect to amounts paid or available while this agreement is in effect;  2) this Salary Reduction Agreement may be 
terminated at any time with respect to amounts not yet paid or available, and that a termination request is permanent and remains in 
effect until a New Salary Reduction Agreement is submitted; and 3) this Salary Reduction Agreement may be changed with respect to 
amounts not yet paid or available in accordance with the Employers administration procedures.  

    Employee’s Signature ___________________________                      Date ___________ 

 
 



SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2024-2027  Page 43

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

 
SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ ASSOCIATION (S-PCEA) 

 

MOBILE/CELLULAR TELEPHONE REIMBURSEMENT

Effective July 1, 2013

The District/County will reimburse eligible Employees a telephone allowance of $25.00 per month for 
personal cellular telephone expense when it is necessary for the Employee to consistently use the 
communication device to perform the duties and assignments of his/her position. The telephone allowance 
is considered taxable income for the Employee. (Article 26)

___________________________________
EMPLOYEE (Print Name) 

I hereby attest that I use my personal mobile/cellular telephone as a communication device in the 
performance of duties as a (job title) ____________________________for the Employer,      Sierra-Plumas 
Joint Unified School District (S-PJUSD) or     Sierra County Office of Education (SCOE) before, after or 
during scheduled work hours.  I understand that a $25.00 per month reimbursement for using the device in 
the performance of work-related duties will be included in the monthly payroll warrants as taxable income.

Furthermore, I agree that if I stop using my personal mobile/cellular telephone in the performance of work-
related duties, I will contact the S-PJUSD or SCOE business office and allowance/reimbursement for such 
usage will cease immediately.  

Any change of telephone number or contact information will be reported to the S-PJUSD or SCOE 
business office immediately.  

 

      
Employee’s Signature Date 

Cell/Mobile Telephone Number:        









SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
AND

SIERRA COUNTY SCHOOLS
 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FOR CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES 

 
 

 
Full Name (Last, First) 

Permanent

Probationary  
Substitute

Classification Title:

Report from _____________ to ___________

School or Department:
 

Check only those factors which apply to 
  employee's position. 

. . 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
.. Excellent 

Meets 
Standard

Needs 
Improvement Unsatisfactory

QUALITY 
1. Performs duties in an acceptable manner   

2. Completes work with a minimum of errors   

3. Completes the work required in the allotted time   

WORK HABITS AND ATTITUDES

4. Organizes work   

5. Uses good judgment in the performance of work   

6. Learns and applies new ideas, procedures, rules and 
techniques

  

7. Demonstrates an interest in the work performed   

8. Complies with rules, regulations, and policies   

9. Accepts job responsibilities   

PUNCTUALITY

10. Complies with assigned hours of work and appointment 
schedules

  

DEPENDABILITY
11. Attends to duties in the absence of supervision

12. Follow written and oral instructions in the performance of Job 
duties 

  

RELATIONSHIPS WITH PEOPLE
13. Works effectively with other employees   

14. Works effectively with pupils   

15. Works effectively with public   

PERSONAL APPEARANCE
16. Dresses appropriately and maintains a neat and clean 

appearance
  

SUPERVISORY ABILITY (Only use for employees who 
supervise others) .

17. Plans and directs the work of others   



SAFETY  

18. Maintains a clean and safe work area   

19. Comolies with aoorooriate safety standards md rules   

ADDITIONAL FACTORS 
20. Factors not specifically considered above (Please Identify)   

OVERALL WORK PERFORMANCE   

 
Commendations and Recommendations: 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Signature of Evaluator Title  Date 

Signature of Employee Title  Date
 
 

It is understood that, in signing the Performance Evaluation Form, the employee acknowledges having seen 
and discussed the report. 
 
 CRITERIA FOR PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL 
 1=  EXCELLENT 

Results generally exceeded expectations. Obstacles to the achievement of objectives were overcome while at the same 
time good working relationships with subordinates, peers, and superiors were developed or enhanced. All position 
requirements were met and all objectives were achieved above the standards established. 

  
2=  MEETS STANDARD 

All position responsibilities were met and planned objectives were accomplished within the established standards. Any 
minor areas where performance should have been better were counterbalanced by superior accomplishments ·such that 
the overall job met expectations. There were no critical areas where accomplishments were less than planned. 

  
3=  NEEDS IMPROVEMENT 

Performance in one or more critical areas does not meet expectations. Not all planned objectives were accomplished 
within the established standards, and some position responsibilities We.re not completely met. Development activities will 
be implemented to ensure that performance improves to a “good” level within one year. 

  
4=  UNSATISFACTORY 

Performance is unacceptable. Position responsibilities are not being met and important objectives have not been 
accomplished even with close supervision and guidance. Specific, detailed performance improvement plans must be 
written and progress will be reviewed with the employee-at least every thirty (30) days. The employee must achieve 
"marginal" or above performance within· an agreed upon time (usually 90 to 120 days) or reassignment or termination of 
employment will result. 





SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

CLASSIFIED SALARY SCHEDULE

JOB CLASSIFICATION RANGE

Academic Advisor/Career Tech 18
Administrative Assistant 22
Behavior Attendent 1
Bilingual Parent Liaison/ELPAC Coord 14
Bus Driver 29
Cafeteria Work 1
Cashier 1
Classroom Specialist 27
Clerk Typist 1
Cook I 9
Custodian 11
Educational Research Technician 21
Expanded Learning Opportunity Program (ELO-P) Aide 15 Board Approved 2/13/2024

Expanded Learning Opportunity Program (ELO-P) Instructor 22 Board Approved 2/13/2024

Foster Youth Services Coordinator 22
Garden Technician 4
Instructional Aide 2
Instructional Aide (SH) 5
Library Aide 5
Maintenance Custodian 16
Noon Supervisor 1
Plant Maintenance 23
Safety Aide 1 Board Approved 8/8/2023

School Community Outreach Worker 30 Proposed 12/17/2024

School Secretary - Adult Education 14
School Secretary - LES 12
School Secretary - LHS/DVL 14
School Services Liaison 14 Board Appproved 7/11/2023

Speech/Language Aide 20
Transportation Aide 1
Transportation Clerk 4
Workability Aide 1
Workability Coordinator 14



  

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ORGANIZATION                                                                                         

                                        NO. 229 
 _____________________________________________________________________ 

1  

 

SCHOOL COMMUNITY OUTREACH WORKER 
 

 

DEFINITION: 

 
The School Community Outreach Worker reports to and works under the direction of the Superintendent or 

Designee. Responsibilities include, but are not limited to the following: implementing, coordinating, and assisting 

in planning and developing programs that deal with increasing student attendance, student motivation and 

achievement, high school completion, and independent living skills; acting as liaison between the school district 

and community and county agencies such as Social Services, Behavioral Health, Juvenile Probation, and local law 

enforcement to support students and their families throughout the school district and county office of education; 

and performs related duties as required. 

Incumbents in this classification spend a portion of their time performing work in the community and student 

home setting in an effort to link families to resources in the community in support of increased student attendance, 

achievement, and overall student success. 

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 

Duties include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 

• Act as liaison between students, parents, foster parents, community agencies, county probation 

department, Behavioral Health, and the Department of Social Services; 

• Provide outreach, casework, and support services including phone calls and home visits, and attending 

SARB and community meetings in an effort to increase student attendance; 

• Support students in adhering to California Education Code for truancy and absenteeism; 

• Assist in planning and facilitating local workshops for parents, community, and staff needs; 

Provide connections for individual counseling needs, family intervention, and group counseling; 

• Assess and identify group and individual interventions for students with emotional, social, 

behavioral, and/or attendance concerns; 

• Attend expulsion, SARB, IEP, 504, and SST meetings as needed for students enrolled in any 

district or COE program; 

• Provide crisis intervention and referrals for students, families, and staff as needed; 

• Assist with data collection and reporting for grants, and maintain a variety of documentation; 

• Assess school and district/county-wide social problems and situations interfering with student 

attendance and access to an optimal educational experience; 

• Attending and participating in inter-disciplinary case conferences, inter-agency meetings, etc. 

• Participate in district-wide PBIS/MTSS implementation systems and support school- based 

implementation; 

• Assist participants with accessing related financial assistance programs; 

• Perform related duties as reasonably assigned. 

 

 

 

 



  

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ORGANIZATION                                                                                         

                                        NO. 229 
 _____________________________________________________________________ 

2  

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES: 

 

• Knowledge of the laws, rules and regulations applicable to social services; 

• Knowledge of social casework principles and practices, including group work and community 

organizations; 

• Processes including, but not limited to expulsion, SARB, IEP, 504 and SST meetings; 

• Record keeping and reporting requirements needed for evaluation and ongoing program 

development; 

• Ability to communicate effectively verbally and in writing and to speak in public; 

• Ability to read, interpret and explain policies, programs and reports; 

• Ability to follow oral and written instructions with minimum direction; 

• Ability to work independently and make decisions within the framework of established 

guidelines; 

• Ability to analyze and determine appropriate methods and interpret and apply guidelines to 

accomplish goals; 

• Ability to establish priorities and deadlines and plan work with only overall objectives defined; 

• Ability to establish effective working relationships with participants, school staff, and agency 

representatives; 

• Ability to analyze and resolve problems with tact and diplomacy; 

• Ability to operate a computer system, and ability to learn district and county online/internal electronic 

programs; 

• Ability to compile and analyze information and prepare reports 

 

Education and Experience: 

 

• Previous professional experience performing similar functions and duties; AND/OR Graduation 

from an accredited four-year college or university with major course work in social work, 

counseling, sociology, psychology, or a closely related field preferred but not required. Possession 

of a valid California Driver's License issued by the California Department of Motor Vehicles and 

insurance. Tuberculin test and fingerprint clearance required. 

 

 

 

 

First Reading and Adoption: December 17, 2024 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT USD

CLASSIFIED SALARY SCHEDULE 7-1-2023

RANGE A B C D E F G H I J K L M N
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 Yr 10 Yr 15 Yr 20 Yr 25 Yr 30

3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 10.00%
1 16.77$  17.28$  17.79$   18.33$ 18.88$  19.44$  20.03$ 21.03$ 22.08$ 23.18$ 24.34$ 26.78$ 
2 16.53$  17.02$  17.54$  18.06$   18.60$ 19.16$  19.74$  20.33$ 21.34$ 22.41$ 23.53$ 24.71$ 27.18$ 
3 16.78$  17.28$  17.80$  18.33$   18.88$ 19.45$  20.03$  20.63$ 21.66$ 22.75$ 23.89$ 25.08$ 27.59$ 
4 16.53$  17.03$  17.54$  18.07$  18.61$   19.17$ 19.74$  20.33$  20.94$ 21.99$ 23.09$ 24.24$ 25.46$ 28.00$ 
5 16.78$  17.28$  17.80$  18.34$  18.89$   19.45$ 20.04$  20.64$  21.26$ 22.32$ 23.44$ 24.61$ 25.84$ 28.42$ 
6 17.03$  17.54$  18.07$  18.61$  19.17$   19.74$ 20.34$  20.95$  21.58$ 22.65$ 23.79$ 24.98$ 26.23$ 28.85$ 
7 17.29$  17.81$  18.34$  18.89$  19.46$   20.04$ 20.64$  21.26$  21.90$ 22.99$ 24.14$ 25.35$ 26.62$ 29.28$ 
8 17.55$  18.07$  18.62$  19.17$  19.75$   20.34$ 20.95$  21.58$  22.23$ 23.34$ 24.51$ 25.73$ 27.02$ 29.72$ 
9 17.81$  18.34$  18.89$  19.46$  20.05$   20.65$ 21.27$  21.90$  22.56$ 23.69$ 24.87$ 26.12$ 27.42$ 30.17$ 
10 18.08$  18.62$  19.18$  19.75$  20.35$   20.96$ 21.58$  22.23$  22.90$ 24.04$ 25.25$ 26.51$ 27.83$ 30.62$ 
11 18.35$  18.90$  19.47$  20.05$  20.65$   21.27$ 21.91$  22.57$  23.24$ 24.41$ 25.63$ 26.91$ 28.25$ 31.08$ 
12 18.62$  19.18$  19.76$  20.35$  20.96$   21.59$ 22.24$  22.90$  23.59$ 24.77$ 26.01$ 27.31$ 28.68$ 31.54$ 
13 18.90$  19.47$  20.05$  20.66$  21.28$   21.91$ 22.57$  23.25$  23.95$ 25.14$ 26.40$ 27.72$ 29.11$ 32.02$ 
14 19.19$  19.76$  20.35$  20.97$  21.59$   22.24$ 22.91$  23.60$  24.30$ 25.52$ 26.80$ 28.14$ 29.54$ 32.50$ 
15 19.47$  20.06$  20.66$  21.28$  21.92$   22.58$ 23.25$  23.95$  24.67$ 25.90$ 27.20$ 28.56$ 29.99$ 32.98$ 
16 19.77$  20.36$  20.97$  21.60$  22.25$   22.91$ 23.60$  24.31$  25.04$ 26.29$ 27.61$ 28.99$ 30.44$ 33.48$ 
17 20.06$  20.66$  21.28$  21.92$  22.58$   23.26$ 23.96$  24.67$  25.41$ 26.69$ 28.02$ 29.42$ 30.89$ 33.98$ 
18 20.36$  20.97$  21.60$  22.25$  22.92$   23.61$ 24.32$  25.04$  25.80$ 27.09$ 28.44$ 29.86$ 31.36$ 34.49$ 
19 20.67$  21.29$  21.93$  22.59$  23.26$   23.96$ 24.68$  25.42$  26.18$ 27.49$ 28.87$ 30.31$ 31.83$ 35.01$ 
20 20.98$  21.61$  22.26$  22.92$  23.61$   24.32$ 25.05$  25.80$  26.58$ 27.90$ 29.30$ 30.76$ 32.30$ 35.53$ 
21 21.29$  21.93$  22.59$  23.27$  23.97$   24.69$ 25.43$  26.19$  26.97$ 28.32$ 29.74$ 31.23$ 32.79$ 36.07$ 
22 21.61$  22.26$  22.93$  23.62$  24.33$   25.06$ 25.81$  26.58$  27.38$ 28.75$ 30.19$ 31.69$ 33.28$ 36.61$ 
23 21.94$  22.60$  23.27$  23.97$  24.69$   25.43$ 26.19$  26.98$  27.79$ 29.18$ 30.64$ 32.17$ 33.78$ 37.16$ 
24 22.27$  22.93$  23.62$  24.33$  25.06$   25.81$ 26.59$  27.38$  28.21$ 29.62$ 31.10$ 32.65$ 34.29$ 37.71$ 
25 22.60$  23.28$  23.98$  24.70$  25.44$   26.20$ 26.99$  27.80$  28.63$ 30.06$ 31.56$ 33.14$ 34.80$ 38.28$ 
26 22.94$  23.63$  24.34$  25.07$  25.82$   26.59$ 27.39$  28.21$  29.06$ 30.51$ 32.04$ 33.64$ 35.32$ 38.85$ 
27 23.28$  23.98$  24.70$  25.44$  26.21$   26.99$ 27.80$  28.64$  29.49$ 30.97$ 32.52$ 34.14$ 35.85$ 39.44$ 
28 23.63$  24.34$  25.07$  25.82$  26.60$   27.40$ 28.22$  29.07$  29.94$ 31.43$ 33.01$ 34.66$ 36.39$ 40.03$ 
29 23.99$  24.71$  25.45$  26.21$  27.00$   27.81$ 28.64$  29.50$  30.39$ 31.91$ 33.50$ 35.18$ 36.93$ 40.63$ 
30 24.35$  25.08$  25.83$  26.60$  27.40$   28.22$ 29.07$  29.94$  30.84$ 32.38$ 34.00$ 35.70$ 37.49$ 41.24$ 

DIRECTOR 47.87$  50.03$  51.53$  53.08$  54.67$   56.31$ 58.00$  59.74$  61.53$ 64.61$ 67.84$ 71.23$ 74.79$ 82.27$ 
TECH SPEC. 27.10$  28.32$  29.59$  30.48$  31.40$   32.34$ 33.31$  34.31$  35.34$ 37.10$ 38.96$ 40.91$ 42.95$ 47.25$ 

EXECUTIVE ASSIST 26.46$  27.25$  28.07$  28.91$  29.78$   30.67$ 31.59$  32.54$  33.52$ 35.19$ 36.95$ 38.80$ 40.74$ 44.81$ 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

CLASSIFIED SALARY SCHEDULE

JOB CLASSIFICATION RANGE

Academic Advisor/Career Tech 18
Administrative Assistant 22
Behavior Attendent 1
Bilingual Parent Liaison/ELPAC Coord 14
Bus Driver 29
Cafeteria Work 1
Cashier 1
Classroom Specialist 27
Clerk Typist 1
Cook I 9
Custodian 11
Educational Research Technician 21
Expanded Learning Opportunity Program (ELO-P) Aide 15 Board Approved 2/13/2024
Expanded Learning Opportunity Program (ELO-P) Instructor 22 Board Approved 2/13/2024
Foster Youth Services Coordinator 22
Garden Technician 4
Instructional Aide 2
Instructional Aide (SH) 5
Library Aide 5
Maintenance Custodian 16
Noon Supervisor 1
Plant Maintenance 23
Safety Aide 1 Board Approved 8/8/2023
School Community Outreach Worker 30 Proposed 12/17/2024
School Secretary - Adult Education 14
School Secretary - LES 12
School Secretary - LHS/DVL 14
School Services Liaison 14 Board Appproved 7/11/2023
Speech/Language Aide 20
Transportation Aide 1
Transportation Clerk 4
Workability Aide 1
Workability Coordinator 14



Assignment Monitor
Teachers on Local Assignment  revised 11/19/2024
Presented to Governing Board 12/17/2024

Teacher Site Credential Subject/Grade Sections EC § Section

Binkley, M LHS Single Subject Math HSS 8 1 44865 Necessary Small School
HSS 7 2 44865 Necessary Small School
World History 1 44865 Necessary Small School
US History 1 44865 Necessary Small School

Bolle', R DVL  Biological Science, Math 7/8 1 44865 Necessary Small School
Social Science Journalism/Yearbook 1 44865 Necessary Small School

Chemistry 11/12 1 44865 Necessary Small School
Astronomy 1 44865 Necessary Small School

Corcoran, A LHS Single Subject Social Science Spanish 1 2 44865 Necessary Small School
Spanish 2 2 44865 Necessary Small School

Doyle, P Sierra Pass Multiple Subject Math 7-12 TBD 44865 Alternative School
Social Science 7-12 TBD 44865 Alternative School
Science 7-12 TBD 44865 Alternative School
English TBD 44865 Alternative School
ISP K-12 TBD 44865 Alternative School

Fillo, S DVL Standard Secondary Ind Arts w/
supplemental Geology Math 11/12 1 44865 Necessary Small School

PE 7-10 1 44865 Necessary Small School
Woods 1 44865 Necessary Small School
Metals 1 44865 Necessary Small School

Lebell, J DVL Multiple Subject Algebra 2 1 44865 Necessary Small School

Markee, S DVL Multiple Subject 11/12 English 1 44865 Necessary Small School
Music Alg 1 1 44865 Necessary Small School

Drama 1 44865 Necessary Small School
9/10 English 1 44865 Necessary Small School
Future Focus 9/10 1 44865 Necessary Small School



Assignment Monitor
Teachers on Local Assignment  revised 11/19/2024
Presented to Governing Board 12/17/2024

Redrado-Giner, O DVL Single Subject Bio/Chem 1
Multiple Subject Algebra 1 44865 Necessary Small School

Rosecrans, J LHS University Intern Science:
Earth Science 1 44865 Misassignment
Study Skills 1 44865 Misassignment

Schaffnit, C LHS University Intern English Economics 1 44865 Misassignment

Torricelli, S LHS Single Subject Physical Education Health 7 1 44865 Necessary Small School
Future Focus/Geography 1 44865 Necessary Small School

Williams, A LHS Biological Science Course 3 1 44865 Necessary Small School
Geometry 9-12 2 44865 Necessary Small School
Algebra I   9-12 2 44865 Necessary Small School
Algebra II   9-12 1 44865 Necessary Small School

doc:Assignment monitor/2024-2025local teaching assignment_Board-Sept 2024 Sep-24
LHS=Loyalton High 7-12
DVL=Downieville Jr/Sr High 7-12
Sierra P= Sierra Pass Continuation



Page 1 of 2 
 

CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET – October 08, 2024_First Reading 

 
Board Bylaw 9010 - Public Statements 

Bylaw updated to focus on public statements by Governing Board spokespersons made on behalf of the Board 
or by individual Board members. Additionally, bylaw updated to permit a Board spokesperson to disclose 
confidential information or information received in closed session when authorized by law. In addition, bylaw 
updated to reflect NEW COURT DECISION (Lindke v. Freed), in which the U.S. Supreme Court held 
that a district official who limits or prevents critics from speaking, such as by blocking them on social media 
or deleting their posts, violates the First Amendment only if the official (1) has been granted the power to 
speak on behalf of the district and (2) claims to be actually exercising that power. Bylaw also updated to 
suggest that a Board member make clear when they are speaking as an individual, and not on behalf of the 
district, such as by adding a disclaimer to the member's social media page. 

 
Board Bylaw 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications 

Bylaw updated to reference suggestions regarding how to avoid Governing Board member electronic 
communications that violate the Brown Act. Additionally, bylaw updated to provide that Board members 
shall make every effort to ensure that their electronic communications conform to Board Bylaw 9010 - Public 
Statements. In addition, bylaw updated to reference that the Public Records Act applies even to Board 
member electronic communications regarding district business sent or received on a Board members' personal 
account or device. Bylaw also updated to reflect NEW COURT DECISION (Lindke v. Freed), in which 
the U.S. Supreme Court held that a district official who limits or prevents critics from speaking, such as by 
blocking them on social media or deleting their posts, violates the First Amendment only if the official (1) 
has been granted the power to speak on behalf of the district and (2) claims to be actually exercising that 
power, and provide that the bylaw does not apply to Board member electronic communications not related to 
district business or not conducted by a Board member in the Board member's official capacity. 

 
Board Bylaw 9220 - Governing Board Elections 

Bylaw updated to reference that a city/county charter might take precedence over district policies in regard 
to school board elections. Additionally, bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 764, 2023), also known 
as the Fair And Inclusive Redistricting for Municipalities And Political Subdivisions (FAIR MAPS) Act, 
which establishes a comprehensive set of rules that local governments, including school districts, must follow 
during the redistricting process. In addition, bylaw updated to reference new Exhibit (1), which includes a 
non-exhaustive list of offenses the conviction of which makes someone ineligible to be a school board 
member. Bylaw also updated for clarity, precision, organization, and consistency. 

 
NEW - Exhibit (1) 9220 - Governing Board Elections 

Exhibit added to provide a non-exhaustive list of offenses the conviction of which makes someone ineligible 
to be a school board member. 

Board Bylaw 9223 - Filling Vacancies 
Bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1326, 2023), which requires that the notice of a provisional 
appointment be posted on the district's website. Additionally, bylaw updated to (1) focus on filling vacancy 
by appointment rather than special election, (2) enable the Governing Board to approve, by resolution, the 
procedures for selecting the person to be provisionally appointed to fill the vacancy, and (3) explain how 
long an appointed Board member may serve. In addition, bylaw updated for clarity, precision, organization, 
and consistency. 

 
Board Bylaw 9320 - Meetings and Notices 

Bylaw updated to clarify that a study session, retreat, public forum, or discussion meeting of the Governing 
Board must either be held as a regular or special Board meeting. Additionally, bylaw updated to reflect NEW 
LAW (AB 557, 2023) which extended and modified the ability of a Board member to join a meeting by 
teleconference due to just cause or emergency circumstances or during a proclaimed state of emergency. In 
addition, bylaw updated to remove outdated COVID-19 related requirements. Bylaw also updated for clarity, 
precision, organization, and consistency. 

Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education 
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Board Bylaw 9323.2 - Actions by the Board 

Bylaw updated to add that the Governing Board may take action on a request by a Board member to 
participate by teleconference due to emergency circumstances if it is not on the posted agenda so long as 
there was not sufficient time to place it on the agenda. Additionally, bylaw updated to remove language 
related to the authority of the district attorney's office or an interested person to file a civil action asking the 
court to order the Board to stop or prevent a Brown Act violation and replace it with language requiring the 
district attorney's office or interested person to first present a demand to "cure and correct" the alleged 
violation and, when such occurs, for the Board to consult with legal counsel on if and how to respond. 

 
Exhibit(1) 9323.2 - Actions by the Board 

Exhibit updated to clarify that the exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of actions that require more than a simple 
majority vote and that have restrictions on when the Governing Board may act. Additionally, exhibit updated 
to remove, in the section "Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Membership of the Board," an item 
related to school facilities improvement districts as well as an item related to parcel taxes, both of which do 
not require a two-thirds vote. In addition, exhibit updated to add sections on "Actions Required to Occur 
During a Regular Board Meeting" and "Prohibitions on Certain Board Actions". Exhibit also updated to 
reflect NEW LAW (SB 494, 2023) which prohibits the Board from taking action to terminate a 
superintendent or assistant superintendent without cause within 30 calendar days after the first convening of 
the Board after a general election at which one or more of the Board members are elected or recalled, and 
NEW LAW (SB 229, 2023) which requires a district that is disposing of surplus land and has received 
notification of a violation to hold an open and public meeting to review and consider the substance of the 
notice of violation and prohibits the Board from taking final action to ratify or approve the proposed disposal 
of surplus land until a public meeting is held. Exhibit also updated for clarity, precision, organization, and 
consistency. 
 

Delete - Exhibit(2) 9323.2 - Actions by the Board 
Exhibit deleted as districts should consult with legal counsel if there is a need to respond to a "cure and 
correct" letter. 



Page 1 of 1 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Board Bylaws 
Bylaw 9010: Public Statements 

 

 
The Governing Board of Education recognizes the responsibility of Board members in their role as 
community leaders to participate in public discourse on matters of civic or community interest, 
including those involving the district, and their right to freely express their personal views. However, 
to ensure communication of a consistent, unified message regarding district issues, Board members are 
expected to respect the authority of the Board to choose its representatives, to communicate its 
positions, and to abide by established protocols. 
 
Board Spokesperson 
 

CSBA NOTE: Many districts designate the Governing Board president and/or Superintendent to 
communicate with the public on behalf of the district. The following paragraph should be revised to 
reflect Board practice. 

 
All public statements authorized to be made on behalf of the Board shall be made by the Board 
president or, if appropriate, by the Superintendent or, with respect to a specific issue or topic, other 
designated representative. as designated by the Board or Board president. 
 
When speaking for the district, the Board encourages its spokespersons to Board, a spokesperson shall 
exercise restraint and tact and to communicate the message in a manner that promotes public confidence 
in the Board's leadership. 
 
Board spokespersons shall not disclose confidential information or information received in closed session 
except when authorized by a majority of the Board or by law. (Government Code 54963) 
 
Statements by Individual Board Members 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is responsive to the recent U.S. Supreme Court holding in 
Lindke v. Freed, which held that a Board member who limits or prevents critics from speaking, such as 
by blocking them on social media, violates the First Amendment only if the member (1) has been 
granted the power to speak on behalf of the Board or the district, and (2) claims to be actually 
exercising that power. For more information, see BB 9012 - Board Member Electronic 
Communications. 

 
When speaking to community groups, members of the public, or the media, individual Board members 
should recognize that their statements may be perceived as reflecting the views and positions of the 
Board. Board members have a responsibility to identify when a viewpoint is held by an individual 
Board member rather than the Board as a whole. For example, a Board member may include a 
disclaimer on the Board member's personal social media account that the Board member is expressing 
personal viewpoints as such and not as the viewpoint those of the Board. 
 
In addition, or the district. 
 
Board encourages members who participate on social networking sites, blogs, or other discussionopt to 
express their opinions on district matters, whether in-person or informational sitesonline, are expected to 
conduct themselves in a respectful, courteous, and professional manner and to model good behavior for 
district students and the community. Such electronic communications are subject to the same standards 
and protocols established for other forms of communication, and the disclosure requirements of the 
California Public Records Act may likewise apply to them. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Bylaw adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: December 13, 2011 
revised: September 10, 2013 
revised: ??, 2024 





Page 1 of 2 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Board Bylaws 
Bylaw 9012: Board Member Electronic Communications 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following bylaw is optional and should be revised to reflect district practice. The 
Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963) requires that Governing Board members conduct district 
business at properly noticed and agendized public meetings. In general, for purposes of the Brown Act, 
electronic communications are subject to the same conditions and the same rules of confidentiality that 
are applicable to other forms of communication, such as individual conversations, telephone calls, or 
paper copies of documents. 

 
The Governing Board recognizes that electronic communication is an efficient and convenient way for 
Board members to communicate and expedite the exchange of information within the with each other, 
district staff, and with members of the public. Board members shall exercise caution so as to ensure that 
electronic communications are not used as compliance with the Brown Act, the Public Records Act, and 
other applicable laws. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54952.2 defines a "meeting" as any congregation of a majority of the 
members of the Board at the same time and location, including a teleconference location as permitted 
by Government Code 54953, to hear, discuss, deliberate, or take action upon any item that is within 
the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Government Code 54952.2 prohibits a serial meeting, 
defined as a series of communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, involving a 
majority of the Board to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item of district business outside of 
an authorized meeting; see BB 9320 - Meetings And Notices. Thus, a series of emails, as well as 
other electronic communications such as text messages or replying directly to social media posts, that 
ultimately include a majority of the Board could lead to a Brown Act violation. In order to help 
prevent an inadvertent violation, Board members may wish to consider "bcc'ing" other Board 
members to avoid the recipient "replying all", a "do not reply/forward alert" in the subject line of 
emails, or other cautionary measures, as appropriate. 

 
A majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of electronic 
communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action 
on any item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  (Government Code 54952.2) 
 
Examples of permissible electronic communications concerning district business include, but are not 
limited to, dissemination of Board meeting agendas and agenda packets, reports of activities from the 
Superintendent, and reminders regarding meeting times, dates, and places. 
 
Board members may engage in separate conversations or communications with members of the public on 
a social media platform to answer questions, provide information, or solicit information regarding a 
matter that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, as long as a majority of the Board does 
not use the platform to discuss among themselves any business of a specific nature that is within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  A Board member is prohibited from responding directly to any 
communication from other 
 
Additionally, Board members regarding matters that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Board or prohibited from using digital icons (e.g.,, such as "likes" or "emojis) to," that express reactions 
to communications made by other Board members.  regarding matters within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board. (Government Code 54952.2) 
 
Whenever a Board member uses a social media platform to communicate with the public about district 
business or Board activities, the Board member shall not block access to a member of the public based on 
the viewpoint expressed 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

CSBA NOTE: Public statements by Board members is a sensitive and complicated area of Board 
governance. As a result, many districts have established bylaws or other protocols for public statements 
by Board members; see BB 9010 - Public Statements. 

 
Board members shall make every effort to ensure that their electronic communications conform to the same 
standards and protocols established for other forms of communication.  A Board member may respond, as 
appropriate, to an electronic communication received from a member of the communityBoard Bylaw 9010 
- Public Statements and should make clear that the response does not necessarily reflect the views of the 
Board as a whole. Any complaint or request shall forward any complaints or requests for information 
should be forwarded to the Superintendent in accordance with applicable Board bylaws. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Electronic communications received and sent by Board members are subject to 
disclosure upon request pursuant to the Public Records Act (Government Code 7920.000 - 7930.215), 
including communications regarding district business sent or received on a Board member's personal 
account or device. For further information, see CSBA's, "Legal Alert: Tips for Governing Boards in 
Response to Public Records Act Ruling on Electronic Communications." It is recommended that 
districts with specific questions regarding this issue consult CSBA's District and County Office of 
Education Legal Services or district legal counsel. Also see BP/AR 1340 - Access To District Records 
and BP/AR 3580 - District Records. 

 
To the extent possible, electronic communications regarding any district-related business shall be 
transmitted through a district-provided device or account. When any such communication is transmitted 
through a Board member's personal device or account, the Board member shall copy the communication 
to a district electronic storage device for easy retrieval. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to the U.S. Supreme Court's decision in Lindke v. Freed, a Board member's 
social media account becomes a public forum subject to the First Amendment when the Board member 
(1) has been granted the power to speak on behalf of the Board or the district and (2) claims to be 
actually exercising that power. The determination as to whether a Board member's action meets 
these two conditions is a fact-specific undertaking. It is recommended that districts with questions 
regarding this issue consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or 
district legal counsel. 

 
This Bylaw does not apply to Board member electronic communications not related to district business or 
not conducted by a Board member in the Board member's official capacity. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Bylaw adopted: June 14, 2011  
revised: June 13, 2017 
revised: January 12, 2021 
revised: ??, 2024 



Page 1 of 5 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Board Bylaws 
Bylaw 9220: Governing Board Elections 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following bylaw is optional and should be revised to reflect district practice. While 
many district elections are governed by state law, some district elections are governed by the applicable 
city or county charter, or both. This bylaw is written based on state law but should be modified to the 
extent a city or county charter applies. 
 
The filling of elective offices involves serious issues of constitutional and statutory concerns. Any district 
with questions related to local elections should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education 
Legal Services or district legal counsel. 
 
Board Member Qualifications 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 35107 details eligibility for Governing Board membership as specified 
below, including the requirement to be registered to vote. Elections Code 2201 lists the causes for 
cancelling an individual's voter registration, including, but not limited to, legally established mental 
incompetency, proof that the person is presently imprisoned or on parole for conviction of a felony, 
or official notification that the voter is registered to vote in another country or state. 
 
Additionally, pursuant to certain provisions of the California Constitution and various state laws, 
the conviction of certain offenses makes a person ineligible to be a Board member, except when the 
person has been granted a pardon in accordance with law. For example, Article VII, Section 8 of the 
California Constitution prohibits anyone from holding public office if convicted of giving or 
offering a bribe to procure personal election or appointment. See the accompanying exhibit for a 
non-exhaustive list of such offenses. 

 
Any person is eligible to be a member of the Governing Board, without further qualifications, if the 
person is: 18 years of age or older,; a citizen of California,; a resident of the school district or, if 
applicable, the trustee area,; a registered voter,; and not legally disqualified from holding civil office. 
Any(Education Code 35107) 
 
A person who has is not eligible to be a member of the Board if they have been convicted of a felony 
involving the giving, accepting, or offering of a bribe, embezzlement or theft of public funds, extortion, 
perjury, or conspiracy to commit any such crime, under California an offense(s) as specified in law orand 
the law of another state, the United States of America, or another country, is not eligible to be a candidate 
for office or elected as a Board memberaccompanying Exhibit, except when the person has been granted a 
pardon in accordance with law. (Education Code 35107; Elections Code 20) 
 
A district employee duly elected to the Board shall resign from district employment, or shall otherwise 
cease being a district employee, before being sworn in or shall have . If a district employee duly 
elected to the Board is sworn in and remains a district employee, then the employment shall 
automatically terminatedterminate upon being sworn into office. (Education Code 35107) 
 

CSBA NOTE: See CSBA's website for information about governing board services that may be shared 
with candidates. 

 
The Board encourages all candidates to become knowledgeable about the role of board members. The 
Superintendent or designee shall provide all candidatesa Board candidate, upon request by the 
candidate, with information that will enable them to understand the responsibilities and expectations of 
being a Board member, including information regarding available workshops, seminars, and/or training. 
TheAdditionally, the Superintendent or designee shall provide all candidates witha Board candidate, upon 
request by the candidate, the county election official's contact information and general information about 
school programs, district operations, and Board responsibilities. 
 
 



Page 2 of 5 

Recalling a Board Member 
 
A Board member may be recalled as permitted by Elections Code 11000. Proponents of-11386. To 
commence a recall are required toof a Board member, proponents shall serve, file, and publish or post 
a notice of intention to circulate the recall petition as specified by law and to comply with otherany 
applicable law and formalities and county elections official directives. The 
Additionally, the recall petition, pursuant to Elections Code 11041, is required to shall be in the format 
provided by the Secretary of State and to include, among other things, an estimate of the cost of 
conducting the special election, as determined by the county elections official, in consultation with the 
district. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Elections Code 11240, within 14 days after the regular Board meeting at 
which the Board received a certificate of sufficiency to recall a Board member, the Board is required to 
order a recall election and set a date for the recall election in accordance with law. Pursuant to 
Elections Code 11241, if the Board fails to do so, the elections official of the county is required to 
set the date for the recall election within five days after the expiration of the 14-day window. 

 
Within 14 days after the regular meeting at which the Board receives a certificate of sufficiency of 
signatures on a recall petition from thea county elections official, the Board shall order an election to 
be held to determine whether the Board member named in the petition shall be recalled. The election 
shall be held not less than 88, nor more than 125, days after the date that the Board orders the election. 
However, the election may be conducted within 180 days after the issuance of the Board's order to 
consolidate the election with a regularly scheduled election. 
Recall elections shall be conducted in accordance with  (Elections Code 11381-11386.11240-11242) 
 
A recall election of a Board member shall be conducted in accordance with Elections Code 11381-
11386. 
 
If a recall of a Board member is successful, that Board member's seat becomes vacant and shall be filled 
in accordance with Education Code 5090-95 and Board Bylaw 9223 - Filling Vacancies. 
 
Consolidation of Elections 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for districts that currently hold their Board elections 
at a time that is not concurrent with municipal or statewide elections. 
 
In general, Education Code 5000 and Elections Code 1302 require the regular election of Board 
members to be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of each odd-numbered 
year. However, in accordance with Elections Code 1302 and 10404.5, districts are authorized to 
request consolidation of their Board elections with the local municipal or state primary or general 
election by adopting a Board resolution and submitting it to the County Board of Supervisors for 
approval. Most districts choose to consolidate their Board elections with the local municipal or state 
primary or general election. 
 
Pursuant to Elections Code 14051-14052, districts are required to hold elections concurrent with 
statewide elections if holding nonconcurrent elections has previously resulted in a "significant 
decrease" in voter turnout, as defined. Districts consolidating their elections due to low voter 
turnout should follow the procedures specified in Elections Code 1302, including the adoption of a 
Board resolution. For further analysis, see CSBA's, "Legal Alert on the Impact of Senate Bill No. 415 
on School Board Elections." 

 
To reduce costs associated with conductingThe Board may consolidate Board elections with the local 
municipal or statewide primary or general election in accordance with Elections Code 1302. 
 
In addition Additionally, if a regularly scheduled Board election held other than on a statewide election 
date results in a decrease in local voter turnout of 25 percent or more compared to the average local 
turnout for the previous four statewide general elections, the Board shall take action to consolidate 
Board elections with statewide elections. ( in accordance with Elections Code 14051, -14052). 
 



Page 3 of 5 

In order to consolidate elections based on either circumstance described above, the Board shall adopt a 
resolution and submit it to the County Board of Supervisors for approval not later than 240 days prior to 
the date of the currently scheduled district election. (Elections Code 10404.5) 
 
Whenever a regularly scheduled Board election is changed due to consolidation of elections, the terms of 
office of incumbent Board members shall be extended to align with the next applicable election. 
(Elections Code 10404.5) 
 
Elections Process and Procedures 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Election Code 15400, after each election, the Board is required to declare 
who has been elected to the Board. 

 
For each election, upon certification by the County Board of Supervisors, the Board shall declare who has 
been elected to the Board in accordance with law. (Election Code 15400) 
 
A Board member whose term has expired shall continue to discharge the duties of the office until a 
successor has qualified by taking the oath of office. (Government Code 1302, 1360) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Any district with questions regarding the election process and procedures, particularly 
the California Voting Rights Act (Elections Code 14025-14032) should consult CSBA's District and 
County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel. 

 
Each Board member shall reside within the trustee area that the Board member represents but shall be 
elected by all voters in the district. 
 
To ensure ongoing compliance with the California Voting Rights Acts, the Trustee areas shall be balanced 
by population as required by state and federal law. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Elections Code 21100-21180, as added by AB 764, create the FAIR MAPS Act of 2023 
which establishes a comprehensive set of rules that local governments must follow during the 
redistricting process.  

 
Following each decennial federal census the Board shall adjust the boundaries of the district's trustee 
areas in accordance with Elections Code 21100-21180. (Education Code 5019.5) 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Districts using 
Option 2 or 3 should periodically monitor the demographics within their geographical boundaries to 
ensure that no violation of the CVRA occurs. Any district found in violation of the CVRA could be 
held liable for attorneys' fees and legal costs. Elections Code 10010 requires that a prospective 
plaintiff send written notice to the district prior to filing a complaint alleging that the method of 
election violates the CVRA so that the district will have the chance to cure any potential violations 
before the commencement of litigation. Even if the district cures the alleged violations, it may be 
required to pay reasonable costs incurred in supporting the written notice. 

 
The Board may review the district's Board election method to determine whether any modification is 
necessary due. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Converting from an "at-large" (Option 2) to a "by trustee area" (Option 1) voting 
method involves complex issues of law regarding matters such as the redrawing of maps, required 
approvals, and transition dates. Elections Code 10010 and 21100-21150 require the Board to follow 
procedural requirements and hold hearings before and after drawing maps of the proposed district 
boundaries to allow for public input. If Board members will be elected at different times for 
staggered terms of office, hearings held after publishing the draft map(s) are required to include an 
opportunity for public input regarding the proposed sequence of elections. 

 
If the district seeks to change its election method is to be changed, the Board shall follow procedural 
requirements and hold public hearings in accordance with Elections Code 1010010010 and 21100-



Page 4 of 5 

21150 before adopting a resolution at an open meeting specifying the change(s), and shall, in 
accordance with Education Code 5019, and obtain approval from the county committee on school district 
organization having jurisdiction over the district. in accordance with Education Code 5019. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The remainder of this section is for all districts. The Attorney General opined in 105 
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 182 (2022) that when the boundaries of a district's trustee areas are adjusted or the 
district changes from "at-large elections" to "by-trustee area elections," and a vacancy then arises in a 
seat held by a Board member whose term of office began prior to the change in boundaries or election 
method, the vacancy should be filled using the boundaries or election method by which the incumbent 
Board member was elected. Any district that has already adopted a "by- trustee" election method should 
revise the following paragraph accordingly. 

 
The election method or trustee-area boundaries in effect at the beginning of a Board member's term shall 
be used when any vacancy that occurs during that term is to be filled, even if, during the term, the 
district has adopted "by- trustee area" election method or trustee area boundaries have been adjusted. 
 
Any petition for a special election ordered pursuant to Education Code 5091 shall contain the county 
election official's estimate of the cost of conducting the special election, expressed on a per-student basis. 
(Education Code 5091) 
 
Campaign Conduct 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 35177 authorizes boards, by resolution, to limit campaign expenditures 
and/or contributions for candidates in board elections. Based on the First Amendment, however, 
courts have imposed constraints on limitations on campaign expenditures and/or contributions 
limits. It is strongly recommended that, before adopting any campaign expenditures and/or 
contribution limits, the Board consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services 
or district legal counsel, in order to ensure that the district's limits satisfy legal restrictions. 

 
All candidates, including current Board members running as incumbents, shall abide by local, county, 
state, and federal requirements regarding campaign donationscontributions, funding, and expenditures. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 85300 generally prohibits the expenditure of public funds for the 
purpose of seeking elective office. However, Government Code 85300 permits a candidate to expend or 
accept public funds for the purpose of seeking elective office if the Board establishes a dedicated fund 
for that purpose, provided that both (1) the public funds are available to all qualified, voluntarily 
participating candidates for the same office without regard to incumbency or political party 
preference, and (2) the Board has established criteria for determining a candidate's qualifications. For 
school board elections, candidate qualifications are specified in state law (see section "Board Member 
Qualifications" above), and districts should not establish additional qualification requirements. 

 
A Board member shall not expend, and a candidate shall not accept, any public money for the purpose of 
seeking elective office. However, the district may establish a dedicated fund for those seeking election 
to the Board, provided that the funds are available to all candidates who are qualified pursuant to 
Education Code 35107 without regard to incumbency or political preference. (Government Code 85300) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Elections Code 20440, county election officials are required to present each 
candidate running for public office with a voluntary Code of Fair Campaign Practices for the 
candidate to sign. However, neither the district nor opposing candidates have authority to enforce 
the pledge if it is violated. The following optional paragraph expresses the Board's desire that 
candidates for Board membership sign and abide by the terms of the pledge. 

 
In order to help protect the public's trust in the electoral process as well as the public's confidence in the 
Board and district, the Board encourages all candidates to sign and adhere to the principles in the Code 
of Fair Campaign Practices pursuant to Elections Code 20440. 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 5 

Statement of Qualifications 
 
On the 125th day prior to the day fixed for the general district election, the Board secretary or designee 
shall deliver a notice, bearing the secretary's signature and district seal, to the county elections official 
describing both of the following: (Elections Code 10509)  
 

1. The elective offices of the district to be filled at the general election and which offices, if 
any, are for the balance of an unexpired term 
 

2. Whether the district or the candidate is to pay for the publication of a statement of 
qualifications pursuant to Elections Code 13307 

 
Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for inclusion in the 
voter's pamphlet. Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 200 words. (Elections Code 
13307) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Elections Code 13307, a voter may receive by mail a voter's pamphlet that 
contains candidate statements or, when authorized by the elections official, may opt to obtain the 
voter's pamphlet and related materials electronically (i.e., from the elections official's web site or via 
email). When electronic distribution is authorized by the elections official, districts may choose, 
pursuant to Elections Code 13307, whether to permit Board candidates to prepare a statement for 
electronic distribution. If a candidate chooses to submit a statement for electronic distribution only, 
it will not appear in the mailed voter's pamphlet. 
 
The following paragraph, which may be revised to reflect district practice, is for use by any district that 
authorizes electronic distribution of candidate statements in addition to or instead of the mailed 
voter's pamphlet. 

 
When the elections official allows for the electronic distribution of candidate statements, a candidate 
for the Board may, in addition to or instead of submitting a candidate statement for inclusion in the 
mailed voter's pamphlet, prepare and submit a candidate statement for electronic distribution. 
 
The district shall assume no part of the cost of printing, handling, translating, mailing, or electronically 
distributing candidate statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307. As a condition of having 
candidate statements included in the hard copy and/or electronic voter's pamphlet, the district may 
require candidates to pay their estimated pro rata share of these costs to the district in advance pursuant 
to Elections Code 13307. 
 
Tie Votes in Board Member Elections 
 
Whenever a tie makesthe County Superintendent of Schools certifies to the Board that there is a tie 
vote such that it is impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been elected to the 
Board, the Board shall immediately notify the candidates who received the tie votes of the time and 
place where the candidates or their representatives should appear before the Board. The Board at that 
time and place shall determine the winner by lot. (Education Code 5016) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Bylaw adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: January 13, 2009 
revised: September 10, 2013 
revised: August 8, 2017 
renamed: September 13, 2022 
revised: June 21, 2023 
revised: ??, 2024 





**NEW** 

Page 1 of 2 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 
Board Bylaws 

Exhibit 9220 – Governing Board Elections 

This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of offenses the conviction of which disqualifies a person from 
holding public office, including as a Governing Board member of a school district, in the State of 
California. 
 

1. California Constitution, Article VII, Section 8: Giving or offering a bribe to procure personal 
election or appointment 
 

2. California Constitution, Article VII, Section 8: Committing bribery, perjury, forgery, malfeasance 
in office, or other high crimes 
 

3. Penal Code section 67: Giving or offering a bribe to any executive officer in the state to influence 
any decision made by that officer in their official capacity 
 

4. Penal Code section 68: While an executive or ministerial officer, employee, or appointee of the 
state, a county, a city, or another political subdivision of the state, asking for, receiving, or 
agreeing to receive any bribe to influence any decision made by that person in their official 
capacity 
 

5. Penal Code section 74: As a public officer, for gratuity or reward, appointing another person to 
public office, or permitting another person to exercise or discharge the duties of their office 
 

6. Penal Code section 88: While a member of the Legislature or of a legislative body of a city, 
county, city and county, school district, or other special district, committing any of various crimes 
against the Legislative power, including bribery and logrolling 
 

7. Penal Code section 98: While an officer, committing any of various bribery and corruption crimes 
against the public justice as specified in Penal Code 92-100, including bribing or threatening 
judges or jurors 
 

8. Penal Code section 165: Giving or offering a bribe to a member of a city council or a board of 
supervisors to influence any decision made by that member in their official capacity 
 

9. Penal Code section 424: While an officer of the state or of any county, city, town, or district of 
the state, or while otherwise charged with the receipt, safekeeping, transfer, or disbursement of 
public moneys, appropriating such moneys for personal use, or refusing to pay any public moneys 
as required by law 
 

10. Penal Code section 2772: Interfering with the work of prisoners employed at a road camp, or  
giving or attempting to give such prisoners any controlled substances, intoxicating liquors, 
firearms, weapons, or explosives of any kind 
 

11. Penal Code section 2790: Interrupting the work of prisoners employed at a public park or camp, 
or giving or attempting to give such prisoners any controlled substances, intoxicating liquors, 
firearms, weapons, or explosives of any kind 
 

12. Government Code section 1021: Committing designated crimes as specified in the California 
Constitution or state law 
 

13. Government Code section 1097: While a public official, being financially interested in a contract 
made in their official capacity, or by any body or board of which he or she is a member, or aiding 
or abetting a public official in committing such a violation 
 



**NEW** 

Page 2 of 2 

14. Government Code section 9055: While a member of the Legislature or of a legislative body of a 
city, county, city and county, school district, or other special district, committing any of various 
crimes against the Legislative power, including bribery and logrolling 
 

15. Government Code section 9412: While a member of the Legislature, refusing to appear before the 
Senate, Assembly, or any committee of the Legislature after being summoned to testify, or while 
appearing before the Senate, Assembly, or any committee, refusing to be sworn or to answer any 
material and proper question, or refusing to produce, upon reasonable notice, any material and 
proper books, papers, or documents in their possession and under their control 
 

16. Elections Code section 20: Committing a felony involving accepting or giving, or offering to 
give, any bribe, the embezzlement of public money, extortion or theft of public money, perjury, 
or conspiracy to commit any of those crimes 

 
17. Elections Code section 18501: While a public official, aiding the illegal casting of a vote at an 

election or otherwise facilitating the perpetration of election fraud 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Exhibit version: ??, 2024 



Page 1 of 5 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Board Bylaws 
Bylaw 9223: Filling Vacancies 

 

 
Events Causing a Vacancy 
 
A vacancy on the Governing Board may arise from any of the following events: 
 

1. The death of an incumbent (Government Code 1770) 
 

2. The adjudication pursuant to a quo warranto proceeding declaring that an incumbent is physically 
or mentally incapacitated due to disease, illness, or accident and that there is reasonable cause to 
believe that the incumbent will not be able to perform the duties of the office for the 
remainder of the term (Government Code 1770) 

 
3. CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 

5090, a vacancy resulting from a resignation occurs when the written resignation is filed with the 
County Superintendent of Schools having jurisdiction over the district, except where a deferred 
effective date is specified in the resignation so filed, in which case the resignation shall become 
operative on that date. Upon being filed with the County Superintendent, a written resignation, 
whether specifying a deferred effective date or otherwise, shall be irrevocable. Pursuant to 
Education Code 5091, a Board member may not defer an effective date of resignation for more 
than 60 days after the date the resignation is filed with the County Superintendent. 

3. A Board member's resignation in accordance with Board Bylaw 9222 - Resignation (Government 
Code 1770) 
 

4. A Board member's removal from office by recall (Elections Code 11000-11386; Government 
Code 1770) 
 

5. A Board member's ceasing to be a resident of the district (Government Code 1770) 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts that have established trustee areas. 
In 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen 182 (2022), the Attorney General has opined that when the 
boundaries of a district's trustee areas are adjusted or the district changes from "at-large 
elections" to "by-trustee area elections," and a vacancy then arises in a seat held by a Board 
member whose term of office began prior to the change in boundaries or election method, the 
vacancy should be filled using the boundaries or election method by which the incumbent Board 
member was elected. See BB 9220 - Governing Board Elections. 

6. A Board member ceasesmember's ceasing to inhabit the trustee area represented onby the Board 
(58 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 888 (1975))member (Government Code 1770) 
 

7. A Board member's absence from the state for more than 60 days, except in the following 
situations: (Government Code 1064, 1770) 
 

a. Upon district business with the approval of the Board 
 

b. With the consent of the Board for an additional period not to exceed a total absence of 
90 days or, in the case of illness or other urgent necessity and upon a proper showing 
thereof, for more than 90 days 
 



Page 2 of 5 

c. In the case of illness or other urgent necessity, and upon a proper showing thereof, the 
time limited for absence from the state may be extended by the Board 
 

a.c. For federal military deployment, not to exceed an absence of a total of six months, as a 
member of the armed forces of the United States or the California National Guard 
 
If the absence of the Board member for this purpose exceeds six months, the Board may 
approve an additional six-month absence upon a showing that there is a reasonable 
expectation that the member will return within the second six-month period, and the 
Board may appoint an interim member to serve during the absence. If two or more Board 
members of the Board are absent by reason of these circumstances, and those absences 
result in the inability to establish a quorum at a regular meeting, the Board may 
immediately appoint one or more interim members as necessary to enable the Board to 
conduct business and discharge its responsibilities. The term of an interim member 
appointed in these circumstances shall not extend beyond the return of the absent Board 
member or beyond the next regularly scheduled election for that office, whichever 
occurs first. 
 

8. A Board member's ceasing to discharge the duties of the office for the period of three consecutive 
months, except when prevented by illnesssickness or when absent from the state with the 
permission required by law (Government Code 1770) 
 
CSBA NOTE: Board members forfeit office and, in some cases, are disqualified from holding 
public office upon conviction of designated crimes as specified in the Constitution and various 
other state laws. Examples of crimes that result in forfeiture of office include, but are not 
limited to, convictions for felonies, offenses that involve a violation of official duties, bribery, 
selling appointments, intoxication in the discharge of official duties, misuse of public funds, 
conflict of interest violations, and a false claim of receipt of any military decoration or medal. 

9. A Board member's conviction of a felony or any offense involving a violation of official duties or 
conviction of a designated crime resulting in a forfeiture of office (Government Code 1770, 3000-
3003) 
 

10. A Board member's refusal or neglect to file the required oath within the time prescribed 
(Government Code 1770) 
 

11. The decision of a competent tribunal declaring void a Board member's election or appointment 
(Government Code 1770) 
 

12. A Board member's commitment to a hospital or sanitarium as a drug addict, dipsomaniac, 
inebriate, or stimulant addict by a court of competent jurisdiction, in which case the office shall 
not be deemed vacant until the order of commitment has become final (Government Code 1770) 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 5090, a vacancy is declared when there has been a 
"failure to elect," meaning that the County Registrar of Voters has determined that an election will 
not be held because either no candidate or an insufficient number of candidates have filed to run 
for a Board seat(s). Education Code 5328 authorizes the Board to make an appointment in such 
circumstances. 

13. A "failure to elect" in which no candidate or an insufficient number of candidates have filed to 
run for a Board seat(s) (Education Code 5090, 5326, 5328) 

 
 



Page 3 of 5 

Timelines for Filling a Vacancy 
 
When a vacancy occurs, the Board shall take the following action, as appropriate: 
 

1. When a vacancy occurs within four months of the end of a Board member's term, the Board shall 
take no action. (Education Code 5093) 
 

2. When a vacancy occurs frombetween six months toand 130 days before a regularly scheduled 
Board election at which the vacant position is not scheduled to be filled, the vacancy shall be 
filled by a special election to fill the position shall be consolidated with the regular election. The 
person so elected shall take office at the first regularly scheduled Board meeting following the 
certification of the election and shall serve only until the end of the term of the position which 
the person was elected to fill. (Education Code 5093) 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 5091, when a vacancy occurs outside of the statutory 
time windows identified in Items #1 or #2 above or when a deferred resignation has been filed 
four or more months before the end of a Board member's term, the Board shall take action, as 
specified below. In the event that the Board fails to make a provisional appointment or order an 
election within 60 days, the County Superintendent must call an election to fill the vacancy. 

3. When a vacancy occurs any time outside of the statutory time windows identified in Items #1 
and #2 above, the Board shall, either order an election or make a provisional appointment 
within 60 days of the date of the vacancy or the filing of the member's deferred resignation, 
either order an election or make a provisional appointment.whichever is sooner. (Education Code 
5091, 5093) 

 
Eligibility for Appointment 
 

CSBA NOTE: Persons applying or nominated to be appointed to fill a Board vacancy are required to 
meet the legal qualifications for serving as elected Board members. See BB 9220 - Governing Board 
Elections. 

 
In order to be appointed to fill a vacancy on the Board, a person must meet the eligibility requirements 
specified in Education Code 35107, as described in BBlaw and Board Bylaw 9220 - Governing Board 
Elections. 
 
Provisional Appointments 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph should be modified to reflect district practice. While 
the Board is authorized to make a provisional appointment to fill a vacancy pursuant to Item #3 in the 
section "Timelines for Filling a Vacancy" above, the law does not specify procedures for making 
provisional appointments for vacancies; however, such procedures must comply with the requirements 
of the Brown Act. (Government Code 54950-54963) 
 
See CSBA's publication, "Filling a Board Vacancy," for additional information about provisional 
appointments, including sample questions for interviewing and evaluating candidates. 

 
When, as authorized by law, the Board has opted to make a provisional appointment to fill a vacancy on 
the Board, the Board shall advertise, by resolution, may approve the procedures for selecting the person 
to be provisionally appointed to fill the vacancy. These procedures may, but are not required to, 
include the following: 
 

1. Advertising in the local media to solicit candidate applications or nominations. A 
 

2. Establishing a committee consisting of less than a quorum of the Board shallto ensure that 
applicants are eligible for Board membership and announce the names of the eligible 
candidates. The Board shall interview 



Page 4 of 5 

 
3. Interviewing the candidates at a public meeting, accept oral or written public input, and select 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 5092, once the Board has filled a vacancy by provisional 
appointment, the Board is required to post a notice. The notice is required to be posted in three 
public places in the district in addition to other notice requirements. Districts with trustee areas may 
want to post the notice in three public places within the trustee area of the vacant seat. Boards for 
districts with trustee areas are advised to consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education 
Legal Services or district legal counsel regarding the requirement to post in three public places. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 5092, as amended by AB 1326 (Ch. 68, Statutes of 2023), the notice is also 
required to be posted on the district's website. 

 
Within 10 days after the Board makes a provisional appointment to fill a Board vacancy, the 
Superintendent or designee, on behalf of the Board, shall post a notice of the actual vacancy, or the filing 
of a deferred resignation, and the provisional appointment. The notice Superintendent or designee shall 
be published inpost the local newspaper pursuant to Government Code 6061 and posted in at least three 
public places within the district.notice as follows: (Education Code 5092) 
 
The notice shall contain: (Education Code 5092)  

1. In three public places in the district or, if applicable, trustee area 
 

2. On the district's website 
 

3. In a newspaper of general circulation published in the district, if such a newspaper exists  
 
The notice shall contain: (Education Code 5092) 
 

1. The fact of the vacancy or resignation 
 

1.2. The date of the occurrence of the vacancy or the date of the filing of, and the effective date of, the 
resignation 
 

2.3. The full name of the appointeeprovisional appointee to the Board and the date of the provisional 
appointee's appointment 
 

3. The date of appointment 
 

4. A statement notifying the voters that unless a petition calling for a special election pursuant to 
Education Code 5091 is filed in the office of the County Superintendent of Schools within 30 
days of the provisional appointment, itthe appointment shall become an effective appointment 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 5091, an appointed Board member may only hold office 
until the next regularly scheduled district Board election. Thus, if a person is appointed to a board with 
three years remaining in their term, then it is likely that they will only serve through the second year 
as there typically would be a regularly scheduled district Board election at that point. There would 
need to be a special election concurrent with the regularly scheduled district Board election and 
final two years of the vacant term would be filed by the person elected in the special election. 

 
The person appointed shall only hold office until the next regularly scheduled election for district Board 
members and shall be afforded all the powers and duties of a Board member upon. (Education Code 
5091) 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 5 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 5091, the County Superintendent is required to terminate a 
provisional appointment and order a special election if, within 30 days of the appointment, a petition 
requesting a special election to fill the vacancy is submitted by registered voters. Pursuant to Education 
Code 5091, any such petition for a special election must contain the county elections official's estimate 
of the cost of conducting the special election, expressed on a per-student basis. Education Code 5091 
also requires any such special election to be conducted not less than 88, nor more than 125, days 
following the County Superintendent's order of the election, unless the election may be consolidated 
with a regularly scheduled election that is to take place within 180 days after the issuance of the 
County Superintendent's order. For the conduct of Board elections, See BB 9220 - Governing Board 
Elections. 

 
If within 30 days of the Board's appointment, registered voters of the district or, where elections are 
by trustee areas, of the trustee area, submit a petition for special election whichthat the County 
Superintendent determines to be legally sufficient, the provisional appointment is terminated, and a 
special election shall be held in accordance with Education Code 5091 to fill the vacancy. 
 
Appointment Due to Failure to Elect 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following requirements apply when an appointment is being made because of a 
failure to elect pursuant to Education Code 5090, 5326, and 5328 (Item #13 in section entitled "Events 
Causing a Vacancy" above).  

 
When a vacancy occurs because no candidate or an insufficient number of candidates have been 
nominated (i.e., a failure to elect) and a district election will not be held, the Board shall appoint a 
qualified person to the office. This appointment shall be made at a meeting prior to the day fixed for the 
election and the appointee shall be seated at the organizational meeting as if elected at the district 
election. (Education Code 5328) 
 
When an appointment is being made because of a failure to elect, the district shall publish a notice 
once in a newspaper of general circulation published in the district, or if no such newspaper exists, in a 
newspaper having general circulation within the district. This notice shall state that the Board intends to 
make an appointment and shall inform persons of the procedure available for applying for the 
appointment. (Education Code 5328.5) 
 
The procedure for selecting and interviewing candidates shall be the same as the procedures for 
"Provisional Appointments," as specified above. 
 
(Education Code 5328.5) 
 
When, as authorized by law, the Board seeks to make an appointment because of a failure to elect, the 
Board, by resolution, may approve any additional the procedures for selecting the person to be appointed 
to fill the vacancy. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Bylaw adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: November 13, 2007 
revised: February 14, 2012 
revised: October 14, 2014 
revised: November 12, 2019 
revised: June 21, 2023 
revised: ??, 2024 





Page 1 of 12 

**Changes highlighted on Page 2 

Board Policy Manual 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Board Bylaws 

Bylaw 9320: Meetings And Notices 

 

 
Meetings of the Governing Board are conducted for the purpose of accomplishing district business. In 
accordance with stateapplicable open meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board shall hold its meetings in 
public and shall conduct closed sessions during such meetings only as authorized by law. To encourage 
community involvement in the schools, Board meetings shall provide opportunitiesthe opportunity for 
questions and comments by members of the public to directly address the Board. All meetings shall be 
conducted in accordance with law and the Board's bylaws, policies, and administrative regulations. 
 
A Board meeting exists whenever a majority of Board members gather at the same time and location, 
including teleconference location as permitted by Government Code 54953, to hear, discuss, deliberate, 
or take action upon any item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. (Government Code 
54952.2) 
 

CSBA NOTE: The Brown Act prohibits serial meetings, defined under Government Code 54952.2 as a 
series of communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take 
action on any item of district business. 
 
This prohibition against serial meetings also applies to communications via technology. Email 
exchanges, text/chat threads, or comments posted on a blog or social media account that result in a 
majority of the Governing Board "discussing among themselves" an item within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board could result in a Brown Act violation. Pursuant to Government Code 
54952.2, Board members may engage in separate conversations or communications with members of 
the public on an Internet-based social media platform that is open and accessible to the public as long 
as a majority of the Board does not use the platform to discuss among themselves business within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the Board and members do not comment on or use digital icons (e.g., 
"likes" or emojis) to express reactions to communications made by other Board members. Additionally, 
a Board member is prohibited from responding directly to any communication from other members of 
the Board on a social media platform regarding matters that are within the subject matter jurisdiction 
of the Board. See BB 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications. 
 
In 84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 30 (2001), the Attorney General opined that Government Code 54952.2 
prohibits a majority of the Board from sending emails to each other to develop a collective 
concurrence as to action to be taken by the Board even if the emails are (1) sent to the secretary and 
chairperson, (2) posted on the district's website, and (3) distributed (in a printed version) at the next 
meeting. Although the Attorney General recognized that those three conditions would allow the 
deliberations to be conducted, to some extent, "in public," the emails were prohibited by the Brown 
Act because all debate would be completed before the meeting and members of the public who did not 
have Internet access would be excluded from the debate. 

 
In accordance with law and as specified in Board Bylaw 9012 - Board Member Electronic 
Communications, a majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of 
communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, including social media and other 
electronic communications, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the Board. (Government Code 54952.2) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54952.2 specifies that briefings between staff and Board members are 
permissible in order to answer questions or to provide information, as long as the briefing is not used to 
communicate the comments or position of any other Board member. 

 
However, an employeethe Superintendent or district officialdesignee may engage in separate 
conversations or communications with Board members in order to answer questions or provide 
information regarding an item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, as long as that 
employee or district official does not communicate the comments or position of any Board members 
to other Board members. (Government Code 54952.2) 
 



Page 2 of 12 

 

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54953.2 requires that all Board meetings meet the protections of the 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) (42 USC 12132) and implementing regulations. Such 

protections require the district to ensure that the meeting is accessible to persons with disabilities and, 

upon request, to provide disability-related accommodations, such as auxiliary aids and services. 

Auxiliary aids and services may include accommodations at the actual meeting, such as a sign-language 

interpreter, or accommodations to the supporting documentation, such as Braille translation of the 

agenda packet. Government Code 54954.2 requires that the agenda specify how, when, and to whom a 

request for accommodation should be made; see BB 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials. 

 

Government Code 54953 requires the Board to maintain and implement a procedure for receiving and 

swiftly resolving requests for reasonable accommodation for individuals with disabilities, consistent 

with the ADA, and to resolve any doubt in favor of accessibility. 
 
In order to help ensure the participation of individuals with disabilities at Board meetings, the 
Superintendent or designee shall provide appropriate disability-related accommodations or modifications 
upon request in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Any doubt about a request for 
accommodation shall be resolved in favor of accessibility. (Government Code 54953, 54953.2, 
54954.1, 54954.2) 

 
Notice of the procedure for receiving and resolving such requests for accommodation described above 
shall be given in each instance in which notice of the time of a meeting is otherwise given or the agenda 
for the meeting is otherwise posted. (Government Code 54953, 54953.2, 54954.1, 54954.2) 
 
Regular Meetings 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 35140 and Government Code 54954 mandate the Board to fix the time 
and location for its regular meetings by rule and regulation. 

 
The Sierra County Board of Education and the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing 
Board shall hold one regular joint meeting each month starting in January 2023.  
 
Unless otherwise determined by the Board(s), The the regular joint meetings shall be held at 6:00pm on 
the second Tuesday of each month with the exception of June, July (as needed) and December. Meetings 
will be held at Sierra County Office of Education (109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton CA 96118) or 
Downieville Schools (130 School Street, Downieville CA 95936), alternating each month. 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54954.2, the agenda for a regular meeting must be posted 
at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, at a location that is freely accessible to the public. Government 
Code 54954.2 also requires that the agenda be posted on the district's website. Other posting 
requirements may apply where Board members are participating by teleconference as specified 
below. 
 
The Attorney General has determined in 78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995) that weekend hours may be 
counted as part of the 72-hour period for posting of the agenda prior to a regular meeting. In the same 
opinion, the Attorney General found that the term "freely accessible" requires that the agenda be 
posted in a location where it can be read by the public at any time during the 72 hours immediately 
preceding the meeting. For example, if a building where the agenda is posted is closed during the 
evening hours, the agenda must also be posted in a location accessible during evening hours, such as a 
lighted display case outside of the building. The Attorney General also opined in 88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 
218 (2005) that the agenda may be posted on a touch screen electronic kiosk, in lieu of a paper copy on 
a bulletin board, as long as the kiosk is accessible without charge to the public 24 hours a day, seven 
days a week. 

 
At least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted at one or more locations freely 

accessible to members of the public and on the district's web sitewebsite. (Government Code 

54954.2). One or more locations freely accessible to members of the public shall include the following, at 

minimum: 



Page 3 of 12 

 

1. The meeting site listed on the agenda 

 

2. Each school site within the district 

 

3. All possible Post Office locations within the district 
 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54957.5, the agenda must list the address where the 
public can inspect agenda materials that are distributed to Board members less than 72 hours before 
a regular meeting. Pursuant to Government Code 54957.5, when agenda materials are distributed to all 
or a majority of the Board less than 72 hours before a regular meeting and outside of regular business 
hours, the materials may be posted on the district's website in satisfaction of the Brown Act if 
specified requirements are met. Districts with questions regarding this exception are encouraged to 
consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel. Also 
see BB 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials. 
 
In addition, pursuant to the California Public Records Act (Government Code 7920.000 - 7930.215), 
agenda materials related to an open session of a Board's regular meeting are "public records" and are 
subject to inspection by any member of the public as specified in BP/AR 1340 - Access to District 
Records. 

 
Consistent with Government Code 54957.5 and Board Bylaw 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials, 
whenever agenda materials relating to an open session of a regular meeting are distributed to the Board 
less than 72 hours before the meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall make the materials available 
for public inspection at a public office or location designated for that purpose or. The records shall be 
posted on the district web site, consistent with Government Code 54957.5,website at the time the 
materials are distributed to all or a majority of the Board. (Government Code 54957.5) if distributed 
outside of business hours. 
 
Special Meetings 
 

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54956 permits the Board president or a majority of the Board to 
call a special meeting. When a majority of the Board has requested a special meeting on the same 
specific topic, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the Board and the meeting shall be 
organized and called. If an individual Board member desires a special meeting on a specific topic that 
has not been called by the Board president, the Board member should inform the Superintendent or 
designee rather than other Board members in order to comply with the Brown Act. 

 
Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the presiding officer or a majority of the 
Board members. on any topic within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board unless otherwise 
prohibited by law or as specified in BB 9323.2 - Actions by the Board. (Government Code 54956) 
 
However, a special meeting shall not be called regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other 
compensation of the Superintendent, assistant superintendent, or other management employee as 
described in Government Code 3511.1. (Government Code 54956) 

 
WrittenAt least 24 hours before the time of the meeting, written notice of special meetings shall be 
delivered personally or by any other means to all Board members and the local media who have 
requested such notice in writing. The notice also shall be posted on the district's web site. The notice 
shall be receivedwebsite, and, at least 24 hours before the time of the meeting. The notice shall also be 
posted at least 24 hours before the meeting, in a location freely accessible to the public. The notice 
shall specify the time and location of the meeting and the business to be transacted or discussed. No 
other business shall be considered at this meeting. (Education Code 35144; Government Code 54956) 
 
Any Board member may waive the 24-hour written notice requirement prior to the time of the meeting 
by filing a written waiver of notice with the clerk or secretary of the Board or by being present at the 
meeting at the time it convenes. (Education Code 35144; Government Code 54956) 
 
Every notice of a special meeting shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to directly 
address the Board concerning any item that has been described in the meeting notice, before or during the 



Page 4 of 12 

item's consideration. (Government Code 54954.3) 
 
Emergency Meetings 
 
In the case of an emergency situation for which prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or 
threatened disruption of public facilities, the Board may hold an emergency meeting without 
complying with the 24-hour notice and/or 24-hour posting requirement for special meetings pursuant to 
Government Code 54956. (Government Code 54956.5) 
 
The Board may meet in closed session during emergency meetings so long as two-thirds of the members 
present at the meeting agree or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, by unanimous vote of 
the members present. (Government Code 54956.5) 
 
The Board shall comply with all other requirements for special meetings during an emergency meeting. 
(Government Code 54956.5) 
 
An emergency situation means either of the following: (Government Code 54956.5) 

 

1. An emergency, which shall be defined as a work stoppage, crippling activity, or other activity that 

severely impairs public health and/or safety as determined by a majority of the members of 

the Board 

2. A dire emergency, which shall be defined as a crippling disaster, mass destruction, terrorist act, or 

threatened terrorist activity that poses peril so immediate and significant that requiring the 

Board to provide one-hour notice before holding an emergency meeting may endanger the 

public health and/or safety as determined by a majority of the members of the Board 
 

Except in the case of a dire emergency, the Board president or designee shall give notice of the 
emergency meeting by telephone at least one hour before the meeting to the local media that have 
requested notice of special meetings. All telephone numbers provided by the media in the most recent 
request for notification shall be exhausted. If telephone services are not functioning, the notice 
requirement of one hour is waived and, as soon after the meeting as possible, the Board shall notify 
those media representatives of the meeting and shall describe the purpose of the meeting and any action 
taken by the Board. In the case of a dire emergency, the Board president or designee shall give such 
notice at or near the time notification is given to the other members of the Board about the meeting.. 
(Government Code 54956.5) 
 
The minutes of the meeting, a list of persons the Board president or designee notified or attempted to 
notify, a copy of the roll call vote, and any actions taken at the meeting shall be posted for at least 10 days 
in a public place as soon after the meeting as possible. (Government Code 54956.5) 
 
An emergency means a work stoppage, crippling activity, or other activity that severely impairs public 
health and/or safety as determined by a majority of the members of the Board. (Government Code 
54956.5) 
 
A dire emergency means a crippling disaster, mass destruction, terrorist act, or threatened terrorist activity 
that poses peril so immediate and significant that requiring the Board to provide one-hour notice before 
holding an emergency meeting may endanger the public health and/or safety as determined by a majority 
of the members of the Board. (Government Code 54956.5) 
 
Adjourned/Continued Meetings 
 
The Board may adjourn/continue any regular or special meeting to a later time and location that shall be 
specified in the order of adjournment. Less than a quorum of the Board may adjourn/continue such a 
meeting. If no Board members are present, the secretary or the clerk may declare the meeting 
adjourned/continued to a later time and placelocation and shall give notice in the same manner 
required for special meetings. (Government Code 54955) 
 
Within 24 hours after the time of adjournment/continuance, a copy of the order or notice of 
adjournment/continuance shall be conspicuously posted on or near the door of the placelocation where the 
meeting was held. (Government Code 54955) 



Page 5 of 12 

 
Study Sessions, Retreats, Public Forums, and Discussion Meetings 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following section is optional and may be revised to reflect district practice. 
Pursuant to Government Code 54954.2, the Board must still comply with the public notice 
requirements when holding a study session, retreat, public forum or other such meeting. 

 
The Board may occasionallyThe Board may convene a study session or public forum to study an issue in 
more detail or to receive information from staff or feedback from members of the public. The Board may 
also convene a retreat or discussion meeting to discuss Board roles and relationships. Any such meeting, 
regardless of title or topic, shall be held as a regular or special meeting, as appropriate, and shall comply 
with all other requirements for regular or special meetings. (Government Code 54956) 

 

The Board may also convene a retreat or discussion meeting to discuss Board roles and relationships. 

 
Public notice shall be given in accordance with law when a quorum of the Board is attending a study 
session, retreat, public forum, or discussion meeting. All such meetings shall comply with the Brown Act 
and shall be held in open session and within district boundaries. Action items shall not be included on the 
agenda for these meetings. 
 
Other Gatherings 
 
Attendance by a majority of Board members at any of the following events is not subject to the Brown 
Act provided that a majority of the Board members do not discuss specific district business among 
themselves other than as part of the scheduled program: (Government Code 54952.2) 
 

1. A conference or similar public gathering open to the public that involves a discussion of issues of 
general interest to the public or to school board members 
 

2. An open, publicized meeting organized by a person or organization other than the district to 
address a topic of local community concern 
 

3. An open and noticed meeting of another body of the district 
 

4. An open and noticed meeting of a legislative body of another local agency 
 

5. A purely social or ceremonial occasion 
 

6. An open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the Board established pursuant to 
Board Bylaw 9130 - Board Committees, provided that the Board members who are not members 
of the standing committee attend only as observers 

 
Individual contacts or conversations between a Board member and any other person that are not subject 
topart of a series of communications prohibited by the Brown Act are permitted. (Government Code 
54952.2) 
 
Location of Meetings 
 
Meetings shall not be held in a facility that prohibits the admittance of any person on the basis of 
ancestry or any characteristic listed in Government Code 11135. In addition, meetings shall not be 
held in a facility which is inaccessible to individuals with disabilities or where members of the public 
must make a payment or purchase in order to be admitted. Unless the Board is holding a teleconference 
meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, all meetings(Government Code 54961) 
 
Meetings shall be held within district boundaries, except to do any of the following: (Government 
Code 54954) 
 

1. Comply with state or federal law or court order or attend a judicial or administrative 
proceeding to which the district is a party 
 



Page 6 of 12 

2. Inspect real or personal property which cannot conveniently be brought into the district, 
provided that the topic of the meeting is limited to items directly related to the property 
 

3. Participate in meetings or discussions of multiagency significance, provided these meetings 
are held within one of the other agencies' boundaries, with all participating agencies giving 
the notice required by law 
 

4. Meet in the closest meeting facility if the district has no meeting facility within its 
boundaries or if its principal office is located outside the district 
 

5. Meet with elected or appointed state or federal officials when a local meeting would be 
impractical, solely to discuss legislative or regulatory issues affecting the district over which 
the state or federal officials have jurisdiction 
 

6. Meet in or near a facility owned by the district but located outside the district, provided the 
meeting agenda is limited to items directly related to that facility 
 

7. Visit the office of the district's legal counsel for a closed session on pending litigation, when 
doing so would reduce legal fees or costs 
 

8. Attend conferences on nonadversarial collective bargaining techniques 
 

9. Interview residents of another district regarding the Board's potential employment of an 
applicant for Superintendent of the district 
 

10. Interview a potential employee from another district 
 
All meetings, regardless of location, shall comply with the applicable notice and open meeting 
requirements. Additionally, no such meeting may be held in a facility that prohibits the admittance of 
any person on the basis of ancestry or any characteristic listed in Government Code 11135, which is 
inaccessible to individuals with disabilities, or where members of the public must make a payment or 
purchase in order to be admitted. (Government Code 54961) 
 
Meetings exempted from the boundary requirements, as specified in Items #1-10 above, shall still be 
subject to the notice and open meeting requirements for regular and special meetings when a quorum of 
the Board attends the meeting. 

 
If a fire, flood, earthquake, or other emergency renders the posted regular or special meeting placelocation 
unsafe, meetings and the deadline for posting the location has passed, the meeting shall be held for the 
duration of the emergency at a location designated by the Board president or designee, who shall so 
inform all news media who have requested notice of special meetings pursuant to Government Code 
54956 by the most rapid available means of communication. (Government Code 54954) 
 
Traditional Teleconferencing 
 
A Board member may participate in any meeting by teleconference is a meeting of the Board in , which 
Board members are in different locations, connected by electronic means throughincludes both audio 
and/or video./audio so long as the following conditions are met: (Government Code 54953) 
 

1. All teleconferenced meetings shall beAll votes taken during the meeting are by rollcall 
 

2. The meeting is conducted in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of 
the parties or the public appearing before the Board. (Government Code 54953)legislative 
body of a local agency 

 
The Board may use teleconferences for all purposes in connection with any meeting within the Board's 
subject matter jurisdiction. 
 

All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call. (Government Code 54953) 

 



Page 7 of 12 

During the teleconference, at least a quorum of the members of the Board shall participate from 
locations within district boundaries. (Government Code 54953) 
 
Unless a Board member participates by teleconference pursuant to the provisions described in the sections 
"Teleconferencing During a Personal Emergency," "Teleconferencing For ‘Just Cause'" or 
"Teleconferencing During a Proclaimed State of Emergency" below, agendas shall be posted at all 
teleconference locations and shall list all teleconference locations whenever they are posted elsewhere. 
 
All teleconference locations shall be accessible to the public and the public shall have the right to address 
the Board directly at each teleconference location. Additional teleconference locations may be 
provided to the public. (Government Code 54953) 
 

Teleconferencing During a Personal Emergency 
 
Until January 1, 2026, with approval from the majority of the Board, a Board member may be 
permitted to participate in a meeting remotely when a physical or family medical emergency prevents the 
Board member from attending in person. The Board member requesting to appear remotely shall notify 
the Board of the emergency situation as soon as possible, and provide a concise general description of the 
circumstances relating to the Board member's need to appear remotely. The Board member shall not be 
required to disclose any disability, medical diagnosis, or personal medical information exempt under 
existing law. (Government Code 54953) 
 

1. The location of the Board member participating by teleconference is open and accessible to the 
public during the meeting, except during closed session, such that members of the public may 
observe in person the Board member participating by teleconference, may hear/listen to the 
meeting to the same extent as the Board member participating by teleconference, and may 
make public comment during the same portion of the agenda as others members of the public 
from the same location as the Board member participating by teleconference 
 

2. The location of the Board member participating by teleconference is noted in the agenda and the 
agenda is posted at the location of the Board member participating by teleconference in 
advance of the meeting as statutorily required based on the type of meeting 
 

3. At least a quorum of the members is within the district boundaries. 
 

Teleconferencing by Individual Board Member Due to Just Cause 

 
CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54953, as amended by AB 557 (Ch. 534, Statutes of 2023), authorizes 
a Board member, until January 1, 2026, to participate in a meeting by teleconference for just cause, 
as described below. Districts should be aware that the choice to participate in a meeting by 
teleconference due to just cause is at the sole discretion of the Board member and can be exercised at 
any time. Therefore, it is recommended that districts consider including teleconference access, as 
described below, as part of every meeting. Districts are also encouraged to consult CSBA's District 
and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel to determine the best means 
of complying with Government Code 54953. 

 
Until January 1, 2026, A Board member may not appear remotely under emergency circumstances for 
more than 20 percent of the Board's regular meetings or for more than three consecutive months. If the 
Board meets less than 10 times in a calendar year, a Board member may not appear remotely under 
emergency circumstances for more than two meetings. (Government Code 54953) 
 
When a Board member is approved to participate remotely due to emergency circumstances, the Board 
member is not required to participate from a location which is accessible to the public and the location 
does not need to be identified on the agenda. (Government Code 54953) 
 
If permitted to participate remotely, the Board member shall utilizewhen there is "just cause" preventing 
a Board member from attending a Board meeting in person, that Board member may participate in that 
meeting by teleconference without: (Government Code 54953) 
 

1. Including the location of the Board member participating by teleconference in the agenda 



Page 8 of 12 

 
2. Making the location of the Board member participating by teleconference open and accessible to 

the public 
 

3. Posting the agenda at the location of the Board member participating by teleconference 
 
A Board member needing to participate by teleconference for just cause shall notify the Board at the 
earliest possible opportunity, including at the start of a regular meeting, of the need to do so and 
include a general description of the circumstances relating to the need to appear by teleconference at 
the given meeting. (Government Code 54953) 
 
For the Board member to participate by teleconference under this section, all of the following are 
required: (Government Code 54953) 
 

1. All votes taken during the meeting are by rollcall 
 

2. At least a quorum of the Board participates in person from a singular physical location clearly 
identified on the agenda 
 

3. The Board member participating by teleconference utilizes both audio and visual technology and 
to participate in the meeting 

 
CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54953 requires Board members participating by 
teleconference due to just cause to publicly disclose, whether any individual 18 years of age or 
older is present at the Board member's location and, if so, the general nature of the member's 
relationship with each such individual before "any" Board action is taken, but does not specify 
the frequency of such disclosures. One option is for the Board member to make the initial 
disclosure at the start of the meeting and then make additional disclosures, if needed, each time 
an individual 18 years of age or older enters or exits the Board member's location. Another option 
is for the Board member to make separate disclosures before each Board action. Districts are 
encouraged to consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district 
legal counsel to determine the best means of complying with this requirement. 
 

4. The Board member participating by teleconference publicly discloses, before any action is taken, 
whether any individual 18 years of age or older is present at the Board member's location and 
the general nature of the member's relationship with such individuals. (Government Code 
54953)each such individual 

 
1.5. The district shall also provide public is able to access to the meeting via a two-way audiovisual 

platform or a two-way audio service and a live webcast, with real-time public comment being 
allowed via the remote platform as well asor service, in addition to public comment being 
available in person and 

 
The platform or service may require members of the public shall be able to offerto register in 
order to make public comments in real time. so long as the platform or service is not controlled 
by the district 
 

6. The agenda shall includefor the meeting includes information describing how members of the 
public can access the platform.  or service(Government Code 54953) 

 
If a disruption prevents broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using the call-in optionthe 
platform or internet-based service option, or a disruptionis disrupted such that is within the Board's 
control prevents members ofpublic cannot access the meeting or give real-time public from offering 
public comments usingcomment, the call-in option or internet-based service option,meeting may 
continue but the Board shallmay not take action on any agenda itemsitem until public access to the 
meetingdisruption is restoredresolved. (Government Code 54953) 
 
Teleconferencing for “Just Cause” 

 
A Board member mayshall be permitted to appear remotely, pursuant to the provisions below,participate 



Page 9 of 12 

by teleconference for just cause for no more than two meetings per calendar year. (Government Code 
54953)A Board member appearing for just cause shall notify the Board at the earliest possible 
opportunity of the need to participate in the meeting remotely, including at the start of a regular meeting. 
(Government Code 54953) 
 

Just CauseFor purposes of this section, "just cause" may exist for any of the following: (Government 

Code 54953) 

 
1. A childcare or caregiving need of a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse, or 

domestic partner that requires a Board member to participate remotely 
 

2. A contagious illness prevents a Board member from attending in person 
 

3. A Board member has a need related to a physical or mental disability not otherwise reasonably 
accommodated 
 

4. A Board member is traveling while on official business of the Board or another state or local 
agency 

 

Teleconferencing by Individual Board Member Due to Emergency Circumstances 

 

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54953, as amended by AB 557 (Ch. 534, Statutes of 2023), authorizes 

a Board member, until January 1, 2026, to participate in a meeting by teleconference due to emergency 

circumstances, as described below. 
 
Until January 1, 2026, when a physical or family medical emergency would prevent a Board member 
from attending a Board meeting in person, that Board member may request to participate in such 
meeting by teleconference. The Board member requesting to appear remotely shall submit the request as 
soon as possible and include a concise general description of the emergency that necessitated the 
request. The Board member shall not be required to disclose any disability, medical diagnosis, or 
personal medical information exempt under existing law. (Government Code 54953) 
 
If the request is received timely, it shall be added to the agenda as the first item of business at the meeting, 
even before any closed session items. If the request is not received timely, it shall be taken up by the Board 
before the first item of business at the meeting. The request shall only be granted upon a vote by the 
majority of the Board. (Government Code 54953, 54954.2) 
 
If from a the request is granted by the Board, the Board member may participate by teleconference 
without: (Government Code 54953) 
 

1. Including the location which is of the Board member participating by teleconference in the 
agenda 
 

2. Making the location of the Board member participating by teleconference open and accessible to 
the public and 
 

3. Posting the agenda at the location does not needof the Board member participating by 
teleconference 

 
For the Board member to beparticipate by teleconference due to emergency circumstances, all of the 
following are required: (Government Code 54953) 
 

1. All votes taken during the meeting are by rollcall 
 

2. At least a quorum of the Board participates in person from a singular physical location clearly 
identified on the agenda. (Government Code 54953) 

 
3. If theThe Board member participates remotely, the Board member shall utilizeparticipating by 

teleconference utilizes both audio and visual technology andto participate in the meeting 



Page 10 of 12 

 
CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54953 requires Board members participating by 
teleconference due to emergency circumstances to publicly disclose whether any individual 18 
years of age or older is present at the Board member's location and, if so, the general nature of the 
member's relationship with each such individual before "any" Board action is taken, but does 
not specify the frequency of such disclosures. One option is for the Board member to make the 
initial disclosure at the start of the meeting and then make additional disclosures, if needed, 
each time an individual 18 years of age or older enters or exits the Board member's location. 
Another option is for the Board member to make separate disclosures before each Board 
action. Districts are encouraged to consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal 
Services or district legal counsel to determine the best means of complying with this 
requirement. 
 

4. The Board member participating by teleconference publicly discloses, before any action is taken, 
whether any individual 18 years of age or older is present at the Board member's location and 
the general nature of the member's relationship with each such individual 
 

5. The public is able to access to the meeting via a two-way audiovisual platform or a two-way audio 
service and a live webcast, with real-time public comment being allowed via the remote platform 
as well asor service, in person and theaddition to public shall be able to offer comment being 
available in person 
 
The platform or service may require members of the public to register in order to make public 
comments in real time. so long as the platform or service is not controlled by the district 
 

6. The agenda shall includefor the meeting includes information describing how members of the 
public can access the platform. (Government Code 54953) or service 

 
If a disruption prevents broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using the call-in optionthe 
platform or internet-based service option, or a disruptionis disrupted such that is within the Board's 
control prevents members ofpublic cannot access the meeting or give real-time public from offering 
public comments using the call-in option or internet-based service option,comment, the meeting may 
continue but the Board shall not take action on any agenda itemsitem until public access to the 
meetingdisruption is restoredresolved. (Government Code 54953) 
 
Teleconferencing In total, a Board member may not participate by teleconference due to emergency 
circumstances alone, or together with teleconference due to just cause, as specified above, for more than 
20 percent of the Board's regular meetings or for more than three consecutive months. If the Board 
meets less than 10 times in a calendar year, a Board member may not appear remotely due to emergency 
circumstances for more than two meetings. (Government Code 54953) 
 
Teleconference Meetings During a Proclaimed State of Emergency 
 
Until January 1, 2024, the Board may conduct Board meetings by teleconference without posting agendas 
at all teleconference locations, identifying teleconference locations in meeting notices and agendas, 
allowing public access to each teleconference location, providing an opportunity for members of the 
public to address the Board directly at each teleconference location, and ensuring that at least a quorum of 
the Board participate from locations within district boundaries, 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54953, as amended by AB 557 (Ch. 534, Statutes of 2023), 
boards are authorized to conduct board meetings by teleconference as specified below when holding a 
board meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency. 

 
The Board may conduct a Board meeting entirely by teleconference during a proclaimed state of emergency 
pursuant to Government Code 8625-8629 in any of the following circumstances: (Government Code 
54953) 

 
1. State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing 

 
2.1. For the purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as the result of the emergency 

meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees due to the 



Page 11 of 12 

emergency 
 

3.2. When itthe Board has been determined, by majority vote as described in pursuant to Item #21 
above, that as a result of the emergency meeting in person would present imminent risks to the 
health or safety of attendees due to the emergency 

 
To conduct a The Board may hold a meeting by teleconference meeting for these purposes the following 
requirements shall be satisfiedduring a proclaimed state of emergency without: (Government Code 
54953)): 

 
1. The notice and Including the location of Board members in the agenda shall be given and posted 

as otherwise 
 

2. Making the locations of Board members open and accessible to the public 
 

3. Posting the agenda at the locations of Board members 
 

For the Board to hold such meeting, all of the following are required: (Government Code 54953) 

 
1. All votes taken during the meeting are by the Brown Actrollcall 

 
2. The notice and agenda of the meeting shall specify the means by which members of the public 

may public is able to access the meeting and offervia a call-in service or an internet-based 
platform or service, with real- time public comment being allowed via the platform or service 
 
2. If an internet-based platform or service is utilized, it may require members of the 
public to register in order to make public comments, including via a call-in so long as the 
platform or internet-based service optionis not controlled by the district 
 
Members of the public may be required to register to log in to a meeting when making public 
comments through an internet web site or other online platform that is operated by a third-party 
and not under the control of the Board. 
 

3. Members of the public shall be allowed to access the The agenda for the meeting, and the agenda 
shall provide an opportunity for  includes information describing how members of the public to 
address the Board directly pursuant to Government Code 54954.3can access the platform or 
service 

 
Members of 

4. If the platform or service is disrupted such that the public shall not be required to submit public comments 
in advance of a Board cannot access the meeting and shall be provided an opportunity to address the 
Board and offer comments inor give real -time 
Public public comment periods shall not be closed, the meeting may continue but the Board may not take 
action on any agenda item until the timeddisruption is resolved. (Government Code 54953) 
 
5. For any public comment period, if such is offered by the Board, with a time limit, the Board 
may not close that public comment period or the opportunity to register until the full time for public 
comment has elapsed or, if not timed, until . For any other public comment period, the Board shall 
allow a reasonable amount of time per agenda item has been allowedto allow members of the public 
to provide  

6. If during a Board meeting a disruption occurs which prevents the district from broadcasting the 
meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, or in 
the event of a disruption within the district's control that prevents members of the public from 
offering public comments, the Board shall take no further action on any agenda item until public 
access via the call-in or internet-based service option to the meeting is restored 

 
The district may, in its discretion, provide a physical location from which the public may attend or 
comment and to register to do so. (Government Code 54953) 
 
The Board may continue to conduct all meetings by teleconference, as specified above for 
teleconferencing during proclaimed states of emergency, by a majority vote finding within 30 days 



Page 12 of 12 

after teleconferencing for the first time, and every 30 days thereafter, that either: (Government Code 
54953) 
 

1. The throughout one or more 45-day periods so long as, prior to the beginning of each 45-day 

period, the Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency and 

determines that it continues to directly impact the ability of the Board to meet safely in person 

2. State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing 
. (Government Code 54953) 
 
 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Bylaw adopted: November 13, 2007 

revised: January 13, 2009 

revised: December 13, 2011 

revised: February 14, 2012 

revised: October 8, 2013 

revised: August 11, 2015 

revised: December 13, 2016 

revised: January 17, 2017 

revised: January 12, 2021 

revised: March 08, 2022 

revised: December 13, 2022 

revised: February 14, 2023 
revised: April 4, 2023 
revised: ??, 2024 



Page 1 of 3 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Board Bylaws 
Bylaw 9323.2: Actions By The Board 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 35164 and Government Code 54952.6, a simple majority 
vote of the membership of the Governing Board is necessary for an item to carry, even in those cases 
where some members are absent or seats are vacant. For instance, for districts with a five-member 
board, an item will pass with three votes, even if only three members are present or there is a vacancy. 
Education Code 35165 details the effect of a vacancy in districts with a seven-member board. For 
language regarding vote requirements when a board member abstains, see BB 9323 - Meeting 
Conduct. However, there are certain actions by the Board that require more than a simple majority 
vote, or that are required to occur, or may not occur, at a certain meeting or type of meeting; see 
E(1) 9323.2 for a non-exhaustive list of such actions. 

 
The Board of EducationThe Governing Board shall act by a majority vote of all of the membership 
constituting the Board, unless otherwise required by law. (Education Code 35164, 35165) 
 
An "action" by the Board means: (Government Code 54952.6) 
 

1. A collective decision by a majority of the Board members 
 

2. A collective commitment or promise by a majority of the Board members to make a positive or 
negative decision 
 

3. A vote by a majority of the Board members when sitting as the Board upon a motion, proposal, 
resolution, order, or ordinance 

 
The Board shall not take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. (Government Code 54953) 
 
Actions taken by the Board in open session shall be recorded in the Board minutes. (Education Code 
35145) 
 
Action on Non-Agenda Items 
 

CSBA NOTE: The Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963) generally prohibits any action or 
discussion of items not on the posted agenda. However, Government Code 54954.2 provides for four 
specific and narrow situations in which the Board can act on an item not on the agenda, as specified 
below. Board members may also briefly respond to questions raised by members of the public 
concerning items not on the agenda; see BB 9323 - Meeting Conduct. 

 
After publicly identifying the item,The Board may take action on a subject not appearing on the posted 
meeting agenda under any only after publicly identifying the item and if any one of the following 
conditions are met: (Government Code 54954.2) 
 

1. When a majority of the Board determines that an emergency situation exists, as defined for 
emergency meetings pursuant to Government Code 54956.5 
 

2. When two-thirds of the members present, or if less than two-thirds of the members are present 
then by a unanimous vote of all members present, determine that the need to take immediate 
action came to the district's attention after the agenda was posted 
 

3. When an item appeared on the agenda of, and was continued from, a meeting that occurred not 
more than five days earlier 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54954.2 provides that the Board may take action on a request 
by a Board member to participate by teleconference due to emergency circumstances pursuant 
to Government Code 54953 so long as the timing of the request did not allow for sufficient 
time to place it on the agenda. If the timing of the request did allow for sufficient time to place 
it on the agenda, it cannot be acted upon unless it was agendized. For more information 
regarding Board meetings by teleconference, see Board Bylaw 9320 - Meetings And Notices. 
 

4. Until December 31, 2025, when a Board member requests to participate by teleconference due to 
emergency circumstances pursuant to Government Code 54953 so long as the timing of the 
request did not allow for sufficient time to place it on the agenda 

 
Challenging Board Actions 
 

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 54960-54960.5 grants authority to the district attorney or any 
interested person to file a civil action asking the court to order the Board to stop or prevent a Brown Act 
violation or to invalidate a prior action taken by the Board. Pursuant to Government Code 54960.5, a 
court may award court costs and reasonable attorney's fees to a successful plaintiff. Prior to filing a civil 
action, the district attorney or interested party must send a written demand to the Board to "cure and 
correct" the alleged violation or prior action. The Board should consult with CSBA's District and 
County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel as appropriate. 

 
The district attorney's office or any interested person may file an action in court for the purpose of: 
(Government Code 54960, 54960.2) 
 

1. Stopping or preventing the Board's violation or threatened violation of the Brown Act 
2. Determining the applicability of the Brown Act to ongoing or future threatened Board actions 
3. Determining the applicability of the Brown Act to a past action of the Board that is not specified 

in Government Code 54960.1, provided that: 
a. Within nine months of the alleged violation, a cease and desist letter is submitted to the 

Board, clearly describing the past Board action and the nature of the alleged violation. 
b. The time for the Board to respond has expired and the Board has not provided an 

unconditional commitment to cease and desist from and not repeat the past action alleged 
to have violated the Brown Act. 

c. The action is brought within the time required by Government Code 54960.2. 
4. Determining the validity, under state or federal law, of any Board rule or action which penalizes 

any of its members or otherwise discourages their expression 
5. Compelling the Board to audio record its closed sessions because of a court's finding of the 

Board's violation of any applicable Government Code provision 
 
The district attorney or any interested person may file an action in court to nullify a Board action 
which is alleged to be in violation of law regarding any of the following: (Government Code 54960.1) 
 

1. Open meeting and teleconferencing (Government Code 54953) 
2. Agenda posting (Government Code 54954.2) 
3. Closed session item descriptions (Government Code 54954.5) 
4. New or increased tax assessments (Government Code 54954.6) 
5. Special meetings (Government Code 54956) 
6. Emergency meetings (Government Code 54956.5) 

 
Prior to bringing any action to nullify a Board action, the district attorney or other Before seeking to 
file a civil action to stop or prevent a Brown Act violation or to invalidate a prior action taken by the 
Board, the district attorney's office or interested person shall first present a demand to "cure and 
correct" the alleged violation. The demand shall clearly describe the challenged action and the nature 



Page 3 of 3 

 

of the alleged violation and shall be presented to the Board in writing within 90 days of the date when the 
action was taken. to the district. If the alleged violation concerns action taken in an open session but in 
violation of Government Code 54954.2 (agenda posting), the written demand must be made within 30 
days of the date when the alleged action took place. (Government Code 54960.1) 
 
Within 30 days of receiving the demand, the Board shall do one of the following: (Government Code 
54960.1) 
 

1. Cure or correct the challenged action and inform the demanding party in writing of its actions to 
cure or district receives a proper demand from the district attorney's office or any interested 
person to "cure and correct. 

2. Determine not to cure or correct the " an alleged violation and inform the demanding party in 
writing of its decision to not cure or correct. 

3. Take no action. Ifthe Brown Act, the Board takes no action within the 30-day period, its 
inaction shall be considered a decision not to cure or correct the challenged action. 

 
consult with legal counsel on if and how to respond as provided by law. (Government Code 54960-
54960.5) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Bylaw adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: May 10, 2011 
revised: February 12, 2013 
revised: April 9, 2019 
revised: ??, 2024 





Page 1 of 4 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 
Board Bylaws 
 
Exhibit 9323.2 – Actions by the Board 

 
RESTRICTIONS ON BOARD ACTIONS REQUIRING A SUPER MAJORITY VOTE 

 
This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of the Governing Board actions that require more than a majority vote 
as well as restrictions and prohibitions on when the Board may take certain actions. Other such actions 
may exist and may be identified in the future. 
 
Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Membership of the Board 
1.  

CSBA NOTE: For an action requiring a two-thirds vote to pass, a three-member governing board will 
need two board members to vote in favor of the item and a five-member board will need four board 
members to vote in favor of the item. For a seven-member board, five board members will constitute 
two-thirds of the board except, pursuant to Education Code 35165, if there are one or two vacancies, in 
which case four board members will constitute two-thirds of the board. 

 
1. Resolution declaring the Governing Board's intention to sell or lease real property  (Education 

Code 17466) 
 

2. 2. Resolution declaring the Board's intent to convey or dedicate property to the state or any 
political subdivision for the purposes specified in Education Code 17556 (Education Code 
17557) 

 
3. 3. Resolution authorizing and directing the Board president, or any other presiding officer, 

secretary, or member, to execute a deed of dedication or conveyance of property to the state or a 
political subdivision  (Education Code 17559) 

 
4. 4. Lease, for up to three months, of school property which has a residence on it and which 

cannot be developed for district purposes because funds are unavailable  (Education Code 17481) 
 

5. CSBA NOTE: Item #5 below is different from temporary borrowing pursuant to 
Government Code 53850- 53858, which requires only a simple majority vote of the Board. 
 

5. Request for temporary borrowing of funds needed for immediate requirements of the district to 
pay district obligations incurred before the receipt of district income for the fiscal year 
sufficient to meet the payment(s)  (Government Code 53821) 

 
6. 6. Upon complying with Government Code 65352.2 and Public Resources Code 21151.2, 

action to render city or county zoning ordinances inapplicable to a proposed use of the property 
by the district so long the proposed use of property is not for nonclassroom facilities 
(Government Code 53094) 

 
7. 7. When the district is organized to serve only grades K-8, action to establish a community 

day school for any of grades K-8  (Education Code 48660) 
 

8. 8. When the district is organized to serve only grades K-8, has an average daily 
attendance (ADA) of 2,500 or less, or desires to operate a community day school to serve any of 
grades K-6 (and no higher grades) and seeks to situate a community day school on an existing 
school site, certification that satisfactory alternative facilities are not available for a community 
day school  (Education Code 48661) 



Page 2 of 4 

 
9. 9. Resolution of intentDecision to issue pursue the authorization and issuance of general 

obligation bonds with the approvalpursuant to paragraph (3) of 55 percentsubdivision (b) of 
Section 1 of Article XIII A of the votersCalifornia Constitution and subdivision (b) of Section 18 
of Article XVI of the district California Constitution (Education Code 15266) 

 
10. Resolution of intent to issue bonds within a school facilities improvement district with the 

approval of 55 percent of the voters of the school facilities improvement district (Education Code 
15266) 

 
11. Resolution to place a parcel tax on the ballot  (Government Code 53724) 
 

1. 12. Resolution of necessity to proceed with an eminent domain action and, if the Board 
subsequently desires to use the property for a different use than stated in the resolution of 
necessity, a subsequent resolution so authorizing the different use  (Code of Civil Procedure 
1245.240, 1245.245) 

13.  
CSBA NOTE: Item #11 is for use by districts governed by a three-member board that have 
elected to use an alternative procedure for awarding contracts for public works projects pursuant 
to the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA) (Public Contract Code 
22000-22045), which establishes a higher bid limit and a more informal bidding process for 
certain projects. For further information, see BP 3311.1 - Uniform Public Construction Cost 
Accounting Procedures. Districts with a five- or seven-member board should delete Item #11 
below. See Item #4 in the section "Actions Requiring a Four-Fifths Vote of the Board" below for 
the corresponding language for a district with a five- or seven-member board. 
 

10. When the district has a three-member Board and has adopted the procedures set forth in the 
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA), action to respond to an 
emergency facilities condition without giving notice for bids to letaward contracts, including 
the repair or replacement of district facilities, the taking of any other action that is directly 
related to and immediately required by that emergency, the procurement of the necessary 
equipment, services, and supplies for those purposes, the delegation of authority to the 
Superintendent or designee to take such action, and the determination during a regular Board 
meeting of the need to continue the action  (Public Contract Code 22035, 22050) 

 
Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting 
 

1. 1. Determination that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action 
came to the district's attention after the posting of the agenda. If less than two-thirds of the 
Board members are present at the meeting, a unanimous vote of all members present is 
required.  (Government Code 54954.2) 

 
2. 2. Determination that a closed session is necessary during an emergency meeting.  If less 

than two-thirds of the Board members are present, a unanimous vote of all members present is 
required.  (Government Code 54956.5) 

 
Actions Requiring a Four-Fifths Vote of the Membership of the Board 
1.  

CSBA NOTE: For an action requiring a four-fifths vote to pass, a three-member board will need a 
unanimous vote in favor of the item and a five-member board will need four board members to vote in 
favor of the item. For a seven- member board, six board members will constitute fourth-fifths of the 
board except, pursuant to Government Code 35165, if there is one or two vacancies, in which case five 
or four board members, respectively, will constitute fourth-fifths of the board. 
 
Items #1 and #2 below are different from borrowing pursuant to Government Code 53850-53858, 
which requires only a simple majority vote of the Board. 

 



Page 3 of 4 

1. Resolution for district borrowing based on issuance of notes, tax anticipation warrants, or other 
evidences of indebtedness, in an amount up to 50 percent of the district's estimated income and 
revenue for the fiscal year or the portion not yet collected at the time of the borrowing  
(Government Code 53822, 53824) 

 
2. 2. Resolution for district borrowing, between July 15 and August 30 of any fiscal year, of 

up to 25 percent of the estimated income and revenue to be received by the district during that fiscal 
year from apportionments based on ADA for the preceding school year  (Government Code 
53823-, 53824) 

 
3. 3. Declaration of an emergency in order to authorize the district to include a particular 

brand name or product in a bid specification  (Public Contract Code 3400) 
 

4. CSBA NOTE: Item #4 is for use by districts governed by a five-member or seven-
member board. Districts with a three -member board should delete Item #4 below. See Item #11 
in Section "Actions Requiring a Two- Thirds Vote of the Membership of the Board" above for 
the corresponding language for a district with a three-member board. 
Items #4-5 are for use by districts that have elected to use an alternative procedure for 
awarding contracts for public works projects pursuant to the UPCCAA. For further 
information, see BP 3311.1 - Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures. 
 

4. When the district has a five-member or seven-member Board and has adopted the procedures 
set forth in UPCCAA, action to respond to an emergency facilities condition without giving 
notice for bids to letaward contracts, including the repair or replacement of district facilities, 
the taking of any other action that is directly related to and immediately required by that 
emergency, the procurement of the necessary equipment, services, and supplies for those 
purposes, the delegation of authority to the Superintendent or designee to take such action, and 
the determination during a regular Board meeting of the need to continue the action  (Public 
Contract Code 22035, 22050) 

 
5. 5. Resolution to award a contract for a public works project at $212,500 or less to the lowest 

responsible bidder, when the district is using the informal process authorized under the UPCCAA 
for projects of $200,000 or less, all bids received are in excess of $200,000, and the Board 
determines that the district's cost estimate was reasonable  (Public Contract Code 22034) 

 
ActionActions Requiring a Four-Fifths Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting 
 

1. A four-fifths vote of the Board members present at the meeting shall be required to 
approveApproval of the expenditure and transfer of necessary funds and use of district property 
or personnel to meet a national or local emergency created by war, military, naval, or air attack, 
or sabotage, or to provide for adequate national or local defense.  (Government Code 53790-
53792) 

 
Actions Requiring a Unanimous Vote of the Membership of the Board 
 

1. 1. Resolution authorizing and prescribing the terms of a lease of district property for 
extraction and taking of gas not associated with oil  (Education Code 17510-, 17511) 

 
2. 2. Authorization of the use of day labor or force account, or waiver of the competitive 

bid process pursuant to Public Contract Code 20111, when the Board determines that an 
emergency exists requiring the repair, alteration, work, or improvement to any facility to 
permit the continuance of existing classes or to avoid danger to life or property, and upon 
approval of the County Superintendent of Schools  (Public Contract Code 20113) 

 
ActionActions Requiring a Unanimous Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting 
 

1. 1. Private sale of surplus property without advertisement in order to establish that such 



Page 4 of 4 

property is not worth more than $2,500.  Disposal of surplus property or donation to a 
charitable organization requires the unanimous vote of the Board members present to establish 
that the value of such property would not defray the cost of arranging its sale.  (Education 
Code 17546) 

 
Actions Required to Occur During a Regular Board Meeting 
 

1. Termination of the Superintendent or an assistant superintendent without cause (Education Code 
35150) 

2. Discussion or action regarding the contract, salary, salary schedule, or other compensation of 
the Superintendent, assistant superintendent, or other management employee as described in 
Government Code 3511.1 (Government Code 54956) 

 
Prohibitions on Certain Board Actions 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 35150, as added by SB 494 (Ch. 875, Statutes of 2023), the 
Board is prohibited from taking action to terminate the Superintendent or Assistant Superintendent as 
specified in the following paragraph. 

 
1. Termination of the Superintendent or an assistant superintendent without cause within 30 days 

after the first convening of the Board after an election at which one or more Board members 
are elected or recalled (Education Code 35150) 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54230.7, as added by SB 229 (Ch. 774, Statutes of 
2023), districts disposing of surplus land that received a notification of violation from the 
Department of Housing and Community Development are required to hold an open and public 
meeting to review and consider the substance of the notice of violation and may not take final 
action to ratify or approve the proposed disposal until a public meeting is held. 
 

1.2. When the District is disposing of surplus land and has received a notification from the 
Department of Housing and Community Development pursuant to Government Code 54230.5 
with regard to the surplus land, final action to ratify or approve the proposed disposal of 
surplus land unless the district holds an open and public meeting in compliance with 
Government Code 54230.7 to review and consider the substance of the notice 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Exhibit version: February 12, 2013  
revised: December 9, 2014  
revised: June 14, 2016 
revised: April 9, 2019 
revised: December 14, 2020 
revised: ??, 2024 



Page 1 of 2 
 

CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET – December 17, 2024_First Reading 

 
Board Policy 0510 - School Accountability Report Card 

Policy updated to reflect that when 15 percent or more of a school's students speak a single primary language 
other than English, the school accountability report card (SARC) is required to be translated into that other 
language. Additionally, policy updated to reflect that the SARC is required to be provided in an 
understandable and uniform format and, to the extent practicable, provided in a language that 
parents/guardians can understand. 

 
Board Policy 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media 

Policy updated to align with current terms, language, and practice related to the use of social media. 
Additionally, policy updated to expand the Governing Board's philosophical statement to recognize the value 
of sharing district information with families and the community, and the requirement to ensure that content 
posted by the district on an official district social media account is accessible to individuals with disabilities. 
In addition, policy updated to clarify that an official district social media account does not create an open 
public forum or otherwise guarantee an individual's right to free speech even if one or more features on the 
account permit interaction with and between members of the public. Policy also updated to expand instances 
where students or staff are subject to discipline to include engaging with an official district social media 
account in a manner that violates board policies and administrative regulations. 

 
Board Policy 4040 - Employee Use of Technology 

Policy updated to provide guidance related to the appropriate use of artificial intelligence (AI) by employees. 
Additionally, policy updated to expand the Governing Board's philosophical statement related to the 
recognition that technological resources enhance employee performance to include the enrichment of 
curriculum and the enhancement of student learning. In addition, policy updated to include "software as a 
service" and "AI apps" in the definition of "district technology," specify the prohibited and permitted uses of 
technology, and provide for professional development in the appropriate use of technology resources. Policy 
also updated to (1) add material related to the regular review of current guidance regarding cybersecurity, 
data privacy, and digital media awareness and incorporate recommended practices into the districts processes 
and procedures, and (2) provide that employees may access their mobile or other communications device if 
there is a need to seek emergency assistance, assess the safety of a situation, or communicate with a person 
to confirm their safety. 

 
Board Policy 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 274, 2023) which (1) extends the prohibition from suspending a 
student for disruption or willful defiance, formerly applicable to students in grades K-8, to all students, with 
the prohibition being effective until July 1, 2029, and (2) prohibits a district from suspending or expelling a 
student solely on the fact that they are truant, tardy, or otherwise absent from school activities. Additionally, 
policy updated to clarify that no preschool student may be expelled or unenrolled except in accordance with 
law and as specified in administrative regulation, and to reflect NEW LAW (SB 114, 2023) which defines 
numerically significant subgroups to include long-term English learners. 

 
Board Policy 5147 - Dropout Prevention 

Policy updated to include parents/guardians and school staff in collaborative efforts to develop strategies to 
support student attendance. Additionally, policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 153, 2024) which enables 
the district to implement attendance recovery programs in order to make up lost instructional time and offset 
absences, and that any attendance recovery program be provided as a voluntary, limited-term option for a 
classroom-based, regular education program for students in grades Transitional Kindergarten-12. In addition, 
policy updated to expand the strategies to support students at risk of dropping out of school to include 
attendance recovery programs; expanded school and/or community support services such as a school nurse, 
school social worker, school counselor, school psychologist, or other student support personnel for case 
management and counseling; tracking student attendance and identifying students with attendance problems 
as early as possible so the school may provide appropriate support services and interventions; creating small, 
personalized learning communities to facilitate monitoring and support; or offering courses or programs that 
connect schoolwork with college and career success, including career technical education. Policy also 
updated to reflect the 2024-25 Federal Program Monitoring Instrument which requires that documentation 
be maintained for students who transfer from or otherwise withdraw from a school in the district. 

Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education 
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Board Policy 6112 - School Day 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 291, 2023) and NEW LAW (SB 153, 2024) which require districts 
that maintain any of grades K-6 to provide at least one or more periods of recess that total at least 30 minutes 
on regular instructional days and 15 minutes on early release days. Additionally, policy updated to add 
availability of equipment to the list of considerations when the Superintendent or designee is establishing the 
instructional schedule for secondary schools in order to account for sufficient technology and other 
equipment that is integral to the instructional program. 

 
Board Policy 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction 

Policy updated to incorporate the, "2023 Mathematics Framework for California Public Schools: 
Kindergarten through Grade 12," including the framework's goal of removing barriers to students' 
mathematics success and ensuring access and opportunity for all students to receive high level mathematics 
instruction. 

 
Board Policy 6152.1 - Placement in Mathematics Courses 

Policy updated to incorporate the, "2023 Mathematics Framework for California Public Schools: 
Kindergarten through Grade 12," including the encouragement for districts to offer alternative pathways of 
courses designed in a manner that provides maximum opportunities for students to access advanced 
mathematics courses during high school. 

 
Board Policy 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology 

Policy updated to provide guidance related to the appropriate use of artificial intelligence (AI). Additionally, 
policy updated to expand the Governing Board's philosophical statement to include the effective use of 
technology; promotion of digital citizenship; access to the latest digital tools; the alignment of technological 
resources with district goals, objectives and academic standards; and the use of technology to augment Board 
adopted instructional materials. In addition, policy updated to include "software as a service" and "AI apps" 
in the definition of "district technology," and provide that student use of technology be in accordance with 
district policies on academic honesty, data privacy, nondiscrimination, and copyright laws. Policy also 
updated to add material related to the regular review of current guidance regarding cybersecurity, data 
privacy, and digital media awareness and incorporate recommended practices into the districts processes and 
procedures. 



Page 1 of 2 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
Policy 0510: School Accountability Report Card 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. Code 35256 
requires the Governing Board to annually issue a school accountability report card (SARC) for each 
school site, reporting all conditions listed in Education Code 33126 and 41409.3. The goal of the 
SARC is to provide data by which parents/guardians can make meaningful comparisons between 
schools, thus enabling them to make informed decisions regarding which school they wish their 
children to attend. 
 
In addition, pursuant to 20 USC 6311, any district that receives Title I, Part A funding is required to 
prepare and disseminate an annual report card which includes specified information. Districts are 
authorized, pursuant to 20 USC 6311, to incorporate the information required to be in the annual 
report card into the SARC, rather than issuing a separate district-level report card. For more 
information on requirements for schools that receive Title I funding, see BP/AR 6171 - Title I 
Programs. 

 
The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to inform parents/guardians and the community 
about the conditions, needs, and progress at each district school and to provide data by which 
parents/guardians can make meaningful comparisons between schools. The process of gathering and 
analyzing data also provides opportunities for school and district staff to review achievements and 
identify areas for improvement. 
 
The Board shall annually issue a school accountability report card (SARC) for each school site. 
(Education Code 35256) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 33126.1 requires that the California Department of Education (CDE) 
develop a standardized template for use by districts in creating their SARCs. This template is posted on 
CDE's website. The template lists the specific legal requirements and definitions, including federal Title 
I requirements for district report cards pursuant to 20 USC 6311, as well as references to help access 
the data. 

 
In preparing the district's report cards, the Superintendent or designee may choose to use or adapt the 
model template provided by the California Department of Education. If the model template is not used, 
the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that data is reported in a manner that is consistent with input 
fromthe definitions for school conditions as provided in the template. At least every three years, the 
Board shall compare the content of the district's SARCs to the state's model template, recognizing that 
variances are allowed by law as necessary to meet local needs. (Education Code 33126.1, 35256) 
 
The Board shall annually approve the SARCs for all segments of the school community. district schools 
and shall evaluate the data contained in the SARCs as part of the Board's regular review of the 
effectiveness of the district's programs, personnel, and fiscal operations. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies for communicating the information contained in 
the cardsSARCs to all stakeholders, including opportunities for staff and the community to discuss 
their content. 
 
Notification and Dissemination of SARCs 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 35256 requires districts to notify parents/guardians that about the 
availability of the SARC and to provide a paper copy of the SARC upon request. Pursuant to Education 
Code 35256 and 35258, districts are required to make the SARC available, in both hard copy and on 
their website as applicable, by February 1 of each year; some county offices of education make SARCs 
for district schools within the county available on their websites. Districts are not required to submit 
their SARCs to CDE, but are required by Education Code 33126.1 to ensure that CDE has the district's 



Page 2 of 2 

 

current SARC website address for linkage from CDE's website. Districts may submit SARCs by 
utilizing CDE's online electronic SARC template available on myCDEconnect accounts, which 
submits the entirety of the SARC to CDE. Districts may also elect not to use the template and 
instead use a myCDEconnect account to upload an accurate URL where the SARC has been posted 
on the school or district website. Both methods of submission fulfill the requirement pursuant to 
Education Code 33126.1. 
 
Additionally, 20 USC 6311 requires districts receiving Title I, Part A funds to disseminate the Title 
I report card information to all district schools and to all parents/guardians of students attending 
those schools. Pursuant to 20 USC 6311, the district's Title I report card must be concise; presented 
in an understandable and uniform format, and to the extent practicable, in a language that parents 
can understand; and be accessible to the public, including posting the report card on the district's 
website. Districts without a website may publicize the report card by providing the information to 
the public in another manner as determined by the district. CDE recommends that all 
parents/guardians be notified of the availability of the full report and be provided information as to 
how they can access the full report on the Internet or request a paper copy, and that districts make 
copies of the SARC available in the school office and at public forums, such as parent information 
nights. 

 
Annually, on or before February 1 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall publicize the 
issuance of the SARCs, make the SARCs available on the district's website, and notify parents/guardians 
that a hard copy shall be provided upon request. (Education Code 33126, 35256, 35258) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48985, when 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a 
school speak a single primary language other than English, all notices and reports sent to the 
parents/guardians of these students must also be written in the primary language and may be answered 
by the parent/guardian in English or the primary language. In addition, 20 USC 6311 and 6312 require 
that districts receiving Title I funds provide parent/guardian notices in an understandable and 
uniform format and, to the extent practicable, in a language that parents/guardians understand. 

 
Additionally, when 15 percent or more of a school's students speak a single primary language other than 
English, the SARC shall be translated into that other language. (Education Code 48985) 
 
In addition, the SARC shall be provided in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent 
practicable, provided in a language that parents/guardians can understand. (Education Code 33126, 
35256; 20 USC 6311) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: ??, 2024 



Page 1 of 2 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Community Relations 
Policy 1114: District-Sponsored Social Media 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy is for use by districts that have created an official district 
(i.e., district- sponsored) social media account. "Social media" is defined in the accompanying 
administrative regulation as an online platform for collaboration, interaction, or active participation, or 
that allows users to post content, including social networking sites such as Instagram, TikTok, 
Facebook, X/Twitter, SnapChat, YouTube, LinkedIn, etc. 
 
District strategies for effective use of online social media may be incorporated into the district's 
comprehensive communications plan; see BP 1100 - Communication With The Public. 

 
The The Governing Board of Education recognizes the value of technology such as social media 
platforms in promotingto share district information with families and the community and promote 
community involvement and collaboration. in district decisions. The purpose of any official district 
social media platformaccount shall be to further the district's vision and mission, to support student 
learning and staff professional development, and to enhance communication and engagement with 
students, parents/guardiansfamilies, staff, and community members. 
 
 The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the content posted by the district on an official 
district social media account is accessible to individuals with disabilities. 
 

CSBA NOTE: To minimize liability to the district, it is important to clearly define the official social 
media accounts which the district sponsors and to specify the standards, guidelines, and protocols for 
their use. Board policies and administrative regulations do not apply to personal social media 
accounts that may be created by students, staff members, or other individuals which may sometimes 
include discussion of district-related issues but are not sponsored by the district. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop content guidelines and protocols for official district social 
media platformsaccounts to ensure thepublic access, appropriate and responsible use of these resources, 
and compliance with law, Boardboard policy, and administrative regulation. 
 
Guidelines for Content 
 

CSBA NOTE: Social media platforms typically allow users to post or reply to content posted on users' 
accounts, which is or can be made viewable to other users and even the public. This may create a 
"limited public forum," which grants individuals certain freedom of speech rights and limits the 
district's ability to remove comments or posts. Any removal of content by the district should be based 
on viewpoint-neutral considerations to protect against possible legal challenges. This may include, but 
is not limited to, removing content that constitutes discrimination, harassment, or bullying, as specified 
in the accompanying administrative regulation, or that is unrelated to the purpose of the account. 
Additionally, in order to help maintain the district's ability to remove content, users should be informed 
of the purpose of the account(s) and the limited nature of the discussion. District staff should regularly 
monitor all such accounts so that materials are removed as permitted by law. See the accompanying 
administrative regulation for language regarding removal of posts and monitoring of accounts. It is 
recommended that districts consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or 
district legal counsel to ensure that any provisions related to removal of posts or discipline of students 
or staff are consistent with law. 

 
Official district social media platformsaccounts shall be used only for their stated purposes and in a 
manner consistent with this policy and administrative regulation. By creating these official sites and 
allowing for public comment, the Board does This policy is not intendintended to create a limitedan 
open public forum or otherwise guarantee an individual's right to free speech. on any of the official 
district social media accounts even if one or more features on the account that permit interaction with 
and between members of the public are enabled. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the limited purpose of the official district social 
media platformsaccounts is clearly communicated to users. Each siteaccount shall contain a statement 
that specifiesspecifying the site's purposes along with a statementof the account, that users are expected to 
use the siteaccount shall only be used for thosesuch purposes. Each site shall also contain a statement that 
users are personally responsible for the content of their posts., and any other user expectations or 
conditions as specified in the accompanying administrative regulation. 
 
Official district social media platformsaccounts may not contain content that is obscene, libelous, or so 
incites students as to create a clear and present danger of the commission of unlawful acts on school 
premises, violation of school rules, or substantial disruption of the school's orderly operation. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Staff and students who post prohibited content on official district social media accounts 
are subject to discipline in accordance with board policies and administrative regulations. Pursuant to 
Education Code 48900(r), a student may be subject to suspension or expulsion if the student engages in 
an act of bullying by means of an electronic act as defined in Education Code 32261; see AR 5144.1 - 
Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process. Pursuant to Education Code 32261, an "electronic act" 
includes, but is not limited to, posts on a social networking site. 
 
When staff and students misuse the district's technological resources, they also may be subject to 
cancellation of user privileges in accordance with the district's Acceptable Use Agreement; see BP/E 
4040 - Employee Use of Technology and BP/E 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology. 

 
Staff or students who post prohibited content or otherwise engage with an official district social media 
account in a manner that violates board policies and administrative regulations shall be subject to 
discipline in accordance with districtsuch applicable policies and administrative regulations 4040, 
6163.4 and 5131.. 
 
Users of official district social media platformsaccounts, and anyone who posts, replies, or otherwise 
leaves a digital footprint on an official district social media account, should be aware of the public nature 
and accessibility of social media and that such information posted or left on an official district social 
media account may be considered a public record subject to disclosure under the Public Records Act. The 
Board expects users to conduct themselves in a respectful, courteous, and professional manner. 
 
Privacy 
 
TheTo the extent practicable, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the privacy rights of 
students, parents/guardians, staff, Board members, and other individuals are protected on official district 
social media platforms. 
 
Board policy pertainingaccounts. 
 
As it pertains to the posting of student photographs and the privacy of telephone numbers, home 
addresses, and email addresses, as specifiedofficial district social media accounts shall operate in 
BPaccordance with Board Policy 1113 - District and School Web Sites, shall also apply to official district 
social media platforms. 
 
Websites. 
 
Social media and networking sites and other online platforms shall not be used by district employees to 
transmit confidential information about students, employees, or district operations. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: November 8, 2011 
revised: ??, 2024 



Page 1 of 4 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Personnel (All Staff) 
Policy 4040: Employee Use Of Technology 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: This policy addresses employee use of technology, including artificial intelligence (AI), 
and may be modified to reflect district practice. The U.S. Department of Education, Office of 
Educational Technology's, "Artificial Intelligence and the Future of Teaching and Learning: Insights and 
Recommendations," provides information related to the opportunities for using AI to improve 
education, the challenges in doing so, and recommendations to guide further policy development. 
Districts are encouraged to continue to monitor the development of new technologies, including AI. 

 
The Board of EducationThe Governing Board recognizes that technological resources enhance employee 
performance by offering effective tools to assist in providing a quality instructional program; 
facilitating communications with parents/guardians, students, and the community; supporting district 
and school operations; and improving access to and exchange of information. The Board expects all 
employees to learn to use the available technological resources that will assist them in the performance of 
their job responsibilities. As needed, employees shall receive professional development in the appropriate 
use of these resources. 
 
Employees shall be responsible for the appropriate use of technology and shall use district technology 
primarily for purposes related to their employment. 
 
; enriching curriculum; and enhancing student learning. 
 
District technology includes, but is not limited to, computers, the district's computer network including 
servers and wireless computer networking technology (wi-fi), the Internet, email, USB drives, wireless 
access points (routers), tablet computers, smartphones and smart devices, telephones, cellular telephones, 
personal digital assistants, pagers, MP3 players, wearable technology, any wireless communication device 
including emergency radios, and/hardware, software, or future technological innovationssoftware as a 
service provided or paid for by the district, whether accessed on or off site or through district-owned or 
personally owned equipment or devices. 
 
The , including tablets and laptops; computer servers, wireless access points (routers), and wireless 
computer networking technology (wi-fi); the Internet; email; applications (apps), including artificial 
intelligence (AI) apps; telephones, cellular or mobile telephones, smartphones, smart devices, and 
wearable technology; or any wireless communication device, including radios. 
 
Employees shall review the prohibited and permitted uses of technology as specified in Board Policy 
5131.9 - Academic Honesty, be responsible for the appropriate use of technology, and use district 
technology primarily for purposes related to their employment consistent with board policies and 
administrative regulations. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraphs address employee use of technology, particularly AI 
applications, are permissive as they relate to such use, and should be modified to reflect district practice. 

 
An employee may use technology, including AI apps, to assist the employee in the performance of the 
employee's professional duties, including, but not limited to, the following specific tasks: developing 
syllabi, creating curriculum, reviewing student work, suggesting instructional strategies, and researching 
academic content or instructional techniques. Any employee using technology, including AI, shall 
review and be responsible for any final product or document; not share confidential student records 
with a third party, such as an AI app, except as permitted by law; use the technology in accordance 
with Board Policy 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials, and in a manner otherwise consistent with 
law, board policies, and administrative regulations. If an employee is unsure about the appropriate use 
of technology, the employee shall confer with the Superintendent or designee maybefore using. 



Page 2 of 4 

 

 
As determined by the Superintendent or designee, employees shall receive professional development in 
the appropriate use of these resources, including in the use of AI apps. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional and may be revised to reflect district practice. It is 
recommended that districts develop an "Acceptable Use Agreement" containing rules for the use of 
district technology, which should be signed by each employee. See the accompanying Exhibit for an 
example of an "Acceptable Use Agreement" for employees. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish an Acceptable Use Agreement which outlines employee 
obligations and responsibilities related to the use of district technology., including the use of AI apps. 
Upon employment and whenever significant changes are made to the district's Acceptable Use 
Agreement, employees shall be required to acknowledge in writing that they have read and agreed to 
the Acceptable Use Agreement. 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following paragraphs may be revised to reflect district practice. 
To qualify for federal universal service discounts for Internet access, Internet services, or internal 
connections (E- rate discounts), districts are mandated by 47 USC 254 to adopt an Internet safety 
policy that includes, but is not limited to, provisions addressing access by minors to "inappropriate 
matter" on the Internet; see BP 6163.4 - Student Use Of Technology. Consistent with those 
requirements, the following paragraph provides that employees shall not use district technology to 
access inappropriate matter. "Inappropriate matter" is not defined in the law and the determination of 
what matter is considered inappropriate is, to an extent, a local decision to be made by the district. 
Penal Code 313 provides a definition of "harmful matter" as specified below. Districts that have 
adopted their own definition should revise the following paragraphs as appropriate. 

 
Employees shall not use district technology to access, post, submit, publish, or display, or otherwise 
engage with harmful or inappropriate matter that is threatening, obscene, disruptive, sexually explicit, or 
unethical or that promotes any activity prohibited by law, Boardboard policy, or administrative 
regulations. 
 
Harmful matter includes matter, taken as a whole, which to the average person, applying contemporary 
statewide standards, appeals to the prurient interest and is matter which depicts or describes, in a patently 
offensive way, sexual conduct and which lacks serious literary, artistic, political, or scientific value for 
minors. (Penal Code 313) 
 

CSBA NOTE: 47 USC 254 mandates that the district's Internet safety policy for E-rate discounts 
include the operation and enforcement of a "technology protection measure" that protects against 
Internet access to visual depictions that are obscene, child pornography, or harmful to minors. 
Similarly, as a condition of using federal Student Support and Academic Achievement Grants (20 USC 
7101-7122) for the purpose of purchasing computers with Internet access or paying for direct costs 
associated with Internet access, 20 USC 7131 mandates that districts adopt an Internet safety policy 
that includes the operation of a technology protection measure that protects against access to visual 
depictions that are obscene or child pornography. Although these requirements focus on measures 
designed to protect students using district technology, they also require policy that affects Internet 
access by adults; see BP 6163.4 - Student Use Of Technology. 
The following paragraph is for use by districts that desire to use E-rate or federal technology funding 
sources and may be adapted by other districts that choose to install technology protection measures 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all district computers with Internet access have a 
technology protection measure that protects against access to visual depictions that are obscene, child 
pornography, or harmful to minors and that the operation of such measures is enforced. The 
Superintendent or designee may disable the technology protection measure during use by an adult to 
enable access for bona fide research or other lawful purpose. (20 USC 67777131; 47 USC 254) 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 4 

 

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 11549.3 authorizes districts, at district expense, to request the 
Military Department, in consultation with the California Cybersecurity Integration Center, to 
perform an independent security assessment of the district or individual district school. It is 
recommended that districts consult with the California Office of Emergency Services (OES) and 
utilize resources such as the State Threat Assessment System and Regional Fusion Centers to help assess 
potential threats. For more information, see OES' website. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review current guidance regarding cybersecurity, data 
privacy, and digital media awareness and incorporate recommended practices into the district's processes 
and procedures related to the protection of the district's network infrastructure, the monitoring and 
response to cyberattacks, ensuring data privacy, and managing suspicious and/or threatening digital 
media content, in accordance with Board Policy 3580 - District Records. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraphs may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 
Although 20 USC 7131 and 47 USC 254 require districts receiving Student Support and Academic 
Achievement Grants or E-rate discounts to enforce the operation of technology protection measures, 
the legislation clarifies that nothing in the Children's Internet Protection Act shall be construed to 
require the tracking of individual students' or adults' Internet use. Thus, it is recommended that 
districts consult with CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district 
legal counsel before tracking Internet use through personally identifiable web monitoring software 
or other means. 
 
In City of Ontario v. Quon, the U.S. Supreme Court held that a search of an employee's pager messages 
was reasonable because the search was motivated by a legitimate work-related purpose and was not 
excessive in scope. In addition, the city had adopted a policy stating that employees should have no 
expectation of privacy or confidentiality when using city equipment. The following paragraph, which 
may be modified to reflect district practice, includes a statement that employees should have no 
expectation of privacy when using district technology. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify employees in writing that they have no reasonable 
expectation of privacy in the use of any equipment or other technological resources provided by or 
maintained by the district, including, but not limited to, computer files, email, text messages, instant 
messaging, and other electronic communications, even when provided their own password.district 
technology, as defined above, even when using their personal devices. To ensure proper use, the 
Superintendent or designee may monitor employee usage of district technology at any time without 
advance notice or consent and for any reason allowed by law. 

 
CSBA NOTE: In City of San Jose v. Superior Court, the California Supreme Court held that a 
government employee's communications about public business are not excluded from a request under 
the California Public Records Act (CPRA) simply because they have been sent or received on a personal 
account or personal device. Thus, employees should be aware that if they use personal accounts or 
devices to communicate about district business, they may be required to temporarily provide the district 
with access to their personal accounts or devices. Alternatively, employees may search their personal 
communications using reasonable effort, sign a sworn declaration regarding the nature of their search, 
and provide any responsive communications to the district as directed. The court observed that the 
CPRA requires districts to use "reasonable effort" to locate existing records in response to a public 
records request, but that such searches need not be extraordinary or intrusive. For further information, 
see CSBA's, "Legal Alert: Tips for Governing Boards in Response to Public Records Act Ruling on 
Electronic Communications." 

 
In addition, employees shall be notified that records, including communications, maintained on any 
personal device or messages sent or received on a personal device that is beingaccounts or devices used 
to conduct district business may beare subject to disclosure, at the district's request, and pursuant to a 
subpoena or other lawful request in accordance with law.. 
 
Employees shall report any security problem or misuse of district technology to the Superintendent or 
designee. 



Page 4 of 4 

 

 
Inappropriate use of district technology may result in a cancellation of the employee's user privileges, 
disciplinary action, and/or legal action in accordance with law, Boardboard policy, and administrative 
regulation. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 1139 prohibits an employer from preventing any employee from 
accessing the employee's mobile device or other communications device for seeking emergency 
assistance, assessing the safety of the situation, or communicating with a person to confirm the 
person's safety. 

 
Employees may access their mobile or other communications device if there is a need to seek emergency 
assistance, assess the safety of a situation, or communicate with a person to confirm the person's safety. 
(Labor Code 1139) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: October 13, 2015 
revised: ??, 2024 



Page 1 of 5 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Students 
Policy 5144.1: Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: Education Code 35291 requires the Governing Board to prescribe rules and regulations 
for maintaining discipline in the schools under its jurisdiction. Education Code 48918 mandates the 
setting of rules and regulations for student expulsion as specified in this Board policy and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. 
 
While recognizing that suspension or expulsion of students is sometimes necessary, legislative, 
administrative, regulatory, civic, and educational leaders are united in the belief that instructional 
time should be used for student learning purposes and that school discipline should be imposed in a 
way that, as much as possible, does not exclude students from school or limit their ability or 
opportunity to learn. The U.S. Department of Education's (USDOE) March 2023, "Guiding 
Principles for Creating Safe, Inclusive, Supportive, and Fair School Climates," states that unfair 
student discipline can result in a negative school climate, and an array of serious educational, 
economic, social, and emotional problems, including school avoidance and diminished educational 
engagement, decreased academic achievement, increased behavior problems, an increased likelihood of 
repeating a grade or dropping out, and involvement with the juvenile justice system. Consequently, 
USDOE recommends districts ensure the fair administration of student discipline in ways that treat 
students with dignity and respect while using a continuum of supports to increase student success 
and promote positive and supportive school environments that support students and keep them in the 
classroom learning as much as possible. Additionally, USDOE recommends schools to adopt a 
coordinated system of whole school evidence-based intervention practices that are more effective 
than exclusionary discipline in addressing student behavior and improving school climate and safety, 
such as positive behavioral interventions and supports; trauma-informed practices; social and emotional 
wellbeing; and restorative practices. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 48900.5, a district is not authorized to suspend a student for certain 
specified violations unless the student has been subjected to other means of correction which have 
failed to bring about proper conduct. Such other means of correction include, but are not limited to, 
conferences between school personnel, the student, and the student's parent/guardian; use of study, 
guidance, or other intervention teams to develop a plan to address the behavior in partnership with 
the student; referral for behavioral supports; and participation in restorative justice programs. 
Additionally, pursuant to Education Code 48900.5, as amended by AB 1165 (Ch. 22, Statutes of 2023), 
districts are encouraged to have a student who has been suspended, or for whom other means of 
correction have been implemented, for an incident of racist bullying, harassment, or intimidation, as 
well as the victim, to engage in a restorative justice practice suitable to address the needs of both the 
victim and the perpetrator, as specified in the accompanying administrative regulation. For further 
information about specific disciplinary strategies, including alternatives to class or school removals, 
see BP/AR 5144 - Discipline. 
 
Education Code 48900.5 authorizes a district to document in a student's records the alternative 
means of correction used to address the student's behavior. Furthermore, when a student is being 
suspended by the Superintendent, principal, or designee, Education Code 48911 requires that the 
student be informed, during the informal conference that precedes the suspension, of the other means of 
correction that were attempted before the suspension. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 48913.5, when a student in any of grades 1-12 has been suspended for 
two or more school days, the student's parent/guardian, or other person holding the right to make 
educational decisions for the student, may request homework that the student would otherwise have 
been assigned, and the student's teacher is required to provide such homework; see BP 6154 - 
Homework/Makeup Work. 

 
The Board of EducationThe Governing Board desires to provide district students access to educational 
opportunities in an orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their 



Page 2 of 5 

 

welfare and well-being, and promotes their learning and development. The Board shall develop rules 
and regulations setting the standards of behavior expected of district students and the disciplinary 
processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. 
 
The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending, and/or 
implementing suspension and expulsion shall be only those specified in law, in this policy, and in the 
accompanying administrative regulation. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48900(s), a student may be subject to discipline only when 
the violation is related to a school activity or school attendance as specified below. A student may also 
be disciplined for a violation committed away from school if it is related to a school activity or to 
school attendance. For example, Education Code 48900 defines bullying by means of an electronic act 
as including an act that originates off campus; see the accompanying administrative regulation and 
BP/AR 5131.2 - Bullying. Another example is the hostile school environment which a victim may 
suffer from sexual harassment that occurs off campus; see BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment. 

 
Except when otherwise permitted by law, a student may be suspended or expelled only when the behavior 
is related to a school activity or school attendance occurring within any district school or another 
school district, regardless of when it occurs, including, but not limited to, the following:  (Education 
Code 48900(s)) 

1. While on school grounds 
  

2. While going to or coming from school 
  

3. During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus 
  

4. During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity 
 
CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph addresses the problem of unlawful discrimination in the 
administration of student discipline. In their joint March 2023 publication, "Resource on Confronting 
Racial Discrimination in Student Discipline," the USDOE Office for Civil Rights and Department of 
Justice, Civil Rights Division noted that, based on decades of enforcement activity, discrimination 
based on race, color, and national origin in student discipline continues to be a significant concern and 
that disparities by race have persisted in the application of student discipline in schools. 

 
District staff shall enforce the rules concerning suspension and expulsion of students fairly, consistently, 
equally, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination policies. 
 
Appropriate Use of Suspension Authority 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 48900.5 requires districts to use other means of correction instead of 
suspension, except when a student commits certain enumerated offenses. The following section reflects 
legislative intent regarding appropriate use of suspension as a means of disciplining students and may 
be modified to reflect district practice. 

 
Except when a student's act violates Education Code 48900(a)-(e), as listed in itemsItems #1-5 under 
"Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion:  Grades K-12" of the accompanying administrative regulation, 
or when the student's presence causes a danger to others, suspension shall be used only when other means 
of correction have failed to bring about proper conduct.  (Education Code 48900.5, 48900.6) 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 
A student's parents/guardians shall be notified as soon as possible when there is an escalating pattern of 
misbehavior that could lead to on-campus or off-campus suspension. 
 



Page 3 of 5 

 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 48900(k), as amended by SB 274 (Ch. 597, Statutes of 2023), extends 
the prohibition from suspending a student for disruption or willful defiance, formerly applicable to 
students in grades K-8, to all students. Suspension of a student in grades 6-12 for disruption or willful 
defiance is prohibited until July 1, 2029. However, teachers may still suspend a student from class for 
willful defiance pursuant to Education Code section 48910. As part of the other means of correction 
specified in Education Code 48900.5, employees may also refer students for timely in-school 
interventions or supports for disruption or willful defiance. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 48900, if a student is referred on this basis, school administrators, are 
required to inform the referring employee within five business days, verbally or in writing, of the 
actions taken and, if none, the rationale for not providing any timely in-school interventions or 
supports. See "Suspension from Class by a Teacher" in the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 
No student may be suspended for disruption or willful defiance, except by a teacher pursuant to Education 
Code 48910.  (Education Code 48900) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48900(w), as amended by SB 274, a student may not be 
suspended or expelled based solely on the fact that they are truant, tardy, or otherwise absent from 
school activities. 

 
Students shall not be suspended or expelled forbased solely on a student's truancy, tardiness, or 
absenteeism from assigned school activities. (Education Code 48900) 
 
On-Campus Suspension 
 

CSBA NOTE: As an alternative to off-campus suspension, Education Code 48911.1 authorizes a 
supervised suspension classroom program for students who pose no imminent danger to anyone at 
school and who have not been recommended for expulsion, as specified below. 
 
The following optional section is for use by districts implementing a supervised suspension classroom 
program. Such districts may continue to claim funding apportionments for students so assigned, 
provided they meet specific criteria which are set forth under "On-Campus Suspension" in the 
accompanying administrative regulation. A district does not receive funding for off-campus 
suspensions. 

 
To ensure the proper supervision and ongoing learning of students who are suspended for any of the 
reasons enumerated in Education Code 48900 and 48900.2, but who pose no imminent danger or threat to 
anyone at school and for whom expulsion proceedings have not been initiated, the Superintendent or 
designee shall establish a supervised suspension classroom program which meets the requirements of law. 
 
Except where a supervised suspension is permitted by law for a student's first offense, supervised 
suspension shall be imposed only when other means of correction have failed to bring about proper 
conduct. (Education Code 48900.5) 
 
Authority to Expel 
 
A student may be expelled only by the Board.  (Education Code 48918(j)) 
 
As required by law, the Superintendent or principal shall recommend expulsion and the Board shall expel 
any student found to have committed any of the following "mandatory recommendation and mandatory 
expulsion" acts at school or at a school activity off school grounds:  (Education Code 48915) 
 

1. Possessing a firearm which is not an imitation firearm, as verified by a certificated employee, 
unless the student had obtained prior written permission to possess the item from a certificated 
school employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence 
  

2. Selling or otherwise furnishing a firearm 
  



Page 4 of 5 

 

3. Brandishing a knife at another person 
  

4. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058 
  

5. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 286, 
287, 288, or 289, or former 288a, or 289, or committing a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 
243.4 
  

6. Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921 
 
For all other violations listed in the accompanying administrative regulation, the Superintendent or 
principal shall have the discretion to recommend expulsion of a student. If expulsion is recommended, the 
Board shall order the student expelled only if it makes a finding of either or both of the 
following:  (Education Code 48915(b) and (e)) 
 

1. That other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about proper 
conduct 
  

2. That due to the nature of the violation, the presence of the student causes a continuing danger to 
the physical safety of the student or others 

 
A vote to expel a student shall be taken in an open session of a Board meeting. (Education Code 
48918(j)) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48917, the Board may suspend the enforcement of an 
expulsion order as long as a student satisfies specific criteria. See "Decision to Suspend Expulsion 
Order" in the accompanying administrative regulation for criteria. In addition, the Attorney General 
opined, in 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 85 (1997), that the enforcement of an expulsion order may be 
suspended even in those cases where the student has committed an offense for which expulsion is 
required by law. CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal 
counsel should be consulted as appropriate. 

 
The Board may vote to suspend the enforcement of the expulsion order pursuant to the requirements of 
law and the accompanying administrative regulation.  (Education Code 48917) 
 
No student shall be expelled for disruption or willful defiance.  (Education Code 48900) 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts that contract with the California 
Department of Education (CDE) to operate a California State Preschool Program. Education Code 
8489.1 prohibits the expulsion or disenrollment of a child in a preschool program unless the district has 
taken specified steps, the child's continued enrollment would present a serious safety threat to the child 
or other enrolled children, and the district refers the child's parents/guardians to other appropriate 
placements. For further details regarding the steps the district must take prior to expelling a child, see 
AR 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education. 

 
No child enrolled in a preschool program shall be expelled or unenrolled except under limited 
circumstances in accordance with Education Code 8489.1 and as specified in ARAdministrative 
Regulation 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education. 
 
Due Process 
 
The Board shall provide for the fair and equitable treatment of students facing suspension and/or 
expulsion by affording them theirthe students due process rights under the law. The Superintendent or 
designee shall comply with procedures for notices, hearings, and appeals as specified in law and 
administrative regulation.  (Education Code 48911, 48915, 48915.5, 48918) 
 



Page 5 of 5 

 

Maintenance and Monitoring of Outcome Data 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 48900.8 and 48916.1 require the district to maintain data related to 
suspensions and expulsions as provided below. Pursuant to Education Code 48916.1, the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction may require submission of such data as part of the Federal 
Program Monitoring process. In addition, 20 USC 7961 requires districts to submit to CDE a 
description of the circumstances surrounding any expulsions based on bringing or possessing a firearm 
on campus, including the name of the school, the number of students expelled, and the type of firearms 
involved. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain outcome data related to student suspensions and 
expulsions in accordance with Education Code 48900.8 and 48916.1, including, but not limited to, the 
number of students recommended for expulsion, the grounds for each recommended expulsion, the 
actions taken by the Board, the types of referral made after each expulsion, and the disposition of the 
students after the expulsion period. For any expulsion that involves the possession of a firearm, such data 
shall include the name of the school and the type of firearm involved, as required pursuant to 20 USC 
7961. Suspension and expulsion data shall be reported to the Board annually and to the California 
Department of Education when so required. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 52060, districts are required to address school climate in the 
local control and accountability plan, as measured by student suspension and expulsion rates and other 
local measures for each school and each numerically significant student subgroup. Education Code 
52052, as amended by SB 114 (Ch. 48, Statutes of 2023), defines numerically significant subgroups to 
include ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, long-term 
English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students, when there are at least 
30 students in the subgroup or at least 15 foster youth or homeless students. 

 
In presenting the report to the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall disaggregate data on 
suspensions and expulsions by school and by numerically significant student subgroups, including, but 
not limited to, ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, long-term 
English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students. Based on the data, the 
Board shall address any identified disparities in the imposition of student discipline and shall determine 
whether and how the district is meeting its goals for improving school climate as specified in its local 
control and accountability plan. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: August 9, 2011 
revised: June 12, 2012 
revised: April 9, 2013 
revised: June 18, 2014 
revised: March 10, 2015 
revised: February 13, 2018 
revised: November 13, 2018 
revised: June 23, 2020 
revised: ??, 2024 





Page 1 of 4 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Students 
Policy 5147: Dropout Prevention 

 

 
Cautionary Notice: As added and amended by SBX3 4 (Ch. 12, Third Extraordinary Session, Statutes of 
2009) and ABX4 2 (Ch. 2, Fourth Extraordinary Session, Statutes of 2009), Education Code 42605 grants 
districts flexibility in "Tier 3" categorical programs. The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District has 
accepted this flexibility and thus is deemed in compliance with the statutory or regulatory program and 
funding requirements for these programs for the 2008-09 through 2012-13 fiscal years. As a result, the 
district may temporarily suspend certain provisions of the following policy or regulation that reflect these 
requirements. For further information, please contact the Superintendent or designee. 
 
The Board of Education recognizes that regular school attendance is critical to student learning and 
achievement. The Board desires to provide a learning environment that engages students, helps them 
become self-motivated, encourages regular attendance, and enables them to meet district standards and to 
graduate. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies to identify and serve students at all grade levels 
who are at risk of dropping out of school. Students may be identified on the basis of indicators such as 
frequent absenteeism, truancy, or tardiness; below-grade-level achievement; or personal, social, health, or 
economic concerns that may make a student more likely to drop out of school. 
 
The school site council at each school shall develop a comprehensive school plan for student retention in 
accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. The plan shall be designed to help 
reduce student absenteeism and dropout rates and to improve student achievement. 
 
Outreach Consultants 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that eligible schools have outreach consultants to help meet 
the needs of at-risk students. 
 
Priority shall be given to placing outreach consultants in schools that have at least 50 percent of students 
eligible for the federal free and reduced price lunch program and that are eligible for Title I funds 
pursuant to 20 USC 6301-6322. (Education Code 41506) 
 
Outreach consultants shall: (Education Code 52890) 

1. If hired after January 1, 2004, possess a Dropout Prevention Specialist Certificate from a 
California State University or enroll in a Dropout Prevention Specialist Certificate program within 
90 days of the date of hire 
2. Demonstrate knowledge of local alternative educational programs and employ those programs to 
respond to the differential needs and unique learning styles of students 
3. Demonstrate knowledge of local community agencies and community programs to recruit those 
agencies and programs to assist in the physical or psychological remediation of students 
4. Utilize local school programs, options, and opportunities to assist students in locating, securing, 
or retaining employment 
5. Utilize techniques that enhance interpersonal communication, self-understanding, self-
disclosure, and depth-level sharing 
6. Employ appropriate methods to create circumstances necessary so that change is permitted and 
encouraged in individuals, programs, and institutions 
7. Be responsible for supervising, instructing, conducting negotiations with, and advising students 
and adults 



Page 2 of 4 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy may be modified to reflect district practice. 

 
The Governing Board expects all students to remain in school until graduation in order to acquire critical 
knowledge and skills and be prepared for postsecondary education and/or employment. The 
Superintendent or designee shall identify factors that impede student success in school and shall 
implement integrated, systemic support and strategies that address dropout prevention and promote 
timely intervention and recovery. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The California Department of Education (CDE) has identified strategies that have a 
positive effect in encouraging students to regularly attend school, which can be found on CDE's 
webpage, "School Attendance Improvement Strategies." Some of these practices include identifying and 
responding to grade level and student subgroup patterns of chronic absence and truancy; improving 
communication with parents/guardians, including using bilingual aides and sending out attendance 
emails in the language used by parents/guardians; positive reinforcement for improved attendance such 
as prizes for individuals or classes with the most improved attendance; and personalizing relationships 
between students and school support staff and/or teachers, including establishing homeroom classes for 
secondary students for all years of high school. 

 
The Superintendent or designee, in collaboration with parents/guardians, school staff, and community 
agencies and organizations as appropriate, shall develop districtwide and schoolwide strategies that 
support regular school attendance for all students. Dropout prevention strategies shall include efforts to 
provide a safe and positive learning environment that engages and motivates students, encourages 
students' connectedness to the schools, offers meaningful educational opportunities, and promotes 
student health and well-being. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 46211, as added by SB 153 (Ch. 38, Statutes of 2024), a 
district may, beginning July 1, 2025, implement attendance recovery programs for students in grades 
TK-12 to make up lost instructional time and offset absences, including chronic absenteeism for up to 
10 days of attendance in a school year or the number of absences a student accrued in that school year, 
whichever is less. A student's participation in an attendance recovery program is optional and may not 
be punitive. Attendance recovery programs may be operated before or after school, on weekends, or 
during intersessional periods. A district that operates attendance recovery programs must offer access to 
the programs throughout the school year, including at least once during each term, such as a trimester 
or quarter. 
 
Students participating in an attendance recovery program may generate average daily attendance (ADA) 
for the school year in which the program is operated, and that otherwise meets the requirements of 
Education Code 46211. Districts are required to report ADA accrued through participation in an 
attendance recovery program to CDE separately from ADA generated during the school day in 
classroom-based programs. It is recommended that districts with questions about attendance recovery 
programs consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district 
counsel. 

 
In order to make up lost instructional time and offset absences, the district may implement attendance 
recovery programs. Any attendance recovery program shall be provided as a voluntary, limited-term 
option for a classroom- based, regular education program for students in grades TK-12 in accordance 
with Education Code 46211. 
 
In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies to provide targeted support to 
individual students who are at risk of dropping out of school. Students may be identified based on 
indicators such as chronic absenteeism, truancy, or tardiness; below-grade-level academic achievement 
as evidenced by student assessment results and/or teacher evaluations; and personal, social, health, or 
economic circumstances that may affect student performance and behavior in school. 
 
Strategies to support students at risk of dropping out of school may include, but are not limited to: 
 

1. Meetings and/or home visits with the student and parent/guardian to identify and address 
barriers to the student's success and inform them of the state's compulsory education law 
 



Page 3 of 4 

 

2. Individualized instruction that responds to the needs and unique learning styles of students 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 46211, as added by SB 153, a district may implement 
attendance recovery programs for students to make up lost instructional time and offset absences, 
including chronic absenteeism. 

3. Supplemental instruction during or outside the school day that is designed to help students 
overcome academic deficiencies, including attendance recovery programs 
 

4. Enrollment in alternative or specialized educational programs 
 

5. Assistance locating employment or work-based learning opportunities which link classroom 
learning with real- world experiences 
 

6. Academic guidance and personal counseling services 
 

7. Referral to a student success team, school attendance review board, or other team that addresses 
persistent attendance problems 

 
CSBA NOTE: A student assistance program (SAP) is an integrated effort to intervene with 
students for non- academic barriers to learning by connecting education, programs, and school 
and community services to create a network of supports for students through referral and 
facilitation of appropriate services. Non- academic barriers to learning include substance abuse; 
mental health issues including depression or suicidal thoughts or behavior, self-injury, stress and 
anxiety, or grief; emotional or social issues; school adjustment problems; trauma generated at 
school or home; attendance and dropout problems; physical and sexual abuse, or violence; gender 
issues; teen pregnancy and parenting; family issues, including dissolution, homelessness or 
displacement, family member mental health and substance use disorders, and relationship 
difficulties; parent or other family member incarceration; military deployment; or delinquency 
and involvement with the juvenile justice system. CDE's publication, "SAP Bulletin 11: Nine 
Components of SAPs," provides for recommended minimum requirements needed to reduce 
barriers to learning and ensure student success, including a board policy defining the school's 
role in creating a safe, disciplined, and drug-free learning community; staff development; 
program awareness; an internal referral process; a problem solving team and case management; 
SAP evaluation; educational student support groups; cooperation and collaboration with 
community agencies and resources; and integration with other school-based programs. 
 
For resources related to the implementation of SAPs, see CDE's, "Student Assistance Programs" 
and "School Attendance Improvement Strategies" webpages. 

8. Referral to school and/or community support services, such as a student assistance program; 
substance abuse program; health services or school nurse; school social worker or social services; 
school counselor, school psychologist or other student support personnel for case management and 
counseling; and other resources 
 

9. Continued monitoring of student attendance, including tracking student attendance and identifying 
students with attendance problems as early as possible, so the school may provide appropriate 
support services and interventions 
 

10. Employment of qualified outreach consultants to perform duties related to dropout 
identification, prevention, intervention, and recovery as assigned 

 
CSBA NOTE: Items #11-12 reflect recommendations from the Institute of Education Sciences' 
publication, "Preventing Dropout in Secondary Schools," to create small communities to facilitate 
monitoring and support, and to engage students by offering programs that connect schoolwork 
with college and career success and that improve students' capacity to manage challenges in 
and out of school. 

11. Creating small, personalized learning communities to facilitate monitoring and support 
 



Page 4 of 4 

 

12. Offering courses or programs that connect schoolwork with college and career success, including 
career technical education 

 
CSBA NOTE: Education Code 52060 requires districts to develop a local control and accountability 
plan (LCAP) which includes goals and actions aligned with specified state priorities, including student 
engagement; see BP/AR 0460 - Local Control And Accountability Plan. Pursuant to Education Code 
52060, student engagement should be measured by school attendance rates, chronic absenteeism rates, 
middle school dropout rates, high school dropout rates, high school graduation rates, as applicable, and 
any additional metrics developed and selected by the district. Actions identified to address other state 
priorities, such as school climate and student achievement, may also contribute to dropout 
prevention. 

 
The strategies may be incorporated into the district's local control and accountability plan and linked to 
district goals for student engagement, school climate, and student achievement. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are trained to support at-risk students and are 
prepared to implement intervention strategies or to make appropriate referrals to support services. 
 
When a student leaves school prior to the end of a school year, or when a student successfully 
completed the prior school year but did not begin attending the next grade or school that the student 
was expected to attend or had pre- registered to attend, the Superintendent or designee shall make 
efforts to determine whether the student has dropped out or has transferred to another educational 
setting. The Superintendent or designee may contact the student's parents/guardians to verify school 
enrollment and, if necessary, shall implement intervention and recovery efforts. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to 20 USC 6311, a district that receives Title I Funds is required to include 
high school graduation rates, including a four-year adjusted cohort graduate rate, on its annual report 
card. CDE monitors district programs and operations for compliance with these requirements 
through its Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) process. The FPM process includes a review of a 
district's written policies and procedures to maintain required documentation for students who 
transfer or withdraw from a district school, including the exit reasons and documentation to support 
the exit reasons. The following paragraph reflects the Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate 2024-25 
FPM instrument. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain required documentation for students who transfer from or 
otherwise withdraw from a school in the district. (20 USC 6311) 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph reflects indicators specified in Education Code 52060, 
as measures of student engagement for purposes of the LCAP, and may be revised to reflect district 
practice and the grade levels offered by the district. 
 
Using data submitted by districts through the California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System 
(CalPADS), CDE calculates four-year graduation and dropout rates for districts, schools, and 
counties. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 60900.2, as added by AB 1340 (Ch. 576, Statutes of 2023), and contingent 
upon an appropriation, CDE is required to post a report on its website that allows the public to view 
statewide-level four- and five-year cohort graduation rates for students with disabilities, 
disaggregated by disability. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board on measures of student engagement, 
including school attendance rates, chronic absenteeism rates, middle school and high school dropout rates, 
and high school graduation rates. The Board shall monitor district progress in increasing student retention 
in school and may require revisions in district plans and strategies as needed. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: ??, 2024 



Page 1 of 2 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Instruction 
Policy 6112: School Day 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. California 
law specifies the minimum length of the school day for elementary and secondary schools, which are 
reflected in the accompanying administrative regulation. In its, "Frequently Asked Questions," about 
attendance accounting and instructional time for independent study, the California Department of 
Education has clarified that the same minimum school day requirements apply to independent study 
as for students attending in-person instruction; for more information regarding instructional minutes 
as they relate to independent study, see BP/AR 6158 - Independent Study. 

 
The Governing Board shall fix the length of the school day in accordance with law.  (Education Code 
46100) 
 
At each school, the length of the school day shall be the same for all students, except as otherwise 
permitted by law. For any student with a disability, the length of the school day shall be as specified in 
the student's individualized education program or Section 504 plan. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following two paragraphs are for use by districts that maintain any of grades K-6. 
Pursuant to Education Code 49056, as added by SB 291 (Ch. 863, Statutes of 2023) and amended by SB 
153 (Ch. 38, Statutes of 2024), districts that maintain any of grades K-6 are required to provide recess 
as specified below, except that for any student with a disability, recess is required to be in accordance 
with the student's individualized education program or Section 504 plan. SB 153 clarifies that the recess 
requirements specified below do not apply to (1) students in grades 7-12, even if the school also serves 
students in grades K-6, or (2) students in grade 6 where grade 6 is part of a middle school program or 
part of a program that serves some or all of students in grades 6-12 if the students receive physical 
education as specified in Education Code 51222. For information regarding the prohibition against 
denying a student recess, see BP 5144 - Discipline. 

 
Unless there is a field trip or other educational program, the daily schedule for elementary schools 
grades K-6 shall include at least one periodor more periods of recess of at least 2030 minutes, during 
which  on regular instructional days and 15 minutes on early release days. During this time, students shall 
be provided supervised opportunities, outdoors when weather and air quality permit unless space is not 
sufficient in which case recess may be held indoors, to engage in unstructured physical activity., play, 
organized games, and/or social engagement with peers, and may be provided a snack. (Education Code 
49056) 
 
Educational Program means the entire school-sponsored offering for students, including in-class and out-
of-class activities. (Education Code 49056) 
 

CSBA NOTE: The remainder of this policy only applies to districts that maintain secondary schools and 
may be modified to reflect district practice. 

 
In establishing the daily instructional schedule for each secondary school, the Superintendent or designee 
shall give consideration to course requirements and curricular demands, availability of school facilities 
and equipment, and applicable legal requirements. 
 
The Board encourages flexibility in scheduling so as to provide longer time blocks or class periods when 
appropriate and desirable to support student learning, provide more intensive study of core academic 
subjects or extended exploration of complex topics, and reduce transition time between classes. 
 
Prior to implementing a block or alternative schedule that will allow secondary students to attend 
school for fewer school days than the total number of school days for which the school is in session, 
the Board shall consult in good faith, in an effort to reach agreement with the certificated and classified 



Page 2 of 2 

employees of the school, parents/guardians of the students who would be affected by the change, and the 
community at large.  Such consultation shall include at least one public hearing for which the Board 
shall give adequate notice to the employees and to the parents/guardians of affected 
students.  (Education Code 46162) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: June 19, 2013 
revised: March 08, 2022 
revised: ??, 2024 



Page 1 of 3 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Instruction 
Policy 6142.92: Mathematics Instruction 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice and the grade 
levels offered by the district. Education Code 51210 and 51220 require that mathematics, including 
mathematical concepts and understandings, operational skills, and problem solving, be included in 
the course of study offered in grades 1-12; see AR 6143 - Courses Of Study. In addition, Education 
Code 51224.5 specifies that the adopted course of study for grades 7-12 must include algebra, and 
that, as part of the two courses in mathematics required for high school graduation pursuant to 
Education Code 51225.3, students must complete coursework that meets or exceeds the rigor of the 
content standards for Algebra I or Mathematics I adopted by the State Board of Education (SBE); see 
BP 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 51002, SBE adopts curriculum frameworks for specified subjects, 
including mathematics, to offer guidance for the implementation of content standards for those 
subjects. The, "2023 Mathematics Framework for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through 
Grade Twelve," is designed to help educators align classroom teaching with California's math content 
standards, and provides guidelines and selected research-based approaches for implementing 
instruction to ensure optimal benefits for all students. 

 
The Board of EducationThe Governing Board desires to offer a rigorous mathematics program that 
progressively develops the knowledge and skills students will need to succeed in college and career. The 
district's mathematics program shall be designed to teach mathematical concepts in the context of real-
world situations and to help students gain a strong conceptual understanding, a high degree of procedural 
skill and fluency, and ability to apply mathematics to solve problems. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The, "2023 Mathematics Framework for California Public Schools," aims to remove 
structural barriers to students' mathematics success and ensure access and opportunity for all students to 
receive high level mathematics instruction. 

 
The district's mathematics program shall also incorporate recognized principles, concepts, and research-
based strategies to meet the needs of all students and provide equal access to learning through lessons that 
are relevant to students. Instructional resources adopted for use in district schools shall provide 
guidance to support a diverse student population, including students who are English learners, at-
promise, advanced learners, and students with learning disabilities. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for mathematics are based on three 
principles: (1) focus, placing strong emphasis on the concepts in the standards so that students have 
sufficient time to think about, practice, and integrate new ideas, (2) coherence, linking topics across 
grade levels and establishing connections with other topics, and (3) rigor, requiring that conceptual 
understanding, procedural skills and fluency, and applications be pursued with equal intensity. 

 
For each grade level, the Board shall adopt academic standards for mathematics that meet or exceed the 
Common Core State Standards. The Superintendent or designee shall develop or select curricula that are 
aligned with these standards and the state curriculum framework. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The CCSS for mathematics include two types of standards: (1) mathematical practice 
standards, which are identical for each grade level, and (2) mathematical content standards, which are 
different at each grade level. The eight practice standards are grouped into four categories as reflected 
in Items #1-4 below. 

 
The district's mathematics program shall address the following standards for mathematical practices 
which are the basis for mathematics instruction and learning: 
 



Page 2 of 3 

 

1. Overarching habits of mind of a productive mathematical thinker: Making sense of problems and 
persevering in solving them; attending to precision 
 

2. Reasoning and explaining: Reasoning abstractly and quantitatively; constructing viable arguments 
and critiquing the reasoning of others 
 

3. Modeling and using tools: Modeling with mathematics; using appropriate tools strategically 
 

4. Seeing structure and generalizing: Looking for and making use of structure; looking for and 
expressing regularity in repeated reasoning 

 
In addition, the district's mathematics program shall be aligned with grade-level standards for 
mathematics content. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for districts that offer grades K-8, reflect the mathematics 
content standards of the CCSS, and may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
For grades K-8, mathematics content shall address, at appropriate grade levels, counting and cardinality, 
operations and algebraic thinking, number and operations in base ten, fractions, measurement and data, 
geometry, ratios and proportional relationships, functions, expression and equations, the number system, 
and statistics and probability. Students shall learn the concepts and skills that prepare them for the rigor of 
higher mathematics. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts that maintain secondary grades. The, 
"Mathematics Framework for California Public Schools," recognizes that schools are free to organize 
mathematics pathways in different ways but encourages districts to consider offering two potential 
pathways to enable students who would like to reach Calculus by the end of high school to do so. 
The California Department of Education's guidance recommends flexibility so that choices made by 
students during their first two years do not limit their later choices. Additionally, the CCSS provide 
for two advanced courses: (1) Advanced Placement Statistics and Probability and (2) Calculus. 
 
The district may revise the following paragraph to reflect the pathway(s) used in the district and/or the 
grade levels at which higher mathematics are offered. 

 
For higher mathematics, the district shall offer a pathwayalternative pathways of courses through 
which students shall be taught concepts that address number and quantity, algebra, functions, modeling, 
geometry, and statistics and probability. 
 
Any pathway offered by the district shall be designed in a manner that provides maximum opportunities 
for students to access advanced mathematics courses during high school. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51224.7 requires any district maintaining grade 9 to have a policy in 
place regarding placement of students in mathematics courses. See BP 6152.1 - Placement In 
Mathematics Courses for language fulfilling this mandate. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop protocols to ensure that students are appropriately placed in 
mathematics courses and are not unnecessarily required to repeat a course that they have successfully 
completed in an earlier grade level. 
 
Placement decisions shall be based on consistent protocols and multiple academic measures. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that certificated staff have opportunities to participate in 
professional development activities designed to increase their knowledge and skills in effective 
mathematics teaching practices. 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 

CSBA NOTE: As a condition of receiving funds for instructional materials from any state source, 
Education Code 60119 requires the Governing Board to annually hold a public hearing to determine 
whether each student in the district has sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional 
materials in mathematics and other specified subjects to use in class and to take home. For a 
definition of "sufficiency" for this purpose and a sample Board resolution, see BP/E 6161.1 - 
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students have access to sufficient instructional materials, 
including manipulatives and technology, to support a balanced, standards-aligned mathematics program. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide the Board with data from state and district mathematics 
assessments and program evaluations to enable the Board to monitor program effectiveness. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: August 12, 2014 
revised: January 12, 2016 
revised: ??, 2024 





Page 1 of 2 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Instruction 
Policy 6152.1: Placement In Mathematics Courses 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 51224.7, the Governing Board of a district that serves 
students entering grade 9 is mandated to develop and, at a regularly scheduled public Board meeting, 
adopt a fair, objective, and transparent mathematics placement policy with specified components. 
Although not required, districts serving students who are transitioning between elementary and middle 
or junior high schools are encouraged to adopt and implement policy to address the transition from 
elementary to secondary mathematics courses. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 51225.3, high school graduation requirements include the completion 
of at least two mathematics courses in grades 9-12. Pursuant to Education Code 51224.5, one of those 
two courses must meet or exceed state content standards for Algebra I or Mathematics I. While the 
completion of Algebra I or Mathematics I coursework prior to 9th grade would satisfy this 
requirement, it does not exempt a student from the requirement to complete two mathematics 
courses in grades 9-12. See BP 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction and BP 6146.1 - High School 
Graduation Requirements. 
 
According to a report by the Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights of San Francisco Bay Area, "Held 
Back: Addressing Misplacement of 9th Grade Students in Bay Area School Math Classes," many 
districts place students who have successfully completed Algebra I in 8th grade into Algebra I class 
again in 9th grade. In adding Education Code 51224.7, the legislature declared that placement in 
appropriate mathematics courses is critically important for a student's middle and high school years, 
and that misplacement in the sequence of mathematics courses creates barriers for educational success, 
especially for students of color. This is compounded by the fact that the University of California (UC) 
and California State University (CSU) systems require at least three years of mathematics for freshman 
admission. 

 
The Board of EducationThe Governing Board believes that a sound educational program must include the 
study of subjects that prepare students for admission to higher education and/or fulfilling careers. 
District students shall be provided an opportunity to complete a sequence of mathematics courses 
recommended for admission into the University of California (UC) and California State University (CSU) 
systems. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The "Mathematics Framework for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through 
Grade Twelve," recognizes that schools are free to organize mathematics pathways in different ways 
but encourages districts to consider offering two potential pathways to enable students who would 
like to reach Calculus by the end of high school to do so. The California Department of Education's 
guidance recommends flexibility so that choices made by students during their first two years do not 
limit their later choices. 

 
The district shall offer alternative pathways of courses designed in a manner that provides maximum 
opportunities for students to access advanced mathematics courses during high school. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. For nonunified 
districts, Education Code 51224.7 mandates that the policy address the consistency of mathematics 
placement policies between elementary and high school districts. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall work with district teachers, counselors, and administrators and 
the representatives of feeder schools to develop a well-articulated sequence of mathematics courses and 
consistent protocols for placing students in mathematics courses offered at district high schools. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51224.7 mandates that the district's policy includes the following 
statement. Also see the accompanying administrative regulation for further information regarding 
placement protocols. 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Such placement protocols shall systematically take into consideration multiple objective academic 
measures that may include, but are not limited to, statewide mathematics assessments, including state 
interim and summative assessments; placement tests that are aligned to state-adopted content standards in 
mathematics; classroom assignment and grades; and report cards. (Education Code 51224.7) 
 

CSBA NOTE: CSBA's 2019 Governance Brief, "Disproportionality in Math Placement,' explains that 
the practice of having 9th grade students repeat Algebra I disproportionately affects students of 
color and from low-income families, and could therefore be found to be discriminatory. For more 
information about the prohibition against discrimination in district programs and activities, see BP 
0410 - Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities. 

 
District staff shall implement the placement protocols uniformly and without regard to students' 
socioeconomic background or any characteristic specified in BPBoard Policy 0410 - 
Nondiscrimination inIn District Programs andAnd Activities, including, but not limited to, race, sex, 
gender, nationality, and ethnicity. 

 
CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51224.7 mandates that the district's policy includes at least one 
placement checkpoint within the first month of the school year to ensure accurate placement and 
permit reevaluation of individual student progress. 

 
The placement protocols shall provide for at least one reevaluation within the first month of the 
school year to ensure that students are appropriately placed in mathematics courses and shall specify the 
criteria the district will use to make this determination. Any student found to be misplaced shall be 
promptly placed in the appropriate mathematics course. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51224.7 mandates that the district's policy offers a clear and timely 
recourse for any student and the student's parent/guardian who question the student's placement. See 
the accompanying administrative regulation for additional language implementing this requirement. 

 
If a student or parent/guardian questions the student's placement, he/shethe student or the student's 
parent/guardian may appeal the decision to the Superintendent or designee. The decision of the 
Superintendent or designee shall be final. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all teachers, counselors, and other district staff 
responsible for determining students' placement in mathematics courses receive training on the 
placement protocols. 
 

CSBA NOTE: To ensure that students who are qualified to progress in mathematics courses based on 
their performance on district-selected objective academic measures are not unlawfully or 
inappropriately held back, Education Code 51224.7 mandates that the policy includes a requirement 
for an annual examination of aggregate student placement data, which must be reported to the Board. 
In addition, pursuant to Education Code 52060, districts must annually review their progress toward 
the student achievement goals in their local control and accountability plan using measures that 
include, as applicable, the percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy 
the requirements for entrance to the UC and CSU systems. 

 
The Board and the Superintendent or designee shall annually review student data related to placement 
in mathematics courses offered at district high schools to ensure that students who are qualified to 
progress in mathematics courses based on their performance on objective academic measures are not 
being held back in a disproportionate manner on the basis of any subjective or discriminatory basis, and 
shall develop strategies for removing any identified barriers to students' access to mathematics courses. 
The Superintendent or designee shall also report on the percentage of district students who have 
successfully completed mathematics courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the University 
of California and the California State University.UC and CSU systems. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: February 9, 2016 
revised: December 11, 2018 
revised: ??, 2024 



Page 1 of 4 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Instruction 
Policy 6163.4: Student Use Of Technology 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: This policy addresses student use of technology, including artificial intelligence (AI), 
and may be modified to reflect district practice. The U.S. Department of Education's (USDOE), 
"2024 National Education Technology Plan," provides actionable recommendations to advance the 
effective use of technology to support teaching and learning and aims to close the digital divide by 
ensuring that all students can equitably access the latest digital tools and technology. Additionally, the 
USDOE Office of Educational Technology's, "Artificial Intelligence and the Future of Teaching and 
Learning: Insights and Recommendations," provides information related to the opportunities for using 
AI to improve education, the challenges in doing so, and recommendations to guide further policy 
development. Districts are encouraged to continue to monitor the development of new 
technologies, including AI. 

 
The Board of EducationThe Governing Board believes that effective use of technology is integral to 
the education and development of students. In order to promote digital citizenship, the Board 
recognizes that students must have access to the latest digital tools and receive instruction that allows 
students to positively engage with technology in ways that respect human rights and avoids Internet 
dangers. Technological resources provided to students, including technology based on artificial 
intelligence (AI), shall be aligned to district goals, objectives, and academic standards. The use of 
technology shall augment the use of Board adopted instructional materials. 
 
The Board intends that technological resources provided by the district be used in a safe and responsible 
manner in support of the instructional program and for the advancement of student learning. All students 
using these resources shall receive instruction in their proper and appropriate use. 
 
Students shall be allowed to use such technology, including AI technology, in accordance with district 
policies, including, but not limited to, policies on academic honesty, data privacy, nondiscrimination, 
and copyright protections. All students using these resources shall receive instruction in the proper and 
appropriate use of technology. Such instruction shall incorporate students' responsibilities regarding 
academic honesty, honoring copyright provisions, assessing the reliability and accuracy of information, 
protecting personal data, and the potential for biases and errors in artificially generated content. 
 
District technology includes, but is not limited to, computer hardware, software, or software as a service 
provided or paid for by the district, whether accessed on or off site or through district-owned or 
personally owned equipment or devices, including tablets and laptops; computer servers, wireless access 
points (routers), and wireless computer networking technology (wi-fi); the Internet; email; applications 
(apps), including AI apps; telephones, cellular telephones, smartphones, smart devices, and wearable 
technology; or any wireless communication device, including radios. 
 
Teachers, administrators, and/or library media specialists are expected to review the technological 
resources and online sites that will be used in the classroom or assigned to students in order to ensure that 
they are appropriate for the intended purpose and the age of the students. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraphs may be revised to reflect district practice. It is 
recommended that districts develop an "Acceptable Use Agreement" containing rules for the use of 
district technology, which students and their parents/guardians should be required to sign. See the 
accompanying Exhibit for an example of an "Acceptable Use Agreement" for students. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify students and parents/guardians about authorized uses of 
district technology, user obligations and responsibilities, and consequences for unauthorized use and/or 
unlawful activities in accordance with this Boardboard policy and the district's Student Network 
Responsibility Contract. 
 



Page 2 of 4 

 

District technology includes, but is not limited to, computers, the district's computer network including 
servers and wireless computer networking technology (wi-fi), the Internet, email, USB drives, wireless 
access points (routers), tablet computers, smartphones and smart devices, telephones, cellular telephones, 
personal digital assistants, pagers, MP3 players, wearable technology, any wireless communication device 
including emergency radios, and/or future technological innovations, whether accessed on or off site or 
through district-owned or personally owned equipment or devices. 
 
Acceptable Use Agreement. 
 
Before a student is authorized to use district technology, the student and his/herthe student's 
parent/guardian shall sign and return the Student Network Responsibility Contract.Acceptable Use 
Agreement. In that agreement, the student and parent/guardian shall agree not to hold the district or 
any district staff responsible for the failure of any technology protection measures or user mistakes or 
negligence and shall agree to indemnify and hold harmless the district and district staff for any 
damages or costs incurred. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. If the district 
chooses to monitor student use of district equipment or other technological resources, it is 
recommended that the district adopt an express, written policy and notify students of the policy through 
the "Acceptable Use Agreement." 
 
Searches of students' personally owned devices (e.g., cell phones, computers, other communications 
devices) may be subject to the Fourth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution which prohibits 
unreasonable search and seizure. In New Jersey v. T.L.O., the U.S. Supreme Court held that the legality 
of a search of a student's belongings depends on whether the search is "reasonable." The 
"reasonableness" of a search depends on two factors: (1) whether there is individualized suspicion that 
the search will turn up evidence of a student's violation of the law or school rules and (2) whether the 
search is reasonably related to the objectives of the search and not excessively intrusive in light of the 
student's age, gender, and/or the nature of the infraction. See BP 5145.12 - Search And Seizure. 

 
The district reserves the right to monitor student use of technology within the jurisdiction of the 
district without advance notice or consent. Students shall be informed that theirthe use of district 
technology, including, but not limited to, computer files, email, text messages, instant messaging, and 
other electronic communicationsas defined above, is not private and may be accessed by the district for 
the purpose of ensuring proper use. Students have no reasonable expectation of privacy in the use of the 
district technology. Students' personally owned devices shall not be searched except in cases where there 
is a reasonable suspicion, based on specific and objective facts, that the search will uncover evidence of 
a violation of law, district policy, or school rules. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that have adopted a program, 
pursuant to Education Code 49073.6, to gather or maintain information from students' social media 
activity that pertains directly to school safety or student safety. Districts that choose to adopt such a 
program must comply with specified notification and program requirements; see BP/AR 5125 - 
Student Records. 

 
The Superintendent or designee may gather and maintain information pertaining directly to school safety 
or student safety from the social media activity of any district student in accordance with Education 
Code 49073.6 and BP/ARBoard Policy/Administrative Regulation 5125 - Student Records. 
 
Whenever a student is found to have violated Boardboard policy or the district's Student Network 
Responsibility ContractAcceptable Use Agreement, the principal or designee may cancel or limit a 
student's user privileges or increase supervision of the student's use of the district's equipment and other 
technological resources, as appropriate. Inappropriate use also may result in disciplinary action and/or 
legal action in accordance with law and Boardboard policy. 
 
The Superintendent or designee, with input from students and appropriate staff, shall regularly review and 
update procedures to enhance the safety and security of students using district technology and to help 
ensure that the district adapts to changing technologies and circumstances. 
 



Page 3 of 4 

 

Internet Safety 
 

CSBA NOTE: 20 USC 7131 mandates that districts adopt an Internet safety policy as a condition of 
receiving federal Student Support and Academic Achievement Grants (20 USC 7101-7122) for the 
purpose of purchasing computers with Internet access or paying for direct costs associated with 
accessing the Internet. 47 USC 254 mandates that districts adopt an Internet safety policy in order to 
qualify for federal universal service discounts for Internet access (E-rate discounts). This mandate 
applies to districts that receive E-rate discounts for Internet access, Internet services, or internal 
connections, but not to districts that receive discounts for telecommunications services only. 
 
Both 20 USC 7131 and 47 USC 254 require that the district's policy include the operation and 
enforcement of a "technology protection measure" that blocks or filters Internet access to visual 
depictions that are obscene, child pornography, or harmful to minors. As part of the funding 
application process, a district is required to certify that it has the required policy in place and is 
enforcing the operation of the technology protection measure. 
 
The following paragraph is mandated for districts that use E-rate discounts or Student Support and 
Academic Achievement Grants and may be adapted by other districts that choose to install 
technology protection measures.  

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all district computers with Internet access have a 
technology protection measure that protects against access to visual depictions that are obscene, child 
pornography, or harmful to minors and that the operation of such measures is enforced. (20 USC 
67777131; 47 USC 254; 47 CFR 54.520) 
 
 

CSBA NOTE: Districts receiving E-rate discounts for Internet access, Internet services, or internal 
connections are also mandated by 47 USC 254 to adopt policy that addresses (1) access by minors to 
"inappropriate matter" on the Internet, (2) safety and security of minors when using email, chat rooms, 
and other forms of direct electronic communication, (3) unauthorized access, including "hacking" and 
other unlawful online activities by minors, (4) unauthorized disclosure, use, and dissemination of 
personal identification information regarding minors, (5) measures designed to restrict minors' access to 
harmful materials, and (6) education of students about appropriate online behavior, including interacting 
with other individuals on social networking sites and in chat rooms as well as cyberbullying awareness 
and response. 
 
The remainder of this section addresses these mandates and may be revised to reflect district practice. 
Districts that do not receive E-rate discounts may choose to use or adapt this material at their discretion. 

 
To reinforce these measures, the Superintendent or designee shall implement rules and procedures 
designed to restrict students' access to harmful or inappropriate matter on the Internet and to ensure 
that students do not engage in unauthorized or unlawful online activities. 
 

CSBA NOTE: "Inappropriate matter" is not defined in the law and the determination of what matter is 
considered inappropriate for minors is a local decision to be made by the district. Penal Code 313 
provides a definition of "harmful matter" as specified below. Districts that have adopted their own 
definition should revise the following paragraph as appropriate. 

 
Harmful matter includes matter, taken as a whole, which to the average person, applying contemporary 
statewide standards, appeals to the prurient interest and is matter which depicts or describes, in a patently 
offensive way, sexual conduct and which lacks serious literary, artistic, political, or scientific value for 
minors. (Penal Code 313) 
 
The district's Student Network Responsibility ContractAcceptable Use Agreement shall establish 
expectations for appropriate student conduct when using the Internet or other forms of electronic 
communication, including, but not limited to, prohibitions against: 
 

1. Accessing, posting, submitting, publishing, or displaying harmful or inappropriate matter that is 



Page 4 of 4 

 

threatening, obscene, disruptive, or sexually explicit, or that could be construed as harassment or 
disparagement of others based on their race/ethnicity, national origin, sex, gender, sexual 
orientation, age, disability, religion, or political beliefs 

 
2. Intentionally uploading, downloading, or creating computer viruses and/or maliciously 

attempting to harm or destroy district equipment or materials or manipulate the data of any other 
user, including so-called "hacking" 

 
CSBA NOTE: Penal Code 653.2 makes it a crime for a person to distribute another person's 
personal identification information electronically with the intent to cause harassment by a 
third party or to threaten a person's safety or that of a person's family (e.g., placing a person's 
picture or address online so that the person receives harassing messages). 

3. Distributing personal identification information, including the name, address, telephone number, 
Social Security number, or other personally identifiable information, of another student, staff 
member, or other person with the intent to threaten, intimidate, harass, or ridicule that person 

 
CSBA NOTE: Government Code 11549.3 authorizes districts, at district expense, to request the 
Military Department, in consultation with the California Cybersecurity Integration Center, to 
perform an independent security assessment of the district or individual district school. Districts are 
encouraged to consult with the California Office of Emergency Services (OES) and utilize resources 
such as the State Threat Assessment System and Regional Fusion Centers to help assess potential 
threats. For more information see OES' website. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review current guidance regarding cybersecurity, data 
privacy, and digital media awareness and incorporate recommended practices into the district's processes 
and procedures related to the protection of the district's network infrastructure, the monitoring and 
response to cyberattacks, ensuring data privacy, and monitoring suspicious and/or threatening digital 
media content, in accordance with Board Policy 5125 - Student Records. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide age-appropriate instruction regarding safe and appropriate 
behavior on social networking sites, chat rooms, and other Internet services. Such instruction shall 
include, but not be limited to, the dangers of posting one's own personal identification information 
online, misrepresentation by online predators, how to report inappropriate or offensive content or 
threats, behaviors that constitute cyberbullying, and how to respond when subjected to 
cyberbullying. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: September 8, 2015 
revised: ??, 2024 


	01_2024-12-17_SCOE & SPJUSD_Joint Meeting Agenda
	02_2025 SCOE and SPJUSD Joint Meeting Schedule_2024-12-17_pending approval
	03_2025 SCOE and SPJUSD Schedule of Annual Governance Matters_2024-12-17_pending approval
	04_California School Dashboard
	05_Enrollment Summary_2024-2025_Month 03
	06_Inter-District Attendance Agreements_report for agenda_2024-2025_December
	07_2024-11-12_SCOE & SPJUSD_Joint Meeting Minutes
	08_CONSENT_SCOE NOV2024 CHECKS
	09_CONSENT_SPJUSD NOV2024 CHECKS
	10_SCOE 1st Interim
	11_SPJUSD 1st Interim
	12_Classified_1_Tentative Agreement_2024-12-17
	13_Classified_2_CBA updates_2024-12-17
	14_School Community Outreach Worker NO 229
	15_Classified Range Salary Schedule_CA minimum wage increase, new position
	16_2024-2025_teachers on local assignment_REVISED(2)
	17_Policy Packet_10-08-24_second reading 12-17-24
	18_Policy Packet_12-17-24_first reading



